
TOWN OF FLORENCE 
REGULAR MEETING  

AGENDA 
 

PURSUANT TO A.R.S. § 38-431.02, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO THE MEMBERS 
OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL AND TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC THAT THE 
FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL WILL HOLD A MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC ON 
MONDAY, JUNE 17, 2013, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, 
LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL: Mayor Rankin___; Vice-Mayor Smith___;   

Councilmembers:  Tom Celaya___; Bill Hawkins___;  
Ruben Montaño___; Tara Walter___; Vallarie Woolridge___;  

 
3. INVOCATION PERFORMED BY BISHOP RYAN MICHAEL, CHURCH OF JESUS 

CHRIST OF LATTER-DAY SAINTS.  
 
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  

Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  
Individual Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those 
commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter 
be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council shall not 
discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless 
the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 

6. MOTION TO ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT 
NO. 1 BOARD. 
 
a. Public Hearing to receive public comment on the Merrill Ranch Community 

Facilities District No. 1 Budget; and for Discussion and Possible Adoption 
of Resolution No. MRCFD1 124-13: A RESOLUTION OF BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 
1, FLORENCE ARIZONA, ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2013-2014. 
 

b. Public Hearing to receive public comment on Merrill Ranch Community 
Facilities District No. 1 Property Tax Levy; and Second Reading of 
Ordinance No. MRCFD1 110-13: AN ORDINANCE OF MERRILL RANCH 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN 
SUM UPON EACH ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00) OF VALUATION 
SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM 
FUNDS FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
ENDING THE 30TH DAY OF JUNE 2014 (First Reading June 3, 2013). 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



 
 
 

c. Resolution No. MRCFD1 125-13: Discussion and Possible Adoption of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE DISTRICT BOARD OF MERRILL RANCH 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING 
THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A SIXTH AMENDMENT AND WAIVERS 
(ASSESSMENT AREA SIX   UNITS 2 AND 9A) FOR DISTRICT 
DEVELOPMENT, FINANCING PARTICIPATION AND 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1); AUTHORIZING AND RATIFYING THE GIVING 
OF NOTICE OF HEARING WITH RESPECT TO APPROVING A FEASIBILITY 
REPORT WHICH INCLUDES IDENTIFYING THE PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE 
OF THE PROJECTS, THE AREAS TO BE BENEFITTED, THE EXPECTED 
METHOD OF FINANCING AND THE SYSTEM OF PROVIDING REVENUES TO 
OPERATE AND MAINTAIN THE PROJECTS, ALL AS PROVIDED IN SUCH 
REPORT; APPROVING SUCH FEASIBILITY REPORT AND RESOLVING THE 
INTENT THEREFOR; ORDERING THE WORK WITH RESPECT THERETO; 
APPROVING THE ASSESSMENT DIAGRAM AND METHOD OF 
ASSESSMENT WITH RESPECT TO ASSESSMENT AREA SIX AND 
PROVIDING FOR THE LEVY OF THE RELATED ASSESSMENT. 
 

7. MOTION TO ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY 
DISTRICT NO. 1 BOARD. 
 

8. MOTION TO ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT 
NO. 2 BOARD. 

 
a. Public Hearing to receive public comment on Merrill Ranch Community 

Facilities District No. 2 Budget; and for Discussion and Possible Adoption 
of Resolution No. MRCFD2 224-13: A RESOLUTION OF BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 
2, FLORENCE ARIZONA, ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
2013-2014. 
 

b. Public Hearing to receive public comment on Merrill Ranch Community 
Facilities District No. 2 Property Tax Levy; and Second Reading of 
Ordinance No. MRCFD2 209-13: AN ORDINANCE OF MERRILL RANCH 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN 
SUM UPON EACH ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00) OF VALUATION 
SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM 
FUNDS FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
ENDING THE 30TH DAY OF JUNE 2014. (First Reading June 3, 2013) 
 

9. MOTION TO ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY 
DISTRICT NO. 2 BOARD. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



10. ADJOURN TO A SPECIAL MEETING 
 

a. Public Hearing to receive citizen comments on the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
Budget and for Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of Resolution No. 1397-
13: A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014. 

 
11. ADJOURN FROM A SPECIAL MEETING 
 
12. PUBLIC HEARINGS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 

a. Public Hearing to receive public comments on property tax levy and for 
Second Reading of Ordinance No. 596-13: AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN 
OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED 
VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, 
SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH ONE HUNDRED 
DOLLARS ($100.00) OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT 
ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR GENERAL MUNICIPAL 
EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30TH DAY OF JUNE 2013. 

 
b. Public Hearing and Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of forwarding a 

recommendation to the Arizona Department of liquor Licenses and Control 
on Able Clare Hollie’s (Dollar General Store #7336) application for a New 
Series 10 Liquor License located at 495 N. Pinal Parkway, Suite 10, 
Florence Arizona.   
 

c. Retirement Award presented to Becki Guilin, Finance Director, for 19 years 
of dedicated service. 
 

d. Presentation by Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce recognizing the 
Business of the Month. 

 
13. CONSENT: All items indicated by an (*) will be handled by a single vote as part 

of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public 
objects at the time the agenda item is called. 
  
a. *Ratification of an Application for Wine Festival License/Wine Fair License 

for the Windmill Winery to hold a wine tasting at the Freedom Fest at 
Heritage Park, on July 4, 2013, from 4:00 p.m. to 8:30 p.m.  

 
b.  *Resolution No. 1401-13: Adoption of A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 

FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING THE SERVICE 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN SMARTWORKSPLUS, INC. AND THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE EFFECTIVE 07/01/2013 FOR A FIVE YEAR TERM. 
 

c. *Authorization to enter into an Employment Agreement with Town Manager, 
Charles A. Montoya.  
 

d. *Authorization to enter into an Employment Agreement with the Town 
Attorney, James E. Mannato. 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



 
e. *Authorization to enter into an Employment Agreement with the Town 

Magistrate, Katherine Kaiser. 
 

f. *Appointment of Judy Hughes to the Florence Industrial Development 
Authority Board, with a term to expire December 31, 2013.  
 

g. *Authorization to award the purchase of fire equipment for new ladder truck 
to LN Curtis in an amount not to exceed $118,883.03. 
 

h. *Authorization to purchase extrication equipment for new ladder truck to 
Municipal Emergency Services, Inc. in an amount not to exceed 
$100,245.00. 
 

i. *Ratification of FY 2013 Operation Stonegarden grant application submitted 
June 7, 2013 and adoption of Resolution No. 1404-13: A RESOLUTION OF 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, PERTAINING TO 
THE SUBMISSION OF PROJECTS FOR CONSIDERATION IN THE STATE OF 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY. 

 
j. *Approval of the May 13 and May 20, 2013, Town Council minutes. 

 
k. *Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 

 
i. November 28, 2013 Historic District Advisory Commission minutes 

ii. March 20 and April 17, 2013 Joint-Use Library Advisory Board 
minutes 

iii. February 7 and 21, 2013 Planning and Zoning  Commission Minutes 
 

14. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
a. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of execution of the Intergovernmental 

Agreement with Arizona Department of Transportation for the design of a 
roundabout at the intersection of SR 287 and SR 79b.    

 
15. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Resolution No. 1402-13: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
ADOPTING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE FY2013-2014 EMPLOYEE 
COMPENSATION AND CLASSIFICATION PLANS, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 
 

b. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of amending the Disposal Agreement 
with Johnson Utilities Company, dated April 7, 2003, in order to provide 
transfer station services for residents. 

 
 

 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



c. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to authorize the Town Manger to enter 
into a contract to purchase APN 200-41-0170 (Ophelia A. Padilla Living 
Trust property) for an amount of $32,500.00 and to complete all documents 
related to this conveyance. 

 
16.  MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
17. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  

 
18. CALL TO THE COUNCIL 

 
19. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
POSTED THE 14th DAY JUNE 2013, BY LISA GARCIA, TOWN CLERK, AT 775 
NORTH MAIN STREET, 1000 SOUTH WILLOW STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA 
AND AT WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF 
DISABILITY REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A 
DISABILITY MAY REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY 
CONTACTING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-
7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS PO  
SSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATION.***  

mariah
Highlight



 

Community Facilities 
District No. 1 

District Action Form 

AGENDA ITEM 
6a. 

MEETING DATE:  June 17, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Becki Guilin, District Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT:   Resolution No. MRCFD1 124-13, Adoption of  
                     Budget 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Resolution No. MRCFD1 124-13-Final Budget Adoption  Meeting Date: June 17, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Public Hearing to receive public comment on the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities 
District No. 1 Budget; and for discussion and possible adoption of Resolution No. 
MRCFD1 124-13: A RESOLUTION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MERRILL 
RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, 
ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The budget has been presented to the District Board for Community Facilities District 
No. 1.  The budget has been advertised according to requirements.  No change has 
been made to the expenditure amounts.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The budget for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 is estimated to be $3,728,283 in expenditure for 
Capital Improvements, Debt Service and Administrative costs. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. MRCFD1 124-13; adopting the budget as 
reflected in Exhibits A-E.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. MRCFD1 124-13 
Exhibits A-E 



 RESOLUTION NO. MRCFD1 124-13 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MERRILL RANCH 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, 
ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014. 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the District Board of the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities 

District No. 1, Town of Florence, Arizona as follows: 
 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of Title 42, Sections 17102, 17103, 
17104, and 17105, A.R.S., the District Board did, on June 17, 2013 make an estimate of the 
different amounts required to meet the public expenditures for the ensuing year, also an 
estimate of revenue from sources other than direct taxation, and the amount to be raised by 
taxation upon real and personal property of Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1, 
Town of Florence; and 
 

WHEREAS, in accordance with said sections of said title, and following due public 
notice, the District Board met on June 17, 2013 which meeting any taxpayer was privileged to 
appear and be heard in favor of or against any of the proposed expenditures of tax levies; and 
 

WHEREAS, it appears that publication has been duly made as required by law, of said 
estimates together with a notice that the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 
would meet on June 17, 2013, at the office of the District Board for the purpose of hearing 
taxpayers and making tax levies as set forth in said estimates; and 
 

WHEREAS, it appears that the sum to be raised by taxation, as specified therein, does 
not in the aggregate amount exceed that amount as computed in Title 42 Section 17105 
A.R.S.; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities 
District Board No.  1 of the Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. ADOPTION OF BUDGET 
That the Said estimates of revenue and expenditures shown on the accompanying exhibit, 
marked as Exhibit “A-E”, as now increased, reduced, or changed by the District Board and the 
same are hereby adopted as the budget of the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 
1, Town of Florence, Arizona for the Fiscal Year 2013-2014. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on the 17 day of June, 2013. 
   
  ___________________________ 
  Tom J. Rankin, District Chairman 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________ _____________________________                                    
Lisa Garcia, District Clerk James E. Mannato, District Attorney 
 
 



INSTRUCTIONS

2.  Select the Budget Year 2014

BEFORE USING THE ENCLOSED SCHEDULES, PLEASE COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING:

Enter the City/Town Name:MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1

The steps below will help populate the attached schedules with the appropriate dates. The "current year" is the fiscal year
in which the city/town is operating, and the "budget year" is the fiscal year for which the city/town is budgeting and that
immediately follows the current year. 

1.  Select the Current Year 2013

4/12



OFFICAL BUDGET FORMS

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1

Fiscal Year 2014

 4/12



MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Fiscal Year 2014

Resolution for the Adoption of the Budget

Schedule C—Summary by Fund Type of Revenues Other Than Property Taxes

Schedule D—Summary by Fund Type of Other Financing Sources/<Uses> and Interfund Transfers

Schedule E—Summary by Department of Expenditures/Expenses Within Each Fund Type

Schedule F—Summary by Department of Expenditures/Expenses

Schedule A—Summary Schedule of Estimated Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

Schedule B—Summary of Tax Levy and Tax Rate Information

 4/12



Summary Schedule of Estimated Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

2013 2013 July 1, 2013** 2014 2014 SOURCES <USES> IN <OUT> 2014 2014
Primary:
$                         

Secondary:
40,193                

3. Debt Service Funds Available 1,583,716              736,552                 1,806,876       435,426              368,116                                                                                           2,610,418       1,607,213              

4. Less:  Amounts for Future Debt 
Retirement                                                                                                                      

5. Total Debt Service Funds 1,583,716              736,552                 1,806,876       435,426              368,116                                                                                           2,610,418       1,607,213              

6. Capital Projects Funds 1,726,100              335,396                 1,322,815                                  753,800                                                                                           2,076,615       2,072,767              

12. TOTAL ALL FUNDS 3,375,916$            1,171,432$            3,287,450$     475,619$            1,124,324$      $                  $                  $                  $                  4,887,393$     3,728,283$            

EXPENDITURE LIMITATION COMPARISON 2013 2014
1.  Budgeted expenditures/expenses 3,375,916$ 3,728,283$ 
2.  Add/subtract: estimated net reconciling items                                         
3.  Budgeted expenditures/expenses adjusted for reconciling items 3,375,916   3,728,283   
4.  Less: estimated exclusions                                         
5.  Amount subject to the expenditure limitation 3,375,916$ 3,728,283$ 
6.  EEC or voter-approved alternative expenditure limitation $                  $                  

*
**

***

Fiscal Year 2014

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1

48,303                   

$                     $                             

                    200,360          99,484                   157,759          2,408               Special Revenue Funds

1.

2. 66,100                                                                               

$                  $                  $                  $                     $                      

FUND 
BALANCE/

NET 
ASSETS***

PROPERTY TAX 
REVENUES 

Amounts in this column represent Fund Balance/Net Asset amounts except for amounts not in spendable form (e.g., prepaids and inventories) or legally or contractually 
required to be maintained intact (e.g., principal of a permanent fund).

The city/town does not levy property taxes and does not have special assessment districts for which property taxes are levied.  Therefore, Schedule B has been omitted.

Includes Expenditure/Expense Adjustments Approved in current year from Schedule E.       
Includes actual amounts as of the date the proposed budget was prepared, adjusted for estimated activity for the remainder of the fiscal year.

General Fund $                            $                            $                  

TOTAL 
FINANCIAL 

RESOURCES 
AVAILABLE 

BUDGETED 
EXPENDITURES/

EXPENSES
INTERFUND TRANSFERSOTHER FINANCING

ESTIMATED 
REVENUES 

OTHER THAN 
PROPERTY 

TAXES 
FUND

2014 2014

ACTUAL 
EXPENDITURES/

EXPENSES **

ADOPTED 
BUDGETED 

EXPENDITURES/
EXPENSES*

 SCHEDULE A



2013 2014
1.

$ $

2.

$

3. Property tax levy amounts

A.  Primary property taxes $ $

B. Secondary property taxes 478,493 475,619

C. Total property tax levy amounts $ 478,493 $ 475,619

4. Property taxes collected*

A. Primary property taxes
(1)  Current year's levy $
(2)  Prior years’ levies
(3)  Total primary property taxes $

B. Secondary property taxes
(1)  Current year's levy $ 433,493
(2)  Prior years’ levies  
(3)  Total secondary property taxes $ 433,493

C. Total property taxes collected $ 433,493

5. Property tax rates

A.  City/Town tax rate
(1)  Primary property tax rate
(2)  Secondary property tax rate 3.5500 3.5500
(3)  Total city/town tax rate 3.5500 3.5500

B.  Special assessment district tax rates
Secondary property tax rates - As of the date the proposed budget was prepared, the

2 special assessment districts for which secondary
property taxes are levied. For information pertaining to these special assessment districts
and their tax rates, please contact the city/town.

*

city/town was operating

Includes actual property taxes collected as of the date the proposed budget was prepared, plus 
estimated property tax collections for the remainder of the fiscal year.

Amount received from primary property taxation in 
the current year in excess of the sum of that year's 
maximum allowable primary property tax levy. 
A.R.S. §42-17102(A)(18)

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1
Summary of Tax Levy and Tax Rate Information

Fiscal Year 2014

Maximum allowable primary property tax levy. 
A.R.S. §42-17051(A)

SCHEDULE B



ESTIMATED 
REVENUES 

ACTUAL 
REVENUES* 

ESTIMATED 
REVENUES 

2013 2013 2014
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Administration $ 2,504 $ 500 $ 2,408

$ 2,504 $ 500 $ 2,408

Total Special Revenue Funds $ 2,504 $ 500 $ 2,408

 *

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

MRCFD No. 1 $ 513,433 $ 854,372                 $ 368,116

$ 513,433 $ 854,372 $ 368,116

Total Debt Service Funds $ 513,433 $ 854,372 $ 368,116

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

MRCFD No. 1 $ 1,829,000 $ 1,091,400 $ 753,800

$ 1,829,000 $ 1,091,400 $ 753,800

Total Capital Projects Funds $ 1,829,000 $ 1,091,400 $ 753,800

 *

TOTAL ALL FUNDS $ 2,344,937 $ 1,946,272 $ 1,124,324

 *

Includes actual revenues recognized on the modified accrual or accrual basis as of the date the proposed budget was 
prepared, plus estimated revenues for the remainder of the fiscal year.

Includes actual revenues recognized on the modified accrual or accrual basis as of the date the proposed budget was 
prepared, plus estimated revenues for the remainder of the fiscal year.

Includes actual revenues recognized on the modified accrual or accrual basis as of the date the proposed budget was 
prepared, plus estimated revenues for the remainder of the fiscal year.

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1
Summary by Fund Type of Revenues Other Than Property Taxes

Fiscal Year 2014

SOURCE OF REVENUES

     SCHEDULE C Page 6 of 8



FUND SOURCES <USES> IN <OUT>

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
$ $ $ $

Total Special Revenue Funds $ $ $ $

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
$ $ $  $

Total Debt Service Funds $ $ $ $

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
$ $ $ $  

Total Capital Projects Funds $ $ $ $

TOTAL ALL FUNDS $ $ $ $

2014 2014

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1
Summary by Fund Type of Other Financing Sources/<Uses> and Interfund Transfers

Fiscal Year 2014

OTHER FINANCING INTERFUND TRANSFERS

SCHEDULE D



ADOPTED  
BUDGETED 

EXPENDITURES/
EXPENSES

EXPENDITURE/
EXPENSE 

ADJUSTMENTS 
APPROVED 

ACTUAL 
EXPENDITURES/

EXPENSES*

BUDGETED 
EXPENDITURES/

EXPENSES 
2013 2013 2013 2014

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Administration $ 66,100 $ $ 99,484 $ 48,303

Total Special Revenue Funds $ 66,100 $ $ 99,484 $ 48,303

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
MRCFD No. 1 $ 1,583,716 $ $ 736,552 $ 1,607,213

Total Debt Service Funds $ 1,583,716 $ $ 736,552 $ 1,607,213

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
MRCFD No. 1 $ 1,726,100 $ $ 335,396 $ 2,072,767

Total Capital Projects Funds $ 1,726,100 $ $ 335,396 $ 2,072,767

TOTAL ALL FUNDS $ 3,375,916 $ $ 1,171,432 $ 3,728,283

*

Summary by Department of Expenditures/Expenses Within Each Fund Type
Fiscal Year 2014

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1

Includes actual expenditures/expenses recognized on the modified accrual or accrual basis as of the date the proposed budget 
was prepared, plus estimated expenditures/expenses for the remainder of the fiscal year.

FUND/DEPARTMENT

SCHEDULE E



 

Community Facilities 
District No. 1 

District Action Form 

AGENDA ITEM 
6b. 

MEETING DATE:  June 17, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Becki Guilin, District Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT:    Public Hearing On Property Tax Levy -Second 
Reading of Ordinance No. MRCFD1 110-13 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Public Hearing Budget and Tax Levy-MRCFD1 Meeting Date: June 17, 2013 
Page 1 of 2 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Open public hearing to receive citizen’s comments on property tax levy and budget and 
second reading of Ordinance No. MRCFD1 110-13:  AN ORDINANCE OF MERRILL 
RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM 
UPON EACH ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00) OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO 
RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30TH 
DAY OF JUNE 2014. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
A budget and property tax levy must be adopted each year for Community Facilities 
District. 

The budget and property tax notification has been published in the local newspaper.  
The time and date for a public hearing has been set. 

The District Board has authorized a secondary property tax levy for the payment of debt 
service, infrastructure and operations and maintenance of Community Facilities District 
No. 1.  The current property tax rate is $3.55 per $100 of net assessed valuation. 

The estimates for budget year 2013-2014 have been set forth.  This year’s budget 
includes anticipated revenues from assessments and secondary tax. Expenditures are 
included along with anticipated debt service and administrative expenses.    

Pulte has estimated that this year special assessment bonds for units 17B, 9, and 22 
will be issued in the amount of $752,500.  Special Assessment bonds are for local 
improvements. 



Subject: Public Hearing Budget and Tax Levy-MRCFD1 Meeting Date: June 17, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 

A secondary property tax levy is made for the payment of principal and interest on the 
General Obligation bonds that have been issued for the district.  The General Obligation 
bonds are for regional improvements. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Total collections in revenues and prior year fund balance and bond proceeds are 
anticipated to fund all expenditures.  A secondary property tax of $3.25 per $100/NAV 
estimated at $435,426 for the general obligation bond debt service and an operations 
and maintenance levy of $0.30 per $100/NAV estimated at $40,193 will be levied on this 
district for a total of $3.55 per $100/NAV or $475,619. 

Though Community Facilities Districts do no follow expenditure limitation, a budget must 
be prepared.  Total expenditures, including anticipated bond proceeds, are estimated at 
$3,728,283. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Open public hearing to receive citizen’s comments on property tax levy and budget. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Ordinance No. MRCFD1 110-13 
Budget Schedules A-E 
Ad for Public Notice 
 



MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. MRCFD1 110-13 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY 
WITHIN THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT SUBJECT TO 
TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH ONE HUNDRED 
DOLLARS ($100.00) OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE 
THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS 
FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR ENDING THE 30TH DAY OF JUNE 2014. 
 
WHEREAS, by the provision of State Law, the Ordinance levying a 

secondary property tax rate for the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 is required to be 
adopted no later than the third Monday in August; and  

 
WHEREAS, the County of Pinal is now the assessing and collecting 

authority for the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1, the District 
Clerk is hereby directed to transmit a certified copy of the Ordinance to the 
Assessor and Board of Supervisors of Pinal County, Arizona; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the District Board of Merrill Ranch 
Community Facilities District No. 1 as follows: 

 
Section 1:  There is hereby levied on each one hundred dollars ($100.00) of the 
assessed value of all property, both real and personal, within the corporate limits 
of the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1, except such property as 
may by law be exempt from taxation, a secondary property tax rate of $3.25 on 
each one hundred dollars ($100.00) for the purpose of providing debt service and 
enhanced municipal services, and $0.30 on each one hundred dollars ($100.00) 
for operations and maintenance of the district, for a combined rate of $3.55 on 
each one hundred dollars ($100.00) for the fiscal year ending on the 30th day of 
June 2014, but if the said sum exceeds the maximum levy allowed by law, the 
Board of Supervisors of Pinal County is hereby authorized to reduce the said 
sum to the maximum which is allowed by law. 

 
Section 2:  No failure by the officials of Pinal County, Arizona to properly return 
the delinquent list and no irregularity in the assessment or commission in the 
same, or irregularity of any kind in any proceeding will invalidate such proceeding 
or invalidate any title conveyed by tax deed; nor will any failure or neglect of any 
officer or officers to perform any of the duties assigned to him or to them on the 
day within the time specified work an invalidation of any proceedings or of any 
such deed or sale or affect the validity of the assessment of a levy of taxes or of 
the judgment of sale by which the collection of the same may be enforced or in 



any manner affect the lien of the Town upon such property for the delinquent 
unpaid taxes thereon, and no overcharge as to part of the taxes or of costs will 
invalidate any of the proceeding upon the lien therefore, or a sale of the property 
under such foreclosure; and all acts of officers de facto will be valid as if 
performed by officer de jure. 

 
Section 3:  All Ordinances and parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are 
hereby repealed. 

 
Section 4:  The immediate operation of the Ordinance is necessary for the 
preservation of the public peace, health, and safety of the Merrill Ranch 
Community Facilities District No. 1, and an emergency is hereby declared to 
exist; and this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from its passage and 
approval by the District Board and publication as required by the laws of the 
State of Arizona, and is hereby exempt from the referendum provisions of the 
constitution and laws of the State of Arizona. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the District Board of Merrill Ranch 

Community Facilities District No. 1, Florence Arizona, the 1 day of July 2013. 
 
 
 

     _____________________________________ 
    Tom J. Rankin, District Chairperson 

 
 
 ATTEST:    APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________ _____________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, District Clerk  James E. Mannato, District Attorney 
 



INSTRUCTIONS

2.  Select the Budget Year 2014

BEFORE USING THE ENCLOSED SCHEDULES, PLEASE COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING:

Enter the City/Town Name:MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1

The steps below will help populate the attached schedules with the appropriate dates. The "current year" is the fiscal year
in which the city/town is operating, and the "budget year" is the fiscal year for which the city/town is budgeting and that
immediately follows the current year. 

1.  Select the Current Year 2013

4/12



OFFICAL BUDGET FORMS

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1

Fiscal Year 2014

 4/12



Schedule C—Summary by Fund Type of Revenues Other Than Property Taxes

Schedule D—Summary by Fund Type of Other Financing Sources/<Uses> and Interfund Transfers

Schedule E—Summary by Department of Expenditures/Expenses Within Each Fund Type

Schedule F—Summary by Department of Expenditures/Expenses

Schedule A—Summary Schedule of Estimated Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

Schedule B—Summary of Tax Levy and Tax Rate Information

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Fiscal Year 2014

Resolution for the Adoption of the Budget

 4/12



Summary Schedule of Estimated Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

2013 2013 July 1, 2013** 2014 2014 SOURCES <USES> IN <OUT> 2014 2014
Primary:
$                         

Secondary:
40,193                

3. Debt Service Funds Available 1,583,716              736,552                 1,806,876       435,426              368,116                                                                                           2,610,418       1,607,213              

4. Less:  Amounts for Future Debt 
Retirement                                                                                                                      

5. Total Debt Service Funds 1,583,716              736,552                 1,806,876       435,426              368,116                                                                                           2,610,418       1,607,213              

6. Capital Projects Funds 1,726,100              335,396                 1,322,815                                  753,800                                                                                           2,076,615       2,072,767              

12. TOTAL ALL FUNDS 3,375,916$            1,171,432$            3,287,450$     475,619$            1,124,324$      $                  $                  $                  $                  4,887,393$     3,728,283$            

EXPENDITURE LIMITATION COMPARISON 2013 2014
1.  Budgeted expenditures/expenses 3,375,916$ 3,728,283$ 
2.  Add/subtract: estimated net reconciling items                                         
3.  Budgeted expenditures/expenses adjusted for reconciling items 3,375,916   3,728,283   
4.  Less: estimated exclusions                                         
5.  Amount subject to the expenditure limitation 3,375,916$ 3,728,283$ 
6.  EEC or voter-approved alternative expenditure limitation $                  $                  

*
**

***

Resolution No. MRCFD1 125-13

TOTAL 
FINANCIAL 

RESOURCES 
AVAILABLE 

BUDGETED 
EXPENDITURES/

EXPENSES
INTERFUND TRANSFERSOTHER FINANCING

ESTIMATED 
REVENUES 

OTHER THAN 
PROPERTY 

TAXES 
FUND

2014 2014

ACTUAL 
EXPENDITURES/

EXPENSES **

ADOPTED 
BUDGETED 

EXPENDITURES/
EXPENSES*

FUND 
BALANCE/

NET 
ASSETS***

PROPERTY TAX 
REVENUES 

Amounts in this column represent Fund Balance/Net Asset amounts except for amounts not in spendable form (e.g., prepaids and inventories) or legally or contractually 
required to be maintained intact (e.g., principal of a permanent fund).

The city/town does not levy property taxes and does not have special assessment districts for which property taxes are levied.  Therefore, Schedule B has been omitted.

Includes Expenditure/Expense Adjustments Approved in current year from Schedule E.       
Includes actual amounts as of the date the proposed budget was prepared, adjusted for estimated activity for the remainder of the fiscal year.

General Fund $                            $                            $                  

                    

$                  $                  $                  $                     $                      

Special Revenue Funds

1.

2. 66,100                                                           

Fiscal Year 2014

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1

48,303                   

$                     $                             

                    200,360          99,484                   157,759          2,408               

 SCHEDULE A



2013 2014
1.

$ $

2.

$

3. Property tax levy amounts

A.  Primary property taxes $ $

B. Secondary property taxes 478,493 475,619

C. Total property tax levy amounts $ 478,493 $ 475,619

4. Property taxes collected*

A. Primary property taxes
(1)  Current year's levy $
(2)  Prior years’ levies
(3)  Total primary property taxes $

B. Secondary property taxes
(1)  Current year's levy $ 433,493
(2)  Prior years’ levies  
(3)  Total secondary property taxes $ 433,493

C. Total property taxes collected $ 433,493

5. Property tax rates

A.  City/Town tax rate
(1)  Primary property tax rate
(2)  Secondary property tax rate 3.5500 3.5500
(3)  Total city/town tax rate 3.5500 3.5500

B.  Special assessment district tax rates
Secondary property tax rates - As of the date the proposed budget was prepared, the

2 special assessment districts for which secondary
property taxes are levied. For information pertaining to these special assessment districts
and their tax rates, please contact the city/town.

*

city/town was operating

Includes actual property taxes collected as of the date the proposed budget was prepared, plus 
estimated property tax collections for the remainder of the fiscal year.

Amount received from primary property taxation in 
the current year in excess of the sum of that year's 
maximum allowable primary property tax levy. 
A.R.S. §42-17102(A)(18)

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1
Summary of Tax Levy and Tax Rate Information

Fiscal Year 2014

Maximum allowable primary property tax levy. 
A.R.S. §42-17051(A)

SCHEDULE B



ESTIMATED 
REVENUES 

ACTUAL 
REVENUES* 

ESTIMATED 
REVENUES 

2013 2013 2014
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Administration $ 2,504 $ 500 $ 2,408

$ 2,504 $ 500 $ 2,408

Total Special Revenue Funds $ 2,504 $ 500 $ 2,408

 *

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

MRCFD No. 1 $ 513,433 $ 854,372                 $ 368,116

$ 513,433 $ 854,372 $ 368,116

Total Debt Service Funds $ 513,433 $ 854,372 $ 368,116

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

MRCFD No. 1 $ 1,829,000 $ 1,091,400 $ 753,800

$ 1,829,000 $ 1,091,400 $ 753,800

Total Capital Projects Funds $ 1,829,000 $ 1,091,400 $ 753,800

 *

TOTAL ALL FUNDS $ 2,344,937 $ 1,946,272 $ 1,124,324

 *

Includes actual revenues recognized on the modified accrual or accrual basis as of the date the proposed budget was 
prepared, plus estimated revenues for the remainder of the fiscal year.

Includes actual revenues recognized on the modified accrual or accrual basis as of the date the proposed budget was 
prepared, plus estimated revenues for the remainder of the fiscal year.

Includes actual revenues recognized on the modified accrual or accrual basis as of the date the proposed budget was 
prepared, plus estimated revenues for the remainder of the fiscal year.

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1
Summary by Fund Type of Revenues Other Than Property Taxes

Fiscal Year 2014

SOURCE OF REVENUES

     SCHEDULE C Page 6 of 8



FUND SOURCES <USES> IN <OUT>

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
$ $ $ $

Total Special Revenue Funds $ $ $ $

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
$ $ $  $

Total Debt Service Funds $ $ $ $

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
$ $ $ $  

Total Capital Projects Funds $ $ $ $

TOTAL ALL FUNDS $ $ $ $

2014 2014

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1
Summary by Fund Type of Other Financing Sources/<Uses> and Interfund Transfers

Fiscal Year 2014

OTHER FINANCING INTERFUND TRANSFERS

SCHEDULE D



ADOPTED  
BUDGETED 

EXPENDITURES/
EXPENSES

EXPENDITURE/
EXPENSE 

ADJUSTMENTS 
APPROVED 

ACTUAL 
EXPENDITURES/

EXPENSES*

BUDGETED 
EXPENDITURES/

EXPENSES 
2013 2013 2013 2014

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Administration $ 66,100 $ $ 99,484 $ 48,303

Total Special Revenue Funds $ 66,100 $ $ 99,484 $ 48,303

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
MRCFD No. 1 $ 1,583,716 $ $ 736,552 $ 1,607,213

Total Debt Service Funds $ 1,583,716 $ $ 736,552 $ 1,607,213

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
MRCFD No. 1 $ 1,726,100 $ $ 335,396 $ 2,072,767

Total Capital Projects Funds $ 1,726,100 $ $ 335,396 $ 2,072,767

TOTAL ALL FUNDS $ 3,375,916 $ $ 1,171,432 $ 3,728,283

*

Summary by Department of Expenditures/Expenses Within Each Fund Type
Fiscal Year 2014

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1

Includes actual expenditures/expenses recognized on the modified accrual or accrual basis as of the date the proposed budget 
was prepared, plus estimated expenditures/expenses for the remainder of the fiscal year.

FUND/DEPARTMENT

SCHEDULE E



 
MRCFD NO.1 Published Notice 

 
Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 

Notice of Public Hearing 
 
NOTICE OF FILING STATEMENTS AND ESTIMATES OF THE OPERATION AND 
MAINTENANCE EXPENSES OF THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 
NO. 1, THE COSTS OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS TO BE FINANCED BY THE AD VALOREM 
TAX LEVY, AND THE AMOUNT OF ALL OTHER EXPENDITURES FOR PUBLIC 
INFRASTRUCTURE AND ENHANCED MUNICIPAL SERVICES PROPOSED TO BE PAID FROM 
THE TAX LEVY AND OF THE AMOUNT TO BE RAISED TO PAY GENERAL OBLIGATION 
BONDS OF THE DISTRICT; AND NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED FISCAL 
YEAR 2013-2014 BUDGET OF THE DISTRICT, INCLUDING A HEARING ON THOSE PORTIONS 
OF THE STATEMENTS AND ESTIMATES NOT RELATED TO DEBT SERVICE ON GENERAL 
OBLIGATION BONDS. 
 
Notice is hereby given that statements and estimates have been filed in the Office of the District Clerk of 
the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District #1 of the operations and maintenance expenses of the 
District, the costs of capital improvements to financed by the voter-approved ad valorem tax levy, and the 
amount of all expenditures for public infrastructure and enhanced municipal services proposed to be paid 
from the tax levy and of the amount to be raised to pay general obligation bonds of the District, all of which 
shall be provided for by the levy and collection of ad valorem taxes on the assessed value of all the real and 
personal property of the District.  Notice is further given of a Public Hearing will be held to discuss 
Resolution No. MRCFD1 124-13 , a resolution of the CFD District Board of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, adopting a budget for the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 including (but not limited to) a hearing on those 
portions of the statements and estimates not relating to debt service on general obligation bonds, all 
pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes §§48-716 and 48-723.  A copy of the proposed budget is available for 
public inspection at the Office of the District Treasurer in the Finance Department, located at 775 N. Main 
Street; the Community Library, located at 1000 S. Willow; and the Dorothy Nolan Senior Center, located at 
330 N. Pinal Street. 
 
The Public Hearing is held on June 17th, 2013 beginning at 6:00 P.M.  The hearings take place in the 
council chamber at Florence Town Hall, located at 775 N. Main Street, Florence, Arizona 85132.  The 
telephone number is (520) 868-7505. 
 
  Dated this 20th day of May, 2013 
 
     /s/ Charles Montoya 
    …………………………………….. 
     District Manager 

Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District #1 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), THE TOWN 
OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF DISABLITY REGARDING 
ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY MAY REQUEST 
REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY CONTACTING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE ADA 
COORDINATOR AT (520) 868-7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD.  REQUESTS SHOULD BE MADE AS 
EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMODATION. *** 
 
 
Please publish Notice of Public Hearing  
Publish: May 30, 2013 
 
          



 

Community Facilities 
District No. 1 

District Action Form 

AGENDA ITEM 
6c. 

MEETING DATE:  June 17, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Becki Guilin, District Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. MRCFD1 125-13 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Resolution No. MRCFD No. 125-13  Meeting Date: June 17, 2013 
Page 1 of 3 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Resolution No. MRCFD1 125-13: Discussion and Possible Adoption of A RESOLUTION 
OF THE DISTRICT BOARD OF MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
DISTRICT NO. 1 APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND 
DELIVERY OF A SIXTH AMENDMENT AND WAIVERS (ASSESSMENT AREA SIX   
UNITS 2 AND 9A) FOR DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT, FINANCING PARTICIPATION 
AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1); AUTHORIZING AND RATIFYING THE GIVING OF 
NOTICE OF HEARING WITH RESPECT TO APPROVING A FEASIBILITY REPORT 
WHICH INCLUDES IDENTIFYING THE PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE OF THE 
PROJECTS, THE AREAS TO BE BENEFITTED, THE EXPECTED METHOD OF 
FINANCING AND THE SYSTEM OF PROVIDING REVENUES TO OPERATE AND 
MAINTAIN THE PROJECTS, ALL AS PROVIDED IN SUCH REPORT; APPROVING 
SUCH FEASIBILITY REPORT AND RESOLVING THE INTENT THEREFOR; 
ORDERING THE WORK WITH RESPECT THERETO; APPROVING THE 
ASSESSMENT DIAGRAM AND METHOD OF ASSESSMENT WITH RESPECT TO 
ASSESSMENT AREA SIX AND PROVIDING FOR THE LEVY OF THE RELATED 
ASSESSMENT. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
Formation of Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 was approved on 
December 19, 2005 by the Town upon request of Merrill Owners and Pulte Homes 
Corporation, as the owner of all the land with the District upon formation.  The District is 
located within the municipal boundaries of the Town. 

The District is proposing assessments on Unit 2 and 9A in Merrill Ranch Community 
Facilities District No. 1.  This unit does not have prior special assessments within the 
unit.    This will be Assessment Area 6 in MRCFD #1. 

The proposed assessments are related to local improvements within the assessment 
area. 

The property is levied an ad valorem tax for regional improvements within MRCFD #2. 



Subject: Resolution No. MRCFD No. 125-13  Meeting Date: June 17, 2013 
Page 2 of 3 

Unit 2 and 9A are new sub-districts of Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1.  
The sub-district consists of 26.28 acres and is located in Assessment Area Six.  Unit 2 
is located off of Patriot Way south of Sun City Community Center. Unit 9A is along 
Independence Way between Spyglass Drive and Huntington Drive, in the south western 
portion of CFD 1. 

Unit 2 and 9A within Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 is being modified 
to 118 individual lots which have been platted.  The modification transfers the liability to 
the individual lots allowing for these lots to be sold.   

Street Improvements consist of engineering, street improvements, and storm drain and 
drainage structures identified within the Feasibility Report.   Total cost of improvements 
is $831,674. 

Assessment Area Six Projects 
Estimated Costs 
1. Engineering $201,093 
2. Storm Drain 176,024 
3. Street Improvements 454,557 
Total Assessment Area Projects $831,674 

The street improvements are scheduled for completion as follows: 

Project Estimated Completion Date 
1. Engineering Completed 
2. Storm Drain July 2013 
3. Street Improvements September 2013 

A resolution is required to approve and authorize the execution and delivery of an 
amendment and waivers for district development, financing participation and 
intergovernmental agreement, authorize and ratify the giving notice of hearing with 
respect to approving a feasibility report which includes projects, areas to be benefited, 
the expected method of financing and the system of providing revenues to operate and 
maintain the projects, approving the feasibility report and resolving the intent and 
ordering the work. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
Each owner will be assessed $3,500 per lot.  Total assessment is estimated at 
$413,000, Unit 2 - $126,000 and Unit 9A - $287,000.  Bonds have a 25 year maturity 
with the first year being interest only and the principal amount amortized over the 
remaining 24 years.  Average annual payments will be approximately $330, split in to 2 
payments of 1st-Interest only for 6 months, 2nd-Interest for 6 months and 1 full year of 
principal.   This assessment area is being handled under the new provision in the 
statutes for payment of assessments.  Bonding will occur at a later date. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt Resolution MRCFD No. 125-13. 
 



Subject: Resolution No. MRCFD No. 125-13  Meeting Date: June 17, 2013 
Page 3 of 3 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution No. MRCFD1 125-13 
6thAmendment and Waivers 
Methodology of Assessment 
Feasibility Report  
Parcels by address 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. MRCFD1 125-13 
 

(MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1)  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DISTRICT BOARD OF MERRILL 
RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 APPROV-
ING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF 
A SIXTH AMENDMENT AND WAIVERS (ASSESSMENT AREA 
SIX - UNITS 2 AND 9A) FOR DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT, 
FINANCING PARTICIPATION AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT (MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
DISTRICT NO. 1); AUTHORIZING AND RATIFYING THE 
GIVING OF NOTICE OF HEARING WITH RESPECT TO 
APPROVING A FEASIBILITY REPORT WHICH INCLUDES 
IDENTIFYING THE PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE OF THE 
PROJECTS, THE AREAS TO BE BENEFITTED, THE 
EXPECTED METHOD OF FINANCING AND THE SYSTEM OF 
PROVIDING REVENUES TO OPERATE AND MAINTAIN THE 
PROJECTS, ALL AS PROVIDED IN SUCH REPORT; 
APPROVING SUCH FEASIBILITY REPORT AND RESOLVING 
THE INTENT THEREFOR; ORDERING THE WORK WITH 
RESPECT THERETO; APPROVING THE ASSESSMENT DIAGRAM 
AND METHOD OF ASSESSMENT WITH RESPECT TO 
ASSESSMENT AREA SIX AND PROVIDING FOR THE LEVY OF 
THE RELATED ASSESSMENT 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE DISTRICT BOARD OF MERRILL RAN CH 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 as follows: 

1. Findings. 

a. Pursuant to Title 48, Chapter 4, Article 6, 

Arizona Revised Statutes (hereinafter referred to a s the "Act"), and 

Section 9-500.05, Arizona Revised Statutes, the Tow n of Florence, 

Arizona (hereinafter called the "Municipality"), Me rrill Ranch 

Community Facilities District No. 1 (hereinafter ca lled the 

"District") and the owner of the portions of the re al property 

included within the District affected hereby (herei nafter called the 

"Owner"), among other parties entered into a Distri ct Development, 



 

2 
 

Financing Participation and Intergovernmental Agree ment (Merrill Ranch 

Community Facilities District No. 1), dated as of D ecember 1, 2005, 

which has subsequently been amended by a First Amen dment and Waivers 

(Assessment Area One), dated as of February 1, 2006 , a Second Amend-

ment and Waivers (Assessment Area Two-Unit 54), dat ed as of 

November 1, 2008, a Third Amendment and Waivers (As sessment Area 

Three - Unit 17A), dated as of September 1, 2010, a  Fourth Amendment 

and Waivers (Assessment Area Four – Unit 18), dated  as of January 1, 

2012, and a Fifth Amendment and Waivers (Assessment  Area Five – Unit 

17B), dated as of July 1, 2012 (as so amended herei nafter referred to 

as the "Original Development Agreement"), to specif y, among other 

things, conditions, terms, restrictions and require ments for public 

infrastructure (as such term is defined in the Act)  and the financing 

of public infrastructure, particularly with regard to the property 

which makes up the real property included within th e District 

(hereinafter referred to as the "Property"), matter s relating to the 

construction of certain public infrastructure by th e District and the 

acceptance thereof by the Municipality. 

b. It has been determined that the Original Develop -

ment Agreement needs to be amended and subjected to  certain waivers to 

reflect certain amendments and waivers necessary fo r the Original 

Development Agreement to serve the purposes hereof,  and the district 

board of the District (hereinafter referred to as t he "District 

Board") has determined to enter into a Sixth Amendm ent and Waivers 

(Assessment Area Six - Units 2 and 9A) for District  Development, 

Financing Participation and Intergovernmental Agree ment (Merrill Ranch 



 

3 
 

Community Facilities District No. 1), to be dated a s of July 1, 2013 

(hereinafter referred to as the "Sixth Amendment"),  for such purpose. 

c. Further, pursuant to the Act, the District Board  

caused to be prepared a study of the feasibility an d benefits of the 

projects relating to certain public infrastructure provided for in the 

General Plan of the District heretofore approved by  the Municipality 

and the District, such study having included a desc ription of certain 

public infrastructure to be acquired or constructed  and all other 

information useful to understand the projects, a ma p showing, in 

general, the location of the projects, an estimate of the cost to 

construct, acquire, operate and maintain the projec ts, an estimated 

schedule for completion of the projects, a map or d escription of the 

area to be benefitted by the projects and a plan fo r financing the 

projects (hereinafter referred to as the "Report").   A public hearing 

on the Report was held on the date of, but prior to , the adoption of 

this Resolution, after provision for publication an d mailing to the 

governing board of the Municipality of notice there of as provided by 

law. 

d. Pursuant to Section 48-721, Arizona Revised 

Statutes, the District Board, by resolution and pur suant to the 

procedures prescribed by the Original Development A greement as amended 

by the Sixth Amendment (as so amended, hereinafter referred to as the 

"Development Agreement"), may levy an assessment of  the costs of the 

public infrastructure purposes as provided for in t he Development 

Agreement and in the Report and with respect to the  intent therefor 

and the ordering of certain work with respect there to (hereinafter 



 

4 
 

referred to as the "Area Six Work") resolved in thi s Resolution on the 

area of the Property to be assessed for the costs a nd expenses thereof 

(hereinafter referred to as the "Area Six Assessed Property") based on 

the benefit determined by the District Board to be received by the 

Area Six Assessed Property, in each case as more fu lly described 

herein. 

e. The District Board has determined special assess -

ment lien bonds of the District (hereinafter referr ed to as the 

"Bonds") may be issued in the future if certain con ditions are met 

with respect to the Area Six Work pursuant to the p rovisions of the 

Development Agreement, in the name of the District,  but payable only 

out of a special fund collected by the District fro m special 

assessments levied upon the lots, tracts, pieces an d parcels of land 

included within the Area Six Assessed Property, in not to exceed 

twenty-five (25) annual installments from the asses sment of Twenty-

Five Dollars ($25.00) or over remaining unpaid as o f the date of the 

Bonds as provided by the Development Agreement.  Th e Bonds shall bear 

interest at rates not to exceed ten percent (10%) p er annum from their 

date, payable on the first day of January and July of each year and 

shall be payable in the manner and be subject to th e provisions as to 

collection of assessments for the payment thereof, except as otherwise 

described in the Development Agreement and that nei ther the District 

nor the Municipality is required to purchase delinq uent land at sale 

if there is no other purchaser, as described in Tit le 48, Chapter 4, 

Article 2, Arizona Revised Statutes, save and excep t that the method 

of collection of such assessments shall be as provi ded in Sections 



 

5 
 

48-600 to 48-607, both inclusive, Arizona Revised S tatutes and not as 

provided in Section 48-608, Arizona Revised Statute s. 

f. In the meantime, the District Board has deter-

mined that the installments of such special assessm ents so collected 

in such special fund shall be paid to the Owner for  the costs of 

public infrastructure purposes until, if ever, the Bonds are issued 

for such purposes and that, until the Bonds are iss ued, such assess-

ments shall bear interest, all as provided in the D evelopment 

Agreement. 

g. The District Board, pursuant to the procedures 

prescribed by Sections 48-576 through 48-589, Arizo na Revised 

Statutes, as nearly as practicable, and the other p rocedures the 

District Board has provided in the Development Agre ement, will cause 

to be levied an assessment of the costs of the Area  Six Work 

(hereinafter referred to as the "Area Six Assessmen t") on the Area Six 

Property, and, in that respect, the Owner has waive d certain matters 

and agreed to certain other matters with respect th ereto pursuant to 

the Development Agreement, including as to the mann er in which the 

Area Six Assessments are to be allocated as the Are a Six Assessed 

Property is to be divided into more than one parcel  and is to be 

prepaid and reallocated. 

h. Pursuant to this Resolution, the District Board 

(i) resolves its intent with respect to and orders the Area Six Work, 

(ii) determines that the Sixth Amendment should be executed and 

delivered and then, as provided in the Sixth Amendm ent, that the Bonds 

may be issued to represent the costs and expenses t hereof, 



 

6 
 

(iii) declares the Area Six Work to be of more than  local or ordinary 

public benefit and that the costs and expenses ther eof be assessed 

upon the Area Six Property and (iv) provides that t he Area Six Work be 

performed under the provisions of the Act, the Deve lopment Agreement 

and the Report, the Area Six Assessed Property to b e assessed and the 

Bonds to be issued being more fully described in th e Development 

Agreement, the Report and this Resolution (hereinaf ter referred to as, 

collectively, the "Resolution of Intention Document s") to which 

reference is hereby made for such description. 

i. Pursuant to this Resolution, the District Board 

finds and determines that it had jurisdiction to or der the Area Six 

Work and orders that the Area Six Work be done as d escribed in the 

Resolution of Intention Documents and in accordance  with the "Area Six 

Work Plans and Specifications" which are included i n the Report.  

Pursuant to the Development Agreement, the Owners h ave waived or 

otherwise agreed to the satisfaction of, among othe r things, any 

publication, posting, protest or objection right or  obligation or 

hearing right or obligation with respect to the Res olution of Inden-

tion Documents. 

j. There have been placed on file with the District  

Clerk and presented in connection herewith the prop osed form of the 

Sixth Amendment. 

k. Willdan & Associates, Inc. (hereinafter called 

the "Assessment Engineers") have prepared and prese nted to the Dis-

trict Board (i) duplicate diagrams of the Area Six Assessed Property 

(hereinafter referred to as the "Diagram"), a form of such diagram 



 

7 
 

being attached hereto and marked as Exhibit "A" and  (ii) the method by 

which the Assessment Engineers have allocated the a ssessment which is 

the subject of the Diagram, such methodology being attached hereto and 

marked as Exhibit "B" (hereinafter referred to as t he "Method of 

Assessment"). 

l. Pursuant to this Resolution, the Diagram and the  

Method of Assessment will be approved and adopted a nd the levy of the 

Area Six Assessments will be ordered.  No direction  will be given that 

demand be made on the owners of the Area Six Assess ed Property so 

assessed for payment of the Area Six Assessments as  such owners waived 

such right pursuant to the Development Agreement.  The District 

Manager will levy and record the Area Six Assessmen ts for the District 

and execute a warrant to the District Treasurer to collect the amounts 

with respect to the Assessment (hereinafter referre d to as the 

"Warrant").  Thereafter, the Warrant and the Area S ix Assessments will 

be returned by the District Treasurer as prescribed  by law.  The 

certified list of unpaid amounts with respect to th e Area Six 

Assessments will be filed with the District Clerk b y the District 

Manager. 

2. a. Approval of Sixth Amendment.  The Sixth Amend ment 

is hereby approved in substantially the form submit ted herewith, with 

such changes, additions, deletions, insertions and omissions, if any, 

as the Chairperson of the District Board, with the advice of the 

District Manager and the District Counsel, shall au thorize, the execu-

tion and delivery of the Sixth Amendment to be conc lusive evidence of 



 

8 
 

the propriety of such document and the authority of  the person or 

persons executing the same. 

b. Completion of Sixth Amendment.  The District 

Manager or his designee is hereby authorized to com plete the Sixth 

Amendment by including the appropriate materials as  necessary therein. 

c. Execution of Sixth Amendment.  The Chairperson o f 

the District Board, with the advice of the District  Manager and the 

District Counsel, is hereby authorized and directed  to execute, and 

the District Clerk to attest, the Sixth Amendment o n behalf of the 

District. 

3. Authorization and Ratification of Notice of Hear ing on 

Report.  Notice of the public hearing on the Report  provided by the 

District Manager and attached hereto and marked as Exhibit "C" (here-

inafter referred to as the "Notice") is hereby auth orized and ratified 

in all respects as well as the mailing of the Repor t and the Notice to 

the governing body of the Municipality.  The provid ing of the Notice 

as provided by law and as caused by the District Ma nager is hereby 

authorized and ratified. 

4. a. Preparation of Report.  The preparation of th e 

Report is hereby ratified and confirmed.  (Upon com pletion of a draft 

of the Report, the Report, marked in a conspicuous fashion " DRAFT," 

was submitted to the District Board and the Owner f or their review and 

comment.) 

b. Approval of Report.  After review of the Report 

and based on the public hearing held by the Distric t Board on even 

date herewith and the mailing of the Report to the governing body of 



 

9 
 

the Municipality, the Report is hereby approved in the form submitted 

to the District Board. 

c. Resolving Intent.  The District Board hereby 

declares (1) its intent as required by Section 48-7 15, Arizona Revised 

Statutes and for purposes of Section 48-721(A), Ari zona Revised 

Statutes and as set forth in the Development Agreem ent, to take such 

reasonable actions as may be necessary to cause the  results 

contemplated by and set forth in the Report, includ ing particularly 

the acquisition of the public infrastructure projec ts for the benefit 

of the areas described in the Report and the consum mation of the 

expected method of financing and an appropriate sys tem of providing 

revenues to maintain such projects, all as provided  in the Report, and 

(2) that the Area Six Work shall result in proporti onate, beneficial 

use, principally to the land with the geographical limits of the Area 

Six Assessed Property. 

d. Work, Plans and Specifications and Estimates.  

(1)  The public interest or convenience requires, a nd it is the inten-

tion of the District Board, to order the Area Six W ork described in 

substantial form in the Report including the "Area Six Work Plans and 

Specifications" which are included in the Report (h ereinafter referred 

to as, collectively, the "Area Six Work Plans and S pecifications"). 

(2) The Area Six Work shall be performed 

substantially in accordance with the Act, the Devel opment Agreement 

and the Report including the Area Six Work Plans an d Specifications. 

(3) The estimate of the cost and expense of the 

Area Six Work included in the Report (hereinafter r eferred to as the 



 

10 
 

"Area Six Estimate") is hereby approved, and the Ar ea Six Estimate is 

hereby adopted by the District Board. 

e. Assessment Area.  (1)  The Area Six Work, in the  

opinion of the District Board, is of more than loca l or ordinary 

public benefit and is of special benefit to the res pective lots, 

pieces and parcels of land comprising the Area Six Assessed Property, 

and the District Board hereby makes and orders the cost and expense of 

the Area Six Work chargeable upon the Area Six Asse ssed Property and 

hereby declares that the Area Six Assessed Property  benefitted by the 

Area Six Work and to be assessed to pay the costs a nd expenses thereof 

in proportion to the benefits derived therefrom, is  described and 

bounded as so set forth. 

(2) The District shall not assess the costs and 

expenses of the Area Six Work which are for the gen eral public benefit 

against the respective lots, pieces and parcels of land located within 

the boundaries of the Area Six Assessed Property an d if a portion of 

the costs and expenses of the Area Six Work is for the general public 

benefit, the District shall assess the respective l ots, pieces and 

parcels of land located within the boundaries of th e Area Six Assessed 

Property only that portion of costs and expenses wh ich benefits the 

lots, pieces and parcels of land located within the  boundaries of the 

Area Six Assessed Property. 

f. Public Property.  The District Board hereby 

declares that any lot belonging to the United State s, the State of 

Arizona, the Municipality, a county, school distric t or any political 

subdivision or institution of the State of Arizona or county included 



 

11 
 

within the boundaries of the Area Six Assessed Prop erty shall be 

omitted from the assessment hereafter to be made, a nd the total 

expense of the Area Six Work shall be assessed on t he remaining lots 

lying within the boundaries of the Area Six Assesse d Property except 

to the extent the State of Arizona, the Municipalit y, county, school 

district or any political subdivision or institutio n of the State of 

Arizona or county shall contract with the District to pay any such 

assessment. 

g. Execution and Delivery of Sixth Amendment.  The 

District Board hereby finds that the public conveni ence requires that 

the Sixth Amendment as described in the Report and the Development 

Agreement shall be executed and delivered to repres ent the cost and 

expenses of the Area Six Work and determine that th e amounts payable 

pursuant to the Sixth Amendment be so payable under  the provisions of 

the Act, in the name of the District, but payable o nly out of a 

special fund collected by the District from special  assessments levied 

upon the lots, tracts, pieces and parcels of land i ncluded within the 

Area Six Assessed Property, in not to exceed twenty -five (25) annual 

installments from the assessment of Twenty-Five Dol lars ($25.00) or 

over remaining unpaid as of the date, subject to pr epayment, all as 

provided by the Sixth Amendment.  The principal amo unt payable 

pursuant to the Sixth Amendment shall not exceed $7 52,500 which shall 

be equal to or less than the amount certified to th e District Clerk as 

the amount of the Area Six Assessments remaining un paid.  The unpaid 

amounts of such assessments shall bear interest at rates not to exceed 

ten percent (10%) per annum from their date, payabl e on the first day 



 

12 
 

of January and July of each year and shall be payab le in the manner 

and be subject to the provisions as to collection o f assessments for 

the payment thereof, except as otherwise described in the Development 

Agreement and that neither the District nor the Mun icipality is 

required to purchase delinquent land at sale if the re is no other 

purchaser, as described in Title 48, Chapter 4, Art icle 2, Arizona 

Revised Statutes, save and except that the method o f collection of 

such assessments shall be as provided in Sections 4 8-600 to 48-607, 

both inclusive, Arizona Revised Statutes and not as  provided in 

Section 48-608, Arizona Revised Statutes. 

h. Publication.  The publication of the Notice shal l 

be in lieu of the posting and publication of this R esolution. 

i. Waiver, Acceptance.  Pursuant to the Development  

Agreement, the Owner has waived any and all rights of the Owner to 

file (1) written protests against the construction of the Area Six 

Work or (2) objections to the extent of the Area Si x Assessed 

Property.  Such waivers are hereby accepted by the District Board, and 

the District Board is proceeding in reliance on suc h waivers. 

j. Ordering the Work.  Based on the foregoing, the 

Area Six Work is hereby ordered in accordance with the Area Six Work 

Plans and Specifications and the Development Agreem ent. 

5. a. Approval of Diagram.  The Diagram, as prepare d 

and presented to the District Board, is hereby appr oved by the 

District Board. 

b. Approval of Method and Levy of Assessment.  The 

Method of Assessment, as prepared and presented to the District Board, 



 

13 
 

is hereby approved by the District Board and the le vy of the Area Six 

Assessments in amounts not in excess of those descr ibed therein and to 

result therefrom is hereby approved in accordance w ith the Method of 

Assessment, the Area Six Assessments being hereby d eclared to be based 

on the benefit to be received by the Area Six Asses sed Property. 

c. Certification and Delivery.  The District Clerk 

be and she hereby is authorized and directed to cer tify that the 

Diagram was approved by the District Board on this date, and after 

such certification the District Clerk be and she he reby is authorized 

and directed to deliver the Diagram to the District  Manager. 

d. Demand and Certification.  No demand shall be 

made on the owners of the Area Six Property so asse ssed for payment of 

the Area Six Property as such owners waived such ri ght pursuant to the 

Development Agreement.  The District Treasurer is d irected to certify 

to the District Clerk that nothing was collected an d that the Area Six 

Assessments remain unpaid in full. 

6. a. Assessments.  The amounts due pursuant to the  

Area Six Assessments and unpaid are and shall be a first lien on the 

Area Six Assessed Property so assessed, subject onl y to general 

property taxes and prior special assessments and sh all be collected as 

prescribed by Sections 48-599 and 600, Arizona Revi sed Statutes, as 

nearly as practicable or such other procedures as t he Board may 

prescribe.  In the event of nonpayment of amounts d ue pursuant to the 

Area Six Assessments and, except as otherwise provi ded herein, the 

procedures for collection of delinquent amounts and  sale of delinquent 

property prescribed by Sections 48-601 through 48-6 07, Arizona Revised 



 

14 
 

Statutes, apply, as nearly as practicable, except t hat neither the 

District nor the Municipality is required to purcha se the delinquent 

land at the sale if there is no other purchaser. 

b. Obligations of Municipality.  Nothing contained 

in this Resolution, the Development Agreement (spec ifically as amended 

by the Sixth Amendment) or any other instrument sha ll be construed as 

obligating the Municipality, except to the extent p rovided in such 

documents or instruments, or as incurring a charge upon the general 

credit of the Municipality nor shall the breach of any agreement 

contained in this Resolution, the Development Agree ment or any other 

instrument or documents executed in connection ther ewith impose any 

charge upon the general credit of the Municipality.  

7. a. Repeal of Resolution.  After the Sixth Amendm ent 

is executed and delivered, this Resolution shall be  and remain irre-

pealable until the unpaid principal amounts due the reunder and the 

interest thereon shall have been fully paid, cancel ed and discharged. 

b. Severability; Amendment; Ratification.  (1) If 

any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this  Resolution shall 

for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceab le, the invalidity 

or unenforceability of such section, paragraph, cla use or provision 

shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of  this Resolution. 

(2) This Resolution may only be amended as 

provided by the terms of the Indenture. 

(3) All prior acts of the District Board, of 

the District Manager and of the District Treasurer with respect to all 

matters concerning the District Resolution, the Dev elopment Agreement, 



 

15 
 

the Report, the Resolution of Intention Documents, the Area Six 

Assessments, the Area Six Warrant and this Resoluti on are hereby 

ratified and confirmed. 

c. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be effec-

tive immediately. 



 

16 
 

PASSED by the District Board of Merrill Ranch Commu nity 

Facilities District No. 1 this 17th day of June, 20 13. 
 
 
 
 
...................................... 
Chairperson, District Board, Merrill 
Ranch Community Facilities District 
No. 1 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
................................ 
District Clerk, Merrill Ranch 
Community Facilities District 
No. 1 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 
................................ 
District Counsel, Merrill Ranch 
Community Facilities District 
No. 1 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
EXHIBIT A - Area Six Assessment Diagram 
EXHIBIT B – Area Six Method of Assessment 
EXHIBIT C – Form of Notice of Hearing on Report 
 
 

*          *          * 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PHX 330772287v1-5/28/2013 



 

A-1 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

AREA SIX ASSESSMENT DIAGRAM 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
When recorded, please return to: 
 
Michael Cafiso, Esq. 
Greenberg Traurig, LLP 
Suite 700 
2375 East Camelback Road 
Phoenix, Arizona 85016 
 
 

SIXTH AMENDMENT AND WAIVERS 
(ASSESSMENT AREA SIX - UNITS 2 AND 9A), 

FOR DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT, FINANCING PARTICIPATION 
AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

(MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1)  
 
 

THIS SIXTH AMENDMENT AND WAIVERS (ASSESSMENT AREA 
SIX - UNITS 2 AND 9A), dated as of January 1, 2012 (hereinafter 
referred to as this " Amendment"), for DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT, FINANCING 
PARTICIPATION AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1), dated as of December 1,  2005, as amended 
by the First Amendment and Waivers (Assessment Area  One), dated as of 
February 1, 2006, the Second Amendment and Waivers (Assessment Area 
Two - Unit 54), dated as of December 1, 2008, the T hird Amendment and 
Waivers (Assessment Area Three - Unit 17A), dated a s of September 1, 
2010, the Fourth Amendment and Waivers (Assessment Area Four – Unit 
18), dated as of January 1, 2012, and the Fifth Ame ndment and Waivers 
(Assessment Area Five – Unit 17B), dated as of July  1, 2012 (as so 
amended hereinafter referred to as the " Agreement"), by and between 
Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1, a community facili-
ties district formed by the Municipality, and duly organized and 
validly existing, pursuant to the laws of the State  of Arizona (here-
inafter referred to as the " District"), and Pulte Home Corporation, a 
corporation duly incorporated and validly existing pursuant to the 
laws of the State of Michigan and having an interes t in certain 
property within the boundaries of the District (her einafter referred 
to as the " Owner"); 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Title 48, Chapter 4, Article 6 , 
Arizona Revised Statutes (hereinafter referred to a s the " Act"), and 
Section 9-500.05, Arizona Revised Statutes, the Tow n of Florence, 
Arizona, a municipality duly incorporated and valid ly existing 
pursuant to the laws of the State of Arizona; the D istrict; the Owner; 
CMR/Casa Grande, LLC, a limited liability company d uly organized and 



 

2 

validly existing pursuant to the laws of the State of Arizona and 
having an interest in certain property within the b oundaries of the 
District; Roadrunner Resorts, LLC, a limited liabil ity company duly 
organized and validly existing pursuant to the laws  of the State of 
Arizona and having an interest in certain property within the 
boundaries of the District, and WHM Merrill Ranch S PE, LLC, a limited 
liability company duly organized and validly existi ng pursuant to the 
laws of the State of Delaware, entered into the Agr eement as a 
"development agreement" to specify, among other thi ngs, conditions, 
terms, restrictions and requirements for "public in frastructure" (as 
such term is defined in the Act) and the financing of public 
infrastructure and subsequent reimbursements or rep ayments over time; 
and 

WHEREAS, with regard to the Property (as such term and all 
other undefined terms used in these Recitals are de fined in the Agree-
ment), the Municipality, the District and the Owner  specified some of 
such matters in the Agreement, particularly matters  relating to the 
construction or acquisition of certain public infra structure by the 
District, the acceptance thereof by the Municipalit y and the reim-
bursement or repayment of the Owner with respect th ereto, all pursuant 
to the Act, such public infrastructure being necess ary for the Owner 
to develop the Property prior to the time at which the District can 
itself pay for the construction or acquisition ther eof; and 

WHEREAS, the Agreement provided that the Assessment  Bonds 
shall be issued if certain conditions are met to pr ovide moneys for 
certain public infrastructure purposes described in  the General Plan 
of the District, and the use of the proceeds of the  sale of the 
Assessment Bonds was a subject of the Agreement; an d 

WHEREAS, the Agreement provided that an amendment t hereto 
would provide (1) for the designation from time to time of Assessed 
Property and of the portions of the Infrastructure,  the acquisition of 
which is to be financed with the proceeds of the sa le of Assessment 
Bonds and (2) the means by which the Owner would ac cept the Assess-
ments and have the Assessments allocated and record ed against the 
various parcels comprising the Assessed Property; a nd 

WHEREAS, Section 10.5 of the Agreement provides tha t the 
Agreement can be altered and otherwise amended if t he amendment is 
solely for the purpose of designating certain parce ls of "Property" 
and portions of "Infrastructure" (as contemplated b y the definitions 
of "Assessed Property" and "Work" in connection wit h "Assessments") 
and accepting, allocating and recording Assessments  against such 
parcels (as contemplated by Section 6.2(c)(2) of th e Agreement) and 
waivers related thereto and need be signed only by (and shall be 
effective against only) the District and the owner of such parcels; 
and 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the execution and delivery o f the 
Agreement, State law was amended to provide that th e District may 
provide that the collection of installments of the Assessments be paid 



 

3 

to such owner for the costs of public infrastructur e purposes, until 
the District Board of the District determined, if e ver, that the 
Assessment Bonds for such purposes should be issued  and that, until 
such Assessment Bonds are issued, the Assessments m ay bear interest at 
the rate specified by the District Board of the Dis trict, as all such 
terms are defined in the Development Agreement; and  

WHEREAS, this Amendment as an amendment to a "devel opment 
agreement" is consistent with the "general plan" of  the Municipality, 
as defined in Section 9-461, Arizona Revised Statut es applicable to 
the Property on the date this Agreement is executed ; and 

WHEREAS, the Owner is the current fee owner of the Area Six 
Assessed Property (as such term is hereinafter defi ned), and there are 
no holders of any other interests, legal or equitab le, in the Area Six 
Assessed Property; and 

WHEREAS, the appropriate representatives of the Own er 
(i) have, independently with the assistance of lega l counsel, reviewed 
and evaluated all of the law of the State as it rel ates to the subject 
matter of this Amendment; (ii) have a full and comp lete knowledge and 
understanding of such law; (iii) are sufficiently k nowledgeable and 
experienced in such matters to be able to evaluate the risks and 
merits of matters provided by this Amendment and (i v) are voluntarily 
causing the Owner to enter into this Amendment know ing that the terms 
and provisions of this Amendment shall run with and  encumber the Area 
Six Assessed Property and bind the entities executi ng this Amendment 
and their successors and assigns; and 

WHEREAS, such representatives of the Owner have rev iewed 
the boundaries of the Area Six Assessed Property as  well as the Area 
Six Estimate, the Area Six Work Plans and Specifica tions and the Area 
Six Assessment Diagram (as such terms are hereinaft er defined); and 

WHEREAS, the Owner is receiving fair consideration and 
reasonably equivalent value for its execution hereo f; the Owner is not 
now insolvent, nor will the execution hereof, rende r the Owner insolv-
ent; no obligation of the Owner has been incurred w ith the intent to 
hinder, delay or defraud present or future creditor s and the execution 
hereof does not involve the incurrence by the Owner  of an obligation 
or debt which the Owner reasonably believes is or w ill become beyond 
the ability of the Owner to pay as it becomes due; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in the joint and mutual exercise of  their 
powers, in consideration of the above premises and of the mutual 
covenants herein contained and for other valuable c onsideration, and 
subject to the conditions set forth herein, the par ties hereto amend 
the Agreement by providing for the purposes describ ed hereinabove to 
provide that they agree that: 

Section 1.  (a)  For all purposes of this Amendment , except 
as otherwise expressly provided or unless the conte xt otherwise 
requires, the terms defined in this Section have th e meanings assigned 



 

4 

to them in this Section and include, as appropriate , the plural as 
well as the singular, and otherwise the terms used herein have the 
meanings assigned to them in the Agreement: 

" Area Six Assessed Property" means the parcels of the 
Property described in the Exhibit to this Amendment . 

" Area Six Assessment Bonds" means the bonds entitled 
"Special Assessment Lien Bonds (Assessment Area Six )" of the District 
or such other title approved by the District Board which may be 
authorized to be sold and issued by the District as  described in this 
Amendment, payable from amounts collected from, amo ng other sources, 
the Area Six Assessments, remaining after payment o f the principal 
amounts paid pursuant to Section 2(d)(3). 

" Area Six Assessment Diagram" means the assessment diagram 
to be on file with the District Clerk, prepared by the District 
Engineer and the Superintendent of Streets, as amen ded from time to 
time, showing estimated maximum dollar amounts of b enefits derived 
from the Area Six Work for each parcel of the Area Six Assessed 
Property and assessing against each such parcel the  maximum 
proportionate share of costs and expenses of the Ar ea Six Work, the 
contents of which are hereby incorporated herein by  this reference. 

" Area Six Assessments" means, as to be originally levied 
and as thereafter reallocated as described herein, the proportionate 
share of costs and expenses of Area Six Work levied  against each 
parcel of the Area Six Assessed Property pursuant t o Title 48, Chapter 
4, Article 2, Arizona Revised Statutes. 

" Area Six Estimate" means the estimate included in the Area 
Six Report, such portion of the contents of which a re hereby 
incorporated herein by this reference, being the to tal of amounts 
necessary to pay the total of all amounts due pursu ant to the 
Agreement for the Area Six Work not otherwise paid from cash 
collections of the Area Six Assessments. 

" Area Six Report" means the Report applicable to the Area 
Six Work on file with the District Clerk. 

" Area Six Work" means the portions of the Infrastructure 
described in the Area Six Report, such portion of t he contents of 
which are hereby incorporated herein by this refere nce, the acquisi-
tion of which is to be financed as provided herein.  

" Area Six Work Plans and Specifications" means the Plans 
and Specifications for the corresponding Acquisitio n Projects on file 
with the District Clerk, which shall compose the Ar ea Six Work, the 
contents of which are hereby incorporated herein by  this reference. 

" Assessment Collection Agreement" means the Community 
Facilities District Assessment Collection Agreement  (Merrill Ranch 
Community Facilities District No. 1), dated as of S eptember 1, 2009, 



 

5 

by and between the Treasurer of Pinal County, Arizo na, and the Dis-
trict. 

(b) All references in this Amendment to designated 
"Exhibits," "Sections" and other subdivisions are t o the designated 
Exhibits, Sections and other subdivisions of this A mendment as 
originally executed unless otherwise indicated. 

(c) The words "herein," "hereof" and "hereunder" an d 
other words of similar import refer to this Amendme nt as a whole and 
not to any particular Exhibit, Section or other sub division. 

Section 2.  (a) Notwithstanding any provision of th e 
Agreement to the contrary, this Section shall apply  to this Amendment 
and, if ever issued, the Area Six Assessment Bonds to the exclusion of 
any conflicting provision therein: 

(1) (A) Subject to reduction as provided in Section  
2(a)(2)(E), the Area Six Assessments shall be levie d based on the Area 
Six Estimate upon all of the Area Six Assessed Prop erty based on the 
benefits received by and as allocated to the parcel s into which the 
Area Six Assessed Property is or is to be divided i n an amount of 
$3,500 per typical equivalent dwelling unit lot; pr ovided, however, 
that unless the Owner pays the difference to the Di strict in cash 
(which the District hereby agrees to apply to the p ayment of the 
amounts due the Owner pursuant to Section 2(d)(3) a nd, if ever issued, 
after the issuance thereof, the Area Six Assessment  Bonds according to 
their terms) the amount allocated per lot shall nev er be in total less 
than the principal amount due to the Owner pursuant  hereto or, if ever 
issued, after the issuance thereof, the principal a mount of the Area 
Six Assessment Bonds.  With respect to each such al location, the Owner 
shall provide to the District Manager evidence sati sfactory to the 
District Manager of any matters the District Manage r may reasonably 
request, including particularly with respect to the  condition of title 
of any lot and that the value of the remaining lots  after such 
allocation is at least equal to the remaining total  of such principal 
amount, in each case as applicable, evidencing such  values on a lot by 
lot basis, if necessary. 

(B) The Owner accepts the Area Six Assessments 
which are in an amount not more than the total amou nt of the Area Six 
Estimate against the Area Six Assessed Property and  shall have the 
Area Six Assessments allocated and recorded with th e County Recorder 
of Pinal County, Arizona, by means of this Amendmen t against the 
various parcels comprising the Area Six Assessed Pr operty. 

(C) The Area Six Assessed Property receives 
benefits from the Area Six Work equal to not less t han the Area Six 
Assessments as so allocated to the parcels into whi ch the Area Six 
Assessed Property is or is to be divided, and the A rea Six Assessments 
shall be final, conclusive and binding upon the Own er whether or not 
the Area Six Work is completed in substantial compl iance with the Area 
Six Work Plans and Specifications. 



 

6 

(2) (A)  The Owner approves the boundaries of the 
Area Six Assessed Property as well as the Area Six Estimate, the Area 
Six Work Plans and Specifications and the Area Six Assessment Diagram. 

(B) This Amendment shall be construed to be an 
express consent by the Owner that (I) the District may, with respect 
to the Area Six Assessed Property, incur costs and expenses necessary 
to complete the Area Six Work and (II) the District  may levy and 
collect the Area Six Assessments in amounts suffici ent to pay the 
amounts indicated in the Area Six Estimate, includi ng for the Area Six 
Work, but not in excess of the total amount of the Area Six Estimate. 

(C) The mailing to the governing body of the 
Municipality of the Area Six Estimate and the Area Six Work Plans and 
Specifications in the form of the Area Six Report p ursuant to Section 
48-715, Arizona Revised Statutes shall satisfy the filing requirements 
of Section 48-577, Arizona Revised Statutes and the  publication of the 
notice of hearing on the Area Six Report pursuant t o Section 48-715, 
Arizona Revised Statutes, as amended, shall satisfy  the publication 
and posting requirements of Section 48-578, Arizona  Revised Statutes. 

(D) Installments of the Area Six Assessments 
(whether paid to the Owner pursuant to Section 2(d) (3), or if issued, 
with respect to the Area Six Assessment Bonds) shal l be credited 
against such costs and expenses. 

(E) Notwithstanding Section 4.2 of the Agree-
ment but instead pursuant to Section 2(d)(3), the D istrict shall pay 
the Segment Price for and acquire from the Owner, a nd the Owner shall 
accept the Segment Price for and sell to the Distri ct, each Segment 
which is part of the Area Six Work after approval o f the Area Six 
Report and at the same time as the levy of the Area  Six Assessment by 
filing with the District Manager the appropriate Co nveyance for such 
Segment, and the same shall be considered as paymen t for purposes of 
Section 7.1 of the Agreement.  (For purposes hereof , the definition of 
"Segment Price" shall be read as follows, additions  in bold and 
deletions stricken out:  an amount equal to the sum  of (1) the amounts 
estimated to be paid by an Owner in the Area Six Report for design of 
the Segment (including the costs of the review of s uch design by the 
District Engineer), (2) the amounts estimated to be paid by an Owner 
in the Area Six Report for construction of the Segment pursuant to the 
Acquisition Project Construction Contract for such Segment (such 
amount to be equal to the contract amount plus any increases to such 
contract amount approved as described in Section 3. 5 less any change 
orders decreasing the contract amount), (3) the amo unts estimated to 
be paid by an Owner in the Area Six Report for inspection and 
supervision of performance under such Acquisition P roject Construction 
Contract including an amount determined by the Engi neers in the 
Certificate of Engineers for such Segment determine d to be then 
commercially reasonable by them, but in no event le ss than five per-
cent (5%) or more than ten percent (10%) of the amo unt described in 
clause (2) hereof for such Segment, for constructio n administration, 
(4) the fair market value of real property for righ ts of way, ease-



 

7 

ments and any other interests in real property whic h are part of or 
related to such Segment, (5) interest during the pe riod starting after 
the Segment has been accepted by the Municipality f or use but before 
the provisions of Section 7.1 hereof are effective with respect to 
such Segment until the Segment Price for such Segme nt can be paid, 
calculated at the rates of interest equal to the pr ime rate as 
reported in the West Coast Edition of The Wall Stre et Journal plus two 
percent (2%) from day to day on the amounts expende d for purposes of 
clause (1), (2) and (3) hereof during such period a nd (6 5) other 
miscellaneous costs for such Segment attributable t o construction of 
the Segment approved by the Engineers as certified in the Certificate 
of the Engineers for that Segment estimated in the Area Six Report.)  
If prior to the sale and conveyance by the Owner of  any of the Area 
Six Assessed Property to any other party the Owner has not presented 
to the District Manager the Certificate of the Engi neers evidencing 
that the amounts of the Segments Prices described a bove were incurred 
by the Owner in an amount at least equal to the Are a Six Assessments, 
the Area Six Assessments shall be reduced by a corr esponding, 
proportioned amount as calculated by the District E ngineer, and the 
Area Six Assessments shall be modified accordingly by the District 
Board at such time.  (The forms of the Conveyance a nd the Certificate 
of the Engineers shall be revised in a form accepta ble to the District 
Manager to conform with their use as described abov e.)  Other 
materials otherwise required to be filed pursuant t o Section 4.2 of 
the Agreement shall also be filed prior to any sale  by the Owner of 
any of the Area Six Assessed Property to any other party for amounts 
to continue to be payable pursuant to Section 2(d)( 3). 

(3) Notwithstanding that Section 32-2181(I), Arizon a 
Revised Statutes may be construed to prevent any wa iver of the right 
to appear before the District Board on any hearing required at or 
prior to the confirmation of the Area Six Assessmen ts, the Owner 
instead hereby requests that the District Board hol d hearings on any 
protests with respect to the Area Six Work and obje ctions to the 
extent of the Area Six Assessed Property (all of wh ich is to be 
assessed) pursuant to Sections 48-579 and 580, Ariz ona Revised 
Statutes, any objections to award of applicable con tracts with respect 
to the Area Six Work pursuant to Section 48-584, Ar izona Revised 
Statutes and any objections with respect to the Are a Six Assessments 
or to any previous proceedings connected therewith or claim that the 
Area Six Work has not been performed according to a ny applicable 
contract or the Area Six Work Plans and Specificati ons pursuant to 
Section 48-590, Arizona Revised Statutes should any  protests or 
objections or any requests for hearings with respec t thereto be made 
prior to the confirmation of the Area Six Assessmen ts.  The Owner 
hereby waives all formal requirements of notice (wh ether to be mailed, 
posted or published) and the passage of time prior to such hearings 
and further consents that hearings and proceedings may be consolidated 
and held by the District Board on the same day or d ays. 

(4) The Owner, with full knowledge of the provision s, 
and the rights thereof pursuant to such provisions,  of applicable law, 
waives: 



 

8 

 (I) any and all defects, irregularities, ille-
galities or deficiencies in the proceedings establi shing the Area Six 
Assessed Property; 

 (II) any and all notices and time periods 
related thereto provided by Section 48-576, et seq. , Arizona Revised 
Statutes, including, but not limited, to mailing, p osting and 
publication, as applicable, of any notice required in connection with 
the adoption of the resolution of intention with re spect to the Area 
Six Work, the noticing of proposed improvements wit h respect to the 
Area Six Work, the adoption of the resolution order ing the 
improvements with respect to the Area Six Work, the  noticing of 
ordering of the improvements with respect to the Ar ea Six Work, the 
noticing of award of applicable contracts with resp ect to the Area Six 
Work, the Area Six Assessments and any other proced ural steps and 
related proceedings necessary in connection with th e Area Six Work; 

 (III) any and all protests with respect to the 
Area Six Work and objections to the extent of the A rea Six Assessed 
Property (all of which is to be assessed) and inclu ding any right to 
file a written protest or objection for such purpos e and any right to 
any hearing on such matters; 

 (IV) any and all defects, irregularities, ille-
galities or deficiencies in, or in the adoption by the District Board 
of, the Area Six Assessed Property (all of which is  to be assessed), 
the Area Six Work Plans and Specifications, the Are a Six Estimate and 
the Area Six Assessment Diagram, all of which provi de for and effectu-
ate the completion of the Area Six Work; 

 (V) any and all defects, irregularities, ille-
galities or deficiencies in, or in the awarding of,  any contracts for 
or with respect to, the Area Six Work, including, b ut not limited to, 
any right to claim that any of the acts or proceedi ngs relating to the 
Area Six Work are irregular, illegal or faulty purs uant to Section 
48-584(E), Arizona Revised Statutes, any right to f ile a notice 
specifying in which respect the acts and proceeding s are irregular, 
illegal or faulty and any right to any hearing in c onnection 
therewith; 

 (VI) any and all actions and defenses against 
the Area Six Assessments, this Amendment or any of the Area Six 
Assessment Bonds, including, but not limited to, th e judicial review 
granted by Section 48-721(A), Arizona Revised Statu es as to whether 
the Area Six Property (all of which is to be assess ed) is benefited by 
the Area Six Work; 

 (VII) any right to object to the legality of any 
of the Area Six Assessments or to any of the previo us proceedings 
connected therewith or claim that the Area Six Work  has not been per-
formed according to any applicable contract or the Area Six Work Plans 
and Specifications in each case as permitted pursua nt to Section 
48-590(G), Arizona Revised Statutes and including a ny right to file a 



 

9 

written notice specifying the grounds of such objec tion and any right 
to any hearing in connection therewith; 

 (VIII) any right to demands for, or of cash 
payment of the Area Six Assessments pursuant to Sec tion 48-590, 
Arizona Revised Statutes, except as may otherwise b e ordered by the 
District Board and 

 (IX) any and all provisions of any collateral 
security instruments relating to the Area Six Asses sed Property (all 
of which is to be assessed) which prohibit the esta blishment of the 
Area Six Assessed Property, designation of the boun daries of the Area 
Six Assessed Property (all of which is to be assess ed), completion of 
the Area Six Work and levying and recording of the Area Six 
Assessments. 

(5) The Area Six Work is of more than local or 
ordinary public benefit, and the Area Six Assessed Property receives a 
benefit from the Area Six Work in an amount not les s than shown in the 
Area Six Assessment Diagram. 

(6) Instead of the public bidding, bonding and 
contracting requirements set forth in Sections 48-5 81 and 584, Arizona 
Revised Statutes, the provisions therefor provided by the Agreement 
have been or will be complied with respect to the A rea Six Work. 

(b) The Owner shall execute all documents necessary , 
appropriate or incidental to the purposes of this A mendment, particu-
larly as they relate to this Section thereof, as lo ng as such docu-
ments are consistent with this Amendment and do not  create additional 
liability of any type to the signers by virtue of e xecution thereof. 

(c) Notwithstanding any provision of the Agreement to the 
contrary, this Amendment as it relates to the Owner  shall be a 
covenant and agreement running with the Area Six As sessed Property and 
shall be recorded in the records of the County Reco rder of Pinal 
County, Arizona, as a lien and encumbrance against the Area Six 
Assessed Property.  In the event of any sale, trans fer or other 
conveyance by the Owner of the right, title or inte rest of the Owner 
in the Area Six Assessed Property or any part there of, the Property or 
such part thereof shall continue to be bound by all  of the terms, 
conditions and provisions hereof; any purchaser, tr ansferee or other 
subsequent owner shall take such property subject t o all of the terms, 
conditions and provisions hereof and any purchaser,  transferee or 
other subsequent owner shall take such property ent itled to all of the 
rights, benefits and protections afforded the prede cessor in interest 
thereof by the terms hereof  To the extent that the  Area Six 
Assessments after levied remain unpaid, the Area Si x Assessments shall 
constitute liens against the Area Six Assessed Prop erty in the amounts 
indicated in the Area Six Assessment Diagram, as pr ovided by, and 
pursuant to, this Amendment and the Act and shall b e enforceable and 
collectable with the same force and effect original ly provided to 
them. 



 

10 

(d) (1) For purposes of Section 5.2(a)(1) of the Ag ree-
ment and instead thereof, the installments of the A rea Six Assessments 
shall be paid to the Owner as installment purchase payments for the 
acquisition provided by Section 2(a)(2)(E). 

(2) In addition to the purposes provided in Section  
6.2(c)(1) of the Agreement, the Area Six Assessment s shall also be 
levied for the purposes of this Amendment.  The Are a Six Assessments 
shall be collected pursuant to the Assessment Colle ction Agreement. 

(3) The aggregate principal amount payable pursuant  
to this Section is $413,000, which shall bear inter est from the date 
of the levy of the Area Six Assessments at the rate  of _________ 
percent (________%) per annum until paid.  Such pri ncipal amount shall 
be amortized such that the payments of principal on  the first day of 
January of each year and interest on the first day of January and July 
of each year with respect to the Area Six Assessmen ts will be 
substantially equal over a period ending July 1, 20 __.  

(4) The payments due pursuant to this Section shall  
be prepayable at the option of the District prior t o their due date in 
whole or from time to time in part on any date, upo n payment of the 
principal amount to be prepaid, plus accrued intere st, if any, from 
the most recent payment date to the prepayment date , without premium, 
from, and only from, funds of the District which ar e prepaid with 
respect to the Area Six Assessments and are deposit ed in the 
"Prepayment Account" (as such term is hereinafter d efined) as 
described in Section 6.2(c)(1) of the Agreement. 

(5) The payments due pursuant to this Section shall  
also be prepayable at the option of the District pr ior to their due 
date in whole on any date, upon payment of the amou nt available 
pursuant to Section 2(e)(2) even if such amount is less than the 
principal amount payable pursuant to Section 2(d)(3 ) then unpaid, plus 
accrued interest, if any, from the most recent paym ent date to the 
prepayment date, without a premium, from proceeds o f the sale of the 
Area Six Assessment Bonds. 

(6) The District shall establish a special fund 
designated its "Special Assessment Lien (Assessment  Area Six) Fund" 
(herein referred to as the " Fund") and within the Fund (1) a special 
account designated the " Principal Account," (2) a special account 
designated the " Interest Account," (3) a special account designated 
the " Prepayment Account" and (4) a special account designated the 
" Expenses Account."  The money deposited to the Principal Account, t he 
Interest Account, the Prepayment Account and the Ex penses Account, 
together with all investments thereof and investmen t income therefrom, 
shall be applied solely as follows: 



 

11 

The District shall, upon receipt, deposit to the 
credit of  

• the Principal Account amounts collected by 
or remitted to the District from the collection of the 
principal portion of installments with respect to t he 
Area Six Assessments and which are allocated in the  
budget of the District for the applicable fiscal ye ar 
for the payment of principal on the amounts due 
pursuant to Section 2(d)(3). 

• the Interest Account amounts collected by 
or remitted to the District from the collection of the 
interest portion of installments with respect to th e 
Area Six Assessment and which are allocated in the 
budget of the District for the applicable fiscal ye ar 
for payment of the interest on the amounts due 
pursuant to Section 2(d)(3). 

• the Prepayment Account 

amounts remitted to the District as 
prepayments of installments with respect to the 
Area Six Assessments to the extent provided in 
Sections 2(d)(4) and not necessary to pay 
principal of or interest on the Bonds (which 
shall be held in the Principal Account and the 
Interest Account, respectively) prior to the 
application of such amounts to prepay the amounts 
due pursuant to Section 2(d)(3); 

amounts received by the District as 
proceeds from any foreclosure sale of any real 
property which is the subject of the Area Six 
Assessments due to a failure to pay an 
installment which is the subject of the Area Six 
Assessments and 

amounts paid pursuant to Section 2(d)(5). 

• the Expenses Account amounts collected by 
or remitted to the District from the collection of 
amounts to be applied for the payment of expenses a nd 
costs of the District arising from the financing of  
the Area Six Work, including, particularly, but not  by 
way of limitation, expenses and costs for agents or  
third parties required to administer the Area Six 
Assessments and this Amendment, prepare annual audi ts 
and budgets and provide for any purposes otherwise 
related to such activities of the District as a 
portion of the interest portion of installments wit h 
respect to the Area Six Assessments to the extent 
provided in Section 2(a)(1)(A) and which are alloca ted 



 

12 

in the budget of the District for the applicable 
fiscal year for the payment of such expenses. 

The amounts in the Principal Account, the 
Interest Account, the Prepayment Account and the 
Expenses Account shall be applied solely as follows : 

• the amounts in the Principal Account shall 
be applied to pay principal due pursuant to Section  
2(d)(3); 

• the amounts in the Interest Account shall 
be applied to pay interest due pursuant to Section 
2(d)(3); 

• the amounts in the Prepayment Account shall 
be applied to prepay as described in Sections 2(d)( 4) 
and (5) and 

• the amounts in the Expenses Account shall 
be applied by the District for the purposes describ ed 
in Section 9.1(b) of the Agreement. 

(7) The amounts available because of the Area Six 
Assessments (calculated after being reduced by any amounts available 
in the Fund not required for payment of amounts due  pursuant to 
Section 2(d)(3) in the then-current year for, and w hether in the form 
of, regularly payable installments with respect the reto, prepayments 
thereof, proceeds of the sale of land related to de linquent install-
ments thereof or otherwise) shall be deposited in t he Principal 
Account, the Interest Account, the Prepayment Accou nt and the Expenses 
Account and applied, in each case, as described in Section 2(d)(6). 

(8) Such amounts shall be kept separately from othe r 
funds of the District by depositing them in the acc ounts and amounts 
provided in Section 2(d)(6). 

(9) The District has levied the Area Six Assessment s 
in accordance with the Act and the Resolution of In tention Documents 
and shall take or cause to be taken all actions req uired by law to 
collect and enforce the payment thereof. 

(10) If any portion of the Area Six Assessments sha ll 
be either in whole or in part annulled, vacated or set aside by the 
judgment of any court, or if the District shall be satisfied that any 
portion of the Area Six Assessments is so irregular  or defective that 
the same cannot be enforced or collected, or if the  District shall 
have omitted to make any portion of the Area Six As sessments when it 
might have done so, the District shall either (1) t ake all necessary 
steps to cause a new assessment to be made pursuant  to the Act for the 
whole or any part of the Area Six Work or (2), in i ts sole discretion, 
make up the amount of such portion of the Area Six Assessments from 



 

13 

legally available funds of the District, which fund s shall be 
deposited into the applicable account of the Fund. 

(11) The Area Six Assessments shall be enforced 
pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Resol ution of Intention 
Documents, including but not limited to declaring t he entire unpaid 
balance of any portion of the Area Six Assessments to be in default 
and causing the lien with respect to such portion o f the Area Six 
Assessments on the related delinquent land to be fo reclosed pursuant 
to the Act and the Resolution of Intention Document s.  Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, neither the District nor the Municip ality shall be 
required under any circumstances to purchase or mak e payment for the 
purchase of the delinquent portion of the Area Six Assessments or the 
related land. 

(12) The Board shall make and adopt before the date  
set by law for certifying the annual budget of the Municipality an 
annual budget for each fiscal year of the District,  as required by the 
Act, which shall include statements and estimates o f the amount to be 
raised to pay the amounts to be shown in such budge t as described in 
Section 2(d)(6). 

(e) (1) If issued, the Area Six Assessment Bonds wi ll be 
issued at the request and for the benefit of the Ow ner. 

(2) Notwithstanding the first sentence of Section 
5.2(c)(2) of the Agreement, the proceeds of the sal e of the Area Six 
Assessment Bonds shall be sold and issued for the p urpose of prepaying 
the balance of amounts due pursuant to Section 2(d) (3)at the time of 
sale and issuance of the Area Six Assessment Bonds,  and the Owner 
shall accept such amount in satisfaction thereof.  The principal 
amount of the Area Six Assessment Bonds shall not e xceed the principal 
amount remaining unpaid pursuant to Section 2(d)(3) , and the Area Six 
Assessment Bonds shall be amortized over a period n ot longer than 
provided in Section 2(d)(3); provided that such per iod may be shorter 
if the annual payments described in the next senten ce can be 
maintained.  If the effective interest rate at whic h the Area Six 
Assessment Bonds are sold and issued exceeds the in terest rate being 
paid on the Area Six Assessments pursuant to Sectio n 2(d)(3), the 
principal amount of the Area Six Assessment Bonds s hall be that amount 
which can be amortized at such interest rate withou t increasing the 
annual payments due with respect to each of the Are a Six Assessments, 
and the principal amounts of the Area Six Assessmen ts shall be 
modified by the District Board accordingly at such time.  The Owner 
shall accept such redeemed amount as full and compl ete satisfaction of 
the amounts due pursuant to Section 2(d)(3).  The a mounts collected 
pursuant to the Assessment Collection Agreement sha ll be reamortized 
to reflect the effect and the interest payable with  respect to the 
Area Six Assessments of the sale of the Area Six As sessment Bonds and, 
if applicable, the reduction of the principal amoun t described above. 

(3) Notwithstanding Section 6.2(c)(6)(B) of the 
Agreement, an amount sufficient to fund a reserve f und, which shall be 



 

14 

a reserve to secure payment of debt service on the Area Six Assessment 
Bonds, in an amount equal to the maximum amount per mitted by the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury 
Regulations applicable thereto, shall be contribute d by the Owner.  
Payment from such reserve shall not effect a reduct ion in the amount 
of the Area Six Assessments, and any amount collect ed with respect to 
the Area Six Assessments thereafter shall be deposi ted to such reserve 
to the extent the Area Six Assessments are so paid therefrom. 

(4) The Area Six Assessment Bonds may be sold as a 
series as part of a composite issue along with othe r series of the 
Assessment Bonds.  An amount sufficient to pay cost s of issuance of 
the Area Six Assessment Bonds shall also be contrib uted by the Owner. 

Section 3.  In the event that the Owner fails to pe rform 
its obligations arising under or in connection here with, including a 
failure to timely pay the Area Six Assessments, the  District shall 
have the right to enforce its legal, equitable and contractual rights 
hereunder and under applicable law.  If a bankruptc y case that would 
have the effect of staying the District from enforc ement of its rights 
and remedies hereunder or under applicable law is c ommenced:  (1) in 
addition to all other rights and remedies, the Dist rict shall be 
entitled to immediate stay relief under 11 U.S.C. §  362 with respect 
to the enforcement of its rights and remedies hereu nder or applicable 
law for cause, and (2) the Owner shall be obligated  to pay, as 
"adequate protection" under 11 U.S.C. § 361(1), per iodic payments in 
amounts not less than, and at times no less frequen tly than, the 
payments required by the Area Six Assessments. 

Section 4.  All the provisions of this Amendment, i ncluding 
but not limited to all general waivers, waivers of statutory provi-
sions, waivers of due process and other substantive  rights, remedies 
and indemnities contained herein shall be enforceab le in strict 
accordance with their terms. 

Section 5.  (a)  The provisions of the Agreement no t 
excluded by Sections 2(a), (c) and (d) hereof are, in all other 
respects, applicable to this Amendment, including p articularly, but 
not by way of limitation, those provided in Section  10.9 of the 
Agreement, and are ratified and confirmed in all re spects. 

(b) With respect to the Agreement and to the extent  
applicable under Section 41-440, Arizona Revised St atutes, the Owner 
shall comply with all federal immigration laws and regulations that 
relate to its employees and its compliance with the  "e-verify" 
requirements under Section 23-214(A), Arizona Revis ed Statutes.  The 
breach by the Owner of the foregoing shall be deeme d a material breach 
of the Agreement and may result in the termination of the Agreement.  
The District may randomly inspect the papers and re cords of the Owner 
to ensure that the Owner is complying with the abov e-mentioned 
covenant.  The Owner shall keep such papers and rec ords open for 
random inspection during normal business hours by t he Owner.  The 
Owner shall cooperate with the random inspections b y the District 



 

15 

including granting the District entry rights onto i ts property to 
perform such random inspections and waiving its res pective rights to 
keep such papers and records confidential. 

(c) With respect to the Agreement, pursuant to 
Sections 35-391.06 and 35-393.06, Arizona Revised S tatutes, the Owner 
does and shall not have a scrutinized business oper ation in Sudan or 
Iran.  For the purpose of this Section the term "sc rutinized business 
operations" shall have the meanings set forth in Se ctions 35-391 and 
35-393, Arizona Revised Statutes, as applicable.  I f the District 
determines that the foregoing is not the case, the District may impose 
remedies as provided by law including terminating t he Agreement. 



 

16 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the officers of the District ha ve duly 
affixed their signatures and attestations, and the officers of the 
Owner their signatures, all as of the day and year first written 
above. 

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
DISTRICT NO. 1 
 
 
 
 
By.................................... 
  Tom J. Rankin, Chairperson, 
  District Board 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
............................... 
Lisa Garcia, District Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 

PULTE HOME CORPORATION, a Michigan 
corporation 
 
 
 
 
By.................................... 
  Bruce E. Robinson, Vice President 
  and Treasurer of Pulte Home 
  Corporation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
330772307.1-5/29/2013 



 

17 

STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF PINAL ) 
 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me  this 
.......... day of ..............., 2012, by Tom J. Rankin, as Chair-
person of the District Board of Merrill Ranch Commu nity Facilities 
District No. 1, an Arizona community facilities dis trict. 

 
 
 
...................................... 
Notary Public 

My commission expires: 
 
..................... 
 
 
 
STATE OF ........... ) 
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF .......... ) 
 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me  this 
.......... of ..............., 2012, by Bruce E. Ro binson, Vice 
President and Treasurer of Pulte Home Corporation, a Michigan 
corporation. 

 
 
 
...................................... 
Notary Public 

My commission expires: 
 
..................... 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
EXHIBIT  - Legal Description Of The Area Six Assess ed Property 
 
 

Notice required by A.R.S. Section 41-313:  The fore going 
notarial certificate(s) relate(s) to the Sixth Amen dment And Waivers 
(Assessment Area Six - Units 2 and 9A), dated July 1, 2013, executed 
by the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1, a municipal 
corporation, and Pulte Home Corporation, a Michigan  Corporation, (the 
"Notarized Document").  The Notarized Document cont ains a total of __ 
pages. 



 

Page 1 of Exhibit 

EXHIBIT 
 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE AREA SIX ASSESSED PROPERTY 
 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH, UNITS 2 AND 9A 

 
 



 

Page 2 of Exhibit 

 
 
  



 

Page 3 of Exhibit 

 
  



 

Page 4 of Exhibit 

 
  



 

Page 5 of Exhibit 

 
  



 

P
a
g
e
 6

 o
f E

xh
ib

it 

 
 

 



 

Page 7 of Exhibit 

 
  



 

Page 8 of Exhibit 

 
  



 

Page 9 of Exhibit 

 
  



 

Page 10 of Exhibit 

 
  



 

Page 11 of Exhibit 

 



 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
 o

f E
xh

ib
it 

 



 

B-1 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

AREA SIX METHOD OF ASSESSMENT 
 
 



 

MERRILL RANCH 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 

(Florence, Arizona) 

 
 
 
 
 

ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY 
ASSESSMENT AREA SIX 

(Units 2 and 9A) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 
 

WILLDAN 
1440 East Missouri Ave, Suite C170 

Phoenix, AZ 85014 
(602) 870-7600 

 
May 31, 2013 



 i 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION .................................................................................................. 1 
 
DESCRIPTION OF IMPROVEMENTS ................................................................................ 2 

Street Improvements ....................................................................................................... 2 
Storm Drain Improvements .............................................................................................. 2 
Engineering ..................................................................................................................... 2 

 
PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE ...................................................................................... 2 
 
ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY ....................................................................................... 4 

Reserve Fund and Bond Issuance Costs ......................................................................... 4 
Estimated Special Assessment Liens Per Lot .................................................................. 4 

 
DIAGRAMS FOR ASSESSMENT AREA 6 (UNITS 2 AND 9A) ........................................... 5 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF ASSESSMENT AREA ............................................................ 13 
 
CONCLUSION .................................................................................................................. 23 
 
 



 

 1 Prepared by Willdan 
 

 
MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 

ASSESSMENT AREA SIX 
(ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH UNITS 2 and 9A) 

Town of Florence, Arizona 
 
 
 
Willdan, the District Engineer for the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1, makes 
this report of benefit as directed by District staff in support of the Feasibility Report for the 
Issuance of Not to Exceed $413,000 Aggregate Principal Amount of Installment Purchase 
Agreement for Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 Special Assessment Area #6 
(Assessment Area Six), dated June 17, 2013 (“Feasibility Report”).  
 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The Merrill Ranch master planned community (“Project”) consists of 8,970 acres and is located 
in the Town of Florence, Arizona.  On December 19, 2005 the Merrill Ranch Community 
Facilities District No. 1 was established over 7,900 of such acres to finance the construction 
and/or acquisition of public infrastructure that are part of the Project. Assessment Area Six of 
such District (“Assessment Area Six”) consists of 118 residential lots within 26.68 gross acres. 
Special Assessment Bonds (Assessment Area Six) (“Bond Issue”) relates to the acquisition of 
public infrastructure that will benefit development of Assessment Area Six. Details related to 
the project area, infrastructure improvements, costs, and land use can be found in the 
Feasibility Report. 
 
 
  

 



 

 2 Prepared by Willdan 
 

DESCRIPTION OF IMPROVEMENTS 
 
The improvements that will be funded by the Bond Issue and are the subject of this report will 
be public infrastructure that is eligible for funding according to Arizona Revised Statues Title 48 
Community Facilities Act of 1989.  The improvements are more fully described in Section 2 of 
the Feasibility Study.  Briefly, the improvements are described as follows:  
 
Street Improvements 
The engineering design and construction of certain grading, trenching, staking, asphalt paving, 
base, concrete curb/gutter and sidewalk, signing, permits and fees, together with 
appurtenances, contingency, and appurtenant work within public right-of-ways within the 
defined parcels benefiting as per the Community Master Plan.   
 
This Project consists of the installation of asphaltic paving and concrete installation to include 4 
inch roll and 6 inch vertical curb, 6-foot valley gutters, and 4-foot wide sidewalks within the 
public roadways within the Assessment Area. The pavement section is to be 2.5 inches of 
asphalt on 7 inches of aggregate base course (“ABC”).  Improvements will comply with the 
Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) standard details. All improvement will be within 
the public roadways of the Assessment Area. 
 
 
Storm Drain Improvements 
Storm drain improvements consist of the engineering design, survey and construction of local 
residential storm drain facilities within public right-of-ways along the frontage of each benefiting 
property, along with appurtenances and contingency.  
 
Storm drain improvements constructed with this project will be within the public roadways of the 
Assessment Area. The storm drain will intercept runoff from the public roadways by either 
catch basins or scuppers, conveying to retention facilities by pipe or overland flow. The catch 
basins and scuppers will comply with MAG Standard Details. The pipe will be sized between 15 
inches and 30 inches of concrete pipe, or approved alternate. 
 
 
Engineering 
The projects include engineering design, survey, and development of infrastructure plans for 
grading and drainage, utilities, paving, concrete and storm drain as related to the public 
improvements necessary in Assessment Area Six, Units 2 and 9A. The plans will be reviewed 
and approved by the Town in accordance with their guidelines and standards. 
 
 
PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE 
 
The Bond Issue secured by unpaid assessments is proposed to be issued in accordance with 
the Arizona Revised Statutes, the Town of Florence, Arizona Policy Guidelines and Application 
Procedures for the Establishment of Community Facilities Districts, and Development, 
Financing Participation and Intergovernmental Agreement No. 1 (Merrill Ranch Community 
Facilities District No. 2) as amended. A summary of the costs of the public infrastructure to be 
financed is as follows, with details available in the Feasibility Report:  
 
  



 

 3 Prepared by Willdan 
 

 
MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT No. 1 

ASSESSMENT AREA SIX (Units 2 and 9A) 
 
 
 

COST ESTIMATE 
 
          
Improvement Projects            Estimated Costs 
 
Residential Streets / Concrete $   454,557    
Storm Drain $   176,024 
Engineering $   201,093 
 
TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS                                                                 $  831,674 
 
 
 
  
FINANCED AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED                                         $  413,000  
 
 
 



 

 4 Prepared by Willdan 
 

ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY 
 
The State of Arizona Revised Statutes provides that assessments be allocated in proportion to 
the benefits received by each lot from the improvements. The original assessed amount (prior 
to cash payments) and consequently the remaining assessments securing the Bond Issue are 
allocated at a rate of not to exceed $3,500.00 per lot to the lots within Assessment Area Six 
based upon the following benefit methodology. 
 
The Improvements consist of local roadways and storm drains benefitting equally each of the 
159 residential lots included with the Assessment Area. The roadways and storm drains 
provide a direct and special benefit to the developable lots to be assessed, in that primary 
access and required infrastructure is made available to the lots assessed for the improvements 
within the Assessment Area, and, as such, the assessments shall be set such that each lot will 
be assessed an equal amount.  
 
To further support that the required benefit to each lot within the Assessment Area, no lot within 
the Assessment Area would be able to develop without the entire infrastructure for the parcel 
being in place and accepted by the Town of Florence.  The standard is addressed in the Town 
of Florence Sub-Division Development Standards. 
 
 
Reserve Fund and Bond Issuance Costs 
These costs will be allocated to each lot based on taking the combined costs of the reserve 
fund and bond issuance costs and assigning them equally to the total lots within Assessment 
Area Six.  These are deemed appropriate charges related to Assessment Area Six. Therefore, 
the Reserve Fund and Bond Issuance Costs are allocated to each lot based on equal amounts. 
 
 
Estimated Special Assessment Liens Per Lot 
Based upon the information presented above, the assessment to be placed upon each of the 
parcels and lots located within Assessment Area Six (Units 2, 9, & 17C) are as follows:   
 

 
               

(1) The total Bond Issuance cost reflects only the amount to be included in the assessment. 

(2) Amount provided by the Underwriter. 
(3) Special assessment liens will not be placed upon common areas, areas owned by homeowner’s associations, 
public right-of-way, property owned by the District, or other governmental/public entities and will be per lot 
assessments which will not vary from amounts shown.  
 
 
 
 
 

Assessment 
Number 

Unit 
/Parcel 

No. Use No. of Lots Net Ac. 

Improvement 
Assessment per 

Parcel 
Assessment Lien Per 

Lot (3) 

Six 2 Res 36 9.91 $126,000 $3,500.00 

 9A Res 82 16.77 $287,000 $3,500.00 

TOTALS   118 26.68 $413,000  



 

 5 Prepared by Willdan 
 

DIAGRAMS FOR ASSESSMENT AREA 6 (UNITS 2 AND 9A)



 

 
6 

 

 

 



 

7 
 

  

 



 

8 
 

  

 



 

9 
 

 
 

 



 

10 
 

  

 



 

11 
 

  

 



 

12 
 

  

 



 

13 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF ASSESSMENT AREA 
 
 
Anthem At Merrill Ranch Unit 2 
 
and  
 
Anthem At Merrill Ranch Unit 9A 
 
 
Legal descriptions to follow: 
  



 

14 
 

  

 



 

15 
 

  

 



 

16 
 

  

 



 

17 
 

  

 



 

18 
 

  

 



 

19 
 

  

 



 

20 
 

  

 



 

21 
 

  

 



 

22 
 

  

 





 

C-1 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 
 

FORM OF NOTICE OF HEARING ON REPORT 
 
 

NOTICE FOR HEARING REQUIRED BY A.R.S. § 48-715 ON 
REPORT OF THE FEASIBILITY AND BENEFITS OF CERTAIN 
PROJECTS TO BE FINANCED WITH THE PROCEEDS OF 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS LEVIED AND COLLECTED WITHIN 
AN AREA OF MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
DISTRICT NO. 1 AND OF THE ADOPTION OF THE 
RESOLUTION OF INTENTION WITH RESPECT TO CERTAIN 
PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE PURPOSES DESCRIBED IN SUCH 
STUDY 

 
 

Pursuant to Section 48-715, Arizona Revised Statute s, 
notice is hereby given that a public hearing on the  report of the 
feasibility and benefits of projects to be financed  with the proceeds 
of special assessments levied and collected within an area of Merrill 
Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 shall be held by the 
District Board on June 17, 2013, at approximately 6 :00 p.m. (Arizona 
time), or immediately preceding the meeting of the Mayor and Common 
Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, on the sa me date in the 
Council Chambers located at 775 North Main Street, Florence, Arizona.  
Such feasibility report and further information rel ating thereto are 
on file with the Town Clerk of the Town of Florence , Arizona/District 
Clerk of Merrill Ranch Community Facilities Distric t No. 1, 775 North 
Main Street, Florence, Arizona 85232, telephone num ber:  
(520) 868-7552.  THE MATTERS IN THE STUDY OF FEASIBILITY AND BENEFITS 
RELATING TO THE "WORK" AND THE "ESTIMATE" AND THE "PLANS AND 
SPECIFICATIONS" RELATING THERETO ARE ALSO THE SUBJECT OF THE RESO-
LUTION OF INTENTION RELATING TO THE WORK TO BE ADOPTED SIMULTANEOUSLY 
WITH THE RESOLUTION APPROVING SUCH STUDY OF FEASIBILITY AND BENEFITS 
AFTER SUCH HEARING, SUCH RESOLUTION DECLARING THAT SUCH DISTRICT WILL 
PROVIDE THE WORK, ISSUE BONDS OR INCUR OTHER OBLIGATIONS FOR SUCH 
PURPOSE AND ASSESS THE COSTS AND EXPENSES THEREOF AGAINST THE AREA IN 
SUCH DISTRICT DESCRIBED IN SUCH STUDY OF FEASIBILITY AND BENEFITS.  
THERE SHALL NOT BE A SEPARATE PUBLIC HEARING WITH RESPECT TO SUCH 
RESOLUTION OF INTENTION.  SUCH BONDS OR OTHER OBLIGATIONS SHALL BE 
INCURRED PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT, IN 
THE NAME OF THE DISTRICT, BUT PAYABLE ONLY OUT OF A SPECIAL FUND 
COLLECTED BY THE DISTRICT FROM SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS LEVIED UPON THE 
LOTS, TRACTS, PIECES AND PARCELS OF LAND INCLUDED WITHIN SUCH AREA, IN 
NOT TO EXCEED TWENTY-FIVE (25) ANNUAL INSTALLMENTS FROM THE ASSESSMENT 
OF TWENTY-FIVE DOLLARS ($25.00) OR OVER REMAINING UNPAID AS OF THE 
DATE OF INCURRENCE THEREOF AS PROVIDED BY THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT.  
SUCH BONDS OR OTHER OBLIGATIONS SHALL BEAR INTEREST AT RATES NOT TO 
EXCEED TEN PERCENT (10%) PER ANNUM FROM THEIR DATE, PAYABLE ON THE 
FIRST DAY OF JANUARY AND JULY OF EACH YEAR AND SHALL BE PAYABLE IN THE 
MANNER AND BE SUBJECT TO THE PROVISIONS AS TO COLLECTION OF ASSESS-



 

C-2 
 

MENTS FOR THE PAYMENT THEREOF, EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE DESCRIBED IN THE 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND THAT NEITHER THE DISTRICT NOR THE MUNICI-
PALITY IS REQUIRED TO PURCHASE DELINQUENT LAND AT SALE IF THERE IS NO 
OTHER PURCHASER, AS DESCRIBED IN TITLE 48, CHAPTER 4, ARTICLE 2, 
ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES, SAVE AND EXCEPT THAT THE METHOD OF 
COLLECTION OF SUCH ASSESSMENTS SHALL BE AS PROVIDED IN SECTIONS 48-600 
TO 48-607, BOTH INCLUSIVE, ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES AND NOT AS 
PROVIDED IN SECTION 48-608, ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES. 

Dated this 30th day of May, 2013. 
 
 
 

/s/ Charles Montoya ...................................... 
District Manager, Merrill Ranch 
Community Facilities District No. 1 

 
 



 
 

June 17, 2013 

MERRILL RANCH 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 
(Florence, Arizona) 

 
FEASIBILITY 

REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Not to Exceed $413,000 

(Assessment Area Six - Units 2 and 9A) 



 

Merrill Ranch CFD No. 1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 SECTION 
 
Introduction, Purpose of Feasibility Report, 
General Description of District and Assessment Area ONE 

Descriptions of the Projects TWO 

Map of Location of the Projects THREE 

Estimated Costs of the Projects FOUR 

Timetable for Completion of the Projects FIVE 

Maps of the Area to be Benefited SIX 

Plan of Finance SEVEN 

 
 
  
 
 APPENDIX 
 
Legal Description of Assessment Area A 

 
 



 

Merrill Ranch CFD No. 1 

SECTION ONE 
 

INTRODUCTION, 
PURPOSE OF FEASIBILITY REPORT, 

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF DISTRICT 
AND ASSESSMENT AREA 

 



 

Merrill Ranch CFD No. 1 

INTRODUCTION 
 

This Feasibility Report ("Report") has been prepared by engineers and other qualified persons 
for presentation to the District Board (the "Board") of Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 
(the "District") in connection with the proposed incurrence by the District of a special assessment lien 
installment purchase agreement which is incorporated in the herein after described Development 
Agreement with respect to certain public infrastructure (as defined in A.R.S. §48-701) to be financed 
pursuant to the Development Agreement (the "Projects") and of the plan for financing the Projects in 
accordance with the provisions of A.R.S. §48-715 and is considered part of (i) the statement of the 
estimated costs and expenses of the amounts to be financed through the incurrence of the 
Development Agreement and (ii) the plans and specifications for purposes of levying the assessment 
from which the Development Agreement are to be repaid, in each case for all purposes of and pursuant 
to the Community Facilities Act of 1989, Title 48, Chapter 4, Article 6 of Arizona Revised Statutes, as 
amended, (the "Act"). 

PURPOSE OF FEASIBILITY REPORT 
 

   Pursuant to A.R.S. §48-715, this Report includes (i) a description of the Projects which are to 
be acquired (Section Two); (ii) a map showing, in general, the location of the Projects (Section Three), 
(iii) an estimate of the cost to acquire, operate, and maintain the Projects (Section Four); (iv) an 
estimated schedule for completion of the Projects (Section Five); (v) a map or description of the area to 
be benefited by the Projects (Section Six); and (vi) a plan for financing the Projects (Section Seven). 
 
 THIS REPORT HAS ALSO BEEN PREPARED AS PART OF THE DECLARATION 
OF INTENT FOR PURPOSES OF A.R.S. § 48-721(A) AND THE HEREINAFTER 
DESCRIBED DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT FINANCING PARTICIPATION AND 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT, DATED AS OF DECEMBER 1, 2005, AS 
AMENDED BY THE FIRST AMENDMENT AND WAIVERS (ASSESSMENT AREA ONE), 
DATED AS OF FEBRUARY 1, 2006, THE SECOND AMENDMENT AND WAIVERS 
(ASSESSMENT AREA TWO-UNIT 54) DATED AS OF NOVEMBER 1, 2008, THE THIRD 
AMENDMENT AND WAIVERS (ASSESSMENT AREA THREE-UNIT 17A), DATED AS 
OF SEPTEMBER 1, 2010, THE FOURTH AMENDMENT AND WAIVERS (ASSESSMENT 
AREA FOUR-UNIT 18), DATED AS OF JANUARY 1, 2012 , THE FIFTH AMENDMENT 
AND WAIVERS (ASSESSMENT AREA FIVE-UNIT 17B), DATED AS OF JULY 1, 2012, 
AND THE SIXTH AMENDMENT AND WAIVERS (ASSESSMENT AREA SIX-UNITS 2 & 
9A), TO BE DATED JULY 1, 2013 (AS SO AMENDED, THE “DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT”), WITH RESPECT TO THE ACQUISITION OF THE PROJECTS FOR 
THE BENEFIT OF THE AREAS DESCRIBED IN THIS REPORT. On the date this Report is 
approved, the Board will resolve, among other things, that (i) the public interest or convenience 
requires, and it is the intention of the Board, to order the Projects described in substantial form in this 
Report, (ii) the Projects shall be performed substantially in accordance with this Report and specific 
plans and specifications relating to the Projects, forms of which are filed with this Report for each of the 
types of the Projects and the contents of which are incorporated by this reference ( the “Plans and 
Specifications”); (iii) the Estimate (as such term is defined herein) is approved and adopted by the Board; 
(iv) the Projects described substantially in the Plans and Specifications shall be performed as provided in 
the Development Agreement; (v) the Projects are of more than local or ordinary public benefit and are 
of special benefit to the respective lots, pieces and parcels of land within the portion of the District 
described in Section Six and in the Appendix hereto (the “Assessment Area”) and the costs and 
expenses of the Projects will be charged upon the Assessment Area which shall be benefited by the 
Projects and assessed to pay the costs and expenses thereof in proportion to the benefit derived 
therefrom; (vi) the public convenience requires that the Development Agreement shall be incurred to 
represent the costs and expenses of the Projects, in the name of the District, but payable only out of a 



 

Merrill Ranch CFD No. 1 

special fund collected by the District from installments of the assessment levied upon the lots, tracts, 
pieces and parcels of land included within the Assessment Area, in not to exceed twenty-five (25) annual 
installments from the assessment of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) or over remaining unpaid as provided 
by the Development Agreement and (vii) the Development Agreement shall bear interest at the rate of 
not to exceed twelve percent (12%) per annum, payable on the first day of January and July of each year 
and shall be payable in the manner and be subject to the provisions as to collection of assessments for 
the payment thereof, except as otherwise described in the Development Agreement, and neither 
District nor the Town of Florence, Arizona (the “Town”), is required to purchase delinquent land at 
sale if there is no other purchaser, as described in A.R.S. Title 48, Chapter 4, Article 2, save and except 
that the method of collection of  such assessments shall be as provided in A.R.S. §§ 48-600 to 48-607 as 
nearly as practicable, both inclusive and not as provided in A.R.S. § 48-608. 
  
 In preparing this Report, engineers, staff of the Town, legal counsel and other experts have been 
consulted as deemed appropriate.  THIS REPORT IS NOT INTENDED TO BE A “FINANCIAL 
FEASIBILITY REPORT OR STUDY” AS THAT TERM IS CUSTOMARILY USED. 
 

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF DISTRICT AND ASSESSMENT AREA 
 

             Formation of the District was approved on December 19, 2005 by the Town upon the request 
of CMR/CASA GRANDE LLC., an Arizona limited liability company, ROADRUNNER RESORTS, LLC., 
an Arizona limited liability company and FELIX HUNT HIGHWAY, LLC., an Arizona limited liability 
company, and PULTE HOMES CORPORATION, a Michigan corporation (“Pulte”), as the owners of all 
of the land within the District upon formation. The District is located within the municipal boundaries of 
the Town. (See the maps in Section Three and Six and Appendix A for a legal description of the 
boundaries of the District.)  
  
 The District was formed to finance the costs of certain public infrastructure purposes (as such 
term is defined in the Act), including particularly with respect to the Projects, in connection with the 
development of a project known as “Merrill Ranch”, an 8,970 acre residential, commercial and golf 
course master planned community (the “Development”) approximately 7,900 acres of which are 
included within the boundaries of the District.  A portion of the land within the boundaries of the 
District is being developed as part of an approximately 3,191 acre master-planned development known 
as Anthem at Merrill Ranch (“Anthem”).  Anthem is being developed within Merrill Ranch.  
Simultaneously with the formation of the District, Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2 
(“District No. 2”) was formed over 1,060 acres of Merrill Ranch to finance the cost of certain 
infrastructure improvements within District No. 2.  Within Anthem, there is both an active adult 
community (“Sun City”) and a family oriented community (“Parkside”).  The boundaries of the District 
and District No. 2 do not overlap, however Anthem encompasses land within both districts.  The 
Development is the subject of the Development Agreement. (The Development Agreement is available 
for review at the Office of the Clerk of the Town.) 
 
  



 

Merrill Ranch CFD No. 1 

The Assessment Area contains approximately 26.68 acres and upon build out will comprise 
approximately 118 single family lots. Although the number of acres devoted to each particular type of 
land use may ultimately vary from those presented, the build-out of the Development and the 
Assessment Area is currently expected to include the following land uses: 

 
 

Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 
Anticipated Land Use Plan 

 

  District  Assessment Area Six 

Description  Acres  
Number 
of Units  

Planning 
Area  

Estimated 
Lots  

Estimated 
Acres 

Residential – Low Density   3,021   22,075  Unit 2       36   9.91 
Residential – Medium Density   1,190   8,696  Unit 9A         82  16.77 
Residential – High Density   654   4,779                 -         - 
Golf Courses   385   -      -   - 
Worship Sites   18   -      -   - 
Commercial / Light Industrial   1,176   -     -   - 
Roadways / ROW   402   -      -   - 
Schools   137   -     -   - 
Open Space/Parks   917   -     -   - 
 Total:   7,900   35,550     118   26.68 

 
The Single-family residences to be constructed by Pulte within Anthem currently range in size from 
1,300 to 2,700 square feet and are currently base priced from $120,000 to $220,000.  
 
The following table represents the single family residential closings from January 1, 2006 through March 
31, 2013: 
 
 CFD 1  CFD 2  CFD 1  CFD 2   

 Sun City  Parkside  TOTAL 

2006 92  30  25  41  188 

2007 91  43  98  237  469 

2008 176  38  68  171  453 

2009 136  2  34  98  270 

2010 38  59  22  68  187 

2011 2  68  17  45  132 

2012 16  48  51  14  129 

2013 5  12  11  6  34 

 556  300  326  680  1,862 

 
Source: Pulte Group 



 

Merrill Ranch CFD No. 1 

SECTION TWO 
 

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROJECTS 

 
 



 

Merrill Ranch CFD No. 1 

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROJECTS  
  
The Projects to be acquired by the District pursuant to the Development Agreement are composed of: 
(1) engineering, (2) municipal review and inspection fees, (3) storm drain and (4) street improvements. 
See the maps in Section Three for detail about location of the Projects.  As described hereinabove, the 
Plans and Specifications are on file herewith and are incorporated herein by reference. 
 
(1) Engineering  
 
The Projects include engineering plans for grading and drainage, utilities, and paving relating to storm 
drain and curb, gutter and sidewalk.  The plans will be reviewed and approved by the Town in 
accordance with their guidelines and standards.   
 

Description  
Unit of 

Measure  Quantity 
     
Engineering drawings   LS*   N/A 
      
* LS = lump sum     

 
 (2) Storm Drain 

The Projects further include storm drain within the public roadways of the Assessment Area. The storm 
drain will intercept runoff from the public roadways by either catch basins or scuppers, conveying to 
retention facilities by pipe or overland flow.  The pipe will be sized between 15 inches and 30 inches of 
concrete pipe, or approved alternate. 
 

Description  
Unit of 

Measure  Quantity 
     
Storm Drain Pipe   LF in Unit 2*  983 
   LF in Unit 9A*  1,353 
 Total:     2,336 
*  LF = lineal feet     

 
  



 

Merrill Ranch CFD No. 1 

(3) Street Improvements  
 
The Project also will further include asphaltic paving and 4 inch roll and vertical curb, 6 foot valley 
gutter, and 4 foot wide sidewalks within the public roadways of the Assessment Area. The pavement 
section is anticipated to be 2.5 inches of asphalt on 7 inches of aggregate base course. The curb and 
gutter will comply with the Maricopa Association of Governments standard details and sidewalk within 
the public roadways of the Assessment Area. 
 

Description  
Unit of 

Measure  Unit 
 

Quantity 
       
Paving   SY*   2   5,845 
    9A  10,140 
 Total:       15,985 
       
Curb and Gutter   LF*   2   2,964 
    9A  6,276 
 Total:       9,240 
       
Sidewalk   SF*  2  12,886 
    9A  24,859 
 Total:       37,745 
 
*SY= Square Yard 
*LF= Lineal Foot 
*SF= Square Foot 
 

      

 
 
 
 



 

Merrill Ranch CFD No. 1 

SECTION THREE 
 

MAP OF LOCATION OF THE PROJECTS 

 
SEE ALSO “MAPS OF THE AREA TO BE BENEFITED” 

 



 

Merrill Ranch CFD No. 1 

 
 



 

Merrill Ranch CFD No. 1 

 



 

Merrill Ranch CFD No. 1 



 

Merrill Ranch CFD No. 1 

SECTION FOUR 
 

ESTIMATED COSTS OF THE PROJECTS 

 
 

 



 

Merrill Ranch CFD No. 1 

ESTIMATED COST OF THE PROJECTS 
 
 Shown below is a summary of the total costs of the Projects (the “Estimate”). The acquisition 
costs to be paid as described in Section Seven – “PLAN OF FINANCE” equal $693,000 and are 
anticipated to be incurred prior to and after the levy of the Assessment described in such section. No 
further amounts are due with respect to the Projects as of the date of such levy. If applicable, amounts 
are the result of public bidding to be, in aggregate decreased, but not increased.  The actual acquisition 
costs of the Projects will be determined as prescribed in the Development Agreement, but will not 
collectively be more than those shown below.  
 
The Projects will be transferred to the Town.  Accordingly, it is not anticipated that there will be 
operating or maintenance expenses in connection with the Projects.  However, expenses may be paid in 
the future as described in the Development Agreement.   
 
Construction contracts related to the Projects have been bid and awarded pursuant to the public bid 
process of Title 34 of the Arizona Revised Statutes and applicable Town requirements and administered 
in conformance to applicable law and such requirements.  
 

Assessment Area Six Projects  
Estimated 

Costs 
   
1. Engineering   $201,093 
2. Storm Drain   176,024 
3. Street Improvements   454,557 
   
 Total Assessment Area Projects   $831,674  

 
 
 



 

Merrill Ranch CFD No. 1 

SECTION FIVE 
 

TIMETABLE FOR COMPLETION OF THE PROJECTS 

 
 

 



 

Merrill Ranch CFD No. 1 

TIMETABLE FOR COMPLETION OF THE PROJECTS 
 

Project 
 Estimated 

Completion Date 
   
1. Engineering  Completed 
2. Storm Drain  July 2013 
3. Street Improvements  September 2013 

 
 
 



 

Merrill Ranch CFD No. 1 

SECTION SIX 
 

MAPS OF THE AREA TO BE BENEFITED 
 



 

Merrill Ranch CFD No. 1 

 
 
 
 
 

STORM DRAIN 

 







 

Merrill Ranch CFD No. 1 

 
 
 

CONCRETE 







 

Merrill Ranch CFD No. 1 

 

PAVING 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 

Merrill Ranch CFD No. 1 

 
 

SECTION SEVEN 
 

PLAN OF FINANCE 

 
 
 



 

Merrill Ranch CFD No. 1 

(1) Costs of the acquisition of the Projects as described in Section Six – “ESTIMATED COSTS OF THE 
PROJECTS” will be provided for by the District pursuant to the Development Agreement.  
 
(2) Installment purchase payments due with respect to the Projects pursuant to the Development 
Agreement (the “Payments”) shall be payable from amounts collected by the District from the 
hereinafter described special assessment (the "Assessment”).    
 
The Assessment shall be levied pursuant to the procedures prescribed by Sections 48-576 through 48-
589, Arizona Revised Statutes, as amended, as nearly as practicable and except as otherwise provided in 
the Development Agreement, upon the Assessment Area based on the benefits to be received by and as 
allocated to the parcels into which the Assessment Area is or is to be divided.  
 
The per parcel assessment amount is expected to be no more than $3,500. Average annual payments 
with respect to such portion will be approximately $335. Pulte currently expects that at the time of sale 
of the home to the buyer, this amount will be assumed by the homebuyer and the annual payments 
made over time.  
 
(3) The principal component is expected to have an approximately 25 year amortization with the first 
year being interest only and the principal then over the remaining 24 years.  See the following 
“Estimated Payments” in this Section.  
 
(4) A.R.S. Section 32-2181 et seq. requires the disclosure of all property taxes and assessments to be 
paid by a homeowner in the Arizona Department of Real Estate Subdivision Public Report (the “Public 
Report”). Each homebuyer must be supplied a Public Report and, prior to any home sale, the 
homebuyer must acknowledge by signature that they have read and accepted the Public Report. In 
addition, Pulte will require the homebuyer to sign an additional form that highlights and discloses the 
additional assessment payments as a result of District financing.  
 
(5) The District has entered into an agreement with the Pinal County Treasurer for the collection of the 
Assessment in a similar manner and together with the collection by the County of real property taxes. 



 

Merrill Ranch CFD No. 1 

MERRILL RANCH 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 
ASSESSMENT AREA SIX – Units 2 and 9A 

 
 

ESTIMATED PAYMENTS 
 

Date Principal Interest (1) Total Debt Service 
       

07/01/2014   $30,975.00  $30,975.00  
07/01/2015 $6,630  30,975.00  37,605.00  
07/01/2016 7,120  30,477.76  37,597.76  
07/01/2017 7,660  29,943.76  37,603.76  
07/01/2018 8,230  29,369.26  37,599.26  
07/01/2019 8,850  28,752.00  37,602.00  
07/01/2020 9,510  28,088.26  37,598.26  
07/01/2021 10,230  27,375.00  37,605.00  
07/01/2022 11,000  26,607.76  37,607.76  
07/01/2023 11,830  25,782.76  37,612.76  
07/01/2024 12,710  24,895.52  37,605.52  
07/01/2025 13,660  23,942.26  37,602.26  
07/01/2026 14,690  22,917.76  37,607.76  
07/01/2027 15,790  21,816.00  37,606.00  
07/01/2028 16,980  20,631.76  37,611.76  
07/01/2029 18,250  19,358.26  37,608.26  
07/01/2030 19,610  17,989.52  37,599.52  
07/01/2031 21,080  16,518.76  37,598.76  
07/01/2032 22,670  14,937.76  37,607.76  
07/01/2033 24,360  13,237.50  37,597.50  
07/01/2034 26,190  11,410.52  37,600.52  
07/01/2035 28,160  9,446.26  37,606.26  
07/01/2036 30,270  7,334.26  37,604.26  
07/01/2037 32,540  5,064.00  37,604.00  
07/01/2038 34,980  2,623.52  67,603.52  

Total $413,000  $520,470.22  $933,470.22  
 

___________________________ 
 (1) Interest estimated at 7.50%. Subject to change based on market conditions. 
 
 



 

Merrill Ranch CFD No. 1 

APPENDIX A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF ASSESSMENT AREA 

 
 



 

7580 N. DOBSON RD. SUITE 200  3515 STONE WALL CIRCLE 

SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85256   HEBER CITY, UT 84032    SCOTTSDALE •  HEBER CITY 

480-818-6001    435-709-8234 

 

DESIGNING WORLD 

DESTINATIONS 

CFD Legal Description 

Anthem at Merrill Ranch, Unit 2 

 

A parcel of land lying within the Section 19, Township 4 South, Range 9 East of the Gila and Salt River 

Meridian, Pinal County, Arizona, more particularly described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the South Quarter Corner Section 19 (GLO Brass Cap, found) from which the Southeast 

Corner of said Section 19 (3” Pinal Co. Hwy. Dept. Aluminum Cap, found) bears South 89 degrees 55 

minutes 22 seconds East (Basis of Bearing) a distance of 2622.99 feet; 

 

Thence North 32 degrees 30 minutes 17 seconds West, a distance of 2370.33 feet to the POINT OF 

BEGINNING; 

 

Thence Northerly, an arc distance of 375.07 feet along a non-tangent to the right who’s radius point bears 

North 83 degrees 01 minutes 04 seconds East, with a radius of  1460.00 feet and a central angle of 14 

degrees 43  minutes 09 seconds; 

 

Thence South 87 degrees 34 minutes 07 seconds East, a distance of 79.62 feet; 

 

Thence South 87 degrees 26 minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 78.04 feet; 

 

Thence South 66 degrees 19 minutes 29 seconds East, a distance of 77.74 feet; 

 

Thence South 87 degrees 32 minutes 02 seconds East, a distance of 71.36 feet; 

 

Thence North 53 degrees 39 minutes 10 seconds East, a distance of 92.00 feet; 

 

Thence North 59 degrees 33 minutes 45 seconds East, a distance of 66.60 feet; 

 

Thence South 23 degrees 45 minutes 13 seconds East, a distance of 115.00 feet; 

 

Thence Easterly an arc distance of 31.95 feet along a non-tangent curve to the right who’s radius point bears 

South 23 degrees 45 minutes 13 seconds East, with a radius of 170.00 feet and a central angle of 10 degrees 

46 minutes 02 seconds; 

 

Thence North 77 degrees 00 minutes 49 seconds East, a distance of 91.42 feet; 

 

Thence Easterly, an arc distance of 138.00 feet along a curve to the left, having a radius of 280.00 feet and a 

central angle of 28 degrees 14 minutes 18 seconds; 

 

Thence North 48 degrees 46 minutes 32 seconds East, a distance of 85.42 feet; 

 

Thence Easterly, an arc distance of 19.59 feet along a curve to the right, having a radius of 170.00 feet and a 

central angle of 06 degrees 36 minutes 12 seconds; 

 

Thence North 34 degrees 37 minutes 17 seconds West, a distance of 115.00 feet; 

 

Thence North 62 degrees 17 minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 68.61 feet; 



 

7580 N. DOBSON RD. SUITE 200    3515 STONE WALL CIR 

SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85256   HEBER CITY, UT 84032   SCOTTSDALE • HEBER CITY 

480-818-6001    435-709-8234 

  Page 2 

Thence North 76 degrees 05 minutes 11 seconds East, a distance of 68.61 feet; 

 

Thence North 83 degrees 57 minutes 58 seconds East, a distance of 273.55 feet; 

 

Thence North 74 degrees 27 minutes 26 seconds East, a distance of 66.05 feet; 

 

Thence North 57 degrees 47 minutes 18 seconds East, a distance of 106.04 feet; 

 

Thence North 79 degrees 19 minutes 24 seconds East, a distance of 78.18 feet; 

 

Thence South 72 degrees 04 minutes 56 seconds East, a distance of 80.22 feet; 

 

Thence South 43 degrees 18 minutes 07 seconds East, a distance of 88.32 feet; 

 

Thence South 14 degrees 31 minutes 01 seconds East, a distance of 78.26 feet; 

 

Thence South 12 degrees 51 minutes 01 seconds West, a distance of 84.21 feet; 

 

Thence South 40 degrees 13 minutes 03 seconds West, a distance of 107.14 feet; 

 

Thence South 83 degrees 57 minutes 58 seconds West, a distance of 550.82 feet; 

 

Thence North 06 degrees 02 minutes 02 seconds West, a distance of 114.61 feet; 

 

Thence Westerly, an arc distance of 69.84 feet along a non-tangent curve to the left, who’s radius point 

bears South 10 degrees 26 minutes 44 seconds East having a radius of 130.00 feet and a central angle of  30 

degrees 46 minutes 44 seconds; 

 

Thence South 48 degrees 46 minutes 32 seconds West, a distance of 85.42 feet; 

 

Thence Westerly, an arc distance of 157.71 feet along a curve to the right having a radius of 320.00 feet and 

a central angle of 28 degrees 14 minutes 18 seconds; 

 

Thence South 77 degrees 00 minutes 49 seconds West, a distance of 91.42 feet; 

 

Thence Westerly, an arc distance of 53.00 feet along a curve to the left having a radius of 130.00 feet and a 

central angle of 23 degrees 21 minutes 39 seconds; 

 

Thence South 36 degrees 20 minutes 50 seconds East, a distance of 115.00 feet; 

 

Thence South 53 degrees 39 minutes 10 seconds West, a distance of 414.58’ 

 

Thence North 71 degrees 55 minutes 52 seconds West, a distance of 216.66 feet to the POINT OF 

BEGINNING. 

 

Containing 8.9888 acres more or less. 

 

See Exhibit “A” attached. 



EXHIBIT "A"

SHEET 1 OF 3



EXHIBIT "A"

SHEET 2 OF 3

POB

CFD #1

CFD #2



0 375 750 1500 2250

SCALE: 1"=1500'

EXHIBIT "A"

SHEET 3 OF 3



 

7580 N. DOBSON RD. SUITE 200  3515 STONE WALL CIRCLE 

SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85256   HEBER CITY, UT 84032    SCOTTSDALE •  HEBER CITY 

480-818-6001    435-709-8234 
 

DESIGNING WORLD 

DESTINATIONS 

 
Legal Description 

Anthem at Merrill Ranch, Unit 9A 

 

A parcel of land lying within the Southeast Quarter of Section 19 and the Southwest Quarter of Section 20, 

Township 4 South, Range 9 East of the Gila and Salt River Meridian, Pinal County, Arizona, more 

particularly described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the Southeast Corner Section 19 (3” Pinal Co. Hwy. Dept. Aluminum Cap, found) from 

which the South Quarter corner of said Section 19 (3” GLO Brass Cap, found) bears North 89 degrees 55 

minutes 26 seconds West (Basis of Bearing) a distance of 2622.97 feet, also from the Southeast corner, the 

East Quarter corner of Section 19 (One half inch Rebar, No ID, found) bears North 00 degrees 13 minutes 

50 seconds West, a distance of 2643.34 feet; 

 

Thence, North 89 degrees 55 minutes 26 seconds West, a distance of 807.42 feet to a point on the South line 

of the Southeast Quarter of Section 19; 

 

Thence, departing said South line, North 00 degrees 04 minutes 34 seconds East, a distance of 513.22 feet 

to the POINT OF BEGINNING; 

 

Thence, North 00 degrees 01 minutes 07 seconds East, a distance of 214.80 feet; 

 

Thence, North 14 degrees 55 minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 61.58 feet; 

 

Thence, North 12 degrees 31 minutes 52 seconds East, distance of 37.93 feet; 

 

Thence, North 26 degrees 53 minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 331.57 feet; 

 

Thence Northwesterly, an arc distance of  18.42 feet along a non-tangent curve to the right, the radius point 

of which bears North 33 degrees 26 minutes 36 seconds East, a distance of 1200.00 feet with a central angle 

of  00 degrees 52 minutes 46 seconds; 

 

Thence, North 35 degrees 44 minutes 27 seconds East, a distance of 155.01 feet; 

 

Thence, South 57 degrees 16 minutes 02 seconds East, a distance of 48.52 feet; 

 

Thence, South 59 degrees 53 minutes 36 seconds East, a distance of 61.98 feet; 

 

Thence Northwesterly, an arc distance of 36.93 feet along a non-tangent curve to the left, the radius point 

bears North 79 degrees 52 minutes 01West, a distance of 30.00 feet with a central angle of 70 degrees 31 

minutes 44 seconds to a point of cusp: 

 

Thence Easterly, an arc distance of 97.19 feet along a curve to the left, the radius point bears North 29 

degrees 36 minutes 15 seconds East, a distance of  1025.00 feet with a central angle of 05 degrees 25 

minutes 58 seconds to a point of cusp; 

 



 

7580 N. DOBSON RD. SUITE 200    3515 STONE WALL CIR 

SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85256   HEBER CITY, UT 84032   SCOTTSDALE • HEBER CITY 

480-818-6001    435-709-8234 

  Page 2 

Thence Southwesterly, an arc distance of 45.70 feet along a curve to the left, the radius point bears South 24 

degrees 10 minutes 16 seconds West, a distance of 30.00 feet with a central angle of 87 degrees 17 minutes 

01 seconds; 

 

Thence, South 26 degrees 53 minutes 16 seconds West, a distance of 26.32 feet; 

 

Thence, South 63 degrees 06 minutes 44 seconds East, a distance of 115.00 feet; 

 

Thence, North 88 degrees 45 minutes 39 seconds East, a distance of 122.98 feet; 

 

Thence, South 74 degrees 37 minutes 37 seconds East, a distance of 583.29 feet; 

 

Thence, South 15 degrees 22 minutes 23 seconds West, a distance of 125.00 feet; 

 

Thence, South 74 degrees 37 minutes 37 seconds East, a distance of 27.60 feet; 

 

Thence Northeasterly, an arc distance of 39.27 feet along a curve to the left having a radius of 25.00 feet 

and a central angle of 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds; 

 

Thence, North 15 degrees 22 minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 95.18 feet; 

 

Thence Northwesterly, an arc distance of 47.12 feet along a curve to the left having a radius of 30.00 feet 

and a central angle of  90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds; 

 

Thence, South 74 degrees 37 minutes 37 seconds East, a distance of 100.00 feet; 

 

Thence Southwesterly, an arc distance of 47.12 feet along a non-tangent curve to the left, the radius point 

bears South 15 degrees 22 minutes 23 seconds West, a distance of 30.00 feet with a central angle of 90 

degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds; 

 

Thence, South 15 degrees 22 minutes 23 seconds West, a distance of 188.37 feet; 

 

Thence Southerly, an arc distance of 126.35 feet along a curve to the right having a radius of 270.00 feet 

and a central angle of 26 degrees 48 minutes 44 seconds; 

 

Thence, South 47 degrees 48 minutes 53 seconds East,  a distance of 120.00 feet; 

 

Thence, South 42 degrees 11 minutes 07 seconds West, a distance of 82.60 feet; 

 

Thence, South 66 degrees 06 minutes 07 seconds West, a distance of 165.20 feet; 

 

Thence, North 89 degrees 58 minutes 53 seconds West, a distance of 142.79 feet; 

 

Thence, North 00 degrees 01 minutes 07 seconds East, a distance of 115.00 feet; 

 

Thence Southerly, and arc distance of 23.18 feet along a non-tangent curve to the left, the radius point bears 

South 36 degrees 51 minutes 05 seconds East, a distance of 25.00 feet with a central angle of 53 degrees 07 

minutes 48 seconds; 



 

7580 N. DOBSON RD. SUITE 200    3515 STONE WALL CIR 

SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85256   HEBER CITY, UT 84032   SCOTTSDALE • HEBER CITY 

480-818-6001    435-709-8234 

  Page 3 

Thence, North 89 degrees 58 minutes 53 seconds West, a distance of 40.00 feet; 

 

Thence Northerly, an arc distance of 23.18 feet along a non-tangent curve to the left, the radius point bears 

North 89 degrees 58 minutes 53 seconds West, a distance of  25.00 feet with a central angle of 53 degrees 

07 minutes 48 seconds; 

 

Thence, South 00 degrees 01 minutes 07 seconds West, a distance of 115.00 feet; 

 

Thence, North 89 degrees 58 minutes 53 seconds West, a distance of 643.19 feet; 

 

Thence, North 00 degrees 01 minutes 07 seconds East, a distance of 115.00 feet; 

 

Thence Southerly, an arc distance of 23.18 feet along a non-tangent curve to the left, the radius point bears 

South 36 degrees 51 minutes 05 seconds East, a distance of 25.00 feet with a central angle of 53 degrees 07 

minutes 48 seconds; 

 

Thence, North 87 degrees 11 minutes 18 seconds West, a distance of 40.05 feet; 

 

Thence, North 89 degrees 58 minutes 53 seconds West, a distance of 117.00 feet to the  POINT OF 

BEGINNING. 

 

Containing 16.7705 acres more or less. 

 

 

See Exhibit “A”, attached. 



19

30

EXHIBIT "A"

SHEET 1 OF 3

0 250 500 1000 1500

SCALE: 1"=1000'



EXHIBIT "A"

SHEET 2 OF 3

POB



0 375 750 1500 2250

SCALE: 1"=1500'

EXHIBIT "A"

SHEET 3 OF 3



 

MERRILL RANCH 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 

(Florence, Arizona) 

 
 
 
 
 

ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY 
ASSESSMENT AREA SIX 

(Units 2 and 9A) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 
 

WILLDAN 
1440 East Missouri Ave, Suite C170 

Phoenix, AZ 85014 
(602) 870-7600 

 
May 31, 2013 



 i 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION .................................................................................................. 1 
 
DESCRIPTION OF IMPROVEMENTS ................................................................................ 2 

Street Improvements ....................................................................................................... 2 
Storm Drain Improvements .............................................................................................. 2 
Engineering ..................................................................................................................... 2 

 
PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE ...................................................................................... 2 
 
ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY ....................................................................................... 4 

Reserve Fund and Bond Issuance Costs ......................................................................... 4 
Estimated Special Assessment Liens Per Lot .................................................................. 4 

 
DIAGRAMS FOR ASSESSMENT AREA 6 (UNITS 2 AND 9A) ........................................... 5 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF ASSESSMENT AREA ............................................................ 13 
 
CONCLUSION .................................................................................................................. 23 
 
 



 

 1 Prepared by Willdan 
 

 
MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 

ASSESSMENT AREA SIX 
(ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH UNITS 2 and 9A) 

Town of Florence, Arizona 
 
 
 
Willdan, the District Engineer for the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1, makes 
this report of benefit as directed by District staff in support of the Feasibility Report for the 
Issuance of Not to Exceed $413,000 Aggregate Principal Amount of Installment Purchase 
Agreement for Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 Special Assessment Area #6 
(Assessment Area Six), dated June 17, 2013 (“Feasibility Report”).  
 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The Merrill Ranch master planned community (“Project”) consists of 8,970 acres and is located 
in the Town of Florence, Arizona.  On December 19, 2005 the Merrill Ranch Community 
Facilities District No. 1 was established over 7,900 of such acres to finance the construction 
and/or acquisition of public infrastructure that are part of the Project. Assessment Area Six of 
such District (“Assessment Area Six”) consists of 118 residential lots within 26.68 gross acres. 
Special Assessment Bonds (Assessment Area Six) (“Bond Issue”) relates to the acquisition of 
public infrastructure that will benefit development of Assessment Area Six. Details related to 
the project area, infrastructure improvements, costs, and land use can be found in the 
Feasibility Report. 
 
 
  

 



 

 2 Prepared by Willdan 
 

DESCRIPTION OF IMPROVEMENTS 
 
The improvements that will be funded by the Bond Issue and are the subject of this report will 
be public infrastructure that is eligible for funding according to Arizona Revised Statues Title 48 
Community Facilities Act of 1989.  The improvements are more fully described in Section 2 of 
the Feasibility Study.  Briefly, the improvements are described as follows:  
 
Street Improvements 
The engineering design and construction of certain grading, trenching, staking, asphalt paving, 
base, concrete curb/gutter and sidewalk, signing, permits and fees, together with 
appurtenances, contingency, and appurtenant work within public right-of-ways within the 
defined parcels benefiting as per the Community Master Plan.   
 
This Project consists of the installation of asphaltic paving and concrete installation to include 4 
inch roll and 6 inch vertical curb, 6-foot valley gutters, and 4-foot wide sidewalks within the 
public roadways within the Assessment Area. The pavement section is to be 2.5 inches of 
asphalt on 7 inches of aggregate base course (“ABC”).  Improvements will comply with the 
Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) standard details. All improvement will be within 
the public roadways of the Assessment Area. 
 
 
Storm Drain Improvements 
Storm drain improvements consist of the engineering design, survey and construction of local 
residential storm drain facilities within public right-of-ways along the frontage of each benefiting 
property, along with appurtenances and contingency.  
 
Storm drain improvements constructed with this project will be within the public roadways of the 
Assessment Area. The storm drain will intercept runoff from the public roadways by either 
catch basins or scuppers, conveying to retention facilities by pipe or overland flow. The catch 
basins and scuppers will comply with MAG Standard Details. The pipe will be sized between 15 
inches and 30 inches of concrete pipe, or approved alternate. 
 
 
Engineering 
The projects include engineering design, survey, and development of infrastructure plans for 
grading and drainage, utilities, paving, concrete and storm drain as related to the public 
improvements necessary in Assessment Area Six, Units 2 and 9A. The plans will be reviewed 
and approved by the Town in accordance with their guidelines and standards. 
 
 
PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE 
 
The Bond Issue secured by unpaid assessments is proposed to be issued in accordance with 
the Arizona Revised Statutes, the Town of Florence, Arizona Policy Guidelines and Application 
Procedures for the Establishment of Community Facilities Districts, and Development, 
Financing Participation and Intergovernmental Agreement No. 1 (Merrill Ranch Community 
Facilities District No. 2) as amended. A summary of the costs of the public infrastructure to be 
financed is as follows, with details available in the Feasibility Report:  
 
  



 

 3 Prepared by Willdan 
 

 
MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT No. 1 

ASSESSMENT AREA SIX (Units 2 and 9A) 
 
 
 

COST ESTIMATE 
 
          
Improvement Projects            Estimated Costs 
 
Residential Streets / Concrete $   454,557    
Storm Drain $   176,024 
Engineering $   201,093 
 
TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS                                                                 $  831,674 
 
 
 
  
FINANCED AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED                                         $  413,000  
 
 
 



 

 4 Prepared by Willdan 
 

ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY 
 
The State of Arizona Revised Statutes provides that assessments be allocated in proportion to 
the benefits received by each lot from the improvements. The original assessed amount (prior 
to cash payments) and consequently the remaining assessments securing the Bond Issue are 
allocated at a rate of not to exceed $3,500.00 per lot to the lots within Assessment Area Six 
based upon the following benefit methodology. 
 
The Improvements consist of local roadways and storm drains benefitting equally each of the 
159 residential lots included with the Assessment Area. The roadways and storm drains 
provide a direct and special benefit to the developable lots to be assessed, in that primary 
access and required infrastructure is made available to the lots assessed for the improvements 
within the Assessment Area, and, as such, the assessments shall be set such that each lot will 
be assessed an equal amount.  
 
To further support that the required benefit to each lot within the Assessment Area, no lot within 
the Assessment Area would be able to develop without the entire infrastructure for the parcel 
being in place and accepted by the Town of Florence.  The standard is addressed in the Town 
of Florence Sub-Division Development Standards. 
 
 
Reserve Fund and Bond Issuance Costs 
These costs will be allocated to each lot based on taking the combined costs of the reserve 
fund and bond issuance costs and assigning them equally to the total lots within Assessment 
Area Six.  These are deemed appropriate charges related to Assessment Area Six. Therefore, 
the Reserve Fund and Bond Issuance Costs are allocated to each lot based on equal amounts. 
 
 
Estimated Special Assessment Liens Per Lot 
Based upon the information presented above, the assessment to be placed upon each of the 
parcels and lots located within Assessment Area Six (Units 2, 9, & 17C) are as follows:   
 

 
               

(1) The total Bond Issuance cost reflects only the amount to be included in the assessment. 

(2) Amount provided by the Underwriter. 
(3) Special assessment liens will not be placed upon common areas, areas owned by homeowner’s associations, 
public right-of-way, property owned by the District, or other governmental/public entities and will be per lot 
assessments which will not vary from amounts shown.  
 
 
 
 
 

Assessment 
Number 

Unit 
/Parcel 

No. Use No. of Lots Net Ac. 

Improvement 
Assessment per 

Parcel 
Assessment Lien Per 

Lot (3) 

Six 2 Res 36 9.91 $126,000 $3,500.00 

 9A Res 82 16.77 $287,000 $3,500.00 

TOTALS   118 26.68 $413,000  



 

 5 Prepared by Willdan 
 

DIAGRAMS FOR ASSESSMENT AREA 6 (UNITS 2 AND 9A)



 

 
6 

 

 

 



 

7 
 

  

 



 

8 
 

  

 



 

9 
 

 
 

 



 

10 
 

  

 



 

11 
 

  

 



 

12 
 

  

 



 

13 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF ASSESSMENT AREA 
 
 
Anthem At Merrill Ranch Unit 2 
 
and  
 
Anthem At Merrill Ranch Unit 9A 
 
 
Legal descriptions to follow: 
  



 

14 
 

  

 



 

15 
 

  

 



 

16 
 

  

 



 

17 
 

  

 



 

18 
 

  

 



 

19 
 

  

 



 

20 
 

  

 



 

21 
 

  

 



 

22 
 

  

 





 

Community Facilities 
District No. 2 

District Action Form 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

8a. 

MEETING DATE:  June 17, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Becki Guilin, District Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT:    Adoption of Budget 
                     Resolution No. MRCFD 2 224-13 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Budget Resolution No. MRCFD2 224-13  Meeting Date: June 17, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Public Hearing to receive public comment on Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District 
No. 2 Budget; and for discussion and possible adoption of Resolution No. MRCFD2 
224-13: A RESOLUTION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MERRILL RANCH 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, ADOPTING THE 
BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The budget has been presented to the District Board for Community Facilities District 
No. 2.  The budget has been advertised according to requirements.  No change has 
been made to the expenditure amounts.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The budget for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 is estimated to be $3,875,860 in expenditure for 
Capital Improvements, Debt Service and Administrative costs. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution NO. MRCFD2 2204-13, adopting the budget 
as reflected in Exhibits A-E.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. MRCFD2 224-13 
 
 Exhibits A-E 



 MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2 
 
 RESOLUTION NO. MRCFD2 224-13  
 

 
A RESOLUTION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MERRILL RANCH 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, 
ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014. 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the District Board of the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities 

District No. 2, town of Florence, Arizona as follows: 
 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of Title 42, Sections 301, 302, 303, and 
304, A.R.S., the District Board did, on June 17, 2013 make an estimate of the different 
amounts required to meet the public expenditures for the ensuing year, also an estimate of 
revenue from sources other than direct taxation, and the amount to be raised by taxation upon 
real and personal property of Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2, Town of 
Florence; and 
 

WHEREAS, in accordance with said sections of said title, and following due public 
notice, the District Board met on June 17, 2013 which meeting any taxpayer was privileged to 
appear and be heard in favor of or against any of the proposed expenditures of tax levies; and 
 

WHEREAS, it appears that publication has been duly made as required by law, of said 
estimates together with a notice that the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2 
would meet on June 17, 2013, at the office of the District Board for the purpose of hearing 
taxpayers and making tax levies as set forth in said estimates; and 
 

WHEREAS, it appears that the sum to be raised by taxation, as specified therein, does 
not in the aggregate amount exceed that amount as computed in Title 42 Section 301.a 
A.R.S.; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities 
District Board No.  2 of the Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. ADOPTION OF BUDGET 
That the Said estimates of revenue and expenditures shown on the accompanying exhibit, 
marked as Exhibit “A-E”, as now increased, reduced, or changed by the District Board and the 
same are hereby adopted as the budget of the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 
2, Town of Florence, Arizona for the Fiscal Year 2013-2014. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED on the 17th day of June, 2013. 
 
       _____________________________________  
       Tom J. Rankin, District Chairman 
   
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________  _____________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, District Clerk James E. Mannato, District Attorney 
 



OFFICAL BUDGET FORMS

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2

Fiscal Year 2014

 4/12



Schedule E—Summary by Department of Expenditures/Expenses Within Each Fund Type

Schedule F—Summary by Department of Expenditures/Expenses

Schedule A—Summary Schedule of Estimated Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

Schedule B—Summary of Tax Levy and Tax Rate Information

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Fiscal Year 2014

Resolution for the Adoption of the Budget

Schedule C—Summary by Fund Type of Revenues Other Than Property Taxes

Schedule D—Summary by Fund Type of Other Financing Sources/<Uses> and Interfund Transfers

 4/12



Summary Schedule of Estimated Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

2013 2013 July 1, 2013** 2014 2014 SOURCES <USES> IN <OUT> 2014 2014
Secondary:

30,684                

2 Debt Service Funds Available 983,929                 608,175                 979,391          332,414              353,886                                                                                           1,665,691       1,051,832              

3 Less:  Amounts for Future Debt 
Retirement                                                                                                                      

4 Total Debt Service Funds 983,929                 608,175                 979,391          332,414              353,886                                                                                           1,665,691       1,051,832              

5 Capital Projects Funds 498,700                 308,242                 340,588                                     2,436,500                                                                                        2,777,088       2,775,725              

12. TOTAL ALL FUNDS 1,547,129$            1,016,199$            1,366,529$     363,098$            2,792,656$      $                  $                  $                  $                  4,522,283$     3,875,860$            

EXPENDITURE LIMITATION COMPARISON 2013 2014
1.  Budgeted expenditures/expenses 1,547,129$ 3,875,860$ 
2.  Add/subtract: estimated net reconciling items                                         
3.  Budgeted expenditures/expenses adjusted for reconciling items 1,547,129   3,875,860   
4.  Less: estimated exclusions                                         
5.  Amount subject to the expenditure limitation 1,547,129$ 3,875,860$ 
6.  EEC or voter-approved alternative expenditure limitation $                  $                  

*
**

***

TOTAL 
FINANCIAL 

RESOURCES 
AVAILABLE 

BUDGETED 
EXPENDITURES/

EXPENSES
INTERFUND TRANSFERSOTHER FINANCING

ESTIMATED 
REVENUES 

OTHER THAN 
PROPERTY 

TAXES 
FUND

2014 2014

ACTUAL 
EXPENDITURES/

EXPENSES **

ADOPTED 
BUDGETED 

EXPENDITURES/
EXPENSES*

FUND 
BALANCE/

NET 
ASSETS***

PROPERTY TAX 
REVENUES 

Amounts in this column represent Fund Balance/Net Asset amounts except for amounts not in spendable form (e.g., prepaids and inventories) or legally or contractually 
required to be maintained intact (e.g., principal of a permanent fund).

The city/town does not levy property taxes and does not have special assessment districts for which property taxes are levied.  Therefore, Schedule B has been omitted.

Includes Expenditure/Expense Adjustments Approved in current year from Schedule E.       
Includes actual amounts as of the date the proposed budget was prepared, adjusted for estimated activity for the remainder of the fiscal year.

                                                            Special Revenue Funds1 64,500                   

Fiscal Year 2014

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2

48,303                                       79,504            99,782                   46,550            2,270               

SCHEDULE A



2013 2014
1.

$ $

2.

$

3. Property tax levy amounts

A.  Primary property taxes $ $

B. Secondary property taxes 367,383 363,098

C. Total property tax levy amounts $ 367,383 $ 363,098

4. Property taxes collected*

A. Primary property taxes
(1)  Current year's levy $
(2)  Prior years’ levies
(3)  Total primary property taxes $

B. Secondary property taxes
(1)  Current year's levy $ 365,000
(2)  Prior years’ levies 6,900
(3)  Total secondary property taxes $ 371,900

C. Total property taxes collected $ 371,900

5. Property tax rates

A.  City/Town tax rate
(1)  Primary property tax rate
(2)  Secondary property tax rate 3.5500 3.5500
(3)  Total city/town tax rate 3.5500 3.5500

B.  Special assessment district tax rates
Secondary property tax rates - As of the date the proposed budget was prepared, the

2 special assessment districts for which secondary
property taxes are levied. For information pertaining to these special assessment districts
and their tax rates, please contact the city/town.

*

city/town was operating

Includes actual property taxes collected as of the date the proposed budget was prepared, plus 
estimated property tax collections for the remainder of the fiscal year.

Amount received from primary property taxation in 
the current year in excess of the sum of that year's 
maximum allowable primary property tax levy. 
A.R.S. §42-17102(A)(18)

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2
Summary of Tax Levy and Tax Rate Information

Fiscal Year 2014

Maximum allowable primary property tax levy. 
A.R.S. §42-17051(A)

SCHEDULE B



ESTIMATED 
REVENUES 

ACTUAL 
REVENUES* 

ESTIMATED 
REVENUES 

2013 2013 2014
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Administration $ 2,270 $ 34,476 $ 2,270

$ 2,270 $ 34,476 $ 2,270

Total Special Revenue Funds $ 2,270 $ 34,476 $ 2,270

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

MRCFD No. 2 $ 319,152 $ 723,327                 $ 353,886

$ 319,152 $ 723,327 $ 353,886

Total Debt Service Funds $ 319,152 $ 723,327 $ 353,886

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

MRCFD No. 2 $ 350,000 $ 500,000 $ 2,436,500

$ 350,000 $ 500,000 $ 2,436,500

Total Capital Projects Funds $ 350,000 $ 500,000 $ 2,436,500

TOTAL ALL FUNDS $ 671,422 $ 1,257,803 $ 2,792,656

 * Includes actual revenues recognized on the modified accrual or accrual basis as of the date the proposed budget was 
prepared, plus estimated revenues for the remainder of the fiscal year.

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2
Summary by Fund Type of Revenues Other Than Property Taxes

Fiscal Year 2014

SOURCE OF REVENUES

SCHEDULE C Page 6 of 8



FUND SOURCES <USES> IN <OUT>

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
$ $ $ $

Total Special Revenue Funds $ $ $ $

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
$ $ $ $

Total Debt Service Funds $ $ $ $

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
$ $ $ $

Total Capital Projects Funds $ $ $ $

TOTAL ALL FUNDS $ $ $ $

2014 2014

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2
Summary by Fund Type of Other Financing Sources/<Uses> and Interfund Transfers

Fiscal Year 2014

OTHER FINANCING INTERFUND TRANSFERS

SCHEDULE D



ADOPTED  
BUDGETED 

EXPENDITURES/
EXPENSES

EXPENDITURE/
EXPENSE 

ADJUSTMENTS 
APPROVED 

ACTUAL 
EXPENDITURES/

EXPENSES*

BUDGETED 
EXPENDITURES/

EXPENSES 
2013 2013 2013 2014

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Administration $ 64,500 $ $ 99,782 $ 48,303

Total Special Revenue Funds $ 64,500 $ $ 99,782 $ 48,303

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
MRCFD No. 2 $ 983,929 $ $ 608,175 $ 1,051,832

Total Debt Service Funds $ 983,929 $ $ 608,175 $ 1,051,832

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
MRCFD No. 2 $ 498,700 $ $ 308,242 $ 2,775,725

Total Capital Projects Funds $ 498,700 $ $ 308,242 $ 2,775,725
TOTAL ALL FUNDS $ 1,547,129 $ $ 1,016,199 $ 3,875,860

*

Summary by Department of Expenditures/Expenses Within Each Fund Type
Fiscal Year 2014

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2

Includes actual expenditures/expenses recognized on the modified accrual or accrual basis as of the date the proposed budget 
was prepared, plus estimated expenditures/expenses for the remainder of the fiscal year.

FUND/DEPARTMENT

SCHEDULE E



 

Community Facilities 
District No. 2 

District Action Form 

AGENDA ITEM 
8b. 

MEETING DATE:  June 17, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Becki Guilin, District Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT:    Public Hearing On Property Tax Levy   

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Public Hearing MRCFD2 Tax Levy  Meeting Date: June 17, 2013 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Open Public Hearing to receive citizen’s comments on property tax levy; and second 
reading of ORDINANCE NO. MRCFD2  209-13:AN ORDINANCE OF MERRILL RANCH 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING 
THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES DISTRICT SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH 
ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00) OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE 
AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30TH DAY OF JUNE 
2014. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
A budget and property tax levy must be adopted each year for Community Facilities 
District. 

The budget and property tax notification has been published in the local newspaper.  
The time and date for a public hearing has been set. 

The District Board has authorized a secondary property tax levy for the payment of debt 
service, infrastructure and operations and maintenance of Community Facilities District 
No. 2.  The current property tax rate is $3.55 per $100 of net assessed valuation. 

The estimates for budget year 2013-2014 have been set forth.  This year’s budget 
includes anticipated revenues from assessments and secondary tax. Expenditures are 
included along with anticipated debt service and administrative expenses.    

Pulte has estimated that this year special assessment bonds will be issued for 
$556,500.  Special Assessment bonds are for local improvements. 

A secondary property tax levy is made for the payment of principal and interest on the 
General Obligation bonds that have been issued for the district.  The General Obligation 



Subject: Public Hearing MRCFD2 Tax Levy  Meeting Date: June 17, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 

bonds are for regional improvements.  GO Bonds in the amount of $1,880,000 are 
anticipated to be issued for this year.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Total collections in revenues and prior year fund balance and bond proceeds are 
anticipated to fund all expenditures.  A secondary property tax of $3.25 per $100/NAV 
estimated at $332,414 for the costs of capital improvements to be financed and all other 
expenditures for public infrastructure and enhanced municipal services plus an 
operations and maintenance levy of $0.30 per $100/NAV estimated at $30,684 will be 
levied on this district for a total of $3.55 per $100/NAV or $363,098. 

Though Community Facilities Districts do no follow expenditure limitation, a budget must 
be prepared.  Total expenditures, including anticipated bond proceeds, are estimated at 
$3,875,860. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Open public hearing to receive citizen’s comments on property tax levy and hold the 
second reading of Ordinance No. MRCFD2 209-13. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Ordinance No. MRCFD2 209-13 
Budget Schedules A-E 
Ad for Public Notice 
 



MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2 
 

ORDINANCE NO. MRCFD2  209-13 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY 
WITHIN THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT SUBJECT TO 
TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH ONE HUNDRED 
DOLLARS ($100.00) OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE 
THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS 
FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR ENDING THE 30TH DAY OF JUNE 2014. 
 
WHEREAS, by the provision of State Law, the Ordinance levying a 

secondary property tax rate for the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 is required to be 
adopted no later than the third Monday in August; and  

 
WHEREAS, the County of Pinal is now the assessing and collecting 

authority for the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2, the District 
Clerk is hereby directed to transmit a certified copy of the Ordinance to the 
Assessor and Board of Supervisors of Pinal County, Arizona; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the District Board of Merrill Ranch 
Community Facilities District No. 2 as follows: 

 
Section 1:  There is hereby levied on each one hundred dollars ($100.00) of the 
assessed value of all property, both real and personal, within the corporate limits 
of the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2, except such property as 
may by law be exempt from taxation, a secondary property tax rate of $3.25 on 
each one hundred dollars ($100.00) for the purpose of providing debt service and 
enhanced municipal services, and $0.30 on each one hundred dollars ($100.00) 
for operations and maintenance of the district, for a combined rate of $3.55 on 
each one hundred dollars ($100.00) for the fiscal year ending on the 30th day of 
June 2014, but if the said sum exceeds the maximum levy allowed by law, the 
Board of Supervisors of Pinal County is hereby authorized to reduce the said 
sum to the maximum which is allowed by law. 

 
Section 2:  No failure by the officials of Pinal County, Arizona to properly return 
the delinquent list and no irregularity in the assessment or commission in the 
same, or irregularity of any kind in any proceeding will invalidate such proceeding 
or invalidate any title conveyed by tax deed; nor will any failure or neglect of any 
officer or officers to perform any of the duties assigned to him or to them on the 
day within the time specified work an invalidation of any proceedings or of any 
such deed or sale or affect the validity of the assessment of a levy of taxes or of 
the judgment of sale by which the collection of the same may be enforced or in 



any manner affect the lien of the Town upon such property for the delinquent 
unpaid taxes thereon, and no overcharge as to part of the taxes or of costs will 
invalidate any of the proceeding upon the lien therefore, or a sale of the property 
under such foreclosure; and all acts of officers de facto will be valid as if 
performed by officer de jure. 

 
Section 3:  All Ordinances and parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are 
hereby repealed. 

 
Section 4:  The immediate operation of the Ordinance is necessary for the 
preservation of the public peace, health, and safety of the Merrill Ranch 
Community Facilities District No. 2, and an emergency is hereby declared to 
exist; and this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from its passage and 
approval by the District Board and publication as required by the laws of the 
State of Arizona, and is hereby exempt from the referendum provisions of the 
constitution and laws of the State of Arizona. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE DISTRICT BOARD of Merrill Ranch 

Community Facilities District No. 2, Florence Arizona, the 1st day of July 2013. 
 
 
 
 

      ________________________________ 
     Tom Rankin, District Chairperson 

 
 
 ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________ ________________________________  
Lisa Garcia, District Clerk   James E. Mannato, District Attorney 
 



OFFICAL BUDGET FORMS

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2

Fiscal Year 2014

 4/12



Schedule E—Summary by Department of Expenditures/Expenses Within Each Fund Type

Schedule F—Summary by Department of Expenditures/Expenses

Schedule A—Summary Schedule of Estimated Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

Schedule B—Summary of Tax Levy and Tax Rate Information

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Fiscal Year 2014

Resolution for the Adoption of the Budget

Schedule C—Summary by Fund Type of Revenues Other Than Property Taxes

Schedule D—Summary by Fund Type of Other Financing Sources/<Uses> and Interfund Transfers

 4/12



Summary Schedule of Estimated Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

2013 2013 July 1, 2013** 2014 2014 SOURCES <USES> IN <OUT> 2014 2014
Secondary:

30,684                

2 Debt Service Funds Available 983,929                 608,175                 979,391          332,414              353,886                                                                                           1,665,691       1,051,832              

3 Less:  Amounts for Future Debt 
Retirement                                                                                                                      

4 Total Debt Service Funds 983,929                 608,175                 979,391          332,414              353,886                                                                                           1,665,691       1,051,832              

5 Capital Projects Funds 498,700                 308,242                 340,588                                     2,436,500                                                                                        2,777,088       2,775,725              

12. TOTAL ALL FUNDS 1,547,129$            1,016,199$            1,366,529$     363,098$            2,792,656$      $                  $                  $                  $                  4,522,283$     3,875,860$            

EXPENDITURE LIMITATION COMPARISON 2013 2014
1.  Budgeted expenditures/expenses 1,547,129$ 3,875,860$ 
2.  Add/subtract: estimated net reconciling items                                         
3.  Budgeted expenditures/expenses adjusted for reconciling items 1,547,129   3,875,860   
4.  Less: estimated exclusions                                         
5.  Amount subject to the expenditure limitation 1,547,129$ 3,875,860$ 
6.  EEC or voter-approved alternative expenditure limitation $                  $                  

*
**

***

TOTAL 
FINANCIAL 

RESOURCES 
AVAILABLE 

BUDGETED 
EXPENDITURES/

EXPENSES
INTERFUND TRANSFERSOTHER FINANCING

ESTIMATED 
REVENUES 

OTHER THAN 
PROPERTY 

TAXES 
FUND

2014 2014

ACTUAL 
EXPENDITURES/

EXPENSES **

ADOPTED 
BUDGETED 

EXPENDITURES/
EXPENSES*

FUND 
BALANCE/

NET 
ASSETS***

PROPERTY TAX 
REVENUES 

Amounts in this column represent Fund Balance/Net Asset amounts except for amounts not in spendable form (e.g., prepaids and inventories) or legally or contractually 
required to be maintained intact (e.g., principal of a permanent fund).

The city/town does not levy property taxes and does not have special assessment districts for which property taxes are levied.  Therefore, Schedule B has been omitted.

Includes Expenditure/Expense Adjustments Approved in current year from Schedule E.       
Includes actual amounts as of the date the proposed budget was prepared, adjusted for estimated activity for the remainder of the fiscal year.

                                                            Special Revenue Funds1 64,500                   

Fiscal Year 2014

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2

48,303                                       79,504            99,782                   46,550            2,270               

SCHEDULE A



2013 2014
1.

$ $

2.

$

3. Property tax levy amounts

A.  Primary property taxes $ $

B. Secondary property taxes 367,383 363,098

C. Total property tax levy amounts $ 367,383 $ 363,098

4. Property taxes collected*

A. Primary property taxes
(1)  Current year's levy $
(2)  Prior years’ levies
(3)  Total primary property taxes $

B. Secondary property taxes
(1)  Current year's levy $ 365,000
(2)  Prior years’ levies 6,900
(3)  Total secondary property taxes $ 371,900

C. Total property taxes collected $ 371,900

5. Property tax rates

A.  City/Town tax rate
(1)  Primary property tax rate
(2)  Secondary property tax rate 3.5500 3.5500
(3)  Total city/town tax rate 3.5500 3.5500

B.  Special assessment district tax rates
Secondary property tax rates - As of the date the proposed budget was prepared, the

2 special assessment districts for which secondary
property taxes are levied. For information pertaining to these special assessment districts
and their tax rates, please contact the city/town.

*

city/town was operating

Includes actual property taxes collected as of the date the proposed budget was prepared, plus 
estimated property tax collections for the remainder of the fiscal year.

Amount received from primary property taxation in 
the current year in excess of the sum of that year's 
maximum allowable primary property tax levy. 
A.R.S. §42-17102(A)(18)

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2
Summary of Tax Levy and Tax Rate Information

Fiscal Year 2014

Maximum allowable primary property tax levy. 
A.R.S. §42-17051(A)

SCHEDULE B



ESTIMATED 
REVENUES 

ACTUAL 
REVENUES* 

ESTIMATED 
REVENUES 

2013 2013 2014
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Administration $ 2,270 $ 34,476 $ 2,270

$ 2,270 $ 34,476 $ 2,270

Total Special Revenue Funds $ 2,270 $ 34,476 $ 2,270

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

MRCFD No. 2 $ 319,152 $ 723,327                 $ 353,886

$ 319,152 $ 723,327 $ 353,886

Total Debt Service Funds $ 319,152 $ 723,327 $ 353,886

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

MRCFD No. 2 $ 350,000 $ 500,000 $ 2,436,500

$ 350,000 $ 500,000 $ 2,436,500

Total Capital Projects Funds $ 350,000 $ 500,000 $ 2,436,500

TOTAL ALL FUNDS $ 671,422 $ 1,257,803 $ 2,792,656

 * Includes actual revenues recognized on the modified accrual or accrual basis as of the date the proposed budget was 
prepared, plus estimated revenues for the remainder of the fiscal year.

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2
Summary by Fund Type of Revenues Other Than Property Taxes

Fiscal Year 2014

SOURCE OF REVENUES

SCHEDULE C Page 6 of 8



FUND SOURCES <USES> IN <OUT>

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
$ $ $ $

Total Special Revenue Funds $ $ $ $

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
$ $ $ $

Total Debt Service Funds $ $ $ $

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
$ $ $ $

Total Capital Projects Funds $ $ $ $

TOTAL ALL FUNDS $ $ $ $

2014 2014

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2
Summary by Fund Type of Other Financing Sources/<Uses> and Interfund Transfers

Fiscal Year 2014

OTHER FINANCING INTERFUND TRANSFERS

SCHEDULE D



ADOPTED  
BUDGETED 

EXPENDITURES/
EXPENSES

EXPENDITURE/
EXPENSE 

ADJUSTMENTS 
APPROVED 

ACTUAL 
EXPENDITURES/

EXPENSES*

BUDGETED 
EXPENDITURES/

EXPENSES 
2013 2013 2013 2014

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Administration $ 64,500 $ $ 99,782 $ 48,303

Total Special Revenue Funds $ 64,500 $ $ 99,782 $ 48,303

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
MRCFD No. 2 $ 983,929 $ $ 608,175 $ 1,051,832

Total Debt Service Funds $ 983,929 $ $ 608,175 $ 1,051,832

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
MRCFD No. 2 $ 498,700 $ $ 308,242 $ 2,775,725

Total Capital Projects Funds $ 498,700 $ $ 308,242 $ 2,775,725
TOTAL ALL FUNDS $ 1,547,129 $ $ 1,016,199 $ 3,875,860

*

Summary by Department of Expenditures/Expenses Within Each Fund Type
Fiscal Year 2014

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2

Includes actual expenditures/expenses recognized on the modified accrual or accrual basis as of the date the proposed budget 
was prepared, plus estimated expenditures/expenses for the remainder of the fiscal year.

FUND/DEPARTMENT

SCHEDULE E



 
MRCFD NO.2 Published Notice 

 
Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2 

Notice of Public Hearing 
 
NOTICE OF FILING STATEMENTS AND ESTIMATES OF THE OPERATION AND 
MAINTENANCE EXPENSES OF THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 
NO. 2, THE COSTS OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS TO BE FINANCED BY THE AD VALOREM 
TAX LEVY, AND THE AMOUNT OF ALL OTHER EXPENDITURES FOR PUBLIC 
INFRASTRUCTURE AND ENHANCED MUNICIPAL SERVICES PROPOSED TO BE PAID FROM 
THE TAX LEVY AND OF THE AMOUNT TO BE RAISED TO PAY GENERAL OBLIGATION 
BONDS OF THE DISTRICT; AND NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED FISCAL 
YEAR 2013-2014 BUDGET OF THE DISTRICT, INCLUDING A HEARING ON THOSE PORTIONS 
OF THE STATEMENTS AND ESTIMATES NOT RELATED TO DEBT SERVICE ON GENERAL 
OBLIGATION BONDS. 
 
Notice is hereby given that statements and estimates have been filed in the Office of the District Clerk of 
the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District #2 of the operations and maintenance expenses of the 
District, the costs of capital improvements to financed by the voter-approved ad valorem tax levy, and the 
amount of all expenditures for public infrastructure and enhanced municipal services proposed to be paid 
from the tax levy and of the amount to be raised to pay general obligation bonds of the District, all of which 
shall be provided for by the levy and collection of ad valorem taxes on the assessed value of all the real and 
personal property of the District.  Notice is further given of a Public Hearing will be held to discuss 
Resolution No. MRCFD2 224-13, a resolution of the CFD District Board of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, adopting a budget for the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 including (but not limited to) a hearing on those 
portions of the statements and estimates not relating to debt service on general obligation bonds, all 
pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes §§48-716 and 48-723.  A copy of the proposed budget is available for 
public inspection at the Office of the District Treasurer in the Finance Department, 775 N. Main Street, the 
Community Library located at 1000 S. Willow and the Dorothy Nolan Senior Center located at 330 N. 
Pinal Street. 
 
The Public Hearing will be held on June 17, 2013 beginning at 6:00 P.M.  The hearings will take place in 
the council chamber at Florence Town Hall, 775 N. Main Street, Florence, Arizona 85132, telephone 
number: (520) 868-7505. 
 
  Dated this 20 day of May 2013 
 
     /s/ Charles Montoya 
    …………………………………….. 
     District Manager 

Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District #2 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), THE TOWN 
OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF DISABLITY REGARDING 
ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY MAY REQUEST 
REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY CONTACTING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE ADA 
COORDINATOR AT (520) 868-7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD.  REQUESTS SHOULD BE MADE AS 
EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMODATION. *** 
 
 
Please publish Notice of Public Hearing  
Publish: May 30, 2013 
 
          
 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
10a. 

MEETING DATE:  June 17, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Becki Guilin, Finance Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Public Hearing on Final Budget and adoption of   
                     Resolution No. 1397-13  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Public Hearing on Final Budget  Meeting Date: June 17, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Adjourn to a Special Meeting and open Public Hearing to receive citizen’s comments on 
budget for Fiscal Year 2013-2014.  Following the Public Hearing, adoption of Resolution 
No. 1397-13: A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2013-2014. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
A tentative budget was presented and adopted at the June 3, 2013 Town Council 
meeting.  No change has been made to the expenditure amounts.  The final budget has 
been delivered to Town Council. 
 
A Public Hearing on the budget has been advertised to receive citizen’s comments on 
the proposed budget. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The estimated expenditures for this year are $47,450,289. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Adjourn to a Special Meeting, hold Public Hearing to receive citizen’s comments, and 
adopt Resolution No. 1397-13. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1397-13 
Exhibits A-G. 
Budget Ad 



  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1397-13 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014. 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona 
as follows: 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of Title 42, Sections 17101, 

17102, 17103, 17104, and 17105, A.R.S., the Town Council did, on June 3, 2013, make 
an estimate of the different amounts required to meet the public expenditures for the 
ensuing year, also an estimate of revenue from sources other than direct taxation, and 
the amount to be raised by taxation upon real and personal property of the Town of 
Florence; and 
 

WHEREAS, in accordance with said sections of said title, and following due 
public notice, the Council met on June 17, 2013 at which meeting any taxpayer was 
privileged to appear and be heard in favor of or against any of the proposed 
expenditures of tax levies; and 
 

WHEREAS, it appears that publication has been duly made as required by law, 
of said estimates together with a notice that the Town Council would meet on June 17, 
2013, at the office of the Council for the purpose of hearing taxpayers and making tax 
levies as set forth in said estimates; and 
 

WHEREAS, it appears that the sum to be raised by taxation, as specified therein, 
does not in the aggregate amount exceed that amount as computed pursuant to A.R.S. 
§42-17051.  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the said estimates of revenue and 
expenditures shown on the accompanying schedules, as now increased, reduced, or 
changed are hereby adopted as the budget of the Town of Florence, Arizona for the 
fiscal year 2013-2014. 
 

Passed by the Town of Florence this 17 day of June 2013. 
 
 

       ________________________________ 
       Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________________ ________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 
 



OFFICIAL BUDGET FORMS

TOWN OF FLORENCE

Fiscal Year 2014

 4/13



Summary Schedule of Estimated Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

2013 2013 July 1, 2013** 2014 2014 SOURCES <USES> IN <OUT> 2014 2014
Primary:

814,526$            
Secondary:
                           

3. Debt Service Funds Available
156,731                 443,817                 87,493                                       69,400                                                         359,663      9,000          507,556          444,949                 

4. Less:  Amounts for Future Debt 
Retirement

                                                                                                                       

5. Total Debt Service Funds
156,731                 443,817                 87,493                                       69,400                                                         359,663      9,000          507,556          444,949                 

6. Capital Projects Funds
5,593,200              2,141,400              11,097,469                                1,185,000                                                                        359,663      11,922,806     7,532,268              

7. Permanent Funds
12,000                   9,500                     314,835          30,000                                                         344,835          10,500                   

8. Enterprise Funds Available
12,640,978            6,737,071              14,816,908                                8,654,347                                                                        1,185,487   22,285,768     12,094,545            

9. Less: Amounts for Future Debt 
Retirement

                                                                                                                       

10. Total Enterprise Funds
12,640,978            6,737,071              14,816,908                                8,654,347                                                                        1,185,487   22,285,768     12,094,545            

11. Internal Service Funds
                                                                                                              1,000                                                           1,106,973                       1,107,973       1,106,973              

12. TOTAL ALL FUNDS
43,473,784$         23,925,775$         50,771,478$   814,526$            26,565,110$    $                   $                   3,306,439$ 3,306,439$ 78,151,114$   47,450,289$          

EXPENDITURE LIMITATION COMPARISON 2013 2014
1.  Budgeted expenditures/expenses 43,473,784$ 47,450,289$ 
2.  Add/subtract: estimated net reconciling items                                             
3.  Budgeted expenditures/expenses adjusted for reconciling items 43,473,784   47,450,289   
4.  Less: estimated exclusions                                             
5.  Amount subject to the expenditure limitation 43,473,784$ 47,450,289$ 
6.  EEC or voter-approved alternative expenditure limitation $                   $                   

*
**

***

17,727,484     6,503,127                              332,667      

Fiscal Year 2014

TOWN OF FLORENCE

13,668,348            

18,454,879$   12,592,706$          

1,035,981   23,527,297     3,139,785              

$                   
2.

12,531,779            

Amounts in this column represent Fund Balance/Net Position amounts except for amounts not in spendable form (e.g., prepaids and inventories) or legally or contractually 
required to be maintained intact (e.g., principal of a permanent fund).

The city/town does not levy property taxes and does not have special assessment districts for which property taxes are levied.  Therefore, Schedule B has been omitted.

Includes Expenditure/Expense Adjustments Approved in current year from Schedule E.       
Includes actual amounts as of the date the proposed budget was prepared, adjusted for estimated activity for the remainder of the fiscal year.

Special Revenue Funds
$                   

                      

1.
6,727,289$     10,122,236$    716,308$    

FUND 
BALANCE/

NET 
POSITION***

PROPERTY TAX 
REVENUES 

ESTIMATED 
REVENUES 

OTHER THAN 
PROPERTY 

TAXES 2014 2014

1,507,136$ 

TOTAL 
FINANCIAL 

RESOURCES 
AVAILABLE 

BUDGETED 
EXPENDITURES/

EXPENSES
INTERFUND TRANSFERSOTHER FINANCING

FUND
General Fund

12,539,096$         11,454,202$         

ACTUAL 
EXPENDITURES/

EXPENSES**

ADOPTED 
BUDGETED 

EXPENDITURES/
EXPENSES*

 4/13 SCHEDULE A



2013 2014
1.

$ 769,095 $ 814,526

2.

$

3. Property tax levy amounts
A.  Primary property taxes $ 769,095 $ 814,526
B. Secondary property taxes
C. Total property tax levy amounts $ 769,095 $ 814,526

4. Property taxes collected*
A. Primary property taxes

(1)  Current year's levy $ 760,000
(2)  Prior years’ levies 7,500
(3)  Total primary property taxes $ 767,500

B. Secondary property taxes
(1)  Current year's levy $
(2)  Prior years’ levies
(3)  Total secondary property taxes $

C. Total property taxes collected $ 767,500

5. Property tax rates
A.  City/Town tax rate

(1)  Primary property tax rate 1.0517 1.1182
(2)  Secondary property tax rate
(3)  Total city/town tax rate 1.0517 1.1182

B.  Special assessment district tax rates
Secondary property tax rates - As of the date the proposed budget was prepared, the

special assessment districts for which secondary
property taxes are levied. For information pertaining to these special assessment districts
and their tax rates, please contact the city/town.

*

city/town was operating

Includes actual property taxes collected as of the date the proposed budget was prepared, plus 
estimated property tax collections for the remainder of the fiscal year.

Amount received from primary property taxation in 
the current year in excess of the sum of that year's 
maximum allowable primary property tax levy. 
A.R.S. §42-17102(A)(18)

TOWN OF FLORENCE
Tax Levy and Tax Rate Information

Fiscal Year 2014

Maximum allowable primary property tax levy. 
A.R.S. §42-17051(A)

 4/13 SCHEDULE B



ESTIMATED 
REVENUES 

ACTUAL 
REVENUES* 

ESTIMATED 
REVENUES 

2013 2013 2014

GENERAL FUND

Local taxes
Sales $ 1,800,000 $ 2,150,000 $ 2,200,000
Use  

Licenses and permits
Licenses and Permits 223,000 269,207 284,000
Franchise Fees and Taxes 390,000 387,700 420,180

Intergovernmental
State Shared Sales Tax 2,135,326 2,135,326 2,206,504
State Shared Income Tax 2,608,211 2,608,211 2,848,922
Auto Lieu Tax 1,106,331 1,106,331 1,119,567
Salt River Lieu Tax 20 24

Charges for services
General Government 74,000 73,800 152,988
Engineering  Fees 40,000 169,667 120,000
Civil Engineering Fees 50,000 83,800 40,000
Community Development Fees 47,000 110,040 122,000
Cemetery Fees 11,000 16,000 17,500
Police Fees 172,800 173,867 91,800
Parks and Recreation Fees 64,900 46,347 63,150
Fire Fees 43,500 54,498 57,500
Library Fees 65,000 82,621 83,700
Senior Fees 18,600 18,400 16,700

Fines and forfeits
Fines and forfeits 140,200 160,410 180,410

Interest on investments
Interest Income 100,000 15,000 23,000

Miscellaneous
Miscellaneous 38,500 46,001 59,420
Economic Development 2,000 7,840 8,280
Government Access Channel 6,200 6,613 6,615

Total General Fund $ 9,136,588 $ 9,721,703 $ 10,122,236

TOWN OF FLORENCE
Revenues Other Than Property Taxes

Fiscal Year 2014

SOURCE OF REVENUES

 4/13 SCHEDULE C



ESTIMATED 
REVENUES 

ACTUAL 
REVENUES* 

ESTIMATED 
REVENUES 

2013 2013 2014

TOWN OF FLORENCE
Revenues Other Than Property Taxes

Fiscal Year 2014

SOURCE OF REVENUES

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Highway User Gas Tax $ 1,653,723 $ 1,653,723 $ 1,659,987
Transportation Excise Tax 1,050,000 905,200 915,000
Other HURF Revenue 46,400 68,500 17,000

$ 2,750,123 $ 2,627,423 $ 2,591,987

Construction Tax Fund $ 130,000 $ 185,000 $ 190,000
Food Tax Fund 191,000 222,000 230,000

$ 321,000 $ 407,000 $ 420,000

Fill the Gap Fund $ 1,880 $ $
Revolving Loan Fund 2,060 2,060
Government Access Channel
Judicial Collection Fund 3,200 3,200

$ 1,880 $ 5,260 $ 5,260

Southwest Gas Capital Expenditure Fund $ 45,000 $ 45,000 $ 45,000
Impound Fund 2,050 6,525 3,025
Streetlight Improvement District #1 1,800 677 500
Streetlight Improvement District #2  3,200 $ 1,512 $ 500

$ 52,050 $ 53,714 $ 49,025

Streetlight Improvement District #3 $ 1,200 262 250
CLG Grant 6,500 1,800 10,000
ACJC-HIDTA Grant  65,771 89,595
Library SGIA Grant 1,770 1,770 1,770

$ 75,241 $ 93,427 $ 12,020

State Special Projects Grant $ 300,000 $ 17,440 $ 582,560
CDBG Grant 579,270 263,086
Gaming Grants  150,000 111,163 145,017
ADOT Main Street Streetscape Plan 399,000 405,495

$ 1,428,270 $ 391,689 $ 1,133,072

Transportation Impact Fees 5,000 $ 95,323 $ 269,403
General Government Impact Fees 15,000 2,000 2,000
Police Impact Fees 111,560 141,874 146,898
Fire/EMS Impact Fees 1,395,000 162,601 1,497,527

$ 1,526,560 $ 401,798 $ 1,915,828

Parks Impact Fees 113,840 $ 135,080 $ 229,960
Library $ 10,000 1,000 21,806

$ 123,840 $ 136,080 $ 251,766

FEMA Safer Grant $ 196,602 $ $
Governors' Office of Highway Safety 5,000 104,069
AZ Department of Homeland Security $  $ $ 20,100
FEMA Safer Grant 39,600

$ 236,202 $ 5,000 $ 124,169

Total Special Revenue Funds $ 6,515,166 $ 4,121,391 $ 6,503,127

 4/13 SCHEDULE C



ESTIMATED 
REVENUES 

ACTUAL 
REVENUES* 

ESTIMATED 
REVENUES 

2013 2013 2014

TOWN OF FLORENCE
Revenues Other Than Property Taxes

Fiscal Year 2014

SOURCE OF REVENUES

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

North Florence Improvement District #1 $ 88,200 $ 61,300                   $ 69,400
General Government   

$ 88,200 $ 61,300 $ 69,400

Total Debt Service Funds $ 88,200 $ 61,300 $ 69,400

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

CIP Fund $ 2,470,000 $ 2,414,000 $ 1,180,000
CIP-Economic Development 5,000

$ 2,470,000 $ 2,414,000 $ 1,185,000

Total Capital Projects Funds $ 2,470,000 $ 2,414,000 $ 1,185,000

PERMANENT FUNDS

Fireman's Pension Fund $ 39,500 $ 30,000 $ 30,000

$ 39,500 $ 30,000 $ 30,000

Total Permanent Funds $ 39,500 $ 30,000 $ 30,000

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Florence Water Fund $ 3,293,075 $ 2,797,135 $ 2,962,100
Florence Sewer Fund 4,851,250 3,181,150 4,691,652
North Florence Sewer Fund 487,700 470,130
Sanitation Fund 1,132,600 2,028,600 983,090

$ 9,764,625 $ 8,477,015 $ 8,636,842

Sanitation Impact Fees $ 200 $ 50 $
Florence Water Impact Fees 100 7,920
Florence Sewer Impact Fees 3,500 500 9,560
North Florence Water Impact Fees 120 15 15

$ 3,820 $ 665 $ 17,495

North Florence Sewer Impact Fees $ 160 $ 10 $ 10

$ 160 $ 10 $ 10

Total Enterprise Funds $ 9,768,605 $ 8,477,690 $ 8,654,347

 4/13 SCHEDULE C



ESTIMATED 
REVENUES 

ACTUAL 
REVENUES* 

ESTIMATED 
REVENUES 

2013 2013 2014

TOWN OF FLORENCE
Revenues Other Than Property Taxes

Fiscal Year 2014

SOURCE OF REVENUES

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Facilities Maintenance $ $ $ 1,000
Fleet Maintenance

$ $ $ 1,000

Total Internal Service Funds $ $ $ 1,000

TOTAL ALL FUNDS $ 28,018,059 $ 24,826,084 $ 26,565,110

 * Includes actual revenues recognized on the modified accrual or accrual basis as of the date the proposed budget was 
prepared, plus estimated revenues for the remainder of the fiscal year.

 4/13 SCHEDULE C



FUND SOURCES <USES> IN <OUT>

GENERAL FUND
Facilities Maintenance $ $ $ 9,750 $ 300,474
Fleet Maintenance  415,834
Water Fund 511,702
Sewer Fund 385,170  
Sanitation Fund 51,047
State Special Projects Grant 54,187
HURF 486,280
North Florence Improvement District 9,000

Total General Fund $ $ $ 1,507,136 $ 716,308

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
HURF $ $ $ 9,750 $ 773,535
Streetlight Improvement District #1  6,500
Streetlight Improvement District #2  6,500
Streetlight Improvement District #3 6,500
State Special Projects Grant 54,187
ADOT LTAF II 39,681
Main Street Improvement Grant 55,029
Police Impact Fees 149,078
Fire Impact Fees 149,078
State Special Projects Grant #212 118,810

Total Special Revenue Funds $ $ $ 332,667 $ 1,035,981

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
General Government Debt Service $ $ $ 359,663 $
North Florence Improvement District 9,000

Total Debt Service Funds $ $ $ 359,663 $ 9,000

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
CIP Fund 011 $ $ $ $ 359,663

Total Capital Projects Funds $ $ $ $ 359,663

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Water $ $ $ $ 599,473
Sewer 517,290
Sanitation 68,724

Total Enterprise Funds $ $ $ $ 1,185,487

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
Facility Maintennace $ $ $ 435,745 $
Fleet Maintenance 671,228

Total Internal Service Funds $ $ $ 1,106,973 $

TOTAL ALL FUNDS $ $ $ 3,306,439 $ 3,306,439

2014 2014

TOWN OF FLORENCE
Other Financing Sources/<Uses> and Interfund Transfers

Fiscal Year 2014

OTHER FINANCING INTERFUND TRANSFERS

 4/13 SCHEDULE D



ADOPTED  
BUDGETED 

EXPENDITURES/
EXPENSES

EXPENDITURE/
EXPENSE 

ADJUSTMENTS 
APPROVED 

ACTUAL 
EXPENDITURES/

EXPENSES*

BUDGETED 
EXPENDITURES/

EXPENSES 
2013 2013 2013 2014

GENERAL FUND
Town Council $ 137,361 $ $ 137,231 $ 152,324
Administration 604,770 614,630 673,404
Courts 264,044 269,055 278,448
Legal 181,685 176,333 255,460
Finance 666,265 731,441 813,647
Grants 79,765 66,730 95,300
Human Resources 184,310 170,463 214,794
Community Development 571,110 493,085 561,700
Police 3,782,085 3,523,742 3,771,703
Fire 2,358,522 2,263,605 2,534,446
Information Technology 606,810 537,744 536,365
Parks & Recreation 1,461,569 1,346,969 1,345,340
Library 327,820 323,850 367,040
Engineering 144,450 114,314 176,435
Facility Maintenance 74,475 61,584
General Government 497,300 378,818 623,085
Cemetery 27,400 16,750 25,550
Economic Development 569,355 227,858 167,665

Total General Fund $ 12,539,096 $ $ 11,454,202 $ 12,592,706

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Highway User $ 5,611,635 $ $ 2,237,306 $ 6,477,186
Construction Tax 
Food Tax 
Judicial Collection 5,750 5,950 3,750
Fill the Gap 2,200 5,450 2,100
Computer Automation Fund
Southwest Gas Capital Fund 53,000 45,000
Impound 2,500 600 3,000
Street Light Improvement District #1 22,000 18,560 20,000
Street Light Improvement District #2 24,000 18,000 20,000
Street Light Improvement District #3 10,000 8,200 10,000
HIDTA Grant #205 65,771 89,595
State Special Projects Grant #212 399,810 15,627 647,183
CLG 13,000 1,800 10,000
Gaming Grants 150,000 87,482 168,698
Arizona Department of Homeland Security 39,600 20,100
Governor's Office of Highway Safety 5,000 104,069
ADOT LTAF II-Senior Transp. 2,640 2,024
ADOT LTAF II-Main Street
Library SGIA Grant 1,770 1,656 1,770
ADOT-Main Street Streetscape 454,209 460,524
CDBG Grants 616,723 325,434
FEMA Safer Grant 196,602
Transportation Impact Fee 524,745 4,000 846,747
General Government Impact Fees 867,524 4,000
Police Impact Fees 356,300 197,101 127,300
Fire/EMS Impact Fees 2,904,000 104,000 3,019,244
Parks Impact Fees 204,000 4,000 1,181,677
Library Impact Fee 4,000 4,000 500,000

Total Special Revenue Funds $ 12,531,779 $ $ 3,139,785 $ 13,668,348

Expenditures/Expenses by Fund
Fiscal Year 2014

TOWN OF FLORENCE

FUND/DEPARTMENT

 4/13 SCHEDULE E



DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
North Florence Improvement District $ 86,983 $ $ 84,154 $ 85,286
General Government 69,748 359,663 359,663

Total Debt Service Funds $ 156,731 $ $ 443,817 $ 444,949

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
Capital Improvement Projects $ 5,593,200 $ $ 2,141,400 $ 7,087,412
Capital Projects-Economic Development 444,856

Total Capital Projects Funds $ 5,593,200 $ $ 2,141,400 $ 7,532,268

PERMANENT FUNDS
Fireman's Pension $ 12,000 $ $ 9,500 $ 10,500

Total Permanent Funds $ 12,000 $ $ 9,500 $ 10,500

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Water Fund $ 6,363,358 $ $ 3,235,057 $ 6,510,603
Sewer Fund 5,095,674 2,399,805 4,780,872
North Florence Sewer Fund 425,950 342,495
Sanitation Fund 700,240 644,714 759,395
Water Impact Fees 4,000 99,000
Sewer Impact Fees 4,000 4,000
Sanitation Impact Fees 47,756 4,000 43,675
North Florence Water Impact Fees 4,000
North Florence Sewer Impact Fees 4,000

Total Enterprise Funds $ 12,640,978 $ $ 6,737,071 $ 12,094,545

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
Facility Maintenance $ $ $ $ 435,745
Fleet Maintenance 671,228

Total Internal Service Funds $ $ $ $ 1,106,973
TOTAL ALL FUNDS $ 43,473,784 $ $ 23,925,775 $ 47,450,289

* Includes actual expenditures/expenses recognized on the modified accrual or accrual basis as of the date the proposed budget 
was prepared, plus estimated expenditures/expenses for the remainder of the fiscal year.

 4/13 SCHEDULE E



Full-Time 
Equivalent (FTE)

Employee Salaries 
and Hourly Costs Retirement Costs Healthcare Costs

Other Benefit 
Costs

Total Estimated 
Personnel 

Compensation
2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014

GENERAL FUND 148 $ 7,038,393 $ 840,621 $ 1,536,712 $ 702,935 = $ 10,118,661

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Highway User Fund 11 $ 829,425 $ 95,725 $ 244,400 $ 102,956 = $ 1,272,506

Total Special Revenue Funds 11 $ 829,425 $ 95,725 $ 244,400 $ 102,956 = $ 1,272,506

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
Faculties Maintenance 4 167,250 19,375 38,900 18,625 244,150
Fleet Maintenance 2 101,775 11,750 17,600 10,325 141,450

Total Debt Service Funds 7 $ 269,025 $ 31,125 $ 56,500 $ 28,950 = $ 385,600

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
$ $ $ $ = $

Total Capital Projects Funds $ $ $ $ = $

PERMANENT FUNDS
$ $ $ $ = $

Total Permanent Funds $ $ $ $ = $

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Water 6 $ 343,800 $ 39,700 $ 71,100 $ 36,800 = $ 491,400
Sewer 7 416,800 48,100 106,100 45,000 616,000
Sanitation 1 58,400 7,200 23,500 7,800 96,900

Total Enterprise Funds 14 $ 819,000 $ 95,000 $ 200,700 $ 89,600 = $ 1,204,300

TOTAL ALL FUNDS 180 $ 8,955,843 $ 1,062,471 $ 2,038,312 $ 924,441 = $ 12,981,067

FUND

TOWN OF FLORENCE
Full-Time Employees and Personnel Compensation

Fiscal Year 2014

 4/13 SCHEDULE G



Town of Florence 
Notice of Public Hearing 

 
 
The Town of Florence will hold a public hearing to discuss Resolution No. 1397-13, a 
Resolution of the Town of Florence, Arizona, adopting a Final Budget for the Fiscal Year 
2013-2014, and declaring an emergency.  A copy of the Proposed Budget is available for 
public inspection at the cashier’s window of the Finance Department, located at 775 N. 
Main Street; the Community Library, located at 1000 S. Willow; and the Dorothy Nolan 
Senior Center, located at 220 N. Pinal Street. 
 
The Public Hearing will be held on June 17, 2013 during the Council Meeting beginning 
at 6:00 P.M.  The hearings take place in the Council Chambers at Town Hall, located at 
775 N. Main Street. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
(ADA), THE TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS 
OF DISABLITY REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS 
WITH A DISABILITY MAY REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY 
CONTACTING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR AT (520) 868- 
7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD.  REQUESTS SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS 
POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMODATION. *** 
 
Legal Ad (Surrounded by border) 
1/8 page 
No. of publications 2; Dates of publication:  June 6, 2013, June 13, 2013.  
 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
12a. 

MEETING DATE:  June 17, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Becki Guilin, Finance Director 
 
SUBJECT:    Truth in Taxation – Public Hearing- Property Tax  
                      Levy; and Second Reading of Ordinance No. 
                      596-13.  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Public Hearing Property Tax Levy  Meeting Date: June 17, 2013 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Open Public Hearing to receive comments on property tax levy and second reading of 
Ordinance No. 596-13: AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY 
WITHIN THE TOWN OF FLORENCE SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM 
UPON EACH ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00) OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO 
RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR GENERAL 
MUNICIPAL EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30TH DAY OF JUNE 
2014, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Town of Florence levies a primary property tax annually. The rate that was levied 
last year was $1.0517 per $100 of net assessed valuation.  The current property tax 
rate is $1.0963 per $100 of net assessed valuation to raise the same amount of 
property tax levied last year. 

The need to increase the property tax levy over the prior year levy requires a Truth in 
Taxation Hearing.  The public hearing for the Truth in Taxation Hearing will be held 
June 17, 2013.  The proposed property tax levy for this year is $814,526 which includes 
new construction of $29,456 or 2% over current levy.  The rate has increased this year 
by levying the maximum allowable levy.   

Primary property tax fund the General Fund of the Town of Florence.  The General 
Fund contains Town of Florence General Administration, Community Development, 
Public Safety, Engineering, Cemetery, Parks and Recreation, and Library Services.  

Primary property tax is 7% of the revenue generated for the General Fund.  



Subject: Public Hearing Property Tax Levy  Meeting Date: June 17, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 

The Town levies an ad valorem or secondary property tax for the Merrill Ranch 
Streetlight Improvement Districts No. 1, No. 2, and No. 3.  This year, due to adequate 
fund balance, there will be no levy.   
 
Within this Ordinance is the levy of $0 for Merrill Ranch Street Lighting Districts No. 1, 
No, 2, and No. 3.  These levies are ad valorem or secondary property tax levies for the 
operations of these districts. 
 
The consideration for adoption of the tax levy ordinance will be on the Town Council 
Agenda on July 1, 2013. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Primary taxes are calculated using limited property value (LPV), and are used to pay for 
basic maintenance, and operation of a county, town or school district.   

A $100,000 LPV using our proposed rate of $1.1182/$100 would be $111.82. 

An increase of 2.19% over the previous year's tax rate or $2.19 on a $100,000 home. 

The levy would add to the General Fund revenue base and is essential to funding all of 
the departments within the General Fund that are necessary to maintain town services. 

District Levies are as follows: 

Merrill Ranch Street Lighting District No. 1 - $0 or $0 per $100/FCV  

Merrill Ranch Street Lighting District No. 2 - $0 or $0 per $100/FCV 

Merrill Ranch Street Lighting District No. 3 - $0 or $0 per $100/FCV 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Open Public Hearing to receive citizen’s comments.    
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Ordinance No.  596 -13 
TNT Worksheet 
Ads for Property Tax Levies 



ORDINANCE NO.   596-13 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE 
PROPERTY WITHIN THE TOWN OF FLORENCE SUBJECT TO 
TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH ONE HUNDRED 
DOLLARS ($100.00) OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE 
AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR 
GENERAL MUNICIPAL EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING 
THE 30TH DAY OF JUNE 2014, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. §42-17151, the Ordinance levying a primary 

property tax rate for the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 is required to be adopted no later than 
the third Monday in August; and  

 
WHEREAS, the County of Pinal, is now the assessing and collecting authority for 

the Town of Florence.  The Town Clerk is hereby directed to transmit a certified copy of 
the Ordinance to the Assessor and Board of Supervisors of Pinal County, Arizona. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Town Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 

 
 Section 1:  There is hereby levied on each one hundred dollars ($100.00) of the 

assessed value of all property, both real and personal, within the corporate limits 
of the Town of Florence, except such property as may by law be exempt from 
taxation, a primary property tax rate sufficient to raise the sum of $814,526 for 
the purpose of providing a General Fund of the Town of Florence, for the fiscal 
year ending on the 30th day of June 2014, but if the said sum exceeds the 
maximum levy allowed by law, the Board of Supervisors of Pinal County, is 
hereby authorized to reduce the said sum to the maximum which is allowed by 
law. 
 
Section 2:  There is hereby levied on each one hundred dollars ($100.00) of the 
assessed value of all property, both real and personal, within the corporate limits 
of the Anthem at Merrill Ranch Street Lighting District No.1, Town of Florence, 
except such property as may by law be exempt from taxation, a secondary 
property tax rate of $0 per $100 of NAV for the purpose of providing operations 
and maintenance for the Anthem at Merrill Ranch Street Light Improvement 
District No. 1 for the fiscal year ending on the 30th day of June 2014, but if the 
said sum exceeds the maximum levy allowed by law, the Board of Supervisors of 
Pinal County, is hereby authorized to reduce the said sum to the maximum which 
is allowed by law. 
 
Section 3:  There is hereby levied on each one hundred dollars ($100.00) of the 
assessed value of all property, both real and personal, within the corporate limits 
of the Anthem at Merrill Ranch Street Lighting District No. 2, Town of Florence, 



except such property as may by law be exempt from taxation, a secondary 
property tax rate of $0  per $100 of NAV for the purpose of providing operations 
and maintenance for the Street Light Improvement District No. 2 for the fiscal 
year ending on the 30th day of June 2014, but if the said sum exceeds the 
maximum levy allowed by law, the Board of Supervisors of Pinal County, is 
hereby authorized to reduce the said sum to the maximum which is allowed by 
law. 

 
Section 4:  There is hereby levied on each one hundred dollars ($100.00) of the 
assessed value of all property, both real and personal, within the corporate limits 
of the Anthem at Merrill Ranch Street Lighting District No. 3, Town of Florence, 
except such property as may by law be exempt from taxation, a secondary 
property tax rate of $0 per $100 of NAV for the purpose of providing operations 
and maintenance for the Street Light Improvement District No. 3 for the fiscal 
year ending on the 30th day of June 2014, but if the said sum exceeds the 
maximum levy allowed by law, the Board of Supervisors of Pinal County, is 
hereby authorized to reduce the said sum to the maximum which is allowed by 
law. 

 
Section 5:  No failure by the officials of Pinal County, Arizona, to properly return 
the delinquent list and no irregularity in the assessment or commission in the 
same, or irregularity of any kind in any proceeding will invalidate such proceeding 
or invalidate any title conveyed by tax deed; nor will any failure or neglect of any 
officer or officers to perform any of the duties assigned to him or to them on the 
day within the time specified work an invalidation of any proceedings or of any 
such deed or sale or affect the validity of the assessment of a levy of taxes or of 
the judgment of sale by which the collection of the same may be enforced or in 
any manner affect the lien of the Town upon such property for the delinquent 
unpaid taxes; thereon, and no overcharge as to part of the taxes or of costs will 
invalidate any of the proceeding upon the lien, therefore, or a sale of the property 
under such foreclosure; and all acts of officers de facto will be valid as if 
performed by officer de jure. 
 
Section 6 :  All Ordinances and parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are 
hereby repealed. 
 
Section 7:  The immediate operation of the Ordinance is necessary for the 
preservation of the public peace, health, and safety of the Town of Florence, and 
an emergency is hereby declared to exist; and this Ordinance shall be in full 
force and effect from its passage and approval by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, and publication as required by the laws of the State of 
Arizona, and is hereby exempt from the referendum provisions of the constitution 
and laws of the State of Arizona. 
 

  



 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, the 1st day of July 2013. 

 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
 ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 
 



Prior Year's Primary property tax levy:(Last year's pr imary property tax levy) $769,095

Current Year Estimate of net assessed valuation:(Curr ent year net assessed values) - C4 $72,842,647

Current Year ESTIMATE OF VALUE OF NEW CONSTRUCTION: $2,686,896

Current year Net assessed value minus new construct ion: - B4 $70,155,751
(Current year net assessed value subject to taxation in prior year)

MAXIMUM TAX RATE THAT CAN BE IMPOSED
WITHOUT A TRUTH IN TAXATION HEARING: 1.0963$                

GROWTH IN PROPERTY TAX LEVY CAPACITY
ASSOCIATED WITH NEW CONSTRUCTION: $29,456

MAXIMUM PRIMARY PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR current year
WITHOUT A TRUTH IN TAXATION HEARING: $798,551

Proposed current year primary property tax levy: (Th is year's proposed primary property tax levy) $814,5 26

PROPOSED current year INCREASE IN PRIMARY PROPERTY TAX
LEVY OVER TNT LEVY, EXCLUSIVE OF NEW CONSTRUCTION: $15,975

PROPOSED % INCREASE IN current year PRIMARY
PROPERTY TAX LEVY OVER TNT LEVY: 2.00%

PROPOSED current year PRIMARY PROPERTY TAX RATE: $1.1182

PROPOSED INCREASE IN PRIMARY PROPERTY TAX RATE OVER THE TNT RATE: 2.19%

PROPOSED current year PRIMARY PROPERTY
TAX LEVY ON A HOME VALUED AT $100,000: $111.82

current year PRIMARY PROPERTY TAX LEVY ON A HOME VALUED
AT $100,000 IF THE TAX LEVY WAS NOT RAISED: 109.63

Amount of Increase for $100,000 Home $2.19

Truth in Taxation Analysis for current year Propose d Levy



Truth in Taxation HearingTruth in Taxation HearingTruth in Taxation HearingTruth in Taxation Hearing    

Notice of Tax IncreaseNotice of Tax IncreaseNotice of Tax IncreaseNotice of Tax Increase    

In compliance with section 42-17107, Arizona Revised Statutes, The Town of Florence is 
notifying its property taxpayers of Florence’s intention to raise its primary property taxes 
over last year's level. Florence is proposing an increase in primary property taxes of 
$15,975 or 2%. 

For example, the proposed tax increase will cause Florence’s primary property taxes on 
a $100,000 home to increase from $109.63 to $111.82 or $2.19. 

This proposed increase is exclusive of increased primary property taxes received from 
new construction. The increase is also exclusive of any changes that may occur from 
property tax levies for voter approved bonded indebtedness or budget and tax overrides. 

All interested citizens are invited to attend the public hearing on the tax increase that is 
scheduled to be held June 17, 2013, 6:00 P.M. at Florence Town Hall at 775 N. Main 
Street, Florence AZ. 

 

 
Publish May 30, 2013, Florence Reminder 
Publish June 6, 2013, Florence Reminder 
           
Please publish in a location other than the classified or legal advertising section of the 
newspaper. 
 
Notice must be a least one-fourth page in size and shall be surrounded by a solid black 
border at least one-eighth inch in width. 
 
The notice must read, “Truth in Taxation Hearing - Notification of Tax Inc rease” in 
at least 18 point type.  
 
The schedule of revenue and expenses must be included. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Florence, AZ 
Revenues and Expenditures Related to Property Tax Levy 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
 
 

Revenue 2013-2014    Expenditures   

Taxes  $ 3,014,526   Council  $    152,324  

Licenses and Permits  $    284,000   Administration  $    673,404  

Franchise Fees and Taxes  $    420,180   Courts  $    278,448  

Intergovernmental  $ 6,174,993   Town Attorney  $    255,460  

Charges-General Government  $    152,988   Finance  $    813,647  

Miscellaneous  $      59,420   Grants  $      95,300  

CE Inspection Fees  $    120,000   Human Resources  $    214,794  

Civil Engineering Fees  $      40,000   Community Development   $    561,700  

Community Development Fees  $    122,000   Police  $ 3,771,703  

Cemetery Fees  $      17,500   Fire  $ 2,534,446  

Public Safety-Police  $      91,800   Information Technology  $    536,365  

Public Safety-Fire  $      57,500   Parks & Recreation  $ 1,345,340  

Parks and Recreation  $      63,150   Library  $    367,040  

Library  $      83,700   Engineering  $    176,435  

Seniors  $      16,700   General Government  $    623,085  

Fines and Forfeits  $    180,410   Cemetery  $      25,550  

Interest Earnings  $      23,000   Economic Development  $    167,665  

Economic Development  $        8,280   Operating Transfers  $    716,308  

Government Access Channel  $        6,615     

Operating Transfer  $ 1,507,137   Total Expenditures 
 
$13,309,014  

Total Revenue 
 
$12,443,899     

 
 

Information on the estimates of revenue and expenditures can be located in the 
proposed budget at the administrative offices of the Town of Florence at 775 N. 
Main Street, Florence, AZ and the Florence Public Library at 1000 S. Willow Street, 
Florence AZ.  



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
 12b. 

MEETING DATE:  June 17, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration  
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia,  
                                    Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:    Public Hearing and action on Dollar General   
                      Liquor  License 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Dollar General Store Liquor License  Meeting Date: June 17,  2013 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Public Hearing and action on Abel Clare Hollie’s (Dollar General Store #7336) 
application for a New Series 10 Liquor License for future Super Stop location of 495 N. 
Pinal Parkway, Suite 10, Florence, Arizona.   
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The site is located 495 N. Pinal Parkway, Suite 10.  The Series 10 Liquor License is a 
non-transferable, off-sale retail privileges liquor license that allows a retail store to sell 
beer and wine (no other spirituous liquors), only in the original unbroken package, to be 
taken away from the premises of the retailer and consumed off the premises.  A retailer 
with off-sale privileges may deliver spirituous liquor off of the licensed premises in 
connection with a retail sale.  Payment must be made no later than the time of delivery. 
Series 10 (beer and wine store) licensees and applicants may apply for unlimited 
sampling privileges by completing the Sampling Privileges form. 
 
A.R.S. Section 4-201 requires that notices of the public hearing be posted in a 
conspicuous place on the premises for at least 20 days prior to the hearing. Per the 
attached affidavit of posting, the premises was posted on May 28, 2013.  The picture is 
attached to the affidavit.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Sales tax revenues generated from liquor sales at the Dollar General Store location. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that Council forward a recommendation of approval to the Arizona 
Department of Liquor License and Control on Abel Clare Hollie’s application for a Series 



Subject: Dollar General Store Liquor License  Meeting Date: June 17,  2013 
Page 2 of 2 

10 Liquor License at the future Super Stop site, located at 495 N. Pinal Parkway, Suite 
10, Florence, Arizona.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Application 
Affidavit of Posting 









































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
 13a. 

MEETING DATE:  June 17, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia 
                                  Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:   Windmill Winery Application for Wine Festival  
                    License/Wine Fair License   

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Special Event Liquor License – Windmill Winery                              Meeting Date: June 17, 2013 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Ratification of an Application for Wine Festival License/Wine Fair License for the 
Windmill Winery to hold a wine tasting at the Freedom Fest at Heritage Park, on July 4, 
2013, from 4:00 p.m. to 8:30 p.m.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Windmill Winery will host a wine tasting during the Freedom Fest celebration.  Staff 
will be on site to explain the various wines and to offer samples.   
 
This is a temporary, non-transferable, on and off-sale retail privilege license that allows 
the holder to offer the sale of wine at two different types of events: 

1. A Wine festival license allows a licensed domestic farm winery to serve samples of 
its products on the wine festival premises, the sale of such products for consumption 
on the wine festival premises, and the sale of such products in original containers for 
consumption off the wine festival premises. The license is subject to the approval of 
the governing body of a city or town, where the wine festival is to take place. The 
Arizona Department of Liquor may issue up to twenty five (25) wine festival licenses 
for each calendar year for each licensed domestic farm winery, for up to a 
cumulative total of seventy five (75) calendar days per winery. 

2. A Wine fair license allows a licensed domestic farm winery to serve samples of its 
products at a sanctioned county or state fair, the sale of such products for 
consumption on the fair premises and the sale of such products in original 
containers for consumption off the fair premises.  

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
 
 
 



Subject: Special Event Liquor License – Windmill Winery                              Meeting Date: June 17, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the Council ratify the favorable recommendation sent to the Arizona 
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Application 











 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
13b. 

MEETING DATE:  June 17, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Human Resources 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Scott Barber, HR Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Resolution No. 1401-13: Smartworksplus  
                     Service Agreement  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1401-13 Smartworksplus Service Agreement  Meeting Date: June 17, 2013 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
It is recommended the Mayor and Council adopt Resolution No. 1401-13, approving a 
new service agreement with Smartworksplus, effective July 1, 2013, to provide for 
staffing services by contract pursuant to RFP#14-06MP and the associated contract 
issued by Mesa Public Schools under a Cooperative Purchasing Agreement with 
Strategic Alliance for Volume Expenditures (SAVE).   
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 

Back in March, 2012, an agreement was approved with Smartworksplus to allow the 
possibility of eligible Town employees covered under the Arizona State Retirement 
System (ASRS) to retire, begin to collect their ASRS retirement benefits, and return to 
work for the Town.  This agreement has also allowed the Town to bring on board staff 
members who are not existing Town employees under the terms of the agreement.  
That action reflected favorable terms and conditions negotiated with Smartworksplus 
through a Cooperative Purchasing Agreement with Strategic Alliance for Volume 
Expenditures (SAVE) pursuant to an RFP issued by Mesa Public Schools and available 
to other public entities.  The underlying agreement will expire at the end of June.  A new 
SAVE Cooperative Purchasing Agreement has been approved, identical to the one 
expiring.  Though we technically have an agreement with Smartworksplus that runs 
through July 2, 2015, it has been requested that we approve a new agreement to reflect 
the new RFP number, and the new agreement term through June 30, 2018. 

Just a reminder that re-employment is not guaranteed to any employee, and that the 
Town realizes a significant savings when contracting employees in this way. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Fiscal Impact (in this case, net savings to the Town) is ultimately dependent upon 
eligibility and participation. 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1401-13 Smartworksplus Service Agreement  Meeting Date: June 17, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends adoption Resolution No. 1401-13, approving a new service 
agreement with Smartworksplus. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution No. 1401-13 
Smartworksplus, Inc. – Service Agreement  
 



RESOLUTION NO.  1401-13 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, ADOPTING THE SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
SMARTSCHOOLSPLUS, INC. DBA SMARTWORKSPLUS AND THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE EFFECTIVE 07/01/2013 FOR A FIVE YEAR 
TERM. 

 
WHEREAS, it has been brought to the attention of the Mayor and Council that it 

is recommended to adopt a new Service Agreement between smartschoolsplus, inc., 
dba smartworksplus  and the Town of Florence effective July 1, 2013. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Service Agreement between 

smartschoolsplus, inc., dba smartworksplus  attached as “Exhibit A”, and the Town of 
Florence is hereby adopted effective July 1, 2013.   
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, this 17th day of June, 2013. 

 
       

_____________________________________ 
      Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
    
 
_____________________________ _____________________________________  
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 



Town of Florence 
and 

smartworksplus, inc. 
 

SERVICE AGREEMENT 
 
 This SERVICE AGREEMENT (this “AGREEMENT”) is entered into as of this 1st day of July, 
2013 between smartschoolsplus, inc, an Arizona corporation, d/b/a smartworksplus (“Provider”), and the 
Town of Florence (“Entity”). 
 

RECITALS 
 
 A. Provider is a corporation engaged in the business of providing professional services, 
including employee staffing services, to governmental entities; 

 B. Provider’s employees include qualified personnel and/or administrators. , [ 
 
 C. Entity is a governmental entity within the State of Arizona that requires the services of 
qualified personnel and/or administrators. 
 
 D. Entity is authorized to enter into this Agreement pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes 
A.R.S. 9-240 (A). 
 
 E. City desires to obtain services, as more fully described in Exhibit A, attached hereto 
(“Services”) from Provider and Provider is willing to provide Services to City upon the terms and 
conditions contained in this Agreement, pursuant to RFP #14-06MP and the associated contract issued 
by the Strategic Alliance for Volume Expenditures (SAVE) available to District/State Entities. 
 

AGREEMENTS 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained herein, 
and intending to be legally bound, Provider and Entity agree as follows: 
 
 1. Services.  Provider shall provide the Services set forth in this Agreement and in the 
Scope of Services attached as Exhibit A (collectively, “Services”). 
 
 2. Provider Employees.   
 

A. Employment Agreement.  Provider shall enter, or has previously entered, into 
employment agreements (“Employment Agreements”), substantially in the form of Exhibit B, attached 
hereto, with staff and/or administrators.  Collectively, “Provider Employees” to provide Services required 
by Entity.  A roster of Provider Employees, and their daily pay rates, are set forth in Exhibit C.  A copy of 
each Employment Agreement shall be provided to Entity as soon as available.  Provider shall (i) take 
steps to assure that each Provider Employee performs in accordance with his or her Employment 
Agreement, and (ii) provide general direction, supervision and control of each Provider Employee in the 
performance of his or her duties, as more fully described in the Scope of Services. 

 
B. Payroll.  Provider, and not Entity, shall be solely responsible for administrative 

employment matters regarding Provider Employees including, but not limited to, all payroll and payroll 
income tax withholding matters, payment of workers’ compensation premiums and funding of appropriate 
fringe benefit programs.  Provider agrees to hold harmless Entity for failure to remit to the appropriate 
governmental authority any and all taxes, assessments or governmental charges in connection with its 
employment of Provider Employees.  Entity shall immediately forward to Provider any garnishment 
orders, involuntary deduction orders, notices of IRS liens and other forms of legal process received by 
Entity affecting payment of wages to Provider Employees and shall cooperate with Provider in responding 
thereto.  

 



 -2- 

C. Health and Safety.  Provider shall, and shall require Provider’s Employees to, 
comply with all health and safety laws, regulations, ordinances, directives and rules imposed by 
controlling federal, state or local governments, and shall immediately report all work-related accidents 
involving the Provider Employee within 24 hours to Entity.  Provider shall provide where necessary, and 
shall require that all Provider Employees use, personal protective equipment as required by federal, state 
or local law, regulation, ordinance, directive or rule.   

 
D. Compensation of Provider Employees.  Provider shall pay Provider Employees in 

compliance with applicable wage and hour laws including, but not limited to, the Fair Labor Standards Act 
(“FLSA”) and Arizona Labor Code.  Provider shall maintain complete and accurate records of all wages 
paid to a Provider Employee assigned to provide services to Entity.  Provider shall be exclusively 
responsible for, and shall comply with, applicable law governing the reporting and payment of wages, 
payroll-related and unemployment taxes attributable to wages paid to Provider Employees assigned to 
provide services to Entity.  

 
E. Legal Arizona Worker’s Act.  Provider, and not Entity, shall be responsible for 

compliance with the Legal Arizona Worker’s Act (2007), as amended from time to time.  Compliance shall 
include, but not be limited to, verification of employment eligibility for all new employees through the E-
Verify program, as defined in A.R.S. § 23-211. 

 
F. Termination.  Provider or Entity may terminate this Agreement, with respect to 

any or all of the Provider Employees, without cause or justification of any kind, by providing the other 
party with written notice of such termination at least 30 days prior to the effective date of termination.  
Entity and Provider shall each have the right to terminate the service of, and therefore cease to have any 
obligation with respect to, any particular Provider Employee, upon written notice to the other (or its 
successor in interest) upon the occurrence of any of the following: 
 
   (1) if the Provider Employee: (i) embezzles, steals or misappropriates funds 
or property of Entity or Provider or defrauds Entity or Provider; (ii) is convicted of a felony; (iii) has a 
necessary certification revoked or suspended; or (iv) commits an act or omission which constitutes 
unprofessional conduct or which adversely affects the reputation of Entity or Provider;  
 
   (2) the death of the Provider Employee occurring any time during the term of 
this Agreement, in which event this Agreement (as it relates to that employee) shall terminate as of his 
date of death; 
 
   (3) the permanent disability of the Provider Employee occurring at any time 
during the term of this Agreement.  For purposes of the foregoing, a Provider Employee shall be deemed 
to be permanently disabled if, by reason of any physical or mental condition, the Provider Employee is 
unable to substantially perform his duties hereunder during either (i) any continuous period of 30 days, in 
which event this Agreement shall terminate as of the first day following the end of such 30-day period, or 
(ii) an aggregate of 45 days within a 12-month period, in which event this Agreement shall terminate as of 
the first day following the 45th such day; 
 
   (4) in the event that Provider sells or disposes of all or substantially all of its 
assets or permanently discontinues operating its business; 
 
   (5) in the event that a Provider Employee is unwilling, unable or fails to 
satisfactorily comply with any rules, guidelines, policies, procedures or regulations promulgated by 
Employer or Entity during the term of the Provider Employee’s Employment Agreement; provided, 
however, that termination for cause shall not occur unless written notice of the alleged non-compliance is 
first given to Provider and Provider fails to cure the non-compliance within 10 days following receipt of 
such written notice; or 
 
   (6) if it is later discovered that a Provider Employee has made any material 
misrepresentations or has failed to provide any material information in connection with the application for 
employment that was previously submitted to Provider. 



 -3- 

 
 3. Compensation.  Entity agrees to compensate Provider for work performed, and 
reimbursable expenses incurred in the performance thereof, by Provider Employees in accordance with 
the compensation schedule attached hereto as Exhibit D.  Provider shall invoice Entity monthly; invoices 
shall be due and payable within 7 days after receipt by Entity.  The parties acknowledge and agree that 
Provider Employees shall receive wages solely from Provider.  Entity shall not pay any Provider 
Employee in cash or by any other means for any services rendered by such Provider Employee pursuant 
to his or her Employment Agreement.  Any individual whom Entity pays directly for any services rendered 
shall not be considered a Provider Employee as to any services for which Entity provides compensation.  
 
 4. Responsibilities of Entity.  In addition to its payment, and other obligations set forth in this 
Agreement, Entity shall have the following responsibilities: 
 
  A. Supervision; Reporting.  Entity shall provide daily monitoring of the Provider 
Employees and shall report to Provider on an ongoing regular basis regarding the Provider Employees’ 
performance of their respective duties. 
 
  B. Safety Obligations.  Entity shall provide a safe workplace for Provider 
Employees, shall supply documentation related to safety activities as prescribed by law (e.g., safety 
meeting, training, maintaining OSHA log), shall include Provider Employees in any specific safety training 
that Entity offers or requires for its own personnel in the same or similar positions, and shall inform 
Provider of any necessary protective equipment that Provider Employees must use in the performance of 
services for Entity.  Provider or its workers’ compensation carrier has the right to inspect Entity’s premises 
and operation, but is not obligated to conduct any inspections.  Provider reserves the right to audit safety 
activities.  Provider or its insurer may, but neither is obligated to, give reports to Entity on the conditions 
found at Entity’s worksites.  Neither Provider’s insurer nor Provider warrants the result of the inspections 
or the absence thereof, or that the operations or premises are in compliance with any laws, regulations, 
codes or standards. 
 
 5. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall commence as of July 1, 2013, for a five (5) year 
term, terminating on June 30, 2018,  unless earlier terminated pursuant to the provisions hereof. Entity 
acknowledges and agrees that prior to any renewal, the Exhibits will be adjusted to account for changes 
in the duties, responsibilities and wages for Provider Employees.  Provider shall provide revised copies of 
the Exhibits to Entity at least 30 days prior to the end of the then-current term. 
 
 6. Insurance. 
 
  A.  Worker’s Compensation.  
 
   (i)  Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, Provider shall be considered 
the “employer” of all Provider Employees for the purposes of providing workers’ compensation insurance 
within the meaning of Arizona Revised Statute (“A.R.S.”) § 23-901.  Provider shall provide workers’ 
compensation and employer’s liability insurance in accordance with the statutory requirement of the State 
of Arizona, including Employer’s Liability insurance with limits of liability of not less than $500,000 for 
each accident and $500,000 for bodily injury or disease.  The workers’ compensation policy shall be 
endorsed to include the Alternate Employer Endorsement and shall include a waiver of subrogation in 
favor of Entity from the workers’ compensation insurer.  Provider shall, upon Entity’s request, upon 
termination of this Agreement, provide to Entity records regarding the loss experience for workers’ 
compensation insurance provided to Provider Employees pursuant to this Agreement. 
 
   (ii)  Entity and Provider understand, agree and acknowledge that no individual 
shall be covered by Provider’s workers’ compensation insurance, or be issued a payroll check unless 
prior to commencing work for Entity that individual satisfies the following requirements: (a) is employed by 
Provider in Arizona to work in Arizona; (b) is performing Services for Entity pursuant to this Agreement; 
(c) is listed on Provider’s roster of Provider Employees in Exhibit C; (d) has completed Provider’s required 
enrollment forms and, where applicable, is certified or licensed as required by law for the position in which 
employed by Provider; (e) has completed necessary criminal background checks, including fingerprinting; 



 -4- 

(f) has entered into an Employment Agreement with Provider; (g) has provided all data required by 
Provider for payroll processing and workers’ compensation coverage; and (h) has been entered onto 
Provider’s payroll system. 
 
   (iii) Entity understands, agrees and acknowledges that the workers’ 
compensation insurance that Provider shall provide under this Agreement shall only cover individuals who 
are listed on Provider’s roster of Provider Employees in Exhibit C, and shall not cover other individuals 
who might perform services for Entity, whether as employees, independent contractors or otherwise.  
Entity agrees to provide workers’ compensation insurance or maintain a program of approved self-
insurance covering Entity’s own employees. 
  
  B.  Entity Liability Insurance. 
 
   Entity shall provide liability indemnity protection to the Provider Employees who 
provide services to Entity but only if those Provider Employees are acting within the course and scope of 
the authorization granted.  The coverage provided shall be made available to the Provider Employee as 
an additional covered party under the terms of Entity’s participation agreement with Arizona Municipal 
Risk Retention Pool, if any (the “Pool”)].  Coverage shall be made available by the Pool to each Provider 
Employee on the same terms and conditions as coverage is made available to employees of Entity.  
Provider shall be added as an additional covered party to the Pool coverage agreement, but only to the 
extent that Provider is vicariously liable for the acts of the Provider Employee while the Provider 
Employee is performing services on behalf of Entity, but not for any actual or alleged wrongful act, error 
or omission of Provider in its own right (e.g., claims of negligent hiring, supervision or retention, 
employment discrimination, etc.).  In no event, however, shall the provision of liability indemnity protection 
be construed as evidence that the relationship between the parties and the Provider Employees is other 
than as specifically provided for and agreed to in this Agreement.  
 
  C.  Other Insurance.  
 
   Provider shall maintain in full force and effect at all times during the term of this 
Agreement the Commercial General Liability (“CGL”) Insurance and unemployment insurance. 
 
   (i)  The CGL policy shall provide for limits of not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and if such CGL policy contains a general aggregate limit of liability, the limit shall be no less 
than $2,000,000.  The CGL policy shall be written on an occurrence form and shall cover liability arising 
from the independent negligence or other wrongful act, error or omission of Provider or its employees that 
is not the direct consequence of the services provided by the Provider Employees under the terms of this 
Agreement.  Entity shall be added as an additional insured to the CGL policy, but only to the extent that 
the covered liability-causing event is not related to the Services provided for under the terms of this 
Agreement.  
 
   (ii)  Provider shall provide unemployment insurance coverage to the extent 
required by law.  
 
 7. Independent Contractor.  The relationship created by this Agreement shall be deemed 
and construed to be, and shall be, that of principal and independent contractor.  Provider has no authority 
to enter into any contract or incur any liability on behalf of Entity.  Provider’s employees are not intended 
to be and shall not be considered employees of Entity.  Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, 
Provider retains full control over the employment, direction, supervision, compensation, discipline and 
discharge of all persons performing Services under this Agreement. 
 
 8. Non-Exclusive Use.  Provider acknowledges and agrees that Entity may enter into 
agreements with other provider organizations to supply services to Entity and that Provider is not the 
exclusive organization with which Entity may contract to provide services.   
 
 9. Notice.  All notices, requests, demands and other communications required or permitted 
under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given, made and 



 -5- 

received when hand delivered to the party addressed or upon the date noted upon the receipt for 
registered or certified mail, first class postage prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed as set forth 
below: 
 
  If to Provider:  smartworksplus 
     P.O. Box 11618 
     Tempe, AZ 85284-0027 
 
  With a copy to:  Perkins Coie Brown & Bain P.A. 
     2901 N. Central Ave., Suite 2000 
     Phoenix, AZ  85012 
     Attention:  Judith K. Weiss, Esq. 
 
  If to Entity:  Town of Florence 
     775 N. Main Street 
     P.O. Box 2670 
     Florence, AZ  85132 
      
 
  With a copy to:   
       
       
 
Either party may alter the address or addresses to which communications or copies are to be sent to such 
party by giving notice of such change of address in conformity with the provisions of this Section 10. 
 
 10. Binding Nature of Agreement; Assignment and Nominee.  This Agreement shall be 
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, personal 
representatives, successors and assigns.  
 
 11. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the 
parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous 
agreements, understandings, inducements and conditions expressed or implied, oral or written, of any 
nature whatsoever with respect to the subject matter hereof.  This Agreement may not be modified or 
amended other than by a writing signed by both parties. 
 
 12. Waiver.  The failure or delay on the part of any party to exercise any right, remedy, power 
or privilege under this Agreement shall not operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial 
exercise of any right, remedy, power or privilege preclude any other or further exercise of the same or of 
any other right, remedy, power or privilege, nor shall any waiver of any right, remedy, power or privilege 
with respect to any occurrence be construed as a waiver of such rights, remedies, powers or privileges 
with respect to any other occurrence. 
 
 13. Costs and Expenses.  Each party hereto shall bear its own costs, including attorneys’ 
fees and accounting fees, incurred in connection with the negotiation, drafting and consummation of this 
Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, and all matters incident thereto. 
 
 14. Headings.  All sections and descriptive headings of sections and subsections in this 
Agreement are inserted for convenience only and shall not affect the construction or interpretation hereof. 
 
 15. Construction; Interpretation.  This Agreement is intended to express the mutual intent of 
the parties hereto and thereto, and irrespective of the identity of the party preparing any such document, 
no rule of strict construction shall be applied against any party.  In this Agreement, the singular includes 
the plural, and the plural the singular; words imparting either gender include the other gender; references 
to “writing” include printing, typing, lithography and other means of reproducing words in a tangible visible 
form; the words “including,” “includes” and “include” shall be deemed to be followed by the words “but not 



 -6- 

limited to.”  The term “person” shall include an individual, corporation, joint venture, partnership, trust, 
estate, association, governmental entity or any other entity. 
 
 16. Exhibits and Recitals.  All Exhibits referred to herein and the Recitals made and stated 
hereinabove are hereby incorporated by reference into, and made a part of, this Agreement. 
 
 17. Materiality.  All covenants, agreements, representations and warranties made herein 
shall be deemed to be material and to have been relied on by the parties in entering into this Agreement 
and shall survive the execution and delivery of this Agreement. 
 
 18. Governing Law; Forum; Venue.  This Agreement is executed and delivered in the State of 
Arizona, and the substantive laws of the State of Arizona (without reference to choice of law principles) 
shall govern its interpretation and enforcement.  Any action brought to interpret or enforce any provisions 
of this Agreement, or otherwise relating to or arising from this Agreement, shall be commenced and 
maintained (i) if applicable, in accordance with the procedures set forth in A.R.S. § 41-2611, et seq., or, if 
such procedures are not applicable, then (ii) in a state or local court located within Pinal County, Arizona. 
 
 19. Knowing Covenants.  The parties hereby represent to each other that the covenants and 
agreements provided for in this Agreement have been knowingly and voluntarily granted after thorough 
consultation with counsel as to the binding and irrevocable effect thereof.  Based upon consultation with 
counsel, the parties hereby represent and warrant to each other that this Agreement is binding and 
enforceable in accordance with its terms. 
 
 20. Indemnification.  Provider agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Entity, its board 
members, officers, directors,  employees, insurers, indemnitors and agents for, from and against all suits, 
claims, liabilities, costs, expenses and debt, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by Entity 
arising from, attributable to or caused by acts or omissions of Provider (or its officers, directors, 
shareholders or agents) or any Provider Employee in the performance of or related to the performance of 
the duties of any Provider Employee as described in the Employment Agreement (including, but not 
limited to injuries to Provider Employees that may or may not be covered by workers compensation 
insurance); except, to the extent such suits, claims, liabilities, costs, expenses and debt result from acts 
or omissions of Entity or its board members, officers, directors, employees, insurers, indemnitors or 
agents.  
 
 21. Conflict of Interest.  The parties expressly acknowledge that Entity has the option of 
canceling this contract within three years from the date of execution without any further penalty or 
obligation pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-511 if any person significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, 
securing, drafting or creating the contract on behalf of Entity is at any time during the term or any 
extension thereof, an employee or agent of Provider or a consultant to Provider.  Provider acknowledges 
the potential for a current Entity employee to become a Provider Employee and recognizes the 
applicability of A.R.S. § 38-511. 
 
 22. This Agreement shall not be construed to require Entity to take any action hereunder, and 
Entity shall have no obligation to utilize the services of Provider or its employees during the term of the 
Agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 

[Signature page to follow] 



 -7- 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and date first 
above written and effective as of the date hereinabove stated. 
 
 
 
“Provider” 
 
smartschoolsplus, inc. 
an Arizona corporation, d/b/a smartworksplus 
 
 
 
 
  
By:  Sandra McClelland 
Its:  President 

“Entity” 
 
  
 
 
 
 
  
By:   
Its:   

 
 
 
 



 
EXHIBIT A 

 
Scope of Services 

 
The following Services shall be performed by smartschoolsplus, inc. [d/b/a smartworksplus] in fulfillment 
of its obligations under the terms of the Agreement. 
 

1. Provider shall recruit, hire, train, evaluate and supervise Provider Employees who are 
professionally and technically qualified to perform the duties of staff and/or administrators, and shall 
discipline and terminate Provider Employees, as appropriate, including the following: 

 
a. maintaining a recruiting and hiring program that is in compliance with federal and 

state laws, rules and regulations, equal opportunity and anti-discrimination policies applicable to, and 
restricting, the hiring and selection process, including, but not limited to, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964 (“Title VII”), the Americans With Disabilities Act (“ADA”), the Age Discrimination in Employment Act 
(“ADEA”), the Fair Credit Reporting Act (“FCRA”) and the Arizona Employment Protection Act (“AEPA”); 

 
b. maintaining a system of statewide personal background checks on all Provider 

Employees provided to Entity to include statewide criminal background check and fingerprinting.  Provider 
shall ensure that all Provider Employees possess all certifications and qualifications necessary to enable 
them to perform their assignments, and that Provider Employees have satisfied any legal prerequisites to 
the performance of their assignments; 

 
c. maintaining a system of performance evaluation for each Provider Employee; 
 
d. maintaining a program of supervision that enforces the policies and procedures 

of Entity.  In order to maintain the program, Provider shall designate one or more on-site staff as the 
supervisor and/or Provider contact who shall be responsible for addressing and responding to Provider 
Employees.  The designated on-site supervisor and/or Provider contact shall be trained by Provider in 
regard to: (i) applicable workers’ compensation laws; (ii) applicable equal employment opportunity laws, 
regulations and policies, including reporting procedures; and (iii) workplace violence prevention, including 
the detection of early warning signs of violence and the proper reporting of threats and acts of violence.  
The supervisor and/or Provider contact shall promptly notify Entity of any human-resource-type issue 
raised by a Provider Employee that may affect Entity, such as threats of violence, harassment, 
discrimination or retaliation; 

 
e. providing to each Provider Employee information regarding his or her obligation 

to comply with all of Entity’s safety, drug/alcohol, work policies, anti-harassment, anti-discrimination and 
anti-retaliation policies.  Provider shall establish a complaint and/or reporting procedure for violations of 
policies and instruct Provider Employees on the use of the procedure.  Provider shall obtain written 
acknowledgement from the Provider Employee that he or she has read, understood and agrees to abide 
by those policies and procedures; 

 
f. providing annual harassment, discrimination, retaliation, abuse and neglect 

training for all Provider Employees, or ensure Provider Employees participate in similar training provided 
by Entity.  Provider shall maintain a record of all such training; and 

 
g. preparing and distributing an Employee Handbook to Provider Employees that 

identifies and explains Provider’s policies and procedures that are to be followed during the course of the 
Provider Employees’ employment with Provider. 

 
2. Provider shall inform the Provider Employee in writing that he or she is employed by 

Provider, not Entity. 
 



 -2- 

3. Provider shall inform the Provider Employee in writing that job related illness/injury 
reports are to be made to the supervisor or Provider contact and provide information on where and how 
reports are to be made to Provider contact.  

 
4. Provider shall notify Provider Employees in writing that other than the liability indemnity 

protection specifically delineated in this Agreement the only benefits they shall receive shall be from 
Provider, and that they are not entitled to any benefits from Entity. 

 
5. Provider shall be responsible for the quality, adequacy and safety of the Services 

provided by Provider Employees pursuant to this Agreement, and the acts, errors or omissions of 
Provider Employees at all times.  

 
 



 
EXHIBIT B 

 
Form of Employment Agreement 

 
 

[see attached] 
 
 
 



  

  

Exhibit “B” 
 
Employee Name & Demographic Information 
 
Name:  <First Name> <Middle Name> <Last Name>    SSN:  <SSN>    
 
Mailing Address: <Mail Address> <Mail City>, <Mail State>  <Mail Zip>   
 
E-mail Address (required): <Email Address>     
 
Home Phone:  <Home Phone>      Work Phone:  <Work Phone>   
* Employee agrees to notify Employer of change to address/phone number within ten (10) days 
 
Governmental Entity:   <Govt. Entity Name>  Total Employment Days: <Contract Days>     
        
Position**:  <Position>    Worksite**:   <Worksite>  
(**subject to change upon reasonable request by Employer) 
 
Term Period:  <Contract Period>    Number of Pay Periods: <# of Pay Periods>   
 
First Check:  <First Check>  Last Check: <Last Check>    
 
Determination of Annual Salary: <ssp Salary>   Determination of Daily Rate of Pay: *  <ssp 
DRP> 
 
Determination of Pay Per Pay Period: *   <Pay Per Pay Period> 
 
*  Payments to the employee will be made bi- monthly, for the number of pay periods indicated above for balance of the Term.  All 
additional service pay approved for employees of smartworksplus will be at the discretionary current rate of smartworksplus.  
 
Compensated Sick/Leave & Vacation Days 
 
Sick/Leave Days & Vacation Days per the Term:   <Sick/Leave/Vacation Days>     
 
Each employee is provided discretionary sick/leave and vacation days (collectively referred to as “PTO”) per the Term as indicated 
above. PTO shall be accrued ratably during the Term based upon pay periods elapsed, and prorated for any partial period of the 
Term.  PTO may be taken as vacation days, personal days or sick days, so long as the total days taken do not exceed the number 
of accrued days of PTO.  PTO will not accrue or be carried forward beyond the Term or any renewal thereof.  Upon expiration of the 
Term or termination of employment for whatever reason, Employee shall not be entitled to any compensation in lieu of PTO.  IN 
THE EVENT AN EMPLOYEE EXCEEDS THE INDICATED PTO DAYS, THE EMPLOYEE WILL BE COMPENSATED LESS THE 
DAILY RATE OF PAY PER EXCESS DAY. 
 
By signing below, Employee hereby acknowledges that Employee has reviewed the foregoing information and affirms that the 
information is true and correct to the best of Employee’s knowledge. 
 
 
Employee Signature:   _________________________________________Date: ____________ 
 
 
Employer Signature:   _________________________________________Date: ____________ 
 
2012 Smartworksplus Employment Agreement (final form as of 2_14_12).DOC  



 
EXHIBIT C 

 
Roster of Provider Employees and Fee Schedule 

 
 

[see attached] 
 
 

 



Exhibit C
Fee Schedule 2013-2014 80% 80% 100% 80%

Contract Period 100% Annual Rate Days Daily Rate Add'l Add'l Sick Vacation Bereave
Last Name First Name MI Position/Site Start Date/End Date Salary Base to swp  Employment to swp CompensationCompensation Days Days Days

Sample Sally Dept Head/ City Hall 07/01/13-6/30/14 $60,000.00 $48,000.00 260 184.62 0.00 12 12 1

$60,000.00 $48,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,000.00

smartworklsplus, inc. Town of Florence
Total Salaries/Added Pay $48,000.00

By:       _____________________________By:      _______________________________________ Social Security $2,976.00 6.20%
      Medicare $696.00 1.45%

Name: Williaml McClelland Name:  _______________________________________       FUTA (first $7,000) $84.00
      AZ SUI (first $7,000) $232.40

Title:    President Title:    _______________________________________       Workers’ Comp $240.00 0.50%
      Workers’ Comp* $0.00 3.96%

Date:   July 1, 2013 Date:    _______________________________________ Admin Fee $1,920.00 4.00%
Total $54,148.40 12.15%

# Returning employees - once 2013 0 FUTA = 42.00 AZ SUI = 116.20

#1st year employees - twice - 2013 & 2014 1 FUTA = 84.00 AZ SUI = 232.40

smartworks plus
arizona’s leader in phased retirement                               inc.



 
EXHIBIT D 

 
Provider Compensation Schedule 

 
Compensation:  Provider compensation is computed based on the number of days Provider Employees 
work during designated month, multiplied by their Daily Rate of Pay set forth in Exhibit C.  Provider shall 
invoice Entity monthly (i) at agreed-upon offered contractual salary equal to 80% of Provider Employee’s 
exit salary for Provider Employees that previously worked at Entity, or (ii) at agreed-upon offered 
contractual salary for Provider Employees that did not previously work at Entity.   
 
Extra Compensation:  Entity shall pay Provider for Provider Employees that have qualified for bonus or 
similar extra compensation.  Provider shall invoice Entity, for agreed-upon Extra Compensation at 80% 
for Provider Employees.  The method and timing of payment of such “Added Service Pay” shall be in 
accordance with the performance of such service. 
 
Service Fee/Direct Payroll Costs:  In addition to the payments for work performed and extra 
factor/incentive pay, Entity shall pay Provider a service fee equal to four percent (4%) and all applicable 
direct payroll costs (e.g., Social Security, FICA & Medicare, AZ Unemployment, Federal Unemployment, 
Worker’s Compensation (professional/classified)). 
 
Reimbursement:  Entity shall reimburse Provider for mileage, travel, conferences and other out-of-pocket 
expenses incurred by Provider Employees, but only if such expenses are approved (prior to the expense 
being incurred) by the Provider and Entity.  To obtain such reimbursement, Provider Employees must 
submit a written claim for reimbursement to Entity.  Entity shall forward the claim to Provider.  Provider 
shall reimburse the Provider Employee and include the amount of the reimbursement on Provider’s 
invoice to Entity.  
 
Vacation/Sick/Bereavement Leave Days:  Entity shall provide Provider Employees with the same number 
of leave days as are made available to Entity’s other personnel in the same classification. 
 
Electronic Access:  Entity shall provide each Provider Employee access to electronic and technological 
tools allowing for participation and function of normal Entity duties (e.g., Kronos, computer hardware and 
software, e-mail, internet, cell phones, etc.).  Provider Employees shall reimburse Entity directly for all 
charges incurred as the result of personal use of Entity cell phones.  Provider Employees agree to follow 
all Entity guidelines and policies regarding use of the same. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\WPDATA\JKW\SmartSchoolsPlus\Form Service Agreement (jkw 032709).doc  



SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN  
The Town of Florence 

and 
smartworksplus, inc. 

 
 
Town of Florence 
P O Box 2670 
Florence, Arizona 85132 
 
 
 
_____________________________  __________________________ 
Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager  Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
 
__________________________  ________________________________ 
Date      Date 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
      
 
____________________________  ________________________________  
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
13c. 

MEETING DATE:  June 17, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia 
                                     Deputy Town Manger/Town Clerk 
 
 
SUBJECT:   Town Manager Employment Agreement 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Town Manager Amendment to Employment Agreement Meeting Date: June 17, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve the employment agreement between the Town of Florence and the 
Town Manager. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
An executive session was held on June 3, 2013, pursuant to A.R.S. §38-432.03(A)(1) to 
discuss the amendment to the employment agreement of the Town Manager, Charles 
A. Montoya.  The proposed amendments are as follows:    
 
� Annual Base Salary - $125,000  
� Hours of work section to be deleted in its entirety 
� Moving and relocation costs to be paid for by the Town of Florence for the months 

of June and July 2013. 
� Reimbursement of lodging, meal expenses, and mileage costs for relocation costs 

for the month of June and July 2013. 
  
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The Town agrees to compensate the Town Manager pursuant to the agreement an 
annual base salary of $125,000 plus moving and relocation costs from Castle Rock, 
Colorado to Florence, Arizona.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the employment agreement. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Town Manager Amendment to Employment Agreement 



 
 

AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
TOWN MANAGER 

 
 This Amendment to the Agreement entitled “Employment Agreement – Town 
Manager” dated January 22, 2013 (the “Agreement”), is entered into by and between 
the Town of Florence, an Arizona municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as the 
“Town” or as “Employer”, and Charles A. Montoya, hereinafter referred to as 
“Employee” or the “Town Manager”, this 17th day of June 2013, for the purpose of 
mutually amending certain terms of the Agreement for the benefit of the Town and 
Employee (the “Amendment”).  
 
 Whereas, the parties hereto wish to amend the Agreement for their mutual 
benefit.  
 
 Wherefore, in consideration of the mutual consideration and covenants herein 
contained, the receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged by the Town and 
Employee, the parties hereto agree to the following amended terms and conditions, as 
follows: 
 
Section 3: Compensation 
 
A.  Base Salary: Employer agrees to pay Employee an annual base salary of 
$125,000.00 [One Hundred Twenty Five Thousand Dollars], payable in installments at 
the same time and in the same manner that other management employees of the Town 
are paid. 
 
Section 12: Hours of Work 
 
B. [Section 12(B) shall be deleted in its entirety.] 
 
Section 14: Moving and Relocation Expenses 
 
 
B. Employer shall pay directly for the expenses of moving Employee, his family and 
personal property from Castle Rock, Colorado to Florence, Arizona occurring in the 
months of June and July, 2013. Said moving expenses include packing, moving, 
storage costs, unpacking, and applicable insurance charges. 
 
C.  Employer shall reimburse Employee for actual lodging and meal expenses, if 
any, for Employee and his family in route from Castle Rock, Colorado to Florence, 
Arizona in the months of June and July, 2013. Mileage costs for moving two personal 
automobiles shall be reimbursed at the current Internal Revenue Service allowable rate. 
 
  



 2

All other terms of the Agreement dated January 22, 2013 not amended herein shall 
remain unchanged. 
 
IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties have entered into this Agreement the day and year 
mentioned above.  
 

CHARLES A. MONTOYA  
 
By:      

             Charles A. Montoya  
 
 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal 
corporation 
 
By:        
       Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
By:      
      Lisa Garcia - Town Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By: __    __________ 
      James E. Mannato - Town Attorney  



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
13d. 

MEETING DATE:  June 17, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration   
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town 
Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:  FY 2013-2014 Town Attorney Employment 
Agreement 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve employment contract with Town Attorney James E. Mannato for fiscal 
2013 - 2014. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Attorney James E. Mannato graduated from California Western School of Law, an ABA 
accredited law school chartered in 1924, on May 5, 1991, and after passing the 
California bar exam was admitted to the practice of law December 20, 1991 at San 
Diego, CA. He has been continuously engaged in the practice of law since that time. He 
was admitted to the practice of law in the state of Arizona on August 14, 1997 and has 
practiced law exclusively within the state of Arizona since then. On December 20, 2013 
he will have 22 years of experience as an attorney and counselor of law. 
 
Mr. Mannato is entitled to practice in all state courts of Arizona and California, as well as 
the United States District Court for the District of Arizona and the United States District 
Court for the District of Southern California. Prior to working for the Town, he served 2 
½ years as the Pinal County Superior Court – Family Law Commissioner and then 
became Judge of the Coolidge Municipal Court. 
 
James “Jim” Mannato was engaged by the Town of Florence to act as the Florence 
Town Attorney in January of 2003, and has provided the Town with all of its legal 
services since that time. The Town elected to hire Jim as an employee of the Town in 
2005, under a contract of employment.  
 
Among other things, as Town Attorney he is required to act as legal advisor to the 
Florence Town Council; prepare legal opinions in writing when requested; advise all 
Town departments, boards and commissions on legal matters affecting each 
department; review all Town  contracts; negotiate and draft  real estate development 
agreements;  draft all Town transactional legal documents for the purchase, sale and 



Subject:  Town Attorney Employment Contract                           Meeting Date:  June 17, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 

property; draft indemnification and confidentiality agreements; review public record 
requests; draft and record liens and other legal instruments for the Finance and 
Community Development  Departments; assist the Finance Department in the collection 
of unpaid local taxes and utility user fees; represent the Town in all legal proceedings 
involving the Town which are not transferred to the Town’s insurer (AMRRP); review 
and approve the bi-weekly Council Agenda and Council Packets prior to issuance; and 
represent the Town in employee disciplinary grievances under the Town’s merit system.  
 
In addition, the Town attorney also acts as District Attorney for Florence Community 
Facilities Districts #1 and #2, where he is required to negotiate and draft agreements for 
creation of CFD districts; review district taxes and assessments, and ensure the legality 
of all District operations, including the issuance of general obligation and assessment 
lien bonds. 
 
The Town Attorney is also Prosecuting Attorney for the Town of Florence. The Florence 
Town Prosecutor is required to prosecute all misdemeanor and petty offenses occurring 
within the Town limits. The Prosecutor is required to appear in the Florence Municipal 
Court each Thursday. Other prosecution duties include charging reviews and the 
issuance of criminal complaints; providing legal advice to the Florence Police 
Department and its officers - both as to general matters and case-specific legal issues; 
provide victim notification under the Arizona Victim’s Rights Law; and appear before the 
court for bench and jury trials when necessary. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The employment contract of the Town Attorney for fiscal 2012 – 2013 provided for a 
salary of $104,801.00 plus benefits. 
 
For fiscal 2013 – 2014, the Town Attorney is requesting a contract increase of 5%. This 
would bring the contract salary to $110,041.05. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends approval of the employment agreement. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Contract for Town Attorney 2013 – 2014 



Page 1 of 6 

TOWN ATTORNEY EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 1st day of 
July, 2013 by and between the TOWN OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal 
corporation, hereinafter referred to as “TOWN” or “TOWN COUNCIL” or “COUNCIL”, 
and JAMES E. MANNATO, hereinafter referred to as “EMPLOYEE” or 
“ATTORNEY”, both of whom understand as follows: 
 
 WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town and Employee entered into that certain Employment 
Contract for Legal Services (the “Agreement”) on July 1, 2012; and 
 

WHEREAS, Town and Employee now wish to replace and supersede the 
Agreement as more fully set forth below. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein 
contained, and for such other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 
of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
  
SECTION 1.  DUTIES 
 
A. Council hereby agrees to employ Employee as Town Attorney and Employee 
agrees to assume the powers and perform the function and duties specified in Florence 
Town Code Title III, Chapter 31, §31.045 et seq., including but not limited to:  

 
i. The drafting and/or review and certification of all ordinances and contracts 

or other legal documents enacted by the Mayor and Council as required by Arizona law 
and the Florence Town Code. 
 

ii. Legal advice to the Council, Town Manager and Departments on an as 
needed basis or as requested by the Council, Town Manager or Department supervisors. 
 

iii. Prosecution of all criminal complaints filed in Florence Magistrate Court 
except in the event of a conflict as defined by Rule 42 of the Rules of the Arizona 
Supreme Court – Rules of Professional Conduct. 
 

iv. Attendance at all regular council meetings, and other meetings as 
requested by the Council or Manager. 
 

v. The defense or prosecution of all civil actions involving the Town and its 
various departments as directed by the Council and Manager, except in the event of a 
conflict as defined by Rule 42 of the Rules of the Arizona Supreme Court – Rules of 
Professional Conduct. 
 



Page 2 of 6 

vi. Such other legal services as required by the Town other than those which 
the Council and Attorney agree require special expertise and should be referred to 
another attorney; and 
 
Employee further agrees that he will discharge such responsibilities in a manner which is 
customary to the profession of attorneys and practice of law. Employee agrees that he 
will at all times exercise the appropriate degree of professional care in the discharge of 
his duties, that he will keep the Mayor and Council fully informed as to legal matters 
which are of concern to the Town or the Council, and will endeavor to effectively advise 
the Town’s departments and employees. 

 
B. Employee will devote his full time, efforts and attention to his employment as 
Town Attorney. During his employment, the Town Attorney shall not, without the prior 
consent of the Town Manager, directly or indirectly render services which are similar in 
nature to the duties to be performed by Town Attorney under this Agreement to or for 
any other person, firm or entity. The Town Attorney may devote a reasonable amount of 
time to civic and community activities and to participating in professional organizations 
related to the profession of attorneys and practice of law. 

 
SECTION 2.  TERM 

 
A. The term of this Agreement shall be one (1) year, commencing from July 1, 2013. 
Thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the Agreement, the Council shall again review 
the Agreement for renewal of a second term of one (1) year, and shall so review the 
Agreement for renewal each successive term thereafter. 

 
B. Nothing in this Agreement, subject to Section 3 below, shall prevent, limit or 
otherwise interfere with the right of the Council to terminate the services of Employee at 
any time. 

 
C. Nothing in this Agreement, subject to Section 3 below, shall prevent, limit or 
otherwise interfere with the right of Employee to resign at any time from his position as 
Town Attorney. 
 
 
SECTION 3.  SEPARATION FROM SERVICE 
 
A. An affirmative vote of at least four (4) members of the Council may suspend the 
Employee from his duties as Town Attorney with full pay and benefits at any time during 
the term of this Agreement. 
 
B. The Council may terminate Employee at any time during the term of this 
Agreement, without any cause whatsoever, by an affirmative vote of at least four (4) 
members of the Council. 
 
C. In the event that Employee is involuntarily terminated by the Council before the 
expiration of any term of this Agreement, and at such time is willing and able to perform 



Page 3 of 6 

his duties under this Agreement, then Council shall give Employee thirty (30) days 
written notice prior to the effective date of termination, subject to subparagraph (D) 
below. During such thirty (30) day period, Employee shall be responsible for performing 
all his duties as Town Attorney under this Agreement, if so requested by the Council.   
 

i. At the end of such thirty (30) day period, Council agrees to pay Employee four (4) 
months aggregate salary plus emoluments (payment of health insurance, life 
insurance and retirement benefits), with such payments to be made periodically in the 
same manner as during the term of this Agreement. The payment of such health 
insurance, life insurance and retirement benefits shall cease at such time as Employee 
becomes re-employed. For purposes of this paragraph, “re-employment” is defined as 
the date as of which Employee has received compensation for legal services which is 
substantially equivalent to that required under this Agreement. 
 
ii. If Employee is terminated because of conviction of a felony or misdemeanor 
offense involving moral turpitude, then in such case, Town shall have no obligation to 
pay any severance sum(s) to Employee whatsoever. 

 
D. If Employee voluntarily resigns his position as Town Attorney before the 
expiration of any term of this Agreement, then Employee shall give the Town thirty (30) 
days notice in advance of such resignation, unless the Employee and Council otherwise 
agree. In such case, Employee is not entitled to the payment of any severance sum 
whatsoever. 
 
E. As a condition precedent to receiving any severance payment described above, 
Employee agrees to execute a severance agreement acceptable to both parties, which 
shall contain at minimum 1) Employee’s full release of the Town, Town Council, and all 
of its agents and employees from any and all claims, including but not limited to 
demands, damages, causes of action or liability, whether at law or in equity, arising out of 
Employee’s employment or termination by Town, including employment or age 
discrimination actions, and 2) Employee’s agreement not to initiate or cause to be 
initiated any suit, claim, grievance, proceeding or investigation of any kind, under any 
contract, Agreement, statute or regulation pertaining to his employment with Town. 
 
 
SECTION 4.  SALARY AND COMPENSATION 
 
A. Town agrees to pay Employee for his services rendered pursuant to this Agreement, 

an annual salary of $110,041.05 plus all benefits payable to classified employees of 
the Town per any Town personnel policies or regulations in force at the time the 
Agreement is executed. 

 
B. Any Cost of Living (“COLA”) adjustment provided to classified employees shall be 

equally awarded to Employee. 
 
 



Page 4 of 6 

SECTION 5.  HOURS OF WORK 
 
A. It is recognized that Employee must devote a certain amount of time outside 
normal office hours to the business of the Town. Therefore, Town agrees that Employee 
may be allowed to adjust his hours as deemed appropriate by Employee so long as he is 
available and the legal affairs of the Town are not harmed. 
 
 
SECTION 6.  PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
 
A. Town shall compensate Employee for all reasonable travel and business 
expenditures of Town Attorney in accordance with the general personnel policies of the 
Town, including but not limited to the payment of professional association dues, 
membership fees and expenses in civic organizations, subscriptions to professional 
periodicals and educational materials, and appropriate professional conferences. 
 
SECTION 7.  VACATION AND SICK LEAVE 
 
A. Employee shall earn four (4) weeks vacation per year beginning with the date this 
Agreement is executed. Any such vacation time taken shall be coordinated with the 
Town’s departments and staff to ensure effective management of the Town during the 
Town Attorney’s vacation(s).  
 
B. Employee shall accrue sick leave in the same manner provided to other Town 
employees. 
 
SECTION 8.  INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 
 
A. The Town shall maintain a comprehensive general liability, errors and omissions 
policy which protects the Employee from any and all claims associated with the 
reasonable performance of the Town Attorney’s duties. 
 
B. The Town shall defend, save harmless and indemnify Employee against any tort, 
professional liability claim, or other demand or legal action, groundless or otherwise, 
whether arising at law or in equity, from any alleged act or omission occurring in the 
performance of Employee’s duties as Town Attorney. The Council may compromise and 
settle any such claim or suit in its sole discretion. 
 
SECTION 9.  NOTICES 
 
A. Any notices required to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be given by 
deposit in the custody of the Unites States Postal Service, postage prepaid, or through 
overnight carrier service, addressed as follows or as such address(es) may be changed 
from time to time upon notice to the other: 
 
  



Page 5 of 6 

Town:  Town of Florence 
   Town Clerk 

775 N. Main Street 
P.O. Box 2670 

   Florence, AZ 85132 
 
 Employee: James E. Mannato 
   6773 W. Olberg Rd. 
   Queen Creek, AZ 85142     
    
SECTION 10. BREACH OF AGREEMENT; ATTORNEY FEES; 
   VENUE 
 
A. In the event of a breach of this Agreement by either the Town or Employee 
resulting in damages to either party, that party may recover from the party breaching this 
Agreement all damages that may be sustained. 
 
B. In the event it becomes necessary for either party to bring legal action or suit to 
enforce any provision of this Agreement, the parties agree that the prevailing party shall 
be entitled to reasonable attorney fees and all costs of suit. 
 
C. The venue for any suit, claim, arbitration or other legal action pertaining to this 
Agreement shall be in Pinal County, Arizona. 
 
SECTION 11. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 
A. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between Town and Employee. No 
other promises, representations, warranties or covenants have been relied upon by either 
Town or Employee in executing this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 12 . ASSIGNMENT 
 
A. This Agreement is not assignable, either in whole or in part, by either Town or 
Employee. 
 
SECTION 13. INTERESTS OF HEIRS AND EXECUTORS  
 
A. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs at law 
and executors of Employee, if any. 
 
SECTION 14. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
A. This Agreement shall become effective as of the date of its execution by both the 
Town and Employee and shall replace and supersede any prior Agreements between the 
Town and Employee as of the effective date. 
 



Page 6 of 6 

B. If any provision or portion thereof of this Agreement is held unenforceable, 
invalid, unlawful or unconstitutional, the remainder of this Agreement shall be deemed 
severable, shall not be affected, and shall remain in full force and effect.   
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town of Florence has caused this Agreement to 
be signed and executed by and on its behalf by its Mayor, and duly attested by its Town 
Clerk, and Employee has signed and executed this Agreement the day and year first 
above written. 
 
 
TOWN OF FLORENCE: APPROVED AND ACCEPTED AS TO 

FORM: 
 
 
            
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor   James E. Mannato, Town Attorney  
 
 
 
ATTEST:       
 
 
      
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 

 
 

 
 
 

        
  
 



rental of real property; prepare and record easements and licenses for the use of real 
property; draft indemnification and confidentiality agreements; review public record 
requests; draft and record liens and other legal instruments for the Finance and 
Community Development  Departments; assist the Finance Department in the collection 
of unpaid local taxes and utility user fees; represent the Town in all legal proceedings 
involving the Town which are not transferred to the Town’s insurer (AMRRP); review 
and approve the bi-weekly Council Agenda and Council Packets prior to issuance; and 
represent the Town in employee disciplinary grievances under the Town’s merit system.  
 
In addition, the Town attorney also acts as District Attorney for Florence Community 
Facilities Districts #1 and #2, where he is required to negotiate and draft agreements for 
creation of CFD districts; review district taxes and assessments, and ensure the legality 
of all District operations, including the issuance of general obligation and assessment 
lien bonds. 
 
The Town Attorney is also Prosecuting Attorney for the Town of Florence. The Florence 
Town Prosecutor is required to prosecute all misdemeanor and petty offenses occurring 
within the Town limits. The Prosecutor is required to appear in the Florence Municipal 
Court each Thursday. Other prosecution duties include charging reviews and the 
issuance of criminal complaints; providing legal advice to the Florence Police 
Department and its officers - both as to general matters and case-specific legal issues; 
provide victim notification under the Arizona Victim’s Rights Law; and appear before the 
court for bench and jury trials when necessary. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The employment contract of the Town Attorney for Fiscal Year 2012 – 2013 provided for 
a salary of $104,801.00 plus benefits. 
 
For Fiscal Year 2013 – 2014, the Town Attorney is requesting a contract increase of 
5%. This would bring the contract salary to $110,041.05. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the Town Attorney’s employment agreement.  
 
Attachments: 
Draft contract for Town Attorney 2013 – 2014 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
13e. 

MEETING DATE:  June 17, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia  
                                     Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk 
                                        
SUBJECT:   Town Magistrate Employment Agreement 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Town Magistrate Employment Agreement  Meeting Date: June 17, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve the Employment Agreement between the Town of Florence and the 
Town Magistrate.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
An executive session was held on June 3, 2013, pursuant to A.R.S. §38-432.03(A)(1) to 
discuss the employment agreement of the Town Magistrate, Katherine Kaiser.  The 
proposed agreement has the following provisions: 
 
� 3 year agreement commencing on July 1, 2013 
� 30 days notice for termination 
� 30 days notice for voluntarily resignation 
� Sick and vacation leave accrual and other benefits shall be same as other 

employees. 
� Car allowance 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The Town agrees to compensate the Town Magistrate pursuant to the agreement, 
annual salary for the following years is as follows: 

− 2013/2014 $68,427.87 (4%) 
− 2014/2015 $70,480.70 (3%) 
− 2015/2016 $72,595.21 (3%) 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the employment agreement. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Town Magistrate Employment Agreement 



TOWN MAGISTRATE EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT 

 This AGREEMENT made on the 17th day of June 2013, by and between the TOWN OF 

FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation, hereafter referred to as the “TOWN” or  “Employer”, and 

KATHERINE P. KAISER,  hereinafter referred to as the “MAGISTGRATE” OR “Employee”. 

RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, the Employer desires to employ a qualified and professional Magistrate; and  

 WHEREAS, the Employee is qualified through education, training and experience to provide the 

professional services sought by the Town and is aware that the Code of Judicial conduct, Rule 45, Rules 

of the Supreme Court, governs the conduct of magistrates as well as Administrative Order No 83-11 of 

the Supreme Court; and  

 WHEREAS, the Employer has offered the Employee employment in the capacity of Magistrate 

for the Town, for such compensation, benefits and under the terms and conditions set forth below, and 

the Employee is willing to accept employment on such terms and commence her employment with the 

Town on July 1, 2013 and ending June 30, 2016. 

 WHEREAS, the Employee understands and agrees that she will accept said employment with the 

understanding that she will serve as Magistrate and shall perform the duties required of a municipal 

judge during the term hereinafter provided. 

 For the reasons set forth above and in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements 

hereinafter set forth, Employer and Employee agree as follows: 

SECTION ONE 

 EMPLOYMENT AND DUTIES 

 

 Employer employs, engages, and hires Employee, as the Town Magistrate for the Town of 

Florence and Employee accepts and agrees to such hiring and shall perform the duties required of a 

municipal judge during the term hereinafter provided.  In addition, Employee shall continue to perform 

the duties of the Court Administrator. 

SECTION TWO 

 BEST EFFORTS OF EMPLOYEE 

 

 Employee agrees that she will at all times faithfully and to the best of her ability and experience 

perform all duties that are required of her pursuant to the express and implicit terms of the Agreement, 

Town Code,  Arizona State Law, and the Code of the Judicial Conduct and Orders of the Supreme Court 

of Arizona.  Such duties shall be rendered at Employer’s courtroom facilities located at 775 North Main 

Street, Florence, Arizona or at other facilities furnished by Employer. 

 



 

 

SECTION THREE 

TERMS OF EMPLOYMENT 

 

The term of the Agreement shall be a period of three (3) years, commencing July 1, 2013 and 

terminating June 30, 2016. 

 

SECTION FOUR 

COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 

 

A. For the term of this Contract, the Employee shall be compensated in the amount of: 2013/2014 

$68,427.87 (4%); 2014/2015 $70,480.70 (3%); 2015/2016 $72,595.21 (3%).  Such compensation 

shall be in bi-weekly payments and on the same pay schedule as other Town employees. 

 

B. Employee shall receive all other benefits available to all other Town employees as to vacation, 

 sick leave, holidays, insurances, compensation adjustments (COLA and market) and retirement  

 programs and shall conform to the rules and regulations regarding their accrual and use. 

 Employer shall also pay Employee’s dues for membership in the Arizona Magistrates Association and 

 the expenses of registration and attendance of any schooling seminars and conferences for 

 which municipal judges are expected or required to attend. 

 

C. Employee shall receive a car allowance in the same manner as all executive staff members  pursuant 

to the employee compensation schedule. 

 

SECTION FIVE 

TERMINATTION OR SUSPENSION 

 

A. Anything herein contained to contrary notwithstanding, in the event the Town shall determine that 

it no longer desires to have a Municipal court system and discontinues operating the Municipal 

Court, then this Agreement shall terminate upon the date the municipal court is discontinued. 

 

B. In the event the Employee voluntarily resigns her position with the Town before the expiration 

of the three (3) year term of the Agreement, then the Employee shall give the Town thirty (30) 

days notice in advance, unless the parties otherwise agree. 

 

C. During the term of this Agreement, Employee may be removed for cause after a due process hearing. 

If the Employee is terminated with cause, which shall include but is not limited to malfeasance or 

gross malfeasance in the performance of her duties, failure to acquire or maintain Arizona lower 

court certification, the commission of any illegal act involving personal gain or of a crime against the 

Town, Employer shall have no obligation to pay or provide severance pay or any other compensation 

or benefits. 



 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered this Agreement the day and year mentioned above. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE:     EMPLOYEE: 

 

_____________________________    ________________________ 

Tom J. Rankin, Mayor     Katherine P. Kaiser 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_____________________________ 

James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 

 

 

   

  

 

   

 

 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
13f. 

MEETING DATE:  June 17, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town 
Manager/Town Clerk   
                                     
SUBJECT:    Appointment of Judy Hughes to the  
                     Industrial Development Authority Board 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Appointment of Judy Hughes to the IDA Board   Meeting Date: June 17, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Appointment of Judy Hughes to the Florence Industrial Development Authority Board, 
with a term to expire December 31, 2013.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Florence Industrial Development Authority (IDA) Board received the application of 
Judy Hughes to fill the vacant seat left by Damon Anderson.  Mrs. Hughes is a Realtor 
for Award Realty Commercial.   With Mrs. Hughes filling this vacant seat, the initial term 
of her service will last until December 31, 2013.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
There is no financial impact to the Town of Florence for this appointment.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that Council approve the appointment Judy Hughes to the IDA 
Board.  Mrs. Hughes has impeccable business sense, which would be a great asset to 
the composition of the Board. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Board and Commission Application for Judy Hughes  









 

Updated: 4-26-2013 
 

Industrial Development Authority 
(6 Year Term) 

Meets the Third Thursday of the Month at 7:00p.m. 
7 members 

 
 

Barbara Kelly 
P O Box 550 
593 W. 11th Street 
Florence, AZ  85132 
(520) 868-4291 Home 
(520)560-5610 Cell 
aunt.brat@hotmail.com 
Appointed: 12/17/2007 
Expires:  12/31/2013 
 
Vacant 
Appointed:   
Expires: 12/31/2013 
 
Gem Gary Cox 
P.O. Box 872 
324 N. King Street 
Florence, AZ 85132 
(520) 907-6876 Home 
gemcox@tep.com 
Appointed: 1/21/2009 
Expires: 12/31/2014 
 
Henry Padilla 
P.O. Box 262 
180 S. San Carlos St. 
Florence, AZ 85132 
(520) 868-4534 Home  
(520)705-2541 Cell 
lpadilla@cox.net 
Appointed:  1/21/2009 
Expires: 12/31/2014 
 
Peter VillaVerde 
P.O. Box 365 
220 N. Bush 
Florence, AZ 85132 
(520) 868-4605 Home 
(520)705-9603 Cell 
Petervillaverde2qwestoffice.net 
Appointed:  1/21/2009 
Expires: 12/31/2014 

 
Alfred “Fred” Celaya 
P O Box 748 
515 Willow Street 
Florence, AZ  85132 
(520) 868-4262 Home 
Appointed:  3/16/2009 
Expires: 12/31/2014 
 
Ty Schraufnagel 
8011 W. Georgetown Way 
Florence  AZ  85132 
(480) 440-5641 Home 
520-723-9400 Work 
tschraufnagel@amfam.com 
Appointed:  3/4/2013 
Expires:  12/31/2013 
 
Staff Liaisons 
Scott Bowles 
P.O. Box 2670 
Florence, AZ 85132 
scott.bowles@florenceaz.gov  
(520) 868-7594 
 
Council Liaisons 
Vice-Mayor Tom Smith 
191 N. Bailey 
P O Box 1810 
Florence,  AZ  85132 
Home:  520-868-4473 
Cell:  520-705-1221 
 
Councilmember Bill Hawkins 
130 Campbell Road 
P O Box 1378 
Florence,  AZ  85132 
Home: 520-868-9647 
Cell:  520-705-1601 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
13g. 

MEETING DATE:  June 17,2013  
 
DEPARTMENT:  Fire 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Peter Zick, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT:  Purchase of equipment for new Ladder Truck 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Equipment for New Ladder  Meeting Date: June 17, 2013  
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Authorization to award the purchase of new fire equipment to LN Curtis in an amount 
not to exceed $118,883.03 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
As part of the budget for fiscal year 2012-2013, funds were allocated for the purchase of 
a new Ladder Truck along with equipment for that Apparatus, attached you will find a 
detailed list of the equipment to fully outfit the new Ladder Truck. The equipment that is 
on the existing Ladder Truck that the new one will be replacing will stay on that Truck so 
it can remain in service as a back-up unit.  
  
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
We received three bids but only one vendor was able to fill the order. The purchase 
amount is to be funded by PSMC-23 of the 2012/2013 fiscal year budget. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Florence Fire Department recommends the approval to LN Curtis, for the purchase 
of new equipment to outfit an apparatus that is currently in production in an amount not 
to exceed $118,883.03.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Bid Tabulation Sheet and Supporting Documentation 
 

























 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
13h. 

MEETING DATE:  June 17, 2013  
 
DEPARTMENT:  Fire 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Peter Zick, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT: Purchase of extrication equipment for new Ladder 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: New Council Action Forms  Meeting Date: June 17, 2013  
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
Authorization to award bid for the purchase of extrication equipment to Municipal 
Emergency Services Inc. in an amount not to exceed $100,245.00 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
As part of the budget for fiscal year 2012-2013, funds were allocated for the purchase of 
a new Ladder Truck along with equipment for that Apparatus, attached you will find a 
detailed list of the Extrication equipment to fully outfit the new Ladder Truck. The 
equipment that is on the existing Ladder Truck that the new one will be replacing will 
stay on that Truck so it can remain in service as a back-up unit.  
  
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
Municipal Emergency Services Inc. Is the sole source vender for this equipment. The 
purchase amount is to be funded by PSMC-23 of the 2012/2013 fiscal year budget. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
The Florence Fire Department recommends the approval to Municipal Emergency 
Services Inc. for the purchase of Extrication equipment to outfit a Ladder truck that is 
currently in production. The amount is not to exceed $100,245.00.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Sole Source/Emergency Purchase Justification Form 
Order Confirmation 
 









 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
13i. 

 MEETING DATE:  June 17, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:       Grants Division /Finance Department  
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Ernie Feliz, Special Districts Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Ratification of  FY2013 Operation Stonegarden 

(OPSG) grant application submitted June 7. 
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: FY2013 OPSG             Meeting Date: June 17, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Ratification of  the funding request submitted by the Florence Police Department for funds for 
Operation Stonegarden (OPSG) in the amount of$258,620.50 over two years; and adoption 
Resolution No. 1404-13: A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, PERTAINING TO THE SUBMISSION OF PROJECTS FOR 
CONSIDERATION IN THE STATE OF ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND 
SECURITY. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Due to the short timeline allowed to submit the funding request, the application was sent June 
7, 2013.  Council is asked to ratify the application so the funds can be accepted if awarded.  
 
The Police Department is seeking these funds along with several other agencies as part of a 
cooperative effort to address constantly changing threats due to border-related crime and 
violence. Most of the funds will be used for officer overtime (about $185,000). Other funds will 
be directed toward vehicle use and other equipment used in addressing illegal border-related 
activities. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
There is no Town match for this grant. The town is seeking $258,620.50 for the two year 
project with $147,751.50 sought for the first year. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the application be ratified and Resolution No. 1404-13 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Funding application, Grant request cover page, Resolution 



TOWN OF FLORENCE 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1404-13 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
PERTAINING TO THE SUBMISSION OF PROJECTS FOR CONSIDERATION IN THE 
STATE OF ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY: 
 

WHEREAS, the Governor’s Office is seeking proposals from state and local agencies for projects 
related to the Homeland Security grant; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Florence of Pinal County, through the Police Department, is interested in 

submitting projects to be considered for funding in the form of reimbursable grants from Homeland 
Security; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence: 
 

1. Approves of the submission of projects for consideration in Arizona’s FY 2013 Department of 
Homeland Security Plan. 

2. Authorizes Daniel R. Hughes, Chief of Police, to be the appointed agent for the Town of Florence 
to conduct all negotiations and to execute and submit all documents and any other necessary or 
desirable instruments in connection with such grant. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Florence on this 17th day of June, 2013. 
 
 
 
        __________________________________ 
        Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________________  __________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk     James Mannato, Town Attorney  
 
 
I, the undersigned, being the duly appointed and qualified Town Clerk of the Town of Florence, certify 
that the foregoing Resolution No. 1404-13 is a true, correct and accurate copy as passed and adopted at a 
regular meeting of the Town of Florence Mayor and Council, held on the 6th day of May, 2013 at which a 
quorum was present and voted in favor of said Resolution No. 1404-13. 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 



  
Page 1 

 

  

 

 

 

Op Order Name: FY 2013 OPSG ARIZONA – Santa Cruz County Participants 

Op Order Number: <Completed by CBP> 

Op Dates: From: October 01, 2013 To: September 30, 2015 

Report Date: Today’s Date: April 09, 2012 

 
Executive Summary: 

 

Since its inception, the intent of Operation Stonegarden (OPSG) has been to enhance law enforcement 

preparedness and operational readiness along the land borders of the United States.  

 

In FY 2013, OPSG has been enhanced to effectively address the constantly changing threats to our 

borders based upon new, emerging, and changing intelligence. The FY 2013 OPSG funds must be used to 

increase operational capabilities of Federal, State, local and tribal law enforcement, promoting a layered, 

coordinated approach to law enforcement within U.S. Border States and territories. The FY 2013 OPSG 

funds provide a flexible framework of funding to support operational efforts along our Nation’s borders, 

such as the prevention of, and operational response to illegal activities. 

The FY 2013 OPSG will support U.S. Border States and territories in: 

• Increasing capability to prevent, protect against, and respond to border security issues 

• Encouraging local operational objectives and capabilities to enhance National and State Homeland 

Security Strategies 

• Increasing coordination and collaboration among Federal, State, and local law enforcement agencies 

• Continuing the distinct capability enhancements required for border security and border protection 

• Providing intelligence-based operations through CBP/Border Patrol (BP) Sector Level experts to 

ensure safety and operational oversight of Federal, State, and local, law enforcement agencies 

participating in OPSG operational activities. 

  

OPSG addresses two core elements of the National Border Patrol Strategy.  Through increased 

coordination and collaboration and integrating our OPSG agencies as part of our “defense-in-depth” 

posture, OPSG agencies will assist the Nogales Sector with its mission of gaining operational control of 

our borders.   

 

Tucson Sector remains the most active Sector in the Border Patrol.  Even though Tucson Sector has seen 

a decline in arrests, it is still the most active station with regards to total arrests along the Southwest 

Border.   

 

Despite significant resource enhancements provided by the Secure Fence Act of 2006 and additional 

manpower (interns) into Sector in support of Arizona Denial, smuggling activity in the Tucson Sector 

remains unacceptably high. 

 

 

 

 

 



  
Page 2 

 

  

I.  SITUATION 

 

A. General Situation: 

 

The Southern Arizona corridors are utilized extensively by violent drug and/or alien trafficking 

organizations. Due to the overwhelming illegal border traffic, the risk of these organizations using this 

area to harm the community and/or the citizens of this great Nation greatly increases.  

Furthermore, because of the vast amount of land which is impossible to continuously survey, there is an 

inherent vulnerability to the United States which may pose as a temptation to terrorism. Because of the 

access and availability with various routes to major metropolitan areas, Tucson and Phoenix the 

terrorists can transport their weapons of mass destruction unabated by law enforcement. 

At some point terrorists and/or criminal syndicates must, use or will eventually have to entrance routes 

through the Southern Arizona corridors and will inevitability end up on a federal or state highway 

system. 

B. Terrain/Weather: 

Southern Arizona is very unique with a variety of landscapes consisting of heavily wooded mountainous 

areas to sparse desert land. There are however City, County and State maintain roadways both paved and 

unimproved within the incorporated and un-incorporated communities.  

 

Depending on the season, Southern Arizona is exposed to an array of climate temperatures ranging from 

one hundred degree (100) days in the spring and summer to below freezing or snowy days during the fall 

and winter months. Not to mention, heavy rain or “monsoons”, microburst, and flashfloods that are 

common to the area.    

 

C. Criminal Element: 

 

Municipal, County, State and Federal law enforcement agencies are continually combating violent 

narcotic and/or human trafficking organizations, terrorists groups and “bajadores”. The criminals 

involved in trafficking aliens, narcotics and other contraband routinely use professional guides, scouts 

and armed escorts to try and accomplish their illegal activities. 

 

Unfortunately, these criminal syndicates are familiar with traditional law enforcement and Border Patrol 

operations. As a result they are known to employ innovative methods to traffic illicit contraband and 

smuggle illegal immigrants cross the International Border. In the Nogales / Tucson Border Patrol Sector, 

violent narcotic drug and human smuggling organizations often engage in battles with rival organization 

or are subjected to armed robberies and brutal confrontations.    

  

D.  Friendly Forces: 

 

1.  United States Customs and Border Protection  7.  Nogales Police Department 

2.  Immigration and Customs Enforcement   8.  Santa Cruz County Attorney’s Office 

3.  Drug Enforcement Administration   9.  HIDTA Task Force 

4.  United States Border Patrol     10. Eloy Police Department 

5.  Arizona Department of Public Safety    11. Casa Grande Police Department 

6.  United States Attorney General’s Office   12. Pinal County Sheriff’s Office  



  
Page 3 

 

  

D.  Friendly Forces: (Continued)  

 

11.  Tucson Police Department    16. Maricopa Police Department 

12.  Pima County Sheriff’s Office    17. Ak-Chin Police Department 

13.  Tohono O’odham Nation    18. Coolidge Police Department 

14.  Cochise County Sheriff’s Office   19. Bureau of Land Management 

15.  Sierra Vista Police Department   20. Florence Police Department 

    

II.  MISSION 

 

The primary goal of this operation is to deny access along the Arizona / Mexico border and/or apprehend 

illegal entrants or possible terrorists who intend to cause harm or commit crimes against this Nation. The 

Nogales Police Department, Santa Cruz County Sheriff’s Office, Santa Cruz County Attorney’s Office 

Arizona Department of Public Safety, Patagonia Police Department, Pinal County Sheriff’s Office, Casa 

Grande Police Department, Coolidge Police Department and the Eloy Police Department support the 

primary mission of anti-terrorism, by the detection, apprehension, prosecution and deterrence of all 

illegal entrants and illicit activity by working in conjunction with the United States Border Patrol. 

 

III. EXECUTION 

 

A. Management/Supervisor Intent: 

 

Through diligence and strict enforcement along potential avenues of entry or major thoroughfares the 

Nogales Police Department, Santa Cruz County Sheriff’s Office, Santa Cruz County Attorney Office, 

Arizona Department of Public Safety, Pinal County Sheriff’s Office, Casa Grande Police Department, 

Coolidge Police Department and the Eloy Police Department (herein referred to as participating 

agencies) will attempt to close those corridors utilized by criminals or terrorists whose purpose is to 

disrupt national security, inflict injury or perpetrate unlawful acts against the United States or upon the 

citizens who reside in the municipalities of Santa Cruz and Pinal County.  

B. General Concept: 

 

The participating agencies will effect and execute a strategic plan which will entail the deployment of 

several law enforcement officers along prime roadways prone to invoke illegal activity and national 

security concerns. These patrols will normally take palce on the aforementioned routes of ingress and 

egress into / from surrounding counties. If contact and/or interaction are made with certain “persons of 

interest” notification will be made to the Office of Customs and Border Protection or the appropriate 

agency.   

Law enforcement officers assigned to the pre-designated target areas will adhere to a policy of zero 

tolerance for all violations of law. This aggressive type of enforcement is intended to have those 

perpetrators held accountable for each of their criminal acts. 

 

 

 



  
Page 4 

 

  

C. Specific Responsibilities: 

 

Every Stonegarden deployment must be CBP directed, pre-coordinated, and approved. 

 

Border Patrol Responsibilities 

 

• Operational Control: Border Patrol management at the Sector and Station level will closely 

coordinate with participating agencies and ensure that deployments are in alignment with 

station and sector objectives. 

• Station personnel will work collaboratively to identify border security threats within their 

respective Area of Responsibility (AOR). 

• In the absence of specific named operations, stations will create and provide bi-weekly block 

schedules to participating agencies (dates, times, and locations). 

• Border Patrol will identify a sector and/or station point of contact that will: 

o Coordinate and approve every OPSG deployment. 

o Review Daily Activity Reports. 

o Create and provide block schedules 

• Participating agencies should be encouraged to attend station musters. 

• If applicable, coordination with the Office of Field Operations regarding outbound operations 

should be encouraged. 

• Station personnel are required to provide OPSG participants with actionable intelligence. 

 

Participating Agency Responsibilities 

 

• Participating agency will work collaboratively to identify border security threats within their Area 

of Responsibility (AOR). 

• Participating agencies will adhere to the station block schedule or deployment scheme within a 

specific named CBP Operations Order.*  

• Participating deputies/officers will advise Border Patrol dispatch and/or the duty Field 

Operations Supervisor (shift commander) when beginning and ending their shift. 

• Participating deputies/officers will provide Border Patrol Stations with intelligence gathered 

during deployments. 

• Participating agencies will provide Border Patrol Stations with a Daily Activity Report within two 

days after each deployment. 

 

*Stonegarden Deployments 

 

At the discretion of the CBP/BP Sector Chief Patrol Agent, partnering state, local, and Tribal 

(SLT) agencies may support additional Sector enforcement operations utilizing Stonegarden funds; 

however, these additional enforcement operations will require a separate and approved CBP Operations 

Order (with Tucson or Yuma Sector HQ approval and Joint Field Command concurrence).  Please note 

that all Stonegarden deployments discussed below must be conducted on overtime status. The 

additional OPSG enforcement operations are defined below: 

 

• Specific Named Operations: SLT Officers/Deputies may perform the function of interdiction 

assets, observation posts, forward operating base/camp support, etc. in support of specific 

named Sector operations.  



  
Page 5 

 

  

C.  Specific Responsibilities: (Continued) 

• Specialty Teams: SLT Officers/Deputies may support Sector specialty teams (i.e. DISRUPT – plain 

clothes surveillance/interdiction operations).  

• Pairing of Authority: SLT Officers/Deputies may ride in the same vehicle as Border Patrol Agents 

and conduct joint enforcement operations.  

• Targeted Enforcement: SLT Officers/Deputies may support Sector targeting of specific people, 

organizations, terrain, etc. 

The participating agencies will concentrate their patrol efforts to those areas identified by United States 

Border Patrol or through individual agency intelligence reports to combat border violence and reduce 

illegal entrants. 

 

D.  Coordinating Instructions: 

The participating agencies will coordinate with the Arizona Department of Homeland Security and the 

Department of Homeland Security Federal Agencies.  

• If a suspected terrorist and/or subject of interest to National Security is encountered during the 

course of operations, the nearest Sector Border Patrol Station will be immediately notified.  If 

they are unable to respond in a timely manner, the nearest Immigration and Customs Enforcement 

(ICE) office will be notified along with the Joint Terrorism Task Force (JTTF).      

• All outbound operations will be coordinated with CBP/OFO.  Officers/Deputies conducting outbound 

operations will check-in and out with the designated CBP officer for each operational period.  At the 

completion of an outbound operation, a completed daily activity report will be sent according to 

established protocols and to the designated point of contact at the Port of Entry.  All 

Officers/Deputies deployed to assist at the Ports of Entry will have the Title 19, 507 Demand for 

Assistance training. 

 

• A point of contact will be established for each operation plan/seizure entered within the Coordinated 

Operational Planning System (COPS).  Interdiction activities will be coordinated through the COPS for 

the purpose of de-confliction of operations.  Any seizures linked to a specific operations plan will be 

entered into the COPS.  This will be done in conjunction with the required daily activity report 

submissions. 

 

The participating agencies understand that the Border Patrol has partnered with the Arizona HIDTA to 

further increase the law enforcement capabilities within Southern Arizona and in order to effectively 

coordinate law enforcement efforts between HIDTA initiatives and Operation Stone Garden within 

Southern Arizona.  

 

 

 

 

 



  
Page 6 

 

  

IV.  BUDGET (YEAR 1) 

 

Administration/Logistics/Budget 

Request 

Narrative Justification             

(Computation of Items) Federal  Request 

Law Enforcement Operational 

Overtime: Santa Cruz County 

Sheriff’s Office 

DEPUTY: $36.54 per hour OT rate X 04 

deputies X 04 hour shifts X 7 day 

operations X 54 deployments = 

$220,993.00 

 

DISPATCHER: $27.89 per hour OT rate 

X 02 telecommunicators X 04 hour 

shifts X 7 day operations X 54 

deployments = $84,339.00 

$220,993.00 

 

 

 

 

$84,339.00 

 

 

Fringe Benefits for Law Enforcement: 

Santa Cruz County Sheriff’s Office  

DEPUTY: $24.36 per hour X 1.5 OT = 

$36.54 X 39.34% = $14.37 per hour 

FICA, Medicare, Retirement, W/C X 

1,512 hours X 4 deputies = $86,909.00 

 

DISPATCHER: $18.59 per hour X 1.5 OT 

= $27.88 X 26.76% = $7.46 per hour 

FICA, Medicare, Retirement, W/C X 

1,512 hours X 2 dispatchers = 

$22,559.00 

$86,909.00 

 

 

 

 

$22,559.00 

 

 

 

Law Enforcement Operational 

Overtime: Nogales Police 

Department 

OFFICER: $30.48 OT X 10,000 

Patrolman hours = $304,800.00 

 

DISPTACHER: $23.95 OT X 5,000 Tele-

communicator hours = $119,750.00 

$304,800.00 

 

 

$119,750.00 

Fringe Benefits for Law Enforcement: 

Nogales Police Department 

OFFICER: $20.32 per hour X 1.5 OT 

$30.48 per hour X .1089 = $3.32per 

hour FICA X 10,000 hours X 1 year =  

$33,192.72  

 

DISPATCHER: $15.97 per hour X 1.5 OT 

$23.95 per hours X .0788 = $1.89 per 

hour FICA X 5,000 hours X 1 year = 

$9,438.27 

$33,192.72 

 

 

 

 

$9,438.27 

Law Enforcement Operational 

Overtime: Santa Cruz County 

Attorney’s Office Detectives 

DETECTIVE: $36.78 OT X 1,200 hours = 

$44,136.00 

 

$44,136.00 

Fringe Benefits for Law Enforcement: 

Santa Cruz County Attorney’s Office 

Detectives 

FICA and Insurance = $15.18 OT X 

1,200 hours = $18,216.00 

$18,216.00 

 

 

 

 



  
Page 7 

 

  

IV.  BUDGET (YEAR 1) Continued: 

 

Administration/Logistics/Budget 

Request 

Narrative Justification             

(Computation of Items) Federal  Request 

Law Enforcement Operational 

Overtime: Arizona Department of 

Public Safety 

Projection of 30 details over 12 

months  

OFFICER: (maximum) 

$30.1250 per hour X 1.5 OT = 

$45.1875 per hour  

SERGEANT II: 

$37.6611 per hour X 1.5 OT = $56.49 

per hour  

DISPATCHER: 

$28.78 per hour X 1.5 OT= $43.17 per 

hour 

$102,351.00 

Fringe Benefits for Law Enforcement: 

Arizona Department of Public Safety 

OFFICER: $22.4898 per hour 49.75% 

ERE’s 

SERGEANT II: $28.1037 per hour 

49.75% ERE’s 

DISPATCHER: $8.1807 per hour 

18.95% ERE’s 

$47,649.00 

Law Enforcement Operational 

Overtime: Pinal County Sheriff’s 

Office 

$50.60 per hour OT rate (Average) X 4 

personnel X 10 hr. shifts X 4 days per 

week X 52 weeks per year, includes 

ERE’s. 

$420,992.00 

Law Enforcement Operational 

Overtime: Coolidge Police 

Department 

Overtime rate of $41.33 per hour (96 

two-officer, 10-hour deployments) 

$79,354.00 

Fringe Benefits for Law Enforcement: 

Coolidge Police Department 

ERE = 34% of $57,862 $26,980.00 

Law Enforcement Operational 

Overtime: Casa Grande Police 

Department 

Overtime rate of $40.00 at 

approximately 150 deployments X 10 

hour shifts 

$60,000.00 

Managements and Administration: 

Casa Grande Police Department  

M and A for Sergeant responsible for 

OPSG grant activities; preparation of 

reports, DAR’s pre coordination of 

deployments with CBP/Border Patrol 

and attend CBP/Border Patrol 

coordination meetings, 3% of total 

allocated budget 

 

Fringe Benefits for Law Enforcement: 

Casa Grande Police Department 

ERE=39.68% $23,808.00 

Law Enforcement Operational 

Overtime: Eloy Police Department 

$51.43 per hour X 2 sworn officers = 

$102.86 X 8 hours = $822.88 per 

deployment $822.88 X 120 

deployments. Includes ERE’s 

$98,745.60 

 



  
Page 8 

 

  

IV.  BUDGET (YEAR 1) Continued: 

 

Administration/Logistics/Budget 

Request 

Narrative Justification             

(Computation of Items) Federal  Request 

Law Enforcement Operational 

Overtime: Florence Police 

Department 

Overtime rate of $35.47 per hour X 2 

sworn officers (per deployment – 4 10-

hour shifts per week)  = $141.88 X 10 

hours = $1418.80 per week, $1418.80 X 

52 (1 year) (104 deployments) 

$73,778.00 

Fringe Benefits for Law Enforcement: 

Florence Police Department 

ERE = 24% of $73,778.00 $17,707.00 

General Equipment: Nogales Police 

Department 

Priority: 

1. (5) Pole Cams, w/accessories, 

installed, software, monitors and 

servers (AEL #13LE-00-SURV) - 

$3,742.00 ea. 

 

$18,710.00 

 

 

General Equipment: Santa Cruz 

County Attorney’s Office 

Priority: 
1. (2) Pole Cams, w/ accessories, 
installed, software, monitors and 
servers (AEL #13LE-oo-SURV ) - 
$20,700.00 ea  
2. (2) Handheld Global Positioning 
Tracking Systems GPS (AEL #04AP-02-
DGPS 

 

$41,400.00 

 

 

$13,500.00 

 

General Equipment: Arizona 

Department of Public Safety 

1. (10) Mobile Data Compute (AEL 

#04HW-01-MOBL) - $4,800.00 

$48,000.00 

General Equipment: Pinal County 

Sheriff’s Office 

1. (10) GS20L Above Ground Wireless 

Sensor System (10 sensors and 1 

monitor) (AEL #04SN-01-XMIT)  

2. (15) Stinger Spike System XL with 15 

Replacement Spike Kits and 2 Stinger 

Spike Insertion Tools (AEL #14SW-01-

WALL) 

3. (80) Binoculars (AEL #03OE-02-

BNOC) 

$28,791.93 

 

 

$8,607.75 

 

 

 

18,439.00 

General Equipment: Coolidge Police 

Department 

1. (1) Vehicle mounted GPS device 

(AEL #04AP-02-DGPS) - $600.00 ea. 

2. (10) Mobile Data Computers (AEL 

#04HW-01-MOBL) - $6,850.00 ea. 

$600.00 

 

$68,500.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  
Page 9 

 

  

 

IV.  BUDGET (YEAR 1) Continued: 

 

Administration/Logistics/Budget 

Request 

Narrative Justification             

(Computation of Items) Federal  Request 

General Equipment: Florence Police 

Department 

1. (4) Police Binoculars 10x50mm 

(STEINER BN011BNOC) – $499.99 ea. 

2. (4) Night Vision Goggles (GEN2, 40-

45LP/MM BN333) – $2,179.99 ea.  

3. (2) Trauma (first aid) packs – (AEL 

#03OE-03-KTFA) - $164.25 ea.  

4. (4) Night Vision Goggle 3V Lithium 

Battery (AEL #03OE-02-TILA) – $40 ea.  

5. (2) Night Optics Thermal imaging 

(NO/TG-7) – $5,499 ea. 

6. (2) Handheld GPS devices (GARMIN 

62 #AP708) – $422.99 ea.  

7. (4) Motorola XTS-2500 hand held 

radios - 2,500 ea.  

8. (2) Panasonic Tough pad FZ-G-1 

including keyboard, ID Tech-,2DSCAN 

FX100, Fixed mount, USB BLACK, 

G1Dock and power/Dual antenna pass 

thru. Panosonic Lar Havis Heavy Duty 

8.5 Telescoping Pole, Total package for 

each vehicle $2,202 each.  

$2,000.00 

 

$8,720.00 

 

$328.50 

 

$160.00 

 

$10,998.00 

 

$846.00 

 

$10,000.00 

 

$8,404.00 

Special Equipment (Requiring 

separate waiver i.e., Planes, boats, 

vehicles, SUVs, etc.): Nogales Police 

Department 

1. (10) 2014 4x4 SUV’s with police 

equipment installation (radio, 

overhead emergency lights, cage, gun 

rack, computer mount, and radar, 

marked unit decal, push bar, and 

bumper guard, etc.) (AEL #12VE-00-

MISS) - $60,000.00 

$600,000.00 

Vehicles - Vehicle Mileage: Santa Cruz 

County Sheriff’s Office 

120,000 miles per year X .445 cents 

per mile = $53,400.00  1 year 

$53,400.00   

Vehicles - Vehicle Mileage: Nogales 

Police Department 

80,000 miles per year X .445 cents  

per mile = $35,600.00 1 year 

$35,600.00 

Vehicles - Vehicle Mileage: Santa Cruz 

County Attorney’s Office 
5,000 miles per year X $.445 cents  

per mile = $2,225.00 

$2,225.00 

Vehicles - Vehicle Mileage: Arizona 

Department of Safety 

40,449 miles per year X .445 cents  

per miles = $18,000.00 

$18,000.00 

Vehicles - Vehicle Mileage: Pinal 

County Sheriff’s Office 

166,400 miles per year x .445 cents 

per miles = $74,048.00 

$74,048.00 

 

 

 

 

 



  Page 

10 

 

  

 

IV.  BUDGET (YEAR 1) Continued: 

 

Administration/Logistics/Budget 

Request 

Narrative Justification             

(Computation of Items) Federal  Request 

Vehicles - Vehicle Mileage: Coolidge 

Police Department 

19,200 miles per year X .445 cents  

per miles = $8,544.00 

$8,544.00 

Vehicles - Vehicle Mileage: Casa 

Grande Police Department 

27,000 miles per year X .445 cents  

per miles = $12,015.00 

$12,015.00 

Vehicles - Vehicle Mileage: Eloy 

Police Department 

24,000 miles per year X $.455 cents  

per miles = $10,680.00 

$10,680.00 

Vehicles - Vehicle Mileage: Florence 

Police Department 

33,280 miles per year x .445 cents per 

miles = $14,810.00 

$14,810.00 

TOTAL: 

 

 3,013,023.55 

 

IV.  BUDGET (YEAR 2) 

 

Administration/Logistics/Budget 

Request 

Narrative Justification             

(Computation of Items) Federal  Request 

Law Enforcement Operational 

Overtime: Santa Cruz County 

Sheriff’s Office 

DEPUTY: $36.54 per hour OT rate X 04 

deputies X 04 hour shifts X 7 day 

operations X 54 deployments = 

$220,993.00 

 

DISPATCHER: $27.89 per hour OT rate 

X 02 telecommunicators X 04 hour 

shifts X 7 day operations X 54 

deployments = $84,339.00 

$220,993.00 

 

 

 

 

$84,339.00 

 

 

Fringe Benefits for Law Enforcement: 

Santa Cruz County Sheriff’s Office  

DEPUTY: $24.36 per hour X 1.5 OT = 

$36.54 X 39.34% = $14.37 per hour 

FICA, Medicare, Retirement, W/C X 

1,512 hours X 4 deputies = $86,909.00 

 

DISPATCHER: $18.59 per hour X 1.5 OT 

= $27.88 X 26.76% = $7.46 per hour 

FICA, Medicare, Retirement, W/C X 

1,512 hours X 2 dispatchers = 

$22,559.00 

$86,909.00 

 

 

 

 

$22,559.00 

 

 

 

Law Enforcement Operational 

Overtime: Nogales Police 

Department 

OFFICER: $30.48 OT X 10,000 

Patrolman hours = $304,800.00 

 

DISPTACHER: $23.95 OT X 5,000 Tele-

communicator hours = $119,750.00 

$304,800.00 

 

 

$119,750.00 

 

 

 



  Page 

11 

 

  

 

 

IV.  BUDGET (YEAR 2) Continued: 

 

Administration/Logistics/Budget 

Request 

Narrative Justification             

(Computation of Items) Federal  Request 

Fringe Benefits for Law Enforcement: 

Nogales Police Department 

OFFICER: $20.32 per hour X 1.5 OT 

$30.48 per hour X .1089 = $3.32per 

hour FICA X 10,000 hours X 1 year =  

$33,192.72  

 

DISPATCHER: $15.97 per hour X 1.5 OT 

$23.95 per hours X .0788 = $1.89 per 

hour FICA X 5,000 hours X 1 year = 

$9,438.27 

$33,192.72 

 

 

 

 

$9,438.27 

Law Enforcement Operational 

Overtime: Santa Cruz County 

Attorney’s Office Detectives 

DETECTIVE: $36.78 OT X 1,200 hours = 

$44,136.00 

 

$44,136.00 

Fringe Benefits for Law Enforcement: 

Santa Cruz County Attorney’s Office 

Detectives 

FICA and Insurance = $15.18 OT X 

1,200 hours = $18,216.00 

$18,216.00 

Law Enforcement Operational 

Overtime: Arizona Department of 

Public Safety 

Projection of 30 details over 12 

months  

OFFICER: (maximum) 

$30.1250 per hour X 1.5 OT = 

$45.1875 per hour  

SERGEANT II: 

$37.6611 per hour X 1.5 OT = $56.49 

per hour  

DISPATCHER: 

$28.78 per hour X 1.5 OT= $43.17 per 

hour 

$102,351.00 

Fringe Benefits for Law Enforcement: 

Arizona Department of Public Safety 

OFFICER: $22.4898 per hour 49.75% 

ERE’s 

SERGEANT II: $28.1037 per hour 

49.75% ERE’s 

DISPATCHER: $8.1807 per hour 

18.95% ERE’s 

$47,649.00 

Law Enforcement Operational 

Overtime: Pinal County Sheriff’s 

Office 

$50.60 per hour OT rate (Average) X 4 

personnel X 10 hr. shifts X 4 days per 

week X 52 weeks per year, includes 

ERE’s. 

$420,992.00 

 

 

 

 

 



  Page 

12 

 

  

 

IV.  BUDGET (YEAR 2) Continued: 

 

Administration/Logistics/Budget 

Request 

Narrative Justification             

(Computation of Items) Federal  Request 

Law Enforcement Operational 

Overtime: Coolidge Police 

Department 

(Year 1’s current rate plus 5% merit 

increase) Overtime rate of $41.33 per 

hour (96 two officer , 10 hour 

deployments)  

$83,322.00 

Fringe Benefits for Law Enforcement: 

Coolidge Police Department 

ERE = 34% of $60,755.00 $28,329.00 

Law Enforcement Operational 

Overtime: Casa Grande Police 

Department 

Overtime rate of $40.00 at 

approximately 150 deployments X 10 

hour shifts 

$60,000.00 

Management and Administration: 

Casa Grande Police Department 

M and A for Sergeant responsible for 

OPSG grant activities; preparation of 

reports, DAR’s pre coordination of 

deployments with CBP/Border Patrol 

and attend CBP/Border Patrol 

coordination meetings, 3% of total 

allocated budget 

 

Fringe Benefits for Law Enforcement: 

Casa Grande Police Department 

ERE=39.68% $23,808.00 

Law Enforcement Operational 

Overtime: Eloy Police Department 

$51.43 per hour X 2 sworn officers = 

$102.86 X 8 hours = $822.88 per 

deployment $822.88 X 120 

deployments. Includes ERE’s 

$98,745.60 

Law Enforcement Operational 

Overtime: Florence Police 

Department 

(Year 1’s current rate plus 5% merit 

increase) Overtime rate of $41.33 per 

hour X 2 sworn officers (per deployment 

– 4 10-hour  shifts per week)  = $165.32 

X 10 hours = $1653.20 per week, 

$1653.20 X 52 (1 year) (104 

deployments) 

$77,467.00 

Fringe Benefits for Law Enforcement: 

Florence Police Department 

ERE = 24% of $77,467.00 $18,592.00 

General Equipment: Arizona 

Department of Public Safety  

1. (10) Mobile Data Computer (AEL 

#04HW-01-MOBL) - $4,800.00 

$48,000.00 

General Equipment: Pinal County 

Sheriff’s Office 

1. GS20L Additions to Above Wireless 

Ground Sensors (12 additional sensors 

and 1 repeater) (AEL #04SN-01-XMIT) 

$34,575.00  

 

General Equipment: Coolidge Police 

Department 

 

1. Mobile Data Computers (AEL #04-HW-

01-MOBL) - $6,850.00 ea. 

2. Thermal Imager (AEL #03OE-02-TILA) 

- $5,000.00 

$68,500.00 

 

$5,000.00 

 

 

 



  Page 

13 

 

  

 

IV.  BUDGET (YEAR 2) Continued: 

 

Administration/Logistics/Budget 

Request 

Narrative Justification             

(Computation of Items) Federal  Request 

General Equipment: Casa Grande 

Police Department 

1. (1) Thermal imager scout - 

$7,000.00  

2. (25) Two-way portable radio 

batteries - $80.00 ea. 

3. (2) Bank chargers - $1,000.00 

$7,000.00 

 

$2,000.00 

 

$2,000.00 

Vehicles - Vehicle Mileage: Santa Cruz 

County Sheriff’s Office 

120,000 miles per year X .445 cents 

per mile = $53,400.00  1 year 

$53,400.00   

Vehicles - Vehicle Mileage: Nogales 

Police Department 

80,000 miles per year X .445 cents  

per mile = $35,600.00 1 year 

$35,600.00 

Vehicles - Vehicle Mileage: Santa Cruz 

County Attorney’s Office 
5,000 miles per year X $.445 cents  

per mile = $2,225.00 

$2,225.00 

Vehicles - Vehicle Mileage: Arizona 

Department of Safety 

40,449 miles per year X .445 cents  

per miles = $18,000.00 

$18,000.00 

Vehicles - Vehicle Mileage: Pinal 

County Sheriff’s Office 

166,400 miles per year x .445 cents 

per miles = $74,048.00 

$74,048.00 

Vehicles - Vehicle Mileage: Coolidge 

Police Department 

19,200 miles per year X .445 cents  

per miles = $8,544.00 

$8,544.00 

Vehicles - Vehicle Mileage: Casa 

Grande Police Department 

27,000 miles per year X .445 cents  

per miles = $12,015.00 

$12,015.00 

Vehicles - Vehicle Mileage: Eloy 

Police Department 

24,000 miles per year X $.455 cents  

per miles = $10,680.00 

$10,680.00 

Vehicles - Vehicle Mileage: Florence 

Police Department 

33,280 miles per year x .445 cents per 

miles = $14,810.00 

$14,810.00 

TOTAL:  2,301,985.59 

 

TOTAL YEAR 1 = 3,013,024.40   TOTAL YEAR 2= 2,301,985.50 

 

TOTAL FEDERAL REQUEST: 5,315,009.90 

 

V.     COMMAND/CONTROL/COMMUNICATION 

A. Chain of Command: 

Santa Cruz County Sheriff’s Office   Nogales Police Department 

Sheriff Tony Estrada     Police Chief Derek Arnson 

2170 North Congress Drive    777 North Grand Avenue 

Nogales, Arizona 85621     Nogales, Arizona 85621 

 

Arizona Department of Public Safety    Pinal County Sheriff’s Office 

Director Robert Halliday     Sheriff Paul Babeu 

P.O. Box 6638      971 Jason Lopez Circle Bldg. #C  

Phoenix, Arizona 85005-6638    Florence, Arizona 85132 

 



  Page 

14 

 

  

 

V.     COMMAND/CONTROL/COMMUNICATION: Continued 

Casa Grande Police Department   Eloy Police Department  

Police Chief Johnny Cervantes    Police Chief William K. Pitman    

373 East Val Vista Boulevard    630 North Main Street 

Casa Grande, Arizona 85122    Eloy, Arizona 85131 

 

Santa Cruz County Attorney’s Office   Florence Police Department 

County Attorney George Silva    Police Chief Daniel Hughes 

2150 North Congress Drive    425 North Pinal Pkwy  

Nogales, Arizona 85621     Florence, Arizona 85312 

 

B.  Unit Command: 

 

Santa Cruz County Sheriff’s Office   Nogales Police Department 

Lieutenant Raoul Rodriguez     Captain Heriberto Zuniga 

2170 North Congress Drive    777 North Grand Avenue 

Nogales, Arizona 85621     Nogales, Arizona 85621  

 

Arizona Department of Public Safety:   Pinal County Sheriff’s Office 

Captain Walter Mercer      Commander Doug Brown  

6401 South Tucson Boulevard    971 Jason Lopez Circle Bldg. #C 

Tucson, Arizona 85706     Florence, Arizona 85132 

 

Casa Grande Police Department   Eloy Police Department   

Police Chief Johnny Cervantes    Police Chief William K. Pitman   

373 East Val Vista Boulevard    630 North Main Street 

Casa Grande, Arizona 85122    Eloy, Arizona 85131 

 

Santa Cruz County Attorney’s Office   Florence Police Department 

Detective Raul Rodriguez    Lieutenant Terry Tryon 

2150 North Congress Drive    425 North Pinal Pkwy 

Nogales, Arizona 85621     Florence, Arizona 85312 

 

C.  Communication Details: 

All radio transmissions, Computerized Criminal History (CCH), Interstate Identification Index (III) and/or 

Arizona Criminal Justice Information System (ACJIS) inquires will be made through the participating 

agencies communications center. 

 

D.  Map Coordinates: 

  

Notes:  N/A  Longitude:  N/A   Latitude:  N/A 

Degrees:  N/A   Minutes:  N/A   Seconds:  N/A 

Decimal:  N/A  Location Zone:  N/A 

 

 

 



  Page 

15 

 

  

 

VI.  ANNEX 

  

A. Administration Annex:     

 

Santa Cruz County SO     Nogales Police Department  

Lieutenant Raoul Rodriguez    Captain Heriberto Zuniga 

2170 North Congress Drive    777 North Grand Avenue 

Nogales, Arizona 85621     Nogales, Arizona 85621 

Telephone (520) 761-7869    (520) 287-9114 

 

Arizona Department of Public Safety   Pinal County Sheriff’s Office  

Major Larry Scarber     Commander Doug Brown 

6401 South Tucson Boulevard    971 Jason Lopez Circle Bldg #C  

Phoenix, Arizona 85706     Florence, Arizona 85132 

 

Casa Grande Police Department    Eloy Police Department 

Sergeant Al Grijalva     Police Chief William K. Pitman 

373 East Val Vista Boulevard    630 North Main Street  

Casa Grande, Arizona 85122    Eloy, Arizona 85131 

 

Santa Cruz County Attorney’s Office   Florence Police Department 

Detective Raul Rodriguez    Lieutenant Terry Tryon 

2150 North Congress Drive    425 Pinal Pkwy 

Nogales, Arizona 85621     Florence, Arizona 85312 

 

B.   Execution Annex: 

 

Santa Cruz County SO     Nogales Police Department  

Lieutenant Raoul Rodriguez    Lieutenant Carlos Jimenez 

2170 North Congress Drive    777 North Grand Avenue 

Nogales, Arizona 85621     Nogales, Arizona 85621 

Telephone (520) 761-7869    (520) 287-9114 

 

Arizona Department of Public Safety   Pinal County Sheriff’s Office  

Captain Walter Mercer     Commander Doug Brown 

6401 South Tucson Boulevard    971 Jason Lopez Circle Bldg #C  

Tucson, Arizona 85706      Florence, Arizona 85132 

 

Casa Grande Police Department    Eloy Police Department  

Sergeant Al Grijalva     Police Chief William K. Pitman 

373 East Val Vista Boulevard    630 North Main Street 

Casa Grande, Arizona 85122    Eloy, Arizona 85131 

 

Santa Cruz County Attorney’s Office   Florence Police Department 

Detective Raul Rodriguez    Lieutenant Terry Tryon 

2150 North Congress Drive    425 North Pinal Pkwy 

Nogales, Arizona 85621     Florence, Arizona 85312 



  Page 

16 

 

  

 

C. Command Annex: 

  

Santa Cruz County SO     Nogales Police Department  

Lieutenant Raoul Rodriguez    Lieutenant Carlos Jimenez 

2170 North Congress Drive    777 North Grand Avenue 

Nogales, Arizona 85621     Nogales, Arizona 85621 

Telephone (520) 761-7869    (520) 287-9114 

 

Arizona Department of Public Safety   Pinal County Sheriff’s Office  

Major Larry Scarber     Commander Doug Brown 

6401 South Tucson Boulevard    971 Jason Lopez Circle Bldg #C 

Tucson, Arizona 85706     Florence, Arizona, 85132 

 

Casa Grande Police Department   Eloy Police Department   

Sergeant Al Grijalva      Police Chief William K. Pitman 

373 East Val Vista Boulevard    630 North Main Street  

Casa Grande, Arizona 85122    Eloy, Arizona 85131 

 

Santa Cruz County Attorney’s Office   Florence Police Department 

Detective Raul Rodriguez    Lieutenant Terry Tryon 

2150 North Congress Drive    425 North Pinal Pkwy 

Nogales, Arizona 85621     Florence, Arizona 85312 

 

Media Action Plan: 

Those incidents or occurrences that deem media release will be done so by the respective participating 

agencies public relations officer or their designee.  

 

Legal Review:   

Each incident pertaining to Operation Stone Garden will require some form of documentation or incident 

report number authored by the officer(s). Investigations that necessitate criminal prosecution will be 

referred to: 

 

United States Attorney General’s Office  or  Participating agencies    

405 West Congress Drive Ste. 4800    City or County Prosecutors’ Office 

Tucson, Arizona 85701     Santa Cruz or Pinal County, Arizona 

 

Risks: 

There is a dramatic increase of hostile crimes occurring along the Arizona / Mexico boundaries because 

of the violent narcotic drug and/or alien trafficking organizations, terrorist groups and “bajadores” that 

are now arming themselves with high powered rifles and accosting innocent civilians and law 

enforcement officers. The risk is high to extremely high to all person(s) traveling through or to law 

enforcement officer who patrol these areas. 

 

Photos: 

Non-available 







MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
MAY 13, 2013, AT 5:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, LOCATED AT 
775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:  Rankin, Smith, Celaya, Hawkins, Montaño, Walter, Woolridge 
   
Florence Town Council Work Session 
May 13, 2013 
Page 1 of 9 

WORK SESSION  
Review of the 2013 Economic Development Brochure 
Jarred Bartlett presented the 2013 Economic Development Brochure. 
 
Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, stated that the Economic Development 
Brochure echoes Council’s vision for Florence.  The Team Lead is Scott Bowles, 
Economic Development Coordinator, and all department heads provided their input.   
 
Mr. Jarred Bartlett, RSN8 Media, stated that he has worked with the Town to capture 
and package the vision of the Town and condense it into a printed document along with 
a website.   
 
Mr. Bartlett provided an overview of the contents of the brochure.  The brochure is 
written for the perspective of the target audience, who are business owners, perspective 
employers, and site locators.  He provided an overview of the following items within the 
brochure:   

- Color palette and textures 
- Emblem  
- Opening of brochure depicts asset of Town, which is ample space which is an 

opportunity for land development  
- Introduction of key contacts 
- Market Access  

 Town Location 
 Transportation 
 Regional Amenities 
 Traffic Count 

- Land and Development 
 Territory Square – vision for Florence 

- Anthem at Merrill Ranch – realized vision 
- Business Incentives 

 The full package 
 Planning and Zoning Tools 
 Community Facility Districts 
 Downtown Development 

- Opportunities Abound 



Florence Town Council Work Session 
May 13, 2013 
Page 2 of 9 

 Our Vision 
 Our Legacy 
 360 degrees panoramic picture of Poston Butte, which overlooks the elements 

that have been developed as well as the available opportunities.   
- Site Locators  

 Key points for site locations 
o Correction and Security Industry 
o Discretionary Income 
o Regional Resources 
o Transportation 
o Retail Development 
o Development Ready Land 
o Cost of Living Advantages 
o New Community Growth 
o Correctional Industries Labor Force 
o Labor Costs 
o Renewable Energies 
o Regional Data: 20 mile radius 
o Household Income 

- Regional Population (Graphs that are interesting and are color coded) 
 Florence, Coolidge, Eloy, San Tan Valley, Casa Grande 

o Group Quarters 
o Group Quarters Effect 
o Population statistics 
o Median Age 
o Regional Gender Ratio 
o Education by Degree 

- Population Growth 
 Regional Population Growth 
 Florence Housing 

- Crime and Safety 
 Crime Statistics 
 Criminal Offenses by City 

- Employment 
 Regional Tax Rates 
 Major Employers  

 
Mr. Bartlett said it is important to provide highlights of the Town and to provide enough 
information to peak the target audience’s interest to entice them to research the Town 
more on their own.  The images throughout the brochure are specific for this brochure.  
The pictures build on the ideas of the Town.   
 
Mr. Montoya said the Town has received community sponsorship from National Bank of 
Arizona, Pulte Homes, Southwest Value Partners, and Johnson Utilities.  The fee for the 
brochure was $10,000 and they Town received $5,500 in sponsorship.  He said the 
brochure is a living document that will be updated every six months and is a tool to be 
used to advertise Florence and to recognize all that Florence has to offer.  He said the 



Florence Town Council Work Session 
May 13, 2013 
Page 3 of 9 

website will be launched on May 17, 2013; and it will be a mirror image of the brochure 
with additional information. 
 
Discussion occurred on the aesthetics of the brochure.   
 

a. Review of the 2013/2014 Town Manager Recommended Budget 
 
Mr. Montoya provided an overview how the budget was derived.  He said the budget 
being presented includes the following: 

- Decrease in the use of the fund balance 
- New divisions  

 Maintenance Fund 
 Fleet Maintenance Fund 

- Extract one-time items that are in the operating general budget  
- Budget contains operating revenues on operating expenditures  

 
Mr. Montoya provided a Power Point Presentation, which included the following: 

- Strategic Budget Goals for 2013/2014 
 Maintain existing service levels 
 Continue to provide exceptional public safety and community services 
 Expand the tax base through annexations and economic development 

outreach 
o Evaluate annexations around major transportation corridors 
o Consider annexations that are in the planning area approved by Council 
o Develop a clear distinct message as to what that Florence is and where 

we want to go 
 Staff will look at developing in the coming fiscal year 

o Identify businesses that are needed and develop a strategy to approach 
and notice the Town, and to capture residents for Florence 

 Secure the Town’s long term water program for future growth 
o Hired Utility Director – will start July 1, 2013 
o Complete capital projects approved by Council 
o Complete evaluation and assessment of existing infrastructure on Town 

water and sanitation lines 
o Work with partners Johnson Utilities in Anthem, and Southwest Utilities in 

Florence Ranch 
o Look at acquiring physical water for long-term future growth of Florence 

 Revitalize the downtown corridor, through beautification and business 
investment 
o Complete evaluation and assessment of properties in the downtown 

corridor, which includes: 
 Property ownership 
 Existing condition of property 
 Location and use of property 

  Plenty of vacant property in downtown area 
o Beautification and business investment 



Florence Town Council Work Session 
May 13, 2013 
Page 4 of 9 

 First:  An important part of attracting businesses to revitalize a 
downtown area that has been in decline is to provide a medium of 
some certainty that investment would be accepted and welcomed.  A 
business will not come to a historic corridor if they believe there is a 
negative environment to working within existing governmental 
structures. 
 Must be able to balance economic development and historic  

preservation 
 Second:  In order to attract destination businesses and become a 

gathering spot for visitors and citizens, we need to beautify the corridor 
to make it inviting, which also includes working with property owners 
(or in some cases, acquiring property) to eliminate properties in 
disrepair or neglect. 

 Make strategic investments in planning for the continued growth of Florence 
o Work with major home builders to encourage additional development 
 Currently, new home permits in Florence are outpacing many 

communities in Pinal County 
o The Town must look at strategic annexations to safeguard state shared 

revenues as larger unincorporated areas may become new cities. 
 With these annexations, the Town needs to plan accordingly for 

service delivery 
o Attract and work with developers that may provide unique home solutions, 

retail destinations, or restaurants – without waiving long term fees or 
permits, which would have a negative impact to future town services. 

- Providing exceptional Public Safety and Community Services 
 Police Departments 

o Evaluate existing external agreements to provide officers; re-establish or 
place officers back on the street 

o Evaluate existing vacant positions and post for immediate hire 
o Review ICMA Report and improve on service delivery, communication, 

training, etc. 
o Partnering with community - community policing 

 Fire Department 
o Evaluate and establish standard operating procedures 
o Review and assess existing staffing to ensure adequate coverage for the 

Town – reducing response times 
o Implement strong training program and develop an effective change of 

command structure 
o Evaluate fire protection services 
o Public education and community involvement 

 Parks and Recreation 
o Review existing services provided to citizens 
o Evaluate current potential for pocket parks in downtown and other areas of 

the Town 
o Work on beautifying the downtown corridor 
o Evaluate existing Town events and build upon them to incorporate a 

broader involvement form the community 



Florence Town Council Work Session 
May 13, 2013 
Page 5 of 9 

 Public Works 
o Begin to work with MAG MPO and incorporate Florence into the program 
o Evaluate and begin construction on CIP projects approved by Council 
 Roundabout 
 Streetscape Project 
 SR79 and SR79b  

o Work with ADOT on existing capital projects in the Town and determine 
feasibility on obtaining ROW, once complete 

 Library 
o Continuing to evaluate existing programs and services while increasing 

membership and use of the facility 
o Look at growth areas as the Town begins to annex to ensure adequate 

services are provided to residents 
o Continuing to work closely with Florence Unified School District 

 Community Development 
o Begin active planning on annexations for Magic Ranch, Oasis, Wild Horse 

Estates, and Crestfield Manor 
o Evaluate existing properties in the Florence area that may be used for 

future development, beautification, or zoning modifications 
o Continue to advocate for proper placement of the NW Corridor to facilitate 

economic development and growth 
o Continue to make planning and engineering investments for Territory 

Square Project 
 General Government 

o Update intergovernmental agreements 
o Coordinate agreements with Chamber, Arizona, State Parks, etc. 
o Complete downtown beautification project 
 Curb ramps, crosswalk and intersection beautification, streetscape 

project 
 Streetscape Project must be approved by Council by June 2013 in 

order to avoid loss of funding 
o Complete sanitation public/private partnership implementation by July 1, 

2013 
 
Ms. Becki Guilin, Finance Director, continued with Power Point Presentation, in which 
she discussed the following: 

▪ General Fund Revenues 
 Taxes  

o Sales Tax - $2.2 million 
o Property Tax - $814,526 
o Maximum tax levy can only be increased at 2% or $1.1182 per $100 

Net Assessed Valuation 
 Licenses and Permits - $284,000 
 Franchise Fees and Taxes - $420,180 
 Intergovernmental  

o State Shared Income Tax, Sales Tax, and  Auto Lieu Tax - $6,175,000  
 Charges – $765,338 



Florence Town Council Work Session 
May 13, 2013 
Page 6 of 9 

 Miscellaneous - $74,315 
 Interest Earnings - $23,000 
 Operating Transfers In - $1,434,000 

 
Mr. Montoya said the State is reviewing the construction use tax and are trying to 
change where the money would go; this would take revenue away from Florence.  
There are negotiations for the small towns to receive some funding.  He said there will 
be additional franchise fees as areas become annexed.   
 
Ms. Guilin said the tax will be from the point of sale for the actual materials for 
construction tax.  The League of Arizona Cities and Towns is working with the State for 
some type of offset for the use tax to be used in the calculation for state shared 
revenues.    The effect date is January 1, 2015.   
 
Ms. Guilin the Police Budget is comprised of 28.29% of the General Fund Budget; and 
the Fire Budget is 19.05%; both combined equates to 47% of the total General Fund 
expenditures.  She added that the operating transfers out will be for fleet maintenance 
and general maintenance for the buildings.  She explained how the fund balance is 
derived, what the beginning and ending fund balance will be after expenditures, 
liabilities, and reserves.  She added that the revenues are not guaranteed and are 
projected based, in part, on historical data and growth.   
 
Mr. Montoya continued with the Power Point Presentation, in which the following was 
discussed: 

- Items not recommended in the budget 
 Additional positions requested totaling over $1 million 
 No new vehicles 

o Identification of all existing vehicles needs to be done, which will include 
year of the vehicle, mileage, condition, and maintenance is received for 
the vehicle.   

 Minimize training in General Government budget 
o Look at individual development plans and trainings before 

recommendation to add to budget 
 Additional projects without specific funding  

 
Mr. Montoya stated that that those requiring certifications for their positions remained in 
the budget.  He would like to complete the approved capital projects before they add 
more projects to the budget.  Capital projects that did not have funding attached were 
not included in the budget.  $2 million of one-time revenues were removed from the 
General Fund and put into the capital projects to fund projects already approved by 
Council.  There is $1.5 million that is budgeted but is unassigned, which can be utilized 
if something happens or if a project comes up that Council would like completed.   
 
 Mr. Montoya explained the General Fund trend and fund balances for Fiscal Years 
2009/2010, 2010/2011, 2011/2012, 2012/2013; and 2013/2014.  He said the fund 
balance use has dropped by $605,467 this year.  It will take approximately two to three 



Florence Town Council Work Session 
May 13, 2013 
Page 7 of 9 

years to transition out of depending on the economy.  Next year, the aim is to drop to 
less than $300,000, if not $0; however.    
    
Mr. Montoya continued with the Power Point Presentation, in which he discussed the 
following: 

- 2013/2014 Recommended Budget 
o New functional budget areas 
o Utility Department 
o Fleet Fund 

▪ Maintenance Program 
▪ Department Director vehicle recommendation 

 Maintenance Fund  
o Government Replacement Capital Fund 
o Funding set aside for potential eminent domain process 
o Economic Development Fund 
o Positions 

▪ Public Safety 
 One Firefighter – for EMS unit, one battalion chief/fire marshal from 

existing position 
 4 additional patrol officers on street, no additional position 

authorization needed, pulled two officers from other assignments 
and under-filled two vacant detective positions 

 Records Clerk in Police Department, from part-time to full-time 
o Public Works (included facilities and fleet) 

▪ Creation of a Utility Director from existing vacant water position 
▪ Creation of an Engineering Tech position from existing Deputy Public 

Works approved position  
▪ Facilities Manager – new position 
▪ Fleet Manager position from existing fleet position 

o General Government 
▪ New Accountant, new clerical billing person for sanitation program, 

revenue supported 
▪ Administrative Assistant in the Town Manager’s Office – full-time 

position from part-time 
o New projects, programs, and enhancements 

▪ CIP 
 Parking lot for Police Department 
 Complete funding for Downtown Streetscape Project 
 Silver King Market Place – updates and improvements 
 Additional funds transferred to fund existing Council approved 

projects 
▪ Internal Service Funds 

 Fleet Maintenance 
 Facility Maintenance 

▪ Moved one-time capital items out of operating General Fund budget 
o Employee Compensation 

▪ Overall plan changes 



Florence Town Council Work Session 
May 13, 2013 
Page 8 of 9 

 Change in employer/employee split 
 Increase from 65/35 employer/employee to 75/25 

 Change in HSA distribution 
 Change from 1/12 increments to two annual payment for $1,000 

▪ Medical/Dental/Vision 
 Overall increase approximately 6% 
 Employees will see a slight decrease in net pay due to change in 

employer/employee split and the small increase in costs 
 With the additional time the Town will begin looking at a different 

model for medical, such as fully insured next year. 
 On-Call physician and prescription service 

▪ Merit Increases 
 2013/2014 town budgeting a 4% merit, based upon performance  
 Performance system updates/changes 

- 2013 and Beyond Major Issues 
 Annexation and smart sustainable growth 

o Analyze and evaluate all options and service delivery 
 Core service delivery 
 Existing capital projects 

o Town specific 
o Joint projects with ADOT 

 Work closely with builders and developers as Florence continues to grow 
 Pending and potential litigation 
 Annexation and smart sustainable growth 

o Analyze and evaluate all options and service delivery 
 Core service delivery 
 Existing capital projects 

o Town specific 
o Joint projects with ADOT 

 Work closely with builders and developers as Town continues to grow 
 

Mr. Montoya explained the Summary Book and the Detailed Budget Book and how each 
book is set up.   

- Summary Budget Book 
 Summation of the budget items 

- Detailed Budget Book 
 Contains all the specifics and details for what is in the budget 

 
Mr. Montoya said the rationale for two books is that it is easier for the reader; which is 
how it will be presented on the website, and the detailed book will be available for 
anyone to review 
  
Mr. Larry Kollert, Resident, (inaudible). 
 
Mr. Montoya responded that at this point in time there is no drop off point in the Town of 
Florence for rail access so it cannot be used for major employers or businesses at this 



Florence Town Council Work Session 
May 13, 2013 
Page 9 of 9 

point.  A change in rail access point is also being considered for this area; however, it 
will be outside of the Florence boundaries.   
 
2.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting at 6:40 p.m.  
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on May 13, 2013, and that the meeting was duly called to order 
and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
MAY 20, 2013, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, LOCATED AT 
775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 6:04 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:  Rankin, Celaya, Hawkins, Montaño, Walter, Woolridge 
Absent:  Smith 
 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 20, 2013 
Page 1 of 7 

MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Mayor Rankin led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  
However, members of Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 
 
Ms. Doretta Allison, Chamber of Commerce Boardmember, provided an update of on 
the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce activities.  She listed the seven new 
members who joined the Chamber in May, 2013.  She invited everyone to attend the 
Chamber luncheons held every third Tuesday at the Holiday Inn.  They have added an 
“After Business Hours Mixer” on the first Thursday of the month, which will include live 
music and refreshments.   They are also starting another event called “First Thursdays” 
which will include live music and refreshments.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENTATIONS 
 
Public Hearing on the 2013-2023 Land Use Assumptions and Infrastructure 
Improvements Plan. 
 
Ms. Becki Guilin, Finance Director, stated the Town has been working on the 
Development Impact Fee study for several months.  The draft document has been on 
file with the Town Clerk’s Office and available on the Town of Florence website for 
review.  The Town has also advertised the Public Hearing and have mailed developers 
that have interest in the Town of Florence. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 20, 2013 
Page 2 of 7 

Ms. Guilin stated new legislation requires a Public Hearing to be held on the Land Use 
Assumptions and Infrastructure Improvements Plan, followed by Council approval or 
disapproval within 60 days.  The Infrastructure Improvements Plan and Land Use 
Assumptions are part of the basis for calculation of impact fees.  A resolution to adopt 
the Infrastructure Improvements Plan and the Land Use Assumption will come before 
the Town Council on July 1, 2013. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired the number of hits on the website as well as how many people 
came in to view the documents. 
 
Ms. Guilin stated she didn’t know the number of hits and no one came in to view the 
documents. 
 
Mayor Rankin opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Clancy Mullen, Duncan Associates, provided a Power Point presentation to Council 
which outlined the changes being made to the Development Impact Fees in order to be 
compliant with SB 1525.  He explained the various increases and decreases in fees, as 
well as which areas would be impacted. 
 
Mr. Mullen discussed the following: 
Major Policy Implications: 

 Roads 
o Lower road fees in Merrill Ranch CFDs (funding major roads) 

 Library 
o Construct a minimum 10,000 sq. ft. library in the next 10 years 
o Fund $1.68 million from other sources (pay for existing deficiency) 

 Parks 
o Cease collecting park fees in Merrill Ranch area (outside service area) 

 Fire 
o Lower fees in Merrill Ranch CFDs (funding Anthem station) 

 Water/Wastewater 
o No fees in North Florence Improvement District (funding system acquisition) 
o Will need to give credit for developer-installed master plan lines 

Current and proposed non-utility fees 
Current and proposed utility fees 
Current and proposed fee summary 
SB1525 requirements for August 1, 2014 

- Identify service areas for each facility type 
o Prepare land use assumptions for next 10 years 
o Establish levels of service 
o Describe existing facilities by service area 
o Analyze existing capacity, usage and commitments 
o Project future service units attributable to growth 
o Determine 10-year needs attributable to growth (IIP) 
o Establish new fee schedule 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 20, 2013 
Page 3 of 7 

SB1525 Compliance  
- By January 1, 2012  

o Ceased collecting sanitation fees 
o Ceased collecting general government fees 
o Ceased collecting library fees 
o Reduced fire/police fees to remove administrative equipment 
o No changes required to transportation or utility fees 
o Earmarked future fees to be spent only on eligible improvements 

- By August 1, 2014  
o Identify service areas 
o Prepare and adopt land use assumptions/infrastructure plan 
o Prepare and adopt impact fee study/ordinance 
o Conduct biennial audit every two years following adoption of IIP 

- Adoption Timeline 
o Public Hearing on LUA/IIP – May 20, 2013 

 30 day period before adoption 
o Adoption of LUA/IIP and Notice of Fees – July 1, 2013 

 30 day notice period 
o Public Hearing on study/ordinance – August 5, 2013 

 30 day period before adoption 
o Adoption of Study/Ordinance (September 16, 2013 

 75 day period before effective 
o Effective date – December 1, 2013 

Service Areas 
- Recommended service areas 

o Transportation – (1) town-wide 
▪ Restricted to arterials/major collectors 

o Fire and Police – (1) town-wide 
o Library – (1) town-wide 
o Parks – (1) “central” area 

▪ Restricted to “neighborhood parks” 
o Water/wastewater – (2) north and south of river 

▪ Includes cost of master plan lines 
Land Use Assumptions 

- Growth projections by service area 
- Must cover at least 10 years (2013-2023) 

o Will not affect impact fee calculations 
- Existing based on: 

o Building permit and Census block data (residential) 
o CAG estimates (nonresidential except prisons) 
o Town prison survey (prisoners) 

- Projections based on: 
o CAG 5-year growth assumed over 13 years (2010-2023) 
o Equates to 250 new housing units each year (vs. 900 per CAG) 

2013-2023 Housing Unit Projections 
Planned Costs Revenues 2013-2023 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 20, 2013 
Page 4 of 7 

Recap 
 Roads 

o Lower road fees in Merrill Ranch CFDs (funding major roads) 
 Library 

o Construct a minimum 10,000 sq. ft. library in the next 10 years 
o Fund $1.68 million from other sources (pay for existing deficiency) 

 Parks 
o Cease collecting park fees in Merrill Ranch area (outside service area) 

 Fire 
o Lower fees in Merrill Ranch CFDs (funding Anthem station) 

 Water/Wastewater 
o No fees in N Florence Improvement District (funding system acquisition) 
o Will need to give credit for developer-installed master plan lines 

 
Discussion occurred on assessment of development impact fees through the building 
permits, based on construction costs.   
 
Councilmember Celaya inquired if there will be any impact fees to the existing 
customers and inquired how construction costs will be calculated.   
 
Mr. Mullen stated there will be no impact fees to the existing customers and 
construction costs are based on the current market.  The plan needs to be updated a 
minimum of every five years; however the plan can be updated sooner if they so 
choose, especially of construction costs change dramatically. Impact fees can be 
assessed on redevelopment but it would only be on the portion that is a net increase 
from what it was there before.      
 
Mayor Rankin inquired about the proposed annexation areas.  He inquired how the 
Town can capture impact fees for parks and if the residents will be excluded from using 
the existing parks.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the Town does not have any physical parks in the area that are 
proposed for annexation. The Town would be able to collect a small fee and the Town 
would have to pay the remaining costs for the park.  If impact fees are collected, the 
park must be built within a certain time frame.  There are also other correlations that 
must also be met.  The Town would fund the majority of the costs for parks in that area.   
 
Discussion occurred on parks within areas to be annexed and how funding can be 
obtained to serve the deficiency.  Discussion also occurred on funding for a library and 
how revenues from the impact fees can be used.   
 
Councilmember Celaya inquired if the Town could use improvement districts could be 
utilized for parks. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that improvement districts could be very challenging.  He explained 
various ways for possible funding and ways to address the deficiency.   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 20, 2013 
Page 5 of 7 

 
Discussion occurred on the funding and building of a new library.     
    
Mayor Rankin closed the Public Hearing.   

 
Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce presentation of an award to the Pinal 
County Federal Credit Union for being May’s Chamber Business of the Month.  
 
Susan Kerestes, Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce Executive Director, 
presented Jennifer Nathaniel, Pinal County Federal Credit Union Branch Manager, with 
the award for May’s Chamber Business of the month for their outstanding service to the 
community and in support of the Chamber.   
 
Ms. Nathaniel stated that they are honored to be chosen as Business of the Month. She 
stated that the Chamber has been instrumental in the continuous growth of the credit 
union.  They are very proud to be a part of Florence for over 50 years.     
 
CONSENT: All items indicated by an (*) will be handled by a single vote as part of 
the Consent Agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects 
at the time the agenda item is called. 
 
*Adoption of Resolution No. 1393-13:  
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, read Resolution No. 1393-13 by 
title only.   
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
SUPPORTING APPLICATION TO THE TOHONO O’ODHAM NATION FOR STATE-
SHARED REVENUE GRANT FUNDS TO PURCHASE A POLICE TRAINING 
SIMULATOR. 
 
*Adoption of Resolution No. 1394-13:  
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, read Resolution No. 1394-13 by 
title only. 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE RE-SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 40 THRU 45 INCLUSIVE AND LOTS 
63 THRU 65 INCLUSIVE, LOCATED WITHIN THE RE-SUBDIVISION OF ANTHEM 
AT MERRILL RANCH UNIT 18; REQUIRING THE PROVISION OF AN 
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT ASSURANCE OR WITHHOLDING OF 
RECORDATION TO SECURE THE SATISFACTORY CONSTRUCTION, 
INSTALLATION AND DEDICATION OF REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS; 
ESTABLISHING A DEADLINE FOR REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS TO BE 
COMPLETED; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 20, 2013 
Page 6 of 7 

 
*Authorization to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment for 
continued partnership with the Arizona State Parks Board for operation of 
McFarland State Historic Park.  
 
*Appointment of Judy Hughes to the Florence Industrial Development Authority 
Board, with a term to expire December 31, 2013.  
 
*Approval of the April 15 and May 6, 2013, Town Council minutes. 
 
*Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 
 
October 25, 2012 Parks and Recreation Advisory Board minutes. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Walter, and 
carried to approve the Consent Agenda, as written.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Ordinance No. 595-13:  
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, read Ordinance No. 595-13 by title 
only. 
 
AN  ORDINANCE  OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, TO 
PROVIDE INCREASES IN NEW RATES AND FEES FOR WATER AND 
WASTEWATER TREAMENT. 
 
Ms. Guilin stated that the Town held a Public Hearing on May 6, 2013, for the increase 
of new rates and fees for water and wastewater treatment.    
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Woolridge, and 
carried to adopt Ordinance No. 595-13. 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC 

There were no public comments. 

CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 
Councilmember Montaño requested an update on the barricades on Attaway Road.  
 
Councilmember Walter invited everyone to participate in the Town events. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated he attended the grand opening of the National Guard training 
facility.  They have plans to expand the facility on both sides of SH79.  They hope to 
become a training center for the western United States, which will be an asset to the 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 20, 2013 
Page 7 of 7 

Town.  He said he was also approached by an individual who wants to bring a business 
to Florence, which would employee approximately 52 people.      
 
 ADJOURNMENT 

 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Celaya, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting at 6:53 pm. 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on May 20, 2013, and that the meeting was duly called to order 
and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 

















































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
 14a. 

MEETING DATE:  June 17, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Jess Knudson, Assistant Town 
Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  IGA Between the Town of Florence and ADOT for 
the Design of a New Intersection at SR 287 and SR 79b 
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
IGA Between the Town of Florence and ADOT for the Design of a New Intersection at 
SR 287 and SR 79b and to Provide Authorization to the Town Manager to  
Further Negotiate the Terms of the Agreement, If necessary. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Town of Florence receives TIP dollars for transportation projects through Central 
Arizona Association of Governments (CAG).  Town staff has drafted an 
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with the Arizona Department of Transportation 
(ADOT) to use the funds for the design of a new intersection at SR 287 and SR 79b, 
also known as the “Y” intersection.  
 
The anticipated cost of the project totals $649,812.30, of which the Town’s share of the 
project is $46,469.30, which covers the match and ADOT design fees. 
 
In the IGA, ADOT agrees to acquire the services of a private firm to work with ADOT on 
the necessary requirements of the project, including the design of a new intersection, 
which likely will be a roundabout.  The Town will have the necessary input needed to 
ensure the design meets the needs of the Town.  
 
UPDATE 
 
On June 3, 2013, the Florence Town Council directed Town staff to renegotiate the 
terms of the IGA.  Specifically, the Town Council wanted to renegotiate the requirement 
for the Town to assume the financial responsibility to construct and maintain the 
improvements made at the intersection.  In addition, the Town Council wanted to limit 
the Town’s liability identified within the contract.   
 
Town staff has successfully negotiated with ADOT to remove two of the three concerns 
raised by the Town Council at the June 3, 2013 Town Council meeting.  The updated 



IGA no longer obligates the Town to pay for the construction of the new intersection or 
to maintain the new intersection after construction.  The IGA is simply now a contract to 
complete the design of the intersection. 
 
While it is likely that the Town will need to fully or partially pay for the construction of the 
intersection if the Town wants to see improvements made in the next few years, that is 
a decision the Town can make at a later date.  
 
At the time of the agenda deadline, Town staff is still negotiating with ADOT on 
additional changes to the IGA.  Town is asking that ADOT remove the text in Section III 
Miscellaneous Provisions that obligates the Town to indemnify the State’s independent 
contractors.  Town staff will continue to negotiate the removal of this language after the 
deadline for the agenda has past.   Town staff is asking that if the Town Council 
approves the IGA, it provides the Town Manager with the authority to further negotiate 
the IGA with ADOT to maximize the Town’s ability to modify the IGA in the Town’s best 
interest even after the Town Council approves the IGA.  This is only necessary if staff 
has not successfully negotiate this change at the time of the June 17, 2013 Town 
Council meeting.   
 
It is vitally important for the Town Council to take action on this item, if they wish 
to move forward on this project, before June 21, 2013 to ensure successful 
execution of this IGA by the Town and ADOT.  Any delays after June 21, 2013 
would significantly increase the chances that the Town of Florence and the CAG 
region would lose out on the $603,343 earmarked for the Town of Florence.   
       
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The initial financial impact to the Town to enter into the IGA with ADOT is $46,469.30.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the execution of an IGA between the Town of Florence and ADOT 
for the design of a new Intersection at SR 287 and SR 79b and to provide authorization 
to the Town Manager to further negotiate the terms of the agreement, if necessary. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
IGA 
 
 



ADOT File No.: IGA/JPA 12-054I 
AG Contract No.: P001 2012001857 
Project: Intersection Improvement 
Section: SR287 and SR79B   
Federal Project No.:       
ADOT Project No.: SZ04103D/01D 
TIP/STIP No.: FLO 1301D 
Budget Source Item No.: N/A 

 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
 

BETWEEN 
THE STATE OF ARIZONA 

AND 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this date ________________________________, 2013, pursuant to 
the Arizona Revised Statutes §§11-951 through § 11-954, as amended, between the STATE OF 
ARIZONA, acting by and through its DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (the “State” or “ADOT”) and 
the TOWN OF FLORENCE, acting by and through its MAYOR and TOWN COUNCIL (the “Town”). The 
State and the Town  are collectively referred to as “Parties.” 
 
I. RECITALS  
 

1. The State is empowered by Arizona Revised Statutes § 28-401 to enter into this Agreement and 
has delegated to the undersigned the authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the State. 

 
2. The Town is empowered by Arizona Revised Statutes § 48-572 to enter into this Agreement and 

has by resolution, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, resolved to enter into this 
Agreement and has authorized the undersigned to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Town. 
 

3. The work proposed under this Agreement consists of the evaluation and design of intersection 
improvements to the intersection of the State Route 287 (SR287) and State Route 79B (SR79B) 
,hereinafter referred to as the “Project”.  The State will administer the design of the Project. 
 

4. The Project lies within the boundary of the Town and has been selected by the,Town, and the 
survey of the project site has been completed.  The plans, estimates and specifications for the Project will 
be prepared and, as required, submitted to the State and Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) for its 
approval. 
 

5. The Town, in order to obtain federal funds for the design of the Project, is willing to provide Town 
funds to match federal funds in the ratio required or as finally fixed and determined by the Town and 
FHWA. 
 

6. The interest of the State in this Project is the acquisition of federal funds for the use and benefit of 
the Town and to authorize such Federal funds for the Project pursuant to Federal law and regulations.  
The State shall be the designated agent for the Town.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 Page 2  IGA/JPA 12-054-I 
 
 

7. The Parties shall perform their responsibilities consistent with this Agreement and any change or 
modification to the Project will only occur with the mutual written consent of both Parties. 
 

8.  The federal funds will be used for the scoping/design of the Project.   The estimated Project 
costs are as follows: 
 
SZ04103D 01D (scoping/design): 
 
 Federal-aid funds @ 94.3% (capped)  $ 603,343.00        
 Town’s match @ 5.7% $   36,469.30     
 Design review fee (SZ041 01D)* $   10,000.00     
  

Subtotal – Scoping/Design   $ 649,812.30   
    

The Parties acknowledge that the final Project amount may exceed the initial estimate(s) shown above, 
and in such case, the Town is responsible for, and agrees to pay, any and all eventual, actual costs 
exceeding the initial estimate. If the final bid amount is less than the initial estimate, the difference 
between the final Project amount and the initial estimate will be de-obligated or otherwise released from 
the Project. The Town acknowledges it remains responsible for, and agrees to pay according to the terms 
of this Agreement, any and all eventual, actual costs exceeding the final bid amount. 
 
THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual Agreements expressed herein, it is agreed as follows: 
 
 
II. SCOPE OF WORK 
 
 1. The State will: 

 
a. Upon execution of this Agreement, and prior to performing or authorizing any work, invoice 

the Town for the State’s design review fee, currently estimated at $10,000.00 and the Town’s estimated 
share of the Project, currently estimated at $36,469.30. Once the Project costs have been finalized, the 
State will either invoice or reimburse the Town  for the difference between estimated and actual costs. 
 

b. Upon receipt of the design review fee and the Town’s estimated share of the Project costs, 
currently estimated at $36,469.30, on behalf and with consent of the Town, contract with one of the 
State’s on-call consultants (“Consultant”) to prepare all pertaining documents for the design and post-
design of the project; review and approve documents required by FHWA to qualify the Project for and to 
receive federal funds, provide comments to the Town as appropriate.  Such documents may consist of, 
but are not specifically limited to, environmental documents, including the preparation of the analysis 
requirements for documentation of environmental categorical exclusion determinations; review of reports, 
design plans, maps, and specifications; geologic materials testing and analysis; right-of-way requirements 
and activities and such other related tasks essential to the achievement of the objectives of this 
Agreement.  Issue the right-of-way clearance after review of the Consultant’s right-of-way submittal.  
 

c.  Submit all documentation required to FHWA containing the above-mentioned Project with 
the recommendation that funding be approved for scoping/design.   Request the maximum programmed 
federal funds for the scoping/design of this Project.  The Project will be performed, completed, accepted 
and paid for in accordance with the requirements of Project plans and specifications.  

 
 
 
 

  



 
 Page 3  IGA/JPA 12-054-I 
 
 

2. The Town will: 
 

a. Upon execution of this Agreement, designate the State as authorized agent for the Town. 
 

b. Upon execution of this Agreement, prior to performing or authorizing any work, and within 
thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice from the State, remit to the State the State’s design review fee, 
currently estimated at $10,000.00 and the Town’s estimated share of the Project, currently estimated at 
$36,469.30.  Be responsible for any difference between the estimated and actual design review costs. 
 

c. Allow the State to enter into an agreement with the selected Consultant to provide services 
as required and requested throughout the design and post-design of the project. Review the design plans, 
specifications and other such documents and services required for the construction bidding and 
construction of the Project, including scoping/design plans and documents required by FHWA to qualify 
projects for and to receive federal funds. Provide design review comments to the State as appropriate. 
 

d. Enter into an agreement with the State for the use of one of the Consultants to provide 
services as required and requested throughout the development of the Project including the construction 
phase of the Project. 
 

e. Monitor, and as required, be involved with all right-of-way activities and functions performed 
by the Consultant, including, but not specifically limited to, right-of-way survey, delineation, appraisal, 
review appraisal, acquisition, relocation and property management. 
 

f. Be entirely responsible for all costs incurred in performing and accomplishing the work as set 
forth under this Agreement, not covered by federal funding, including the State’s design review fee 
separately billed by the State and included in the Cost Estimate. Should costs be deemed ineligible or 
exceed the maximum federal funds available, it is understood and agreed that the Town is responsible for 
these costs. 
 

g. Once the Project costs have been finalized, the State will either invoice or reimburse the 
Town for the difference between estimated and actual costs. De-obligate or otherwise release any 
remaining federal funds from the scoping/design phase of the Project. 

 
h. Certify that all necessary rights-of-way have been or will be acquired prior to advertisement 

for bid and also certify that all obstructions or unauthorized encroachments of whatever nature, either 
above or below the surface of the Project area, shall be removed from the proposed right-of-way, or will 
be removed prior to the start of construction, in accordance with The Uniform Relocation Assistance and 
Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 as amended; 49 CFR 24.102 Basic Acquisition Policies; 49 
CFR 24.4 Assurances, Monitoring and Corrective Action, parts (a) & (b) and ADOT ROW Manual: 8.02 
Responsibilities, 8.03 Prime Functions, 9.07 Monitoring Process and 9.08 Certification of Compliance.  
Coordinate with the appropriate State’s Right-of-Way personnel during any right-of-way process 
performed by the Town, if applicable. 
 

i. Not permit or allow any encroachments upon or private use of the right-of-way, except those 
authorized by permit. In the event of any unauthorized encroachment or improper use, the Town shall 
take all necessary steps to remove or prevent any such encroachment or use. 

 
j. Hereby grant the State, its agents and/or contractors, without cost, the right to enter Town 

Rights-of-Way, as required, to conduct any and all construction and preconstruction related activities, 
including without limitation, temporary construction easements or temporary Rights-of-Entry to accomplish 
among other things, soil and foundation investigations.   

 
k. Be obligated to incur any expenditure should unforeseen conditions or circumstances 

increase the cost of said work required by a change in the extent of scope of the work requested by the 
Town.  Such changes require the prior approval of the State and FHWA.  Be responsible for any 



 
 Page 4  IGA/JPA 12-054-I 
 
 
contractor claims for additional compensation caused by Project delays attributable to the Town.  
Payment for these costs shall be made within thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice from the State. 
 

l. Pursuant to 23 USC 102(b), repay all federal funds reimbursements for preliminary 
engineering costs on the Project if it does not advance to right-of-way acquisition or construction within 
ten (10) years after federal funds were first made available. 

 
  
III. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS  
 

1. The terms, conditions and provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until 
completion of said Project and related deposits or reimbursement, except any provisions for maintenance 
shall be perpetual, unless assumed by another competent entity. Further, this Agreement may be 
cancelled at any time prior to the award of the Project construction contract, upon thirty (30) days written 
notice to the other party. It is understood and agreed that, in the event the Town terminates this 
Agreement, the State shall in no way be obligated to complete said Project.  If the federal funding related 
to this Project is terminated or reduced by the federal government, or if Congress rescinds, fails to renew, 
or otherwise reduces apportionments or obligation authority, the State shall in no way be obligated for 
funding or liable for any past, current or future expenses under this Agreement. 
 

2. The State assumes no financial obligation or liability under this Agreement, or for any resulting 
construction Project. The Town, in regard to the Town’s relationship with the State only, assumes full 
responsibility for the design, plans, specifications, reports, the engineering in connection therewith and 
the construction of the improvements contemplated, cost over-runs and construction claims. It is 
understood and agreed that the State's participation is confined  solely to securing federal aid on behalf of 
the Town and the fulfillment of any other responsibilities of the State as specifically set forth herein; that 
any damages arising from carrying out, in any respect, the terms of this Agreement or any modification 
thereof shall be solely the liability of the Town and that to the extent permitted by law, the Town hereby 
agrees to save and hold harmless, defend and indemnify from loss the State, any of its departments, 
agencies, officers or employees from any and all costs and/or damage incurred by any of the above and 
from any other damage to any person or property whatsoever, which is caused by any activity, condition, 
misrepresentation, directives, instruction or event arising out of the performance or non performance of 
any provisions of this Agreement by the State, any of its departments, agencies, officers and employees, 
or its independent contractors, the Town , any of its agents, officers and employees, or its independent 
contractors. Costs incurred by the State, any of its departments, agencies, officers or employees shall 
include in the event of any action, court costs, and expenses of litigation and attorneys’ fees. 

 
3. The cost of work covered by this Agreement is to be borne by FHWA and the Town, each in the 

proportion prescribed or as fixed and determined by FHWA as stipulated in this Agreement. Therefore, 
the Town agrees to furnish and provide the difference between the total cost of the work provided for in 
this Agreement and the amount of federal aid received. 
 

4. The cost of the project under this Agreement includes applicable indirect costs approved by the 
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). 
 

5. The Town and State warrant compliance with the Federal Funding Accountability and 
Transparency Act of 2006 and associated 2008 Amendments (the “Act”).  Additionally, in a timely 
manner, the Town will provide information that is requested by the State to enable the State to comply 
with the requirements of the Act, as may be applicable. 

 
6. This Agreement shall become effective upon signing and dating of the Determination Letter by 

the State’s Attorney General. 
 

7. This Agreement may be cancelled in accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes § 38-511. 
 



 
 Page 5  IGA/JPA 12-054-I 
 
 

8. To the extent applicable under law, the provisions set forth in Arizona Revised Statutes §§ 35-214 
and  35-215 shall apply to this Agreement. 
 

9. This Agreement is subject to all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and all applicable Federal regulations under the Act, 
including 28 CFR Parts 35 and 36. The parties to this Agreement shall comply with Executive Order 
Number 2009-09 issued by the Governor of the State of Arizona and incorporated herein by reference 
regarding “Non-Discrimination”. 
 

10. Non-Availability of Funds: Every obligation of the State under this Agreement is conditioned upon 
the availability of funds appropriated or allocated for the fulfillment of such obligations. If funds are not 
allocated and available for the continuance of this Agreement, this Agreement may be terminated by the 
State at the end of the period for which the funds are available. No liability shall accrue to the State in the 
event this provision is exercised, and the State shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments as 
a result of termination under this paragraph. 
 

11. In the event of any controversy, which may arise out of this Agreement, the Parties hereto agree 
to abide by required arbitration as is set forth for public works contracts in Arizona Revised Statutes § 12-
1518. 
 

12. All notices or demands upon any party to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered 
in person or sent by mail, addressed as follows: 
 

Arizona Department of Transportation 
Joint Project Administration 
205 S. 17th Avenue, Mail Drop 637E 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 
(602) 712-7124 
(602) 712-3132 Fax 

Town of Florence 
Attn: Wayne Costa 
775 N. Main Street 
P.O. Box 2670 
Florence, Arizona  
(928) 868-7558 
(928) 868-7558  Fax 

  
13. The Parties shall comply with the applicable requirements of Arizona Revised Statutes § 41-4401. 
 
14. Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes §§ 35-391.06 and 35-393.06, each Party certifies that it 

does not have a scrutinized business operation in Sudan or Iran.  For the purpose of this Section the term 
“scrutinized business operations” shall have the meanings set forth in Arizona Revised Statutes §§ 35-
391 and/or 35-393, as applicable.  If any Party determines that another Party submitted a false 
certification, that Party may impose remedies as provided by law including terminating this Agreement. 
 

15. The Parties hereto shall comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and ordinances, as 
may be amended. 

 
16. In accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes § 11-952 (D) attached hereto and incorporated 

herein is the written determination of each party’s legal counsel and that the Parties are authorized under 
the laws of this State to enter into this Agreement and that the Agreement is in proper form. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 Page 6  IGA/JPA 12-054-I 
 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first above written. 
 
TOWN OF FLORENCE       
 
 
 
 
 
By ______________________________ 
        TOM RANKIN 
        Mayor 

STATE OF ARIZONA  
Department of Transportation 
 
 
 
 
By ______________________________ 
       DALLAS HAMMIT, P.E. 
       Senior Deputy State Engineer, Development 

  
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
By ______________________________ 
        LISA GARCIA 
         Town Clerk 

 
 





 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
15a. 

MEETING DATE:  June 17, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Human Resources 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Scott Barber, HR Director 
 
SUBJECT:    FY 2013-2014 Employee Compensation  Plan  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  2013-014 Compensation Plan                                                  Meeting Date:  June 17, 2013 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Resolution No. 1402-13: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of  A RESOLUTION OF THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE FY2013-2014 EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND CLASSIFICATION 
PLANS, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Each year as part of the fiscal budget consideration and approval process, Council is 
requested to approve the employee classification and compensation plans for the 
upcoming year.  This includes new position classifications that are included in the 
budget proposal and the pay ranges assigned to them 
 
FY2013-2014 COMPENSATION/CLASSIFICATION STRUCTURE  
 
The recommended Employee Classification Plan – (Salary Range Order) identifies in 
descending Grade order, positions by job title, and the salary range Minimum, Midpoint, 
and Maximum.  This includes:  
• Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) position status. 

o E = Exempt / Salaried Position. 
o NE = Non-Exempt / Hourly Position, over-time eligible 

• Covered / Non-Covered position status  
o NC = Non Covered.  Position is classified as At-Will.  
o C = Covered.  Position is not At-Will.  Incumbent has appeal rights under 

Town Policy. 
• Adding five (5) classification titles as follows: 

1. Assistant Town Manager (assigned Grade Range 59) 
2. Associate Town Attorney (assigned Grade Range 57) 
3. Facilities Manager (assigned Grade Range 40) 
4. Utilities Director (assigned Grade Range 64) 
5. Fire Battalion Chief (assigned Grade Range 54) 



Subject:  2013-014 Compensation Plan                                                  Meeting Date:  June 17, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 

 
• Changing FLSA Exemption Status on classifications as already approved through 

the adoption of the new personnel policy.   
 
• Merit increases for all Town personnel; up to 4% based on performance.  Annual 

Performance Evaluations are performed based on the employee’s anniversary date. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The estimated financial impact is included in the FY2013-2014 budget proposal. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No.1402-13 approving: 

• FY2013-2014 Salary Schedule (no change from past year). 
• FY2013-2014 Employee Classification Plan 
• Merit Increases for all full-time and part-time staff for FY2013-2014 at a rate of up 

to 4%, based on performance. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1402-13 
Town of Florence, FY2013-2014 Classification Plan 
Town of Florence, FY2013-2014 Salary Schedule 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO 1402-13 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, ADOPTING THE RECOMMENDED TOWN OF FLORENCE 
FY2013-2014 EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND CLASSIFICATION 
PLANS, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.   

 
WHEREAS, it has been brought to the attention of the Mayor and Council that it 

is recommended all full-time and part-time staff members receive up to a 4% Merit 
Increase, based on performance, during FY 2013-2014; and . 

 
WHEREAS, it has been brought to the attention of the Mayor and Council that it 

is necessary and desirable that the Town of Florence approve the proposed employee 
classification plan and compensation plan effective July 1, 2013; and    
 

WHEREAS, it has been brought to the attention of the Mayor and Council that it 
is necessary and desirable that the Town of Florence establish new classifications 
within the Town of Florence Classification Plan dated July 1, 2013. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and Town Council  of 
Florence, Arizona, hereby adopts the Employee Classification and Compensation Plans 
for Fiscal Year 2013-2014; 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that it is necessary for the preservation of the 
peace, health and safety of the Town of Florence, Arizona that an emergency is 
declared to exist and this Resolution shall therefore be effective immediately upon its 
passage and adoption. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Council this 17th day of June, 2013. 
 
 
 
       ______      
       Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
    
 
   _______         
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk     James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 



Town of Florence
FY 2013-2014 Classification Plan

Salary Ranges Per Job Class -  (Salary Range Order)

Page 1 of 6

Salary 
Range

Minimum Midpoint Maximum

Town Manager

Town Magistrate

* Town Attorney

Deputy Town Manager 69 $80,919 $105,089 $129,260 E NC

* Police Chief 68 $78,945 $102,526 $126,107 E NC

* Public Works Director 67 $77,020 $100,026 $123,031 E NC

* Fire Chief 66 $75,141 $97,586 $120,031 E NC

* Finance Director 65 $73,308 $95,206 $117,103 E NC

Utilities Director 64 $71,520 $92,884 $114,247

* Community Development Director 63 $69,776 $90,618 $111,460 E NC

* Parks & Recreation Director 62 $68,074 $88,408 $108,742 E NC

61 $66,414 $86,252 $106,090

* Human Resource Director 60 $64,794 $84,148 $103,502 E NC

Assistant Town Manager 59 $63,214 $82,096 $100,978 E NC
Deputy Public Works Director 59 $63,214 $82,096 $100,978 E NC

* Information Technology Manager 59 $63,214 $82,096 $100,978 E NC

* Police Lieutenant 58 $61,672 $80,093 $98,515 E NC

Associate Town Attorney 57 $60,168 $78,140 $96,112         E         NC
Senior Civil Engineer 57 $60,168 $78,140 $96,112 E NC

* Town Clerk 56 $58,700 $76,234 $93,768 E NC

* Library Director 55 $57,268 $74,375 $91,481 E NC

CONTRACT

Covered / 
Non-

covered
FLSA

Effective 07/01/2013
Occupational Job Families and Job Classes

CONTRACT

CONTRACT

*Salary Survey Benchmark
PSPC TOWN OF FLORENCE MAY 31, 2013



Town of Florence
FY 2013-2014 Classification Plan

Salary Ranges Per Job Class -  (Salary Range Order)

Page 2 of 6

Salary 
Range

Minimum Midpoint Maximum

Covered / 
Non-

covered
FLSA

Effective 07/01/2013
Occupational Job Families and Job Classes

Fire Battalion Chief 54 $56,960 $72,561 $88,161 E NC
Fire Marshal 54 $56,960 $72,561 $88,161 E NC

Special District Manager 53 $55,571 $70,791 $86,011 E NC

52 $54,215 $69,064 $83,913

* Senior Planner 51 $52,893 $67,380 $81,866 E NC

* GIS Coordinator 50 $51,603 $65,736 $79,870 E NC
* Police Sergeant 50 $51,603 $65,736 $79,870 NE C
* Public Works Superintendent 50 $51,603 $65,736 $79,870 E NC

Assistant to Town Manager 49 $50,344 $64,133 $77,922 E NC
Network Analyst 49 $50,344 $64,133 $77,922 E C

Police Support Services Manager 48 $49,116 $62,569 $76,021 E NC
* Public Works Project Manager 48 $49,116 $62,569 $76,021 E NC

Economic Development Coordinator 47 $47,918 $61,043 $74,167 E NC
* Grants Coordinator 47 $47,918 $61,043 $74,167 E NC
* Utility Superintendent 47 $47,918 $61,043 $74,167 E NC

* Associate Engineer 46 $46,750 $59,554 $72,358 E C
* Fire Captain 46 $46,750 $59,554 $72,358 NE C
* Police Detective 46 $46,750 $59,554 $72,358 NE C

45 $45,610 $58,101 $70,593

Town Planner 44 $44,497 $56,684 $68,871 E C

* Court Administrator 43 $43,412 $55,302 $67,191 E NC

* Senior Building Inspector 42 $42,353 $53,953 $65,553 E C
* Certified Police Officer 42 $42,353 $53,953 $65,553 NE C
* Public Safety Communications Supervisor 42 $42,353 $53,953 $65,553 NE C

41 $41,320 $52,637 $63,954

Facilities Manager 40 $40,312 $51,353 $62,394 NE C
* Fire Engineer 40 $40,312 $51,353 $62,394 NE C

* Accountant 39 $39,329 $50,101 $60,872 NE C

*Salary Survey Benchmark
PSPC TOWN OF FLORENCE MAY 31, 2013



Town of Florence
FY 2013-2014 Classification Plan

Salary Ranges Per Job Class -  (Salary Range Order)

Page 3 of 6

Salary 
Range

Minimum Midpoint Maximum

Covered / 
Non-

covered
FLSA

Effective 07/01/2013
Occupational Job Families and Job Classes

Crime Analyst 38 $38,370 $48,879 $59,387 NE C
* Information Technology Technician 38 $38,370 $48,879 $59,387 NE C

Maintenance Foreman 38 $38,370 $48,879 $59,387 NE C

* Deputy Town Clerk 37 $37,434 $47,686 $57,939 NE C
Human Resource Coordinator 37 $37,434 $47,686 $57,939 NE C

* Building Inspector 36 $36,521 $46,523 $56,526 NE C
Field Foreman 36 $36,521 $46,523 $56,526 NE C

* Firefighter 36 $36,521 $46,523 $56,526 NE C
* Parks Maintenance Foreman 36 $36,521 $46,523 $56,526 NE C

*Salary Survey Benchmark
PSPC TOWN OF FLORENCE MAY 31, 2013



Town of Florence
FY 2013-2014 Classification Plan

Salary Ranges Per Job Class -  (Salary Range Order)

Page 4 of 6

Salary 
Range

Minimum Midpoint Maximum

Covered / 
Non-

covered
FLSA

Effective 07/01/2013
Occupational Job Families and Job Classes

35 $36,992 $45,389 $53,786

Senior Treatment Plant Operator 34 $36,089 $44,282 $52,474 NE C
Public Safety Dispatcher, Lead 34 $36,089 $44,282 $52,474 NE C

* Office Supervisor 34 $36,089 $44,282 $52,474 NE C
* Recreation Coordinator 34 $36,089 $44,282 $52,474 NE C

Senior Center Coordinator 34 $36,089 $44,282 $52,474 NE C

* Payroll Specialist 33 $35,209 $43,202 $51,194 NE C

* Auto Mechanic 32 $34,350 $42,148 $49,945 NE C
* Code Compliance Officer 32 $34,350 $42,148 $49,945 NE C
* Public Works Maintenance Worker III 32 $34,350 $42,148 $49,945 NE C

Sanitation Worker III 32 $34,350 $42,148 $49,945 NE C

* Librarian 31 $33,513 $41,120 $48,727 NE C

Engineering Technician Assistant 30 $32,695 $40,117 $47,539 NE C
* Public Safety Dispatcher 30 $32,695 $40,117 $47,539 NE C
* Police Evidence Technician 30 $32,695 $40,117 $47,539 NE C

* Administrative Assistant 29 $31,898 $39,138 $46,379 NE C
Senior Court Clerk 29 $31,898 $39,138 $46,379 NE C

* Water Plant Operator 29 $31,898 $39,138 $46,379 NE C

Assessment Specialist 28 $31,120 $38,184 $45,248 NE C
* Recreation Programmer 28 $31,120 $38,184 $45,248 NE C

Utility Service Representative 28 $31,120 $38,184 $45,248 NE C
* Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator 28 $31,120 $38,184 $45,248 NE C

* Permit Specialist 27 $30,361 $37,253 $44,144 NE C
* Utility Systems Operator 27 $30,361 $37,253 $44,144 NE C

Parks Maintenance Worker II 26 $29,620 $36,344 $43,068 NE C
* Public Works Maintenance Worker II 26 $29,620 $36,344 $43,068 NE C

Sanitation Worker II 26 $29,620 $36,344 $43,068 NE C

25 $28,898 $35,458 $42,017

Utility Services Operator 24 $28,193 $34,593 $40,992 NE C

*Salary Survey Benchmark
PSPC TOWN OF FLORENCE MAY 31, 2013



Town of Florence
FY 2013-2014 Classification Plan

Salary Ranges Per Job Class -  (Salary Range Order)

Page 5 of 6

Salary 
Range

Minimum Midpoint Maximum

Covered / 
Non-

covered
FLSA

Effective 07/01/2013
Occupational Job Families and Job Classes

* Municipal Court Clerk 23 $28,687 $33,749 $38,811 NE C

* Parks Maintenance Worker I 22 $27,987 $32,926 $37,865 NE C
* Police Records Clerk 22 $27,987 $32,926 $37,865 NE C
* Public Works Maintenance Worker I 22 $27,987 $32,926 $37,865 NE C

Sanitation Worker I 22 $27,987 $32,926 $37,865 NE C

* Library Assistant 21 $27,304 $32,123 $36,941 NE C
* Office Assistant 21 $27,304 $32,123 $36,941 NE C

Public Works Operations Technician 21 $27,304 $32,123 $36,941 NE C
Senior Center Assistant 21 $27,304 $32,123 $36,941 NE C

20 $26,638 $31,339 $36,040

* Public Works Shop Maintenance Worker 19 $25,989 $30,575 $35,161 NE C

Fitness Trainer 18 $25,355 $29,829 $34,304 NE C
Pool Manager 18 $25,355 $29,829 $34,304 NE C

Office Aide 17 $24,736 $29,102 $33,467 NE C

* Custodial Maintenance Worker 16 $24,133 $28,392 $32,651 NE C

* Library Aide 15 $23,270 $27,377 $31,483 NE C

14 $22,969 $27,022 $31,075
13 $22,408 $26,363 $30,317
12 $21,862 $25,720 $29,578

Head Lifeguard 11 $21,329 $25,092 $28,856 NE C
Recreation Leader III 11 $21,329 $25,092 $28,856 NE C

10 $20,808 $24,480 $28,152
9 $20,301 $23,883 $27,466
8 $19,806 $23,301 $26,796
7 $19,323 $22,732 $26,142
6 18,851 22,178 25,505

Lifeguard II 5 $18,392 $21,637 $24,883  NE C
Recreation Leader II 5 $18,392 $21,637 $24,883 NE C

4 $17,943 $21,109 $24,276
3 $17,505 $20,594 $23,684
2 $17,078 $20,092 $23,106

Lifeguard I 1 $16,662 $19,602 $22,542 NE C
Recreation Leader I 1 $16,662 $19,602 $22,542 NE C
Student Trainee 1 $16,662 $19,602 $22,542 NE C

*Salary Survey Benchmark
PSPC TOWN OF FLORENCE MAY 31, 2013



Town of Florence
FY 2013-2014 Classification Plan

Salary Ranges Per Job Class -  (Salary Range Order)

Page 6 of 6

Salary 
Range

Minimum Midpoint Maximum

Covered / 
Non-

covered
FLSA

Effective 07/01/2013
Occupational Job Families and Job Classes

Part Time Captain PT46 $16.96 $21.61 $26.25 NE C
Part Time Engineer PT40 $14.63 $18.63 $22.64 NE C
Part Time Firefighter PT36 $13.25 $16.88 $20.51 NE C
Part Time Firefighter Recruit PT30 $11.86 NE C

 
ALS Paramedic Certification Pay shall be established as 10% of Firefighter Midpoint Pay Rate Value

Special Pay Assignment of 5% for Lead Police Officers and Special Task Assignments

Uncertifed Officers paid 10% less Certified Officer minumum scale.

*Salary Survey Benchmark
PSPC TOWN OF FLORENCE MAY 31, 2013







 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
15b. 

MEETING DATE:  June 17, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works  
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Wayne J. Costa 
                                     Public Works Director/Town Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:    Transfer station services for residents 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Transfer Station Services                                                       Meeting Date:  June 17, 2013 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of amending the Disposal Agreement with Johnson 
Utilities Company, dated April 7, 2003, in order to provide transfer station services for 
residents. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 

A Request for Proposal (RFP) was written on April 18, 2013, to provide self-haul 
transfer station operations for the disposal of solid waste by Town of Florence residents. 
 
Staff received bids in accordance with the attached Bid Tabulation Sheet for a) 
transporting (self-haul) of solid waste by residents, b) disposal of solid waste as 
transported by residents and/or Town, and c) providing proper transportation and/or 
disposal operation of solid waste transported to their facility. 
 
The amended Disposal Agreement addressed mutually amended terms of the 
Agreement for the benefit of the Town and Johnson Utilities Co. (JUC). 
 
This amended agreement includes: 

• Disposal Services start date of Monday, July 1, 2013 
• Free solid waste disposal for self-haul by the Town’s residents (included in 

monthly user fee or reimbursement by the Town) 
• One (1) year term with Town option for four (4) additional one (1) year terms  
• Ability to renegotiate “operational issues” twelve (12) months after services 

commence 
• Annual increases for JUC based on CPI index, capped at 4% regardless of the 

GPI index increase 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
For the residents: 



Subject:  Transfer Station Services                                                       Meeting Date:  June 17, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 

• Included in monthly user fee  
• Provides solid waste disposal services via self-haul 

 
For the Town: 

• Reducing cost of solid waste disposal for the town of Florence annually 
• Streamlines disposal service delivery system below current rates 
• Reduce cost of sanitation landfill costs by at least $12,386 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the approval of the Amended Disposal Agreement between the Town 
of Florence and Johnson Utilities Company. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Disposal Agreement Addendum 
Bid Tabulation Sheet 
Request for Proposal (Landfill or Transfer Station Services for Residents) 















   

 

 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, AZ 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

Landfill or Transfer Station Services for Residents  

 
SUBMITTAL DUE DATE AND TIME:  

SUBMITTAL LOCATION:  

 
 

 
GENERAL OR RFP PROCESS 

QUESTIONS: 
 
 
 

TECHNICAL QUESTIONS:  
 

 

 April 18, 2013  at 10:00 A.M. LOCAL AZ TIME  

Town of Florence 
Town Hall 
775 N. Main Street 
P.O. Box 2670 
Florence, AZ  85132 
 
Wayne Costa, Public Works Director 
(520) 856-7617 
Wayne.Costa@florenceaz.gov 
 
Wayne Costa 
Public Works Director 
(520) 868-7617 
Wayne.Costa@florenceaz.gov 
 

Notice is hereby given that sealed proposals for the specified materials or services will be received at 
the Town of Florence, Town Hall, located at 775 N. Main Street, Florence, AZ 85132, until the time and 
date cited.  Late proposals will not be considered. 

One original and six (6) copies of the proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope with the 
proposal name, proposal number, Offeror’s name, address and telephone number clearly indicated on 
the envelope.  All proposals must be submitted in ink or typewritten.  No oral, telegraphic, electronic, 
facsimile, or telephonic proposals or modifications will be considered unless specified.  Additional 
instructions for preparing an offer are provided within.   Offerors are strongly encouraged to 
carefully read the entire solicitation. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  VENDOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING A NY AMENDMENTS EITHER 
THROUGH UPDATES ON THE WEB SITE, OR BY CONTACTING T HE PERSON CITED ABOVE 
FOR GENERAL QUESTIONS.   



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 2 
   

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS  
 
 PAGE NO. 

Table of Contents 2 

Solicitation Submittal Checklist 3 

Instructions To Offeror 4 – 6  

Standard Terms And Conditions 7 – 11 

Special Terms And Conditions 12 – 13  

Scope of Services 14 – 15  

Proposal Format and Required Responses 16 – 17  

Price Page 18 

Offer Sheet 19 

Exhibit A – Insurance 

Sample Town of Florence Contract 

20-22 

23-46 

End Table of Contents  

  



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 3 
   

 

 

SOLICITATION SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST 
 

  
It is the Bidder's/Offeror’s responsibility to be thoroughly familiar with all requirements and specifications. 
 
□ 1. The Offer Sheet has been signed by an authorized representative of the firm.  

Unsigned solicitations will not be considered.   

□ 2. The prices offered have been reviewed. 

□ 3. Unit prices will prevail. 

□ 4. Any amendments have been signed and are included.  It is the Vendor’s responsibility 
to obtain all amendments relevant to this solicitation via the Town’s Web site or other 
means. 

□ 5. Review all instructions, terms and conditions, and specifications to ensure your 
response complies. 

□ 6. Any required samples, descriptive literature, or enclosures have been included, if 
applicable.  (Identify samples with Vendor’s name and solicitation number.) 

□ 7. All items listed on the Proposal Format and Require d Responses section have 
been included. 

□ 8. If required, the bid surety has been included.  

□ 9. Solicitation Package and/or Envelope have been identified with Vendor’s name, 
address, telephone number, and solicitation title. 

□ 10. The specified number of copies of your offer has been included if more than one 
copy was requested on the cover page.  

 

  
 
 
 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 4 
   

 

 

INSTRUCTIONS TO OFFEROR 
  
1. Preparation of Proposal:   
 

a. Telegraphic (facsimile) or Mailgram proposals will not be considered.  
b. The offer document shall be submitted with an original ink signature by a person authorized to sign the 

offer.  
c. Erasures, interlineations, or other modifications in the proposal shall be initialed in original ink by the 

authorized person signing the Offer. 
d. The unit price shall govern.  No proposal shall be altered, amended, or withdrawn after the specified 

proposal due date and time.  
e. Periods of time, stated as a number of days, shall be calendar days.  
f. It is the responsibility of all Offerors to examine the entire Request For Proposal package and seek 

clarification of any item or requirement and to check all responses for accuracy before submitting a 
proposal.  Negligence in preparing a Proposal confers no right of withdrawal after proposal due date and 
time.  

  
2. Inquiries:  Any question related to the Request For Proposal shall be directed in writing or via e-mail only  to 

the person whose name appears on the cover page.  Any correspondence related to a Request For Proposal 
should refer to the appropriate Request for Proposal ID, page, and paragraph number.  However, the Offeror 
shall not place the Request For Proposal ID on the outside of any envelope containing questions since such 
an envelope may be identified as a sealed proposal and may not be opened until after the official Request For 
Proposal due date and time.  
 
Questions, requests for clarification, or requests for additional information regarding the RFP content should 
be submitted in writing via email to Wayne J. Costa at the address listed on or before 12:00 noon, April 15, 
2013. 
 
Questions will be answered to the greatest degree possible through the Town’s website and also through 
written correspondence that will be addressed to all parties that submitted a letter of intent.  All questions will 
be answered in writing and posted on the Town’s website by April 16, 2013, unless otherwise noted.  No oral 
communications can be relied upon for this Proposal. 

3. Due Date and Time:  Offerors must submit proposals to the Florence Town Hall, Town Clerk’s Office by 
10:00 AM/Local AZ time on April 18, 2013, at the address or physical location listed on the cover page.   Late 
proposals are not accepted.   

 
4. Withdrawal of Proposal:   At any time prior to the specified proposal due date and time, an Offeror (or 

designated representative) may withdraw the proposal by submitting a request in writing or via e-mail to the 
contact person whose name appears on the front page.  Request must be made by a duly authorized 
representative of the Offeror.  Offeror is responsible for making arrangements and expenses associated with 
the return of proposal.      

 
5. Amendment of Proposal:  Receipt of an RFP Amendment shall be acknowledged by signing and returning 

the document with the proposal by the specified proposal due date and time.  Potential Offerors are 
responsible for obtaining all amendments relevant to this solicitation. 
 

6. Proposal Opening:  Proposals shall be opened at the time and place designated on the cover page of this 
document.  The name of each Offeror and the identity of the Request for Proposals for which the proposal 
was submitted shall be publicly read and recorded in the presence of a witness.  Proposals, modifications, 
and all other information received in response of this Request for Proposal shall be shown only to Town 
personnel having legitimate interest in the evaluation.  PRICES SHALL NOT BE READ.  After award of the 
proposal, the successful proposal and the evaluation documentation shall be open for public inspection. 

 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 5 
   

 

7. Confidential Information :   
   
a. If a person believes that a proposal, offer, specification, or protest contains information that should be 

withheld, a statement advising the Town of this fact shall accompany the submission and the information 
shall be identified.  

b. The information identified by the person as confidential shall not be disclosed until the Town makes a 
written determination whether the information must be disclosed under Arizona law.  If the Town 
determines that the information must be disclosed, Town will provide the proposer with notice of such 
fact, and that the proposer has five (5) days within which to file a legal action protesting the planned 
disclosure.  If no legal action is taken within the time specified, the Town will disclose the information and 
will not be responsible for any claims or losses arising from our related to such disclosure. 
 

8. Offer Acceptance Period:  In order to allow for an adequate evaluation, the Town requires an offer in 
response to this Solicitation to be valid and irrevocable for ninety (90) days after the opening time and date 
and each Offeror agrees that it will hold open its offer for such period.  

9. Taxes:   Sales tax, if any, shall be indicated as a separate item on any notice of amount due delivered to the 
Town. 
 

10. Award of Contract:   Notwithstanding any other provision of this Request For Proposal, The Town expressly 
reserves the right, when determining whether to award a contract to an Offeror, to:  
  
a. Waive any immaterial defect or informality: or  
b. Reject any or all proposals, or portions thereof, or  
c. Reissue a Request For Proposal  
d. Unless the Offeror states otherwise, the Town reserves the right to award by individual line item, by group 

of line items, or as a total, whichever is deemed most advantageous to the Town.  If the Offeror’s offer is 
an “all or nothing” offer, it must be so indicated on the offer sheet.  

e. Issuing addenda to the RFP, including extending or revising the timeline for submittals. 
f. Requesting clarification or additional information from the PROPOSER at any time during the 

procurement process. 
g. Executing an Agreement with a PROPOSER on the basis of the original proposals and/or any other 

information submitted by the PROPOSERS during a Best and Final Offer process. 
h. Negotiating with more than one PROPOSER. 
i. Discontinuing negotiations after commencing negotiations with a selected PROPOSER if progress is 

unsatisfactory in the sole judgment of the Town, and commencing negotiations with another qualified 
PROPOSER. 

j. Take any other action it deems necessary in its best interest. 
k. Deviate from the selection process otherwise outlined in this RFP. 
 

11. Contract Applicability :  The Offeror shall substantially conform to the terms, conditions, specifications, and 
other requirements found within the text of this specific RFP.  All previous agreements, contracts, or other 
documents, which have been executed between the Offeror and the Town, are not applicable to this RFP or 
any resultant contract.    
 

12. Gratuities : The Town may, by written notice to the Offeror, cancel the resultant contract if it is found by the 
Town that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered or given by the Offeror or 
any agent or representative of the Offeror, to any officer or employee of the Town with a view toward securing 
an order, securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding, amending, or the making of any 
determinations with respect to the performing of such order.  In the event the Town pursuant to this provision 
cancels the resultant contract, the Town shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to 
recover or withhold from the Contractor the amount of gratuity.  Paying the expense of normal business 
meals, which are generally made available to all eligible Town government customers, shall not be prohibited 
by this paragraph.  
 

13. Cost of Bid/Proposal :  The Town shall not reimburse the cost of developing or providing any response to 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 6 
   

 

this RFP and development and provision of any offer shall be at the respective Offeror’s sole cost. Offers 
submitted for consideration should be prepared simply and economically, providing adequate information in a 
straightforward and concise manner.  

  
14. Public Record :  All offers submitted in response to this RFP, whether or not accepted by the town, shall 

become a matter of public record available for review, subsequent to the award notification, in accordance 
with the Town’s Procurement Policy.  
 

15. Certification : By signature in the Offer section of the Offer Award Page, the Offeror certifies that: 
a. The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices. 
b. The Offeror shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment in violation of the 

Federal Executive Order 11246 
c. The Offeror has not given or offered to give, and does not intend to give at any time hereafter any 

economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip favor, or service to a 
public servant in connection with the submitted offer.   

d. Failure to sign the offer, or the falsity of a statement in a signed offer, shall void the submitted offer or any 
resulting contracts, and the Offeror may be debarred. 
 

16. After award of a contract pursuant to this RFP (if any) the successful Offeror (if any) shall be referred to as the 
“Vendor” and thus the terms Offeror, Vendor, Contractor and Consultant may be utilized interchangeably in 
those provisions of this RFP dealing with the terms of the resultant contract, if any. 
 

17. Execution of Contract :  No contract or agreement, express or implied, shall exist or be binding on the Town 
before the execution of a written contract by both parties.  If agreement on the terms of a resultant contract 
cannot be reached after a period deemed reasonable by the Town in its sole discretion, the Town may 
negotiate and enter a contract with any other Vendor who submitted a timely, responsive and responsible 
proposal to this RFP.  
 

18. RFP Error :  If Vendor discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission, or other error in the RFP, the 
Vendor shall immediately provide the Town with written notice of the problem and request that the RFP be 
clarified or modified.  Without disclosing the source of the request, the Town may modify the document prior 
to the dates fixed for submission of the proposals by issuing an addendum to all potential Vendors.  If prior to 
the date fixed for submission, a Vendor knows of or should have known of an error in the RFP, but fails to 
notify the Town of the error, the Vendor shall bid at its own risk, and if awarded the contract shall not be 
entitled to additional compensation or time by reason of the error or its later correction. 

19. Lobbying Prohibition :   Any communication regarding this solicitation for the purpose of influencing the 
process or the award, between any person or affiliates seeking an award from this solicitation and the Town, 
including but not limited to the Town Council, employees, and consultants hired to assist in the solicitation, is 
prohibited. 

This prohibition is imposed from the time of the first public notice of the solicitation until the Town cancels the 
solicitation, rejects all responses, awards a contract, or otherwise takes action which ends the solicitation 
process.  This section shall not prohibit public comment at any Town Council meeting, study session or Town 
committee meeting 

This prohibition shall not apply to communication with the official contact(s) specifically identified in the 
solicitation or Town-initiated communications for the purposes of conducting the procurement, and in the 
manner prescribed in the solicitation, including but not limited to pre-bid conferences, clarification of 
responses, presentations if provided for in the solicitation, requests for Best and Final Proposals, contract 
negotiations, interviews, protest/appeal resolution, or surveying non-responsive vendors. 

Violations of this provision shall be reported to Purchasing.   Persons and/or entities violating this prohibition 
may be subject to a warning letter, rejection of their response, or debarment by the Town, in the Town’s 
discretion, depending on the nature of the violation. 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 7 
   

 

 
 
 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS  
 
1. Definitions 

a. The "Contract" is set forth in the RFP and Contract Form and includes as part of the specifications the 
Instructions to Offeror, Standard Terms and Conditions, Special Terms and Conditions, and Scope of 
Services, to the extent they exist (collectively “Contract Documents”). 

b. The "Work" of the Contractor shall consist of furnishing all labor, materials, equipment, tools, machinery, 
supplies, transportation, traffic control, supervision services, etc., necessary for the completion of the 
Project.  

c. The authorized representative of the Town shall be the Town Manager, or his/her designee. 
 

2. Authority:   This Solicitation as well as any resultant contract(s) is issued under the authority of the Town. No 
alteration of any resultant contract may be made without the express written approval of the Town in the form 
of an official contract amendment.  Any attempt to alter any contract without such approval is a violation of the 
contract.  Any such action is subject to the legal and contractual remedies available to the Town inclusive of, 
but not limited to, contract cancellation, suspension and/or debarment of the contractor.  
 

3. Applicable Law :  In the performance of the resultant contract, Contractors shall abide by and conform to any 
and all laws of the United States, State of Arizona, Pinal County, and the Town of Florence including but not 
limited to federal and state executive orders providing for equal opportunities, the Federal Occupational 
Safety and Health Act and any other federal, state, county or local laws applicable to the contract.   
 
The resultant contract shall be governed by the State of Arizona and suit pertaining to the contract may be 
brought only in courts in the State of Arizona.    
 
The contract is subject to the provisions of ARS §38-511; the Town may cancel the contract without penalty or 
further obligations by the Town or any of its departments or agencies if any person significantly involved in 
initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or creating the contract on behalf of the Town or any of its 
departments or agencies, is at any time while the contract or any extension of the contract is in effect, an 
employee of any other party to the contract in any capacity, or a consultant to any other party of the contract 
with respect to the subject matter of the contract. 

 
4. Legal Remedies : All claims and controversies shall be subject to resolution according to the terms of the 

Town of Florence Purchasing Policy.  
 

5. Contract : The resultant contract between the Town of Florence and the Contractor shall include the: (1) RFP, 
including instructions, all terms and conditions, specifications, scope of work, attachments, and any 
amendments thereto and the Contract Documents, and (2) the offer submitted by the Offeror in response to 
the RFP only to the extent it is consistent with the RFP terms and Contract Documents.  In the event of a 
conflict in language between the RFP and the Offer, the provisions and requirements of the RFP shall govern.  
In event of a conflict in language between the RFP and the Contract, the provisions and requirements of the 
Contract shall govern.  The Town reserves the right to clarify in writing, any contractual terms with the 
concurrence of the Offeror. The RFP shall govern in all matters not addressed in the Contract. 

6. Contract Amendments:  Any contract resulting from this solicitation shall be modified only by a written 
contract amendment signed by the Town of Florence and persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on 
behalf of the Contractor. 

7. Non-Exclusive Contract:  Any contract resulting from this solicitation shall be awarded with the 
understanding and agreement that it is for the sole convenience of the Town of Florence.  The Town reserves 
the right to obtain like goods or services from another source when necessary in the sole discretion of the 
Town. 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 8 
   

 

 
8. Multiple Awards:   A contract under this proposal may be awarded to multiple vendors. The Town reserves 

the right to make multiple awards to more than one offeror.  
 

9. Relationship of Parties : It is clearly understood that each party will act in its individual capacity and not as 
an agent, employee, partner, joint venturer, or associate of the other.  An employee or agent of one party 
shall not be deemed or construed to be the employee or agent of the other for any purpose whatsoever.  The 
Offeror is advised that taxes or Social Security payments will not be withheld from any Town payments issued 
hereunder and that the Offeror should make arrangements to directly pay such expenses, if any.   
 

10. Subcontracts : The Contractor shall enter into no subcontract with any other party to furnish any of the 
material, service, or construction specified herein without the advance written approval of the Town.  The 
Contractor is responsible for contract performance whether or not Subcontractors are used.  
 

11. Payment:   The Town will make every effort to process payment for the purchase of goods or services within 
sixty (60) calendar days after receipt of goods or services and a correct notice of amount due, unless a good 
faith dispute exists as to any obligation to pay all or a portion of the account.  A Town issued purchase order 
is required prior to any services being rendered.   

 
12. Indemnification : Any resultant contract shall contain the following indemnification:  

 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, the contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Town of 
Florence and its officers, officials, agents and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and 
expenses (including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, court costs, and the costs of any appellate 
proceedings), arising out of, alleged to have arisen out of, related to, or resulting from the performance of the 
work or the delivery of goods or materials under the contract. In addition, the contractor shall, at his or her 
own expense, defend the Town of Florence in all litigation, pay all attorney’s fees, damages, court costs and 
other expenses arising out of the litigation of claim or incurred in connection therewith; and shall at his or her 
own expense, satisfy and cause to be discharged such judgments as may be obtained against the Town or 
any of its officers, agents and employees. 
 
In any and all claims against the Town of Florence and its officers, agents and employees, by any employee 
of the contractor and / or subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for 
whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation shall not be limited in any way by the 
amount and type of insurance coverage that Contractor is required to obtain, any limitation on the amount or 
type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the contractor or any subcontractor under 
Worker’s Compensation acts, disability benefits acts or other employee benefits acts. 

 
13. Overcharges by Antitrust Violations : The Town maintains that, in practice, overcharges resulting from 

antitrust violations are borne by the purchaser.  Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, the Contractor 
hereby assigns to the Town any and all claims for such overcharges as to the goods and services used to 
fulfill the Contract. 

  
14. Force Majeure :  Except for payment for sums due, neither party shall be liable to the other not deemed in 

default under the resultant contract if and to the extent that such party’s performance of the contract is 
prevented by reason of force majeure.  The term “force majeure” means an occurrence that is beyond the 
control of the party affected and occurs without its fault or negligence. Without limiting the foregoing, force 
majeure includes acts of God; acts of the public enemy; war; riots; strikes; mobilization; labor disputes; civil 
disorders; fire; floods; lockouts; injunctions, intervention, acts, or failures or refusals to act by government 
authority; and other similar occurrences beyond the control of the party declaring force majeure which such 
party is unable to prevent by exercising reasonable diligence.  The force majeure shall be deemed to 
commence when the party declaring force majeure notifies the other party in writing of the existence of the 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 9 
   

 

force majeure and shall be deemed to continue as long as the results or effects of the force majeure prevent 
the party, exercising reasonable diligence, from resuming performance in accordance with the resultant 
contract.  Force Majeure shall not include the following occurrences: 
 
a. Late delivery of equipment or materials caused by congestion at a manufacturer’s plant or elsewhere, an 

oversold condition of the market, inefficiencies, or similar occurrences.    
b. Late performance by a subcontractor unless the delay arises out of a force majeure occurrence in 

accordance with this force majeure term and condition. 
 
Any delay or failure in performance by either party hereto shall not constitute default hereunder or give rise to 
any claim for damages or loss of anticipated profits if, and to the extent that such delay or failure is caused by 
force majeure.  If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of work by force majeure, then the 
delayed party shall notify the other party in writing of such delay within forty-eight (48) hours commencement 
thereof and shall specify the causes of such delay in such notice.  Such notice shall be hand delivered or 
mailed certified-return receipt requested and shall make specific reference to this article, thereby invoking its 
provisions.  The delayed party shall cause such delay to cease as soon as practicable and shall notify the 
other party in writing of the end of the majeure delay.  The time of completion shall be extended by contract 
modification for a period of time equal to the time that the results or effects of such delay prevent the delayed 
party from performing in accordance with the resultant contract.  
  

15. Right to Assurance :  Whenever one party to the resultant contract in good faith has reason to question the 
other party’s intent to perform the questioning party may demand that the other party give written assurance 
of this intent to perform.  In the event that a demand is made and no written assurance is given within five (5) 
days, the demanding party may treat this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the Contract.  

 
16. Right to Audit Records :  The Town may, at reasonable times and places, audit the books and records of 

any contractor as related to any contract held with the Town and the Contractor shall reasonably cooperate 
with such audit. 

  
17. Right to Inspect Place of Business :  The Town may, at reasonable times inspect the place of business of a 

contractor or subcontractor which is related to the performance of any contract as awarded or to be awarded, 
and the Contractor shall reasonably cooperate with such inspection, and reserve such inspection right to the 
Town in any agreement with any subcontractor. 
 

18. Inspection :  All material and/or services are subject to final inspection and acceptance by the Town. If  
materials and/or services provided by the Contractor fail, in the Town’s reasonable judgment, to conform to 
the specifications of the resultant contract the Town may elect, in the Town’s sole discretion to do any or all of 
the following, which shall be cumulative and non-exclusive:   

  
a. Hold such non-conforming goods at the Contractor’s risk;  
b. Return such non-conforming goods to the Contractor, in which event all costs, including the cost of 

bringing such goods into compliance, will be the responsibility of the Contractor;  
c. Waive the non-conformance; and 
d. Direct the contractor to stop the work immediately 

 
19. Confidentiality of Records : The contractor shall establish and maintain procedures and controls that are 

acceptable to the Town for the purpose of assuring that information contained in its records or obtained from 
the Town remains confidential pursuant to applicable requirements. 
 

20. Liens :  The Contractor shall cause all materials, service or construction provided or performed under the 
resultant contract to be free of all liens, and if the Town requests, Contractor shall deliver appropriate written 
releases, in statutory form of all liens to the Town.    



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 10 
   

 

 
21. Licenses : Contractor shall maintain in current status all Federal, State, and Local licenses and permits 

required for the operation of the business conducted by the Contractor and the services to be performed 
under the resultant contract 
 

22. Permits and Responsibilities:  The Contractor shall, without additional expense to the Town, be responsible 
for obtaining any necessary licenses and permits and for complying with any applicable Federal, State and 
Municipal Laws, codes and regulations in connection with the execution of the work. 
 

23. Patents and Copyrights : All services, information, computer program elements, reports and other 
deliverables, which may be patented or copyrighted and created under this RFP or the resultant contract are 
the property of the Town and shall not be used or released by the Contractor or any other person except with 
the prior written permission of the Town.  
 

24. Sales and Use Tax : The Vendor agrees to comply with and to require all of his subcontractors to comply with 
all provisions of the Arizona State Sales Tax Law and Compensation Use Tax Law and all amendments to 
same.  The Vendor further agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Town of Florence, Arizona, of and from 
any and all claims and demands made against it by virtue of the failure of the Vendor or any subcontractor to 
comply with the provisions of any or all said laws and amendments. 
 

25. Termination for Non-Appropriation:  Any contract entered into by the Town shall automatically terminate at 
the end of the then current fiscal period for non-appropriation of funds if the Town’s governing body fails to 
appropriate funds to pay for the payments contemplated by the contract.  The Town’s fiscal period ends June 
30th of each year. 
 

26. Termination for Convenience: Town reserves the right to terminate the resultant contract or any part thereof 
for its sole convenience with thirty (30) days written notice. Contractor shall receive payment for the goods 
and materials already shipped to the Town, provided such goods and materials are received by the Town and 
conform to the requirements of the applicable contract. 
 

27. Termination for Cause/Remedies:   The Town reserves the right to terminate the contract or any part thereof 
for cause, upon such written notice shall be reasonable in the circumstances.  Cause as used herein shall 
include but not be limited to: 

 
a. The contractor provides material that does not meet the specifications of the contract; 
b. The contractor fails to adequately perform the services set forth in the contract; 
c. The contractor fails to complete the work required or to furnish the materials required within the time 

stipulated in the contract; 
d. The contractor fails to make progress in the performance of the contract and/or gives the Town reason to 

believe that the contractor will not or cannot perform to the requirements of the contract. 
 
The contractor shall have ten (10) days from receipt of the Town’s written notice to provide a satisfactory 
response to the Town regarding the cause and the steps the contractor has or will undertake to address all 
issues of concern.  In the event the contractor fails to address any issue of concern the Town may, at its sole 
option, pursue one or more of the following remedies: 

a. Cancel any contract;   
b. Reserve all rights or claims to damage for breach of any covenants of the contract;  
c. In case of default, the Town reserves the right to purchase materials, or to complete the required work.  The 

Town may recover any actual excess costs from the contractor by:  
 

i. Deduction from an unpaid balance;  



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 11 
   

 

ii. Collection against the bid and/or performance bond, or;  
iii. Any combination of the above or any other remedies as provided by law.  

 
28. Waiver:   One ore more waivers by Town of any provision, term or requirement of this Contract, or breach 

thereof, shall not be construed as a waiver of a subsequent breach. 
 
29. Cooperative Use of Contract:   In addition to the Town of Florence and with the approval of the contracted 

vendor, this contract may be extended for use by other municipalities, school districts and government 
agencies of the State.    

30. Compliance with Federal and State Laws:  The Contractor understands and acknowledges the applicability 
to it of the American with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and the Drug Free 
Workplace Act of 1989.      

Pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. §41-4401, the Contractor warrants to the Town that the Contractor and 
all its subcontractors are in compliance with all Federal Immigration laws and regulations that relate to their 
employees and with the E-Verify Program under A.R.S. §23-214(A).     

The Town will not consider the Contractor or any of its subcontractors in material breach of this Contract if the 
Contractor and its subcontractors establish that they have complied with the employment verification 
provisions prescribed by 8 USCA §1324(a) and (b) of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act and the E-
Verify requirements prescribed by A.R.S. §23-214(A). The “E-Verify Program” means the employment 
verification pilot program as jointly administered by the United States Department of Homeland Security and 
the Social Security Administration or any of its successor programs. 

The provisions of this Article must be included in any contract the Contractor enters into with any and all of its 
subcontractors who provide services under this Contract or any subcontract.  “Services” are defined as 
furnishing labor, time or effort in the State of Arizona by a contractor of subcontractor.  Services include 
construction or maintenance of any structure, building or transportation facility or improvement to real 
property. 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 12 
   

 

 

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS  
  

1. Term of Contract:  The Initial Term of any resultant contract shall commence on July 1, 2013 and end on 
June 30, 2014.   

 
a. Option to Renew.  After the Initial Term, Town shall have the option at its sole discretion to renew this 

  Agreement for up to four (4) additional one-year terms (each, a “Renewal Term”).  The Initial Term and 
 any Renewal Terms shall be collectively referred to herein as the “Term.”  To exercise its option, Town 
 shall provide written notice to Contractor not later than 60 calendar days preceding the scheduled date of 
 expiration of the then-current Term.  The Town’s notice of non-renewal of the Agreement shall be 
 provided to Contractor no less than 60 days prior to the expiration of any term of the Agreement.  This 
 provision in no way limits the Town’s right to terminate this Agreement at any time during the Term 
 pursuant to the applicable provisions of this Agreement.  In the event no written notice is provided to the 
 Contractor then the renewal shall be deemed exercised and the Agreement Party will automatically be 
 renewed for one year.  Notwithstanding the above, Town may request Contractor to renegotiate the 
 operational terms of this Agreement one year after the Commencement Date. 

 
2. Evaluation:   Award(s) shall be made to the responsible offeror whose proposal is determined in writing to be 

the most advantageous to the Town.  The Town of Florence shall evaluate proposals based upon an overall 
best value determination with the following criteria listed below in relative order of importance.  

a. Qualifications and Experience        10 points 
 

b. Method of Approach         20 points 
 

1) Technical Method.   Reasonable operating plan for all services required. 
 

2) Operations.   Reasonable approach for waste receiving, processing, and disposal.   
Proposed equipment provide for sound, reliable service. 
 

3) Processing plans.   Proposed methodology for processing feasible and appropriate. 
 

c. Cost/Fee          35 points 
 

d. Proximity to Florence         30 points 

e. Overall conformance to Request for Proposal (RFP) including proposal format   5 points 
and required responses. 

 
Note:   References and current work history are part of the evaluation process and may be confirmed.  
Negative responses shall be a basis for disqualification.  

 
3. Discussions/Interviews with Responsible Offerors an d Revisions to Proposal:  The Town reserves the 

right to conduct personal interviews or require presentation of any or all proposals prior to selection.  The 
Town will not be liable for any costs incurred by the Offeror in connection with such interview/presentations.  
Discussions may be conducted with responsible Offerors who submit proposals determined to be reasonably 
susceptible of being selected for award; for the purpose of clarification to assure full understanding of, and 
responsiveness to, the solicitation requirements.  Offerors shall be accorded fair and equal treatment with 
respect to any opportunity for discussions and revision of proposals, and such revisions may be permitted 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 13 
   

 

after submissions and prior to award, for the purpose of obtaining best and final offers.  In conducting 
discussions, there shall be no disclosure of any information derived from proposals submitted by competing 
offerors.  The purpose of such discussions shall be to: 
 
a. Determine in greater detail such offeror’s qualifications; 
b. Explore with the offeror the scope and nature of the project, the offeror’s proposed method of 

performance, and the relative utility of alternate methods of approach; 
c. Determine that the offeror will make available the necessary personnel and facilities to perform within the 

required time; 
d. Agree upon compensation which is fair and reasonable, taking into account the estimated value of the 

required services/equipment, the scope and complexity of the proposed project and nature of such 
services/equipment. 

  
5. Insurance:  The Town requires complete and valid certificates of insurance in compliance with the 

requirements of Exhibit A, prior to the commencement of any service or activity specified in this solicitation.  
The Town will notify the successful contractor(s) of the intent to issue a contract award.  The successful 
contractor(s) shall at that time submit a copy of the insurance certificate for coverage with minimum amounts 
stated.  The coverage shall be maintained in full force and effect during the term of the contract and shall not 
serve to limit any liabilities or any other contractor obligations.  The Town may, at any time while this Contract 
is in effect, request copies of any or all insurance policies, which shall be provided to Town within five (5) 
business days of such request. 

6. F.O.B. Point:   Prices shall be F.O.B. destination. 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 14 
   

 

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES  

  

1. Background:  The Town of Florence, Arizona was incorporated in 1900 and is located in the southeast 
metropolitan valley area. It is governed by an elected Mayor and Council, with administration provided by a 
Town Manager. The Town limits consist of approximately 62 square miles of residential, commercial, and 
municipal areas. The Town has an estimated population of 25,500.  

2. Overview: The Town of Florence Town Manager’s Office requests proposals from firms interested in 
providing disposal services for the trash collected by Town of Florence residents. Experience working with 
municipalities or other government entities is highly desirable. 

3. Project Description:  It is the intent of the Town to enter into a contract with a landfill or transfer station 
operator for the disposal of solid waste by the Town of Florence residents.  This firm will be responsible for 
providing a destination for the Town of Florence residents to dispose of solid waste. 

a. Transportation of Solid Waste: 

i. The Town may transport solid waste collected to the disposal facility Monday thru Saturday. 
ii. The Proposer shall provide weigh tickets of each load disposed at the disposal facility on a daily 

basis. 
 

b. Disposal of Solid Waste 
i. The proposer (s) shall be solely responsible for the disposal of Solid Waste transported from the 

Town of Florence residents. 
ii. Maintenance of the disposal site infrastructure, examples being the condition of the working face 

and disposal facility access roads, shall not impeded the off-loading of Solid Waste from the Town’s 
residents. 

iii. The Disposal Facility identified by the proposer shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, 
ordinances, and regulations including the rules, regulations and guidelines promulgated and 
adopted by the State of Arizona, Arizona Department of Environmental Quality, or other state 
regulatory agencies in operating a Disposal Facility. 

 
c. Transportation and/or Disposal Operations 

i. Hours of Operation: Any time restrictions shall be affected only upon mutual understanding of the 
Town of Florence and the Proposer. 

ii. Holidays: The Proposer shall specify holidays to be observed. 
iii. Office: The Proposer shall maintain an office or other such facilities through which it can be 

contacted on regular disposal days. 
iv. Methodology and denoting of any restrictions i.e., receipt of loads, methodology in user fee 

calculations, documentation of loads disposed, scale house weighing procedures, record keeping 
and reporting, load checking, customer service policy. 

 
d. General 

i. Disposal Facility means the disposal of Solid Waste and Bulk Waste by the Town that may include 
minimal amounts of Construction and Demolition debris that may be hauled separately by the Town. 

 
4. Period of Service: Disposal Facilities services shall be requested on July 1, 2013. 

5. Town Responsibilities:   Town residents shall transport the solid waste to the Offeror’s disposal location. 

a. Designate the name of a Town employee who will serve as the contract administrator during the term of the 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 15 
   

 

resultant contract. The contract manager has the authority to administer the contract and shall monitor 
consultant compliance with all terms and conditions stated herein. All requests for information or decisions by 
Town on any aspect of the work shall be directed to the contract administrator. 

 

6. Operational Information 

6.1 Site Access 

The access road entrance shall have signs posted at the entrance to the Landfill/Transfer Station identifying the 
name of the facility, owner and operator, hours of operation, and site restrictions.  Posted along the access roads 
should be various traffic signs and temporary barriers to guide users of the facility to the disposal unloading area.  
When the Landfill/Transfer Station is not open for business, the front gate is to be closed. 

6.2 Solid Waste Acceptance, Handling, and Placement  

Users of the Landfill/Transfer Station normally check in at the scale house with the scale house attendant to 
receive directions to the working face, to verify the user as a Town of Florence with a recent utility bill and driver’s 
license with the same address, and to have their loads observed or inspected (load checking).  Hazardous and 
liquid wastes are not to be accepted.   

Construction/demolition debris and white goods are not to be accepted for disposal as part of this Contract. 

a. Construction/demolition materials such as building rubble, concrete, asphalt, porcelain products (toilets, 
sinks, etc.), rock, bricks, and other appropriate materials are defined by the Town of Florence Town Code 
as “All solid waste, building materials, rubble, soil, and spoils from construction remodeling, repair and 
demolition operations and shall not be accepted for disposal in weights of greater than twenty-five (25) 
pounds.” 

b. White goods, or metal appliances (e.g., refrigerators, washing machines, dishwashers, etc.), shall not be 
accepted for disposal. 

c. Yard Waste defined by the Town of Florence Town Code as “branches, palm fronds, twigs, weeds, 
leaves, grass and vegetation clippings” are acceptable materials for disposal except if is provided by a 
landscaping entity then it is unacceptable. 

d. Section 52.048 of the Town Code entitled “Residential Bulk Trash Placement and Collection Services” 
provides items that are acceptable or not acceptable for disposal at the disposal facility unless noted 
above. 

Traffic is directed from the Landfill entrance to either the public tipping area or Landfill/Transfer Station tipping pad 
via site access roads.  Access roads, both temporary and permanent, are to be designed, constructed, and 
maintained to allow orderly egress and ingress of vehicular traffic when the facility is in operation, including during 
inclement weather.  There is no need for a traffic spotter at the Landfill since only a small number of vehicles may 
enter the site.  Proper signage and cones directing traffic areas at the active face may be necessary.   

6.3 Inclement Weather Operations 

Operations continue and solid waste is placed in wet weather, except when the rainfall is extreme or high winds 
are present.  In extremely wet weather, operations may be reduced. 

 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 16 
   

 

 

 

 

 

PROPOSAL FORMAT AND REQUIRED RESPONSE S  
  

The information set forth in the paragraphs below m ust be included with all proposals.  Failure to pro vide 
any of the information requested by these paragraph s may be grounds for the Town to reject a proposal.  
 
In order for the Town to conduct a uniform review process, all proposals should be submitted in the format set 
forth below.  
  
1. Offer Sheet:  The Offer Sheet must  be completed and returned with the Offeror’s proposal.  Failure to return 

the Offer Sheet and to sign it is grounds for the Town to reject a proposal.  
 
2. Proposal Format:   A total of one (1) original (label original) and six (6) copies of the proposal shall be 

submitted in the format indicated in the Proposal Format and Requirement section of the RFP. 
 

3. Table of Contents:   The Table of Contents must indicate the material included in the proposal by section and 
page number. A proposal's table of contents should mirror this section of the Town's Request for Proposal 
and must include all the items set forth in this section of the Request for Proposal.   

 
4. Letter of Transmittal:   A letter of transmittal must  be submitted with an Offeror’s proposal. The letter must 

include:  
    

a. A statement of the Offeror’s understanding of the services required by the Request for Proposal listed in 
the scope of services.  

b. The names of the persons who are authorized to make representations on behalf of the Offeror (include 
their titles, addresses, fax number, e-mail addresses and telephone numbers). 

c. A statement that the individual who signs the transmittal letter is authorized to bind the Offeror to contract 
with the Town.  

 
5. Detailed Proposal : Proposal shall include but not limited to the information as provided in the Scope of 

Services. 

6. Method of Approach :  Provide your recommended approach to meeting the Town’s needs for disposal 
services. 

a. Provide a detailed narrative response that clearly demonstrates the Offeror’s approach to the items listed 
in the Scope of Services. 
 

7. Qualifications and Experience  

a.  Provide a detailed narrative response that clearly demonstrates the firm’s qualifications and experience in   
 the following: 

i. History of success of working with a city or town on providing disposal services.  
 

ii. Submit at least three (3) references from current and/or past municipal clientele. Information should 
include description of services received.  



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 17 
   

 

iii. Provide information about disposal site locations. 

iv. Identify any proposed sub consultants and provide the information requested above for all sub 
consultants. 

 
8. Cost/Fee:  Provide fee schedule that includes a per ton fee for the services specified in the Scope of 

Services.  
 

9. Disclosures:   Disclose any professional or personal financial interest, which could be a possible conflict of 
interest in providing products and services to the Town. 
  

10. Price Page: Completed Price Page.  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 18 
   

 

 
 

PRICE PAGE 

List rates per disposal site 
 
Year 1 (Initial Term), Proposed Disposal Service Fee for receiving and processing materials at the following 
Facility. 
 
Location of disposal site:  _________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Municipal Solid Waste Cost per ton:  ____________________ 
 
 
 
Hours of operation:  ______________________________________________________ 
 
 

 
 

CLARIFICATIONS and/or EXCEPTIONS:  

__________________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________________      

 
 
Bidder has examined copies of all of the bidding documents and of the following Addenda (receipt of which is 
hereby acknowledged): 
 
Date      Addendum Number 
 
_______________    _______________ 
 
_______________    _______________ 
 
_______________    _______________



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 19 
   

 

 
            

OFFER SHEET 
 
MANDATORY – RETURN THIS PAGE WITH YOUR RESPONSE.  U NSIGNED OFFERS WILL BE 
CONSIDERED NON-RESPONSIVE AND REJECTED. 
 
To the Town of Florence:   By signing below, Offeror certifies that he/she has read, understands, and will 
faithfully execute the terms and conditions stated herein.  The signer also certifies that he/she is an officer or duly 
authorized agent of the Offeror’s firm with full power and authority to submit binding offers for the goods or 
services as specified.  Offeror certifies that the prices offered were independently developed without consultation 
with any of the other offerors or potential offerors. 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Authorized Signature (required) 
 

__________________________________________ 
Printed Name 
 

__________________________________________ 
Title 
 

__________________________________________ 
Arizona Transaction (Sales) Privilege Tax  License 
Number 
 

__________________________________________ 
Federal Employer Identification Number 
 
For clarification of this offer contact:  
(If different from above) 
__________________________________________ 
Contact Name 
 
__________________________________________ 
E-mail Address 
 

__________________________________________ 
Telephone Number 

 _____________________________________________ 
Company Name 
 

_____________________________________________ 
Address 
 

_____________________________________________ 
City, State, Zip 
 

_____________________________________________ 
Telephone Number 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Fax Number 

 

_____________________________________________ 
Company E-mail Address 

 
 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 20 
   

 

Exhibit “A” 

 

Insurance 

 

1. General. 

A. Insurer Qualifications. Without limiting any obligations or 
liabilities of Contractor, Contractor shall purchase and maintain, at its own expense, hereinafter 
stipulated minimum insurance with insurance companies duly licensed by the State of Arizona with 
an AM Best, Inc. rating of A- or above with policies and forms satisfactory to the Town. Failure to 
maintain insurance as specified herein may result in termination of this Agreement at the Town's 
option. 

B. No Representation of Coverage Adequacy. By requiring insurance 
herein, the Town does not represent that coverage and limits will be adequate to protect Contractor. 
The Town reserves the right to review any and all of the insurance policies and/or endorsements 
cited in this Agreement but has no obligation to do so. Failure to demand such evidence of full 
compliance with the insurance requirements set forth in this Agreement or failure to identify any 
insurance deficiency shall not relieve Contractor from, nor be construed or deemed a waiver of, its 
obligation to maintain the required insurance at all times during the performance of this Agreement. 

C. Additional Insured. All insurance coverage and self-insured 
retention or deductible portions, except Workers' Compensation insurance and Professional Liability 
insurance, if applicable, shall name, to the fullest extent permitted by law for claims arising out of the 
performance of this Agreement, the Town, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials 
and employees as Additional Insured as specified under the respective coverage sections of this 
Agreement. 

D. Coverage Term. All insurance required herein shall be maintained 
in full force and effect until all work or services required to be performed under the terms of this 
Agreement are satisfactorily performed, completed and formally accepted by the Town, unless 
specified otherwise in this Agreement. 

E. Primary Insurance. Contractor's insurance shall be primary 
insurance with respect to performance of this Agreement and in the protection of the Town as an 
Additional Insured. 

F. Waiver. All policies, except for Professional Liability, including 
Workers' Compensation insurance, shall contain a waiver of rights of recovery (subrogation) against 
the Town, its agents, representatives, officials, officers and employees for any claims arising out of 
the work or services of Contractor. Contractor shall arrange to have such subrogation waivers 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 21 
   

 

incorporated into each policy via formal written endorsement thereto. 

G. Policy Deductibles and/or Self-Insured Retentions. The policies 
set forth in these requirements may provide coverage that contains deductibles or self-insured 
retention amounts. Such deductibles or self-insured retention shall not be applicable with respect 

to the policy limits provided to the Town. Contractor shall be solely responsible for any such 
deductible or self-insured retention amount. 

H.   Use of Subcontractors. If any work under this Agreement is 

subcontracted in any way, Contractor shall execute written agreements with its subcontractors 
containing the indemnification provisions set forth in this Section and insurance requirements set 
forth herein protecting the Town and Contractor. Contractor shall be responsible for executing any 
agreements with its subcontractors and obtaining certificates of insurance verifying the insurance 
requirements. 

 

Town of Florence Insurance Requirements for Contrac tors 

 

Employer’s Liability                   $1,000,000 

Contractors General Liability 

a. General Aggregate $2,000,000 
b. Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $2,000,000 
c. Personal and Advertising Injury $2,000,000 
d. Each Occurrence (Bodily Injury and Property Damage)     $2,000,000 
e. Excess or Umbrella Liability 

1.) General Aggregate per job $3,000,000 
per policy year $5,000,000 

2.) Each Occurrence per job $3,000,000 
per policy year $5,000,000 

Automobile Liability 

a. Bodily Injury: 
Each Person $1,000,000 

Each Accident $1,000,000 

b. Property Damage 
Each Accident $1,000,000 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 22 
   

 

c. Combined Single Limit of $1,000,000 

Contractual Liability 

a. Bodily Injury: 
Each Accident $2,000,000 

Annual Aggregate $2,000,000 

b. Property Damage: 
Each Accident $2,000,000 

Annual Aggregate $2,000,000 

Each Accident $2,000,000 

Annual Aggregate $2,000,000 

Workman’s Compensation 

a. Bodily Injury by Accident each accident $1,000,000 
b. Bodily Injury by Disease each employee $1,000,000 
c. Bodily Injury by Disease policy limit $1,000,000 

The Town of Florence requires that a certificate of Liability and Workman’s Compensation Insurance be 
provided with limits of liability and the Town of Florence named as additional insured. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 23 
   

 

(SAMPLE CONTRACT) 
 

SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
AND 

 

               This SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (this "Agreement) is made on  

__________________ 2013 (the "Effective Date") between THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, 

an Arizona municipal corporation (the "Town") and __________________ , a(n) _______  

_________________ (the "Contractor"). 

RECITALS 

A. The Town issued a Request For Proposals, "Landfill or Transfer Station Services for 
Residents (the “RFP”), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by 
reference, seeking proposals from vendors for residential disposal services and bulk waste disposal 
services for residents within the corporate limits of the Town of Florence (the "Services"). 

B. The Contractor submitted a proposal in response to the RFP (the "Proposal"), 
which is attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by reference, and the Town desires to 
enter into an Agreement with the Contractor for the Services. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, which are incorporated herein 
by reference, the following mutual covenants and conditions, and other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Town and the 
Contractor hereby agree as follows: 

1. Representations. 

1.1  Relationship of the Parties. It is clearly understood that each party will act 

in its individual capacity and not as an agent, employee, partner, joint venturer, or associate of the 
other. An employee or agent of one party shall not be deemed or construed to be the employee or 
agent of the other for any purpose whatsoever.  

1.2  Representations by Town. The Town represents to the Contractor that the 

Town is duly organized and existing in good standing under the laws of the State and is duly qualified 
and authorized to carry on the governmental functions and operations as contemplated by this 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 24 
   

 

Agreement. The Town further represents that the person signing on its behalf has been properly 
authorized and empowered to enter into this Agreement. The Town acknowledges that it has read 
this Agreement, understands it, and agrees to be bound by it. 

1.3  Representations by Contractor. The Contractor represents to the Town 

that at the time of execution of this Agreement:     

A. Authority. The Contractor is duly qualified and in good standing to do business 
in the State and is duly qualified and in good standing to do business wherever necessary to carry on the 
business and operations contemplated by this Agreement. The Contractor further represents that the 
person signing on its behalf has been properly authorized and empowered to enter this Agreement. The 
Contractor further acknowledges that it has read this Agreement, understands it, and agrees to be bound 
by it. 

B. Solid Waste Disposal. The Contractor has entered into a contract for Disposal 
Services. 

C. Licenses; Materials. The Contractor has obtained all applicable 
environmental and other governmental permits, licenses, permits and authorizations that are (1) 
necessary for providing the Services and (2) required to be issued under Federal, State, local law, 
regulation, rule or ordinance. Contractor shall maintain in current status all Federal, State and local 
licenses, permits and authorizations required for the operation of the business conducted by the 
Contractor. The Town has no obligation to provide Contractor, its employees or subcontractors any 
business registrations or licenses required to perform the specific services set forth in this 
Agreement. The Town has no obligation to provide tools, equipment or material to Contractor. 

D. Insurance/Bonds. The Contractor has obtained and submitted to the Town 
(1) certificates of insurance for all required insurance coverage specified in this Agreement. 

E. Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance:   To the extent applicable under 
A.R.S. § 41-4401, the Contractor and its subcontractors warrant compliance with the federal 
immigration laws and regulations that relate to their employees and compliance with the E-verify 
requirements under A.R.S. § 23-214(A).  The Contractor or subcontractors’ breach of the above-
mentioned warranty shall be deemed a material breach of the Agreement and may result in the 
termination of the Agreement.  The Town retains the legal right to randomly inspect the papers and 
records of the Contractor and its subcontractors who work on the Agreement to ensure that the 
Contractor and its subcontractors are complying with the above-mentioned warranty.  The Contractor 
and its subcontractors warrant they will keep the papers and records which relate to the requirements 
of this paragraph open for inspection during normal business hours. 

F. No Legal Action Pending. To the best of the Contractor's knowledge, there 
is no action, suit or proceeding, at law or equity, before or by any court or government authority, 
pending or threatened against the Contractor, wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding 
would materially adversely affect the performance by the Contractor of its obligations hereunder or 
the other transactions contemplated hereby, or which, in any way, would adversely affect the validity 
or enforceability of this Agreement, or any other contract or instrument entered into by the Contractor 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 25 
   

 

in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby. 

2. Term of Agreement. 

2.1 Initial Term. Unless terminated sooner in accordance with the provisions 

of this Agreement, the term of this Agreement shall commence on the Commencement Date and 
shall continue in effect until the Expiration Date (the "Initial Term"). 

  2.2 Option to Renew. After the Initial Term, Town shall have the option at its 

sole discretion to renew this Agreement for up to four (4) additional one-year terms (each, a "Renewal 
Term"). The Initial Term and any Renewal Terms shall be collectively referred to herein as the "Term." 
To exercise its option, Town shall provide written notice to Contractor not later than 60 calendar days 
preceding the scheduled date of expiration of the then-current Term. This provision in no way limits 
the Town's right to terminate this Agreement at any time during the Term pursuant to the applicable 
provisions of this Agreement.  In the event no written notice is provided to the Contractor then the 
renewal shall be deemed exercised and each Party will automatically be renewed on a year to year 
basis. 

         3.       Solid Waste Services, Bulk Waste Services and Recycling Services. The Contractor shall 
begin providing the services set forth in this Section on their respective Commencement Dates. 

 3.1 Solid Waste. 

A. Residential Solid Waste Services. Contractor shall dispose of the Residential 
Solid Waste at the Disposal Facility.  
 

           4. Inspection of Loads and Rejected Loads. 

4.1     Contractor's Right to Inspect Loads. The Contractor may inspect each 

delivery prior to and upon their discharge at the Facility. 

4.2     Procedure upon Rejection of Load.  

A. Notice of Rejected Load.  If the Contractor designates a load as a 
Rejected Load for a reason. Contractor must provide written notice to the Town, including the reason the 
load was designated a Rejected Load.  

5.  Ownership. 

5.1     Disposal Facility and Recycling Facility Equipment. The Disposal Facility and 
any other processing center used to perform the Services shall be equipped with adequately sized 
truck scales and computerized record-keeping systems for weighing and recording all incoming and 
outgoing delivery vehicles and vehicles transporting Materials. Contractor shall separately weigh, 
record and tabulate each load from Town residents. 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 26 
   

 

 6.       Personnel. Contractor shall assign a qualified person or persons who will be in charge of 
its operations within the Town and authorized to make decisions on Contractor's behalf and shall 
provide the name, office telephone number, mobile phone number, email address and facsimile 
number of Contractor's representatives and key personnel to the Contract Administrator.  

 7.      Hours of Operation and Holidays. Contractor shall not make any changes to the hours of 
operation as provided in this Section without the prior, written approval of the Contract Administrator. 

7.1       Disposal Facility. Excluding holidays as defined in subsection below, Contractor 
shall maintain, or cause its provider to maintain, the Disposal Facility open and available to receive 
Solid Waste five days per week (Mon-Sat) between 7:00 AM, Local Time to 6:00 PM, Local Time. 

                        7.2       Holidays.  For purposes of this Agreement, "Holidays" shall include the 
following: 

A. New Year's Day 

B. Thanksgiving Day 

C. Christmas Day 

           8.        Customer Service Complaints. Contractor and Contractor's employees understand 
that customer service is of great importance to the Town. Contractor and its employees will work 
diligently to provide high quality customer services to the Town and all customers. 

  9. Customer List, Billing and Collections, Payment and Annual Adjustments. 

                        9.1    Customer List.  On or prior to 2013, the Town shall provide Contractor with a 
Residential Service Unit customer list and a Town Facility customer list. Contractor shall provide 
Disposal Services to all Town residents and Town Facility customers. 

9.2    Billing and Collection. 

A.   Solid Waste and Bulk Waste Disposal Services. The 

Contractor shall bill Residential Service Units for Residential Solid Waste and Bulk Waste in 
accordance with the rate structure established, respectively, attached hereto as a part of the Price 
Page and as may subsequently be adjusted as set forth in this Agreement. 

1. Understandable Bills. Bills will be clear, concise and 
understandable. Bills must be fully itemized, clearly delineating all activity during the billing period, 
including optional charges, rebates and credits. 

2. Delinquent and Closed Accounts.  The Contractor shall discontinue 
refuse disposal service at any Residential Unit as set forth in a written notice sent to it by the Town.  



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 27 
   

 

Upon further notification by the Town, the Contractor shall resume refuse collection on the next 
regularly scheduled disposal day.   

3. Individual Rights. Contractor shall not deny service, deny access, 
or otherwise discriminate against citizens on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, 
age, or disability. Contractor shall comply at all times with all other applicable federal, state, and 
local laws and regulations, and as amended from time to time, relating to nondiscrimination.   

4. Town Payment to Contractor. 

                                                      4.1 Town Self Hauling Disposal Services. Town shall pay 
Contractor for Town Residents’ Disposal Facility Services at the rates set forth minus any disputed 
amounts. 

     9.3   Insurance Requirements.  The Contractor, at its own expense, shall purchase 
and maintain the herein stipulated minimum insurance with companies duly licensed, possessing a 
current A.M. Best, Inc. rating of “__”, or approved and licensed to do business in the State of Arizona 
with policies and forms satisfactory to the Town.  All insurance required herein shall be maintained in 
full force and effect during the term of this Agreement; failure to do so may, at the sole discretion of 
the Town, constitute an event of default by the Contractor under this Agreement.  The Contractor 
insurance shall be primary insurance, and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Town 
shall not contribute to it.  Any failure to comply with the claim reporting provisions of the policies or 
any breach of an insurance policy warranty shall not affect coverage afforded under the policy to 
protect the Town.  The insurance policies required by this Agreement shall name the Town, its 
agents, officers, officials, and employees as Additional Insured. 

A. General Liability.  The Contractor shall, at its expense, maintain a policy 
of comprehensive public liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 for each 
occurrence and with a $1,000,000 General Aggregate Limit.  The policy shall include coverage for 
bodily injury, broad form property damage, personal injury, and blanket contractual coverage 
including, but not limited to, the liability assumed under the indemnification provisions of this 
Agreement, which coverage will be least as broad as Insurance Service Office, Inc., Policy Form 
CG000211093 (October 2001 version).  The coverage shall not exclude X, C, and U.  Such policy 
shall contain a severability of interest provision, and shall not contain a sunset provision or 
commutation clause, nor any provision which would serve to limit third party action over claims.  The 
Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement shall be at least as broad as Insurance 
Service Office, Inc., Additional Insured, Form B, CG20101185 (October 2001 version). 

B.  Automobile Liability.  The Contractor shall, at its expense, maintain a 
Commercial/Business Automobile Liability Insurance policy with a combined single limit for bodily 
injury and property damage of not less than $1,000,000.00 each occurrence with respect to any of 
the Contractor’s owned, hired and non-owned vehicles assigned to or used in performance of this 
Agreement.  Coverage will be at least as broad as coverage code I, “any auto”, Insurance Service 
Office, Inc., Policy Form CA 00011293, or any replacements thereof.  Such insurance shall include 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 28 
   

 

coverage for loading and off-loading hazards.  If hazardous substances, material or wastes are to be 
transported, MCS 90 endorsement shall be included and $2,000,000.00 per accident limits for bodily 
injury and property shall apply. 

 9.4   Annual Rate Adjustments. All costs proposed in the Price Page shall remain 
fixed from the execution of this Agreement through June 30, 2014. On July 1, 2014 and every July 
1st thereafter during the Term of this Agreement, all cost of Collection Services, excluding costs 
associated with Carts, costs associated with Containers, costs of disposal and costs of processing 
and marketing, shall be adjusted, increased or decreased, according to this Section. The annual 
adjustment shall be 85% of the Consumer Price Index — All Urban Consumers, CUUSA429SAO, 
CWUSA429SAO, Not Seasonally Adjusted, Area: Phoenix-Mesa, Item: All items ("CPI").   

Notwithstanding the result of the calculation for the composite indices, in no event shall the 
cumulative rate adjustment (the CPI) exceed 4% per year.  

10.    Taxes. Contractor shall be responsible for and shall pay all sales, consumer, use and 
other taxes. When equipment, materials or supplies generally taxable to the Contractor are eligible 
for a tax exemption due to the nature of the item, Contractor shall assist Town in applying for and 
obtaining such tax credits and exemptions which shall be paid or credited to Town. 

11.    Compliance with Laws and Regulations. The Contractor shall keep fully informed and 
shall at all times during the performance of its duties under this Agreement ensure that it and any 
person for whom the Contractor is responsible remain in compliance with all rules, regulations, 
ordinances, statutes or laws affecting the Services including the following: (i) existing and future 
Town and County ordinances and regulations, (ii) existing and future State and Federal laws, (iii) 
existing and future Occupational Safety and Health Administration ("OSHA") standards, (iv) 
applicable laws, statutes, codes, rules and regulations related to or prohibiting discrimination in 
employment in the performance of its work under this Agreement and (v) requirements as 
established by the Congress of the United States in the Fair Labor Standards Act, as amended from 
time to time. 

12.  Compliance with Municipal Code.  The Contractor shall acknowledge those provisions of 
the municipal code of the Town which are applicable, and with any and all amendments to such 
applicable provisions during the term of this Agreement.  

12.1 Residential Bulk Trash Placement and Collection Services. 

A. It shall be unlawful to place bulk trash out for collection more than one 
 week prior to the scheduled placement date.  The one week period 
 includes the two weekends prior to the scheduled placement date. 

B. Bulk trash shall be placed out for collection no later than 6:00 a.m. on the 
 scheduled placement date. 

C. Bulk trash placed out for collection shall be in neat stacks. 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 29 
   

 

D. Bulk trash placed in alleys shall be placed adjacent to the property line. 
 Bulk trash placed out for curbside collection shall be placed on the 
 resident's property, parallel to the street or curb. Bulk trash shall not be 
 placed on the sidewalk or in the street. 

E. Bulk trash shall not be placed within five feet of any fixed object, solid 
 waste or recycling container, or in any manner which would interfere with 
 or be hazardous to pedestrians, bicyclists, equestrians or motorists. 

F. The amount of bulk trash placed for collection shall not exceed a total 
 uncompacted volume of 20 cubic yards. 

G. Items of bulk trash which are acceptable for normal residential collection 
 are: 

1. Tree limbs and branches less than four feet in length and 12 
 inches in diameter; 

2. Palm fronds; 

3. Metal materials 20 pounds or less; 

4. Pipe less than one inch in diameter and less than four feet in 
 length; 

5. Cardboard boxes; 

6. Bagged or boxed leaves, weeds, grass, small hedge and 
 vegetation clippings; 

7. Manufactured items, such as washers, dryers, hot water heaters 
 and appliances and equipment not containing refrigerants; 

8. Twenty-five pounds or less of construction and demolition solid 
 waste generated by a resident; 

9. Hedge clippings, such as oleanders; and 

10. Rubbish consisting only of cardboard, wooden boxes, brush, 
 furniture, appliances, weeds and cuttings from trees or shrubs 
 may be kept separately, without depositing in containers. Bulk 
 materials, such as leaves and lawn clippings, if not placed in 
 containers, shall be in a sack or receptacle for ease of loading. 
 Compost piles may be maintained for fertilization purposes and 
 matter used for fertilization purposes only be transported, kept and 
 used. Nothing in this section shall be constructed as to permit the 
 violations of any provision of this code, any ordinance or any rule 
 or regulation of the Department. 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 30 
   

 

H. Items of bulk trash which are not acceptable for normal residential 
 collection include: 

1. More than 25 pounds of construction and demolition solid waste 
 generated by a resident or any amount generated by a contractor; 

2. Vehicles or equipment parts in excess of 20 pounds; 

3. Metal material in excess of 20 pounds; 

4. Tires; 

5. Pipe over one inch in diameter or over four feet in length; 

6. Cement, cement blocks, bricks, asphalt, stones and dirt; and 

7. Lead acid batteries. 

I. It shall be a violation of this chapter to place unacceptable items, an 
 amount exceeding 20 cubic yards or improperly placed bulk trash items 
 out for collection. The responsible party shall remove and dispose of all 
 bulk trash improperly placed, bulk trash exceeding 20 cubic yards and 
 any unacceptable items of bulk trash at their own expense. 

J. The town municipality may abate any violation of this section pursuant 
 herein. 

K. The Director may require that yard waste be separated from other bulk 
 trash for collection in an alternative manner. 

13.    Town's Rights to Inspect Facilities and Equipment. The Town or any of its duly 
authorized representatives shall have access, within 24 hours of notification, to inspect Contractor's 
facilities and equipment, including the Disposal Facility operated by the Contractor, and perform such 
inspections, as Town deems reasonably necessary, to determine whether the services required to be 
provided by Contractor under this Agreement conform to the terms hereof and/or the terms of this 
Agreement. Town shall conduct the inspection of facilities and equipment during hours of operation. 
Contractor shall make available to Town all reasonable facilities and assistance to facilitate the 
performance of inspections by Town's representatives. 

14. Dispute Resolution. 

14.1 Interpretation of Agreement. Except as provided otherwise in this Agreement and 
to the extent prohibited by law, the Contract Administrator shall be responsible for interpreting this 
Agreement to resolve disputes that may arise hereunder. The parties agree that any decision 
rendered by the Contract Administrator in connection with such matters shall be final and binding 
upon Contractor, the customer and the Town. 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 31 
   

 

14.2 Definition of Claim. As used herein "claim" means a written demand or assertion 
by one of the parties seeking, as a legal right, the payment of money, adjustment or interpretation 
of the Agreement terms, or other relief, arising under or relating to this Agreement.  A claim by the 
Contractor shall be made in writing and submitted to the Contract Administrator. When a 
controversy cannot be resolved by mutual agreement, the Contractor shall submit a written request 
for final decision to the Contract Administrator. The written request shall set forth all the facts 
surrounding the controversy. 

14.3 Process for Dispute Resolution. In connection with any claim under this clause, 
the Contractor, at the discretion of the Contract Administrator, may be afforded an opportunity to 
be heard and to offer evidence in support of its claim. The Contract Administrator shall render a 
written decision on all claims within 30 Business Days of receipt of the Contractor's written claim, 
unless the Contract Administrator determines that a longer period is necessary to resolve the 
claim. The decision shall be furnished to the Contractor by certified mail, return receipt requested, 
or by any other method that provides evidence of receipt. If a decision is not issued within 30 
calendar days, the Contract Administrator shall notify the Contractor of the time within which a 
decision shall be rendered and the reasons for such time extension. The Contract Administrator's 
decision shall be final and conclusive. Pending resolution of a claim, the Contractor shall proceed 
diligently with the performance of the Agreement in accordance with subsection 24.4 below. 

14.4 Operations during Dispute. In the event that any dispute arises between Town 
and Contractor relating to this Agreement performance or compensation hereunder, Contractor shall 
continue to render service and receive compensation in full compliance with all terms and conditions 
of this Agreement as interpreted, in good faith, by the Town, regardless of such dispute. The 
Contractor expressly recognizes the paramount right and duty of Town to provide adequate services 
to its residents and further agrees, in consideration of the execution of this Agreement, that in the 
event of such a dispute, if any, it will not seek injunctive relief in any court without first negotiating 
with Town in good faith for an adjustment on the matter or matters in dispute and, upon failure of 
said negotiations to resolve the dispute shall present the matter to mediation in the courts of 
Arizona. If mediation fails, Contractor shall present the matter to a court in Arizona. Notwithstanding 
the other provisions in this subsection, Town reserves the right to terminate this Agreement at any 
time whenever the service provided by Contractor fails to meet reasonable standards of the trade, 
after Town provides written notice to Contractor pursuant to Section 30 of this Agreement. Upon 
termination, Town may call the performance bond and apply the cash and surety bond for the cost of 
service in excess of that charged to Town by the firm engaged for the balance of the Agreement 
period. 

           15.  Force Majeure. Except for any payment obligation by either party, if the Town or 
Contractor is unable to perform or is delayed in its performance of any of its obligations under this 
Agreement by reason of any event of force majeure, such inability or delay shall be excused at any 
time during which compliance therewith is prevented by such event and during such period thereafter 
as may be reasonably necessary for the Town or Contractor to correct the adverse effect of such 
event of force majeure. An event of "Force Majeure" shall mean the following events or 
circumstances to the extent that they delay the Town or Contractor from performing any of its 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 32 
   

 

obligations (other than payment obligations) under this Agreement: acts of God, tornadoes, 
hurricanes, floods, sinkholes, fires and explosions (except those caused by negligence of Contractor, 
its agents and assigns), landslides, earthquakes, epidemics, quarantine, pestilence, extremely 
abnormal and excessively inclement weather, acts of the public enemy, acts of war, terrorism, effects 
of nuclear radiation, blockades, insurrection, riots, civil disturbances or national or international 
calamities and suspension, termination or interruption of utilities necessary to the operation of either 
the Disposal Facility or the Recycling Facility. In order to be entitled to the benefit of this Section, a 
party claiming an event of Force Majeure shall be required to give prompt written notice to the other 
party specifying in detail the event of Force Majeure and shall further be required to use its best 
efforts to cure the event of Force Majeure. 

            16.  Labor Unrest.  Labor unrest, including but not limited to strike, work stoppage or 
slowdown, sick-out, picketing, or other concerted job action conducted by the Contractor’s 
employees or directed at the company will be considered an excuse from performance to the extent 
that Contractor meets the terms of this Section.  Notwithstanding other remedies to which the Town 
shall be entitled under this Agreement in event of failure to perform, in the event of Contractor’s 
failure to perform, or anticipated failure to perform, due to labor unrest, Contractor shall: 

1) Provide a contingency plan to the Town within ninety (90) days of the execution of this 
Agreement demonstrating how services will be provided during the period of labor unrest.  
The contingency plan is subject to Town approval and Contractor shall amend the plan to 
meet Town requirements, including reasonably demonstrating how Town basic collection and 
sanitary needs will be met to the Town’s satisfaction.  The contingency plan shall address, at 
a minimum, the priority of Collection by customer type (residents, hospitals, restaurants, 
nursing homes, etc.) and waste streams, additional Collection options to be provided (drop-
off sites, etc.), source of additional personnel to be utilized and detailed communications 
procedures to be used. 

2) Meet the requirements agreed to in the contingency plan. 

3) Meet the requirements below: 

Contractor shall meet all requirements under this section or Town may revoke any excuse 
from performance as offered herein and may further choose to use the enforcement 
provisions of this Agreement, in which case Contractor is not excused from performance and 
Contractor shall be obligated to continue to provide service notwithstanding the occurrence 
of any or all of such events. 

              17. Procedures In Event of Excused Performance.  The party claiming excuse from    
performance shall, within two (2) days after such party has notice of such cause, give the other party 
notice of the facts constituting such cause and asserting its claim to excuse under this section.    



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 33 
   

 

The interruption or discontinuance of the Contractor’s services caused by one or more of the events 
excused shall not constitute a default by the Contractor under this Agreement.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, however, if the Contractor is excused from performing its obligations hereunder for any of 
the causes listed in this section for a period of thirty (30) days or more, the Town shall nevertheless 
have the right, in its sole discretion, to terminate this Agreement by giving ten (10) days’ notice. 

               18. Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor, as 
Indemnitor, shall indemnify, defend and hold Town, its officers, officials, employees, agents and 
volunteers ("Indemnitees") harmless from and against any and all liability, claims, losses, suits, 
actions, damages and expenses (including court costs, attorney’s fees, and costs of claim processing, 
investigation and litigation (collectively "Claims") for any bodily injury, sickness, loss of life or loss or 
damage to property including loss of use, or any violation of any Federal, state or local law or 
ordinance or other cause related to or arising out of Contractor's performance of its obligations 
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, caused, in whole or in part by the negligent or intentional 
acts or omissions of Contractors, its owners, officers, directors, employees, subcontractors or agents 
on account of the performance of this Agreement. This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising 
out of or recovered under the Workers Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of Indemnitor to 
conform to any Federal, state or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree. It is the 
specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances except for Claims arising 
solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified by Indemnitor 
from and against any and all Claims. It is agreed that Contractor will be responsible for primary loss 
investigation, defense and judgment costs where this indemnification is applicable. The amount and 
type of insurance coverage requirements set forth below will in no way be construed as limiting the 
scope of the indemnity in this Section. 

 

19. Insurance. 

19.1 General. 

A. Insurer Qualifications. Without limiting any obligations or 
liabilities of Contractor, Contractor shall purchase and maintain, at its own expense, hereinafter 
stipulated minimum insurance with insurance companies duly licensed by the State of Arizona with 
an AM Best, Inc. rating of A- or above with policies and forms satisfactory to the Town. Failure to 
maintain insurance as specified herein may result in termination of this Agreement at the Town's 
option. 

B. No Representation of Coverage Adequacy. By requiring insurance 
herein, the Town does not represent that coverage and limits will be adequate to protect Contractor. 
The Town reserves the right to review any and all of the insurance policies and/or endorsements 
cited in this Agreement but have no obligation to do so. Failure to demand such evidence of full 
compliance with the insurance requirements set forth in this Agreement or failure to identify any 
insurance deficiency shall not relieve Contractor from, nor be construed or deemed a waiver of, its 
obligation to maintain the required insurance at all times during the performance of this Agreement. 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 34 
   

 

C. Additional Insured. All insurance coverage and self-insured 
retention or deductible portions, except Workers' Compensation insurance and Professional Liability 
insurance, if applicable, shall name, to the fullest extent permitted by law for claims arising out of the 
performance of this Agreement, the Town, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials 
and employees as Additional Insured as specified under the respective coverage sections of this 
Agreement. 

D. Coverage Term. All insurance required herein shall be maintained 
in full force and effect until all work or services required to be performed under the terms of this 
Agreement are satisfactorily performed, completed and formally accepted by the Town, unless 
specified otherwise in this Agreement. 

E. Primary Insurance. Contractor's insurance shall be primary 
insurance with respect to performance of this Agreement and in the protection of the Town as an 
Additional Insured. 

F. Waiver. All policies, except for Professional Liability, including 
Workers' Compensation insurance, shall contain a waiver of rights of recovery (subrogation) against 
the Town, its agents, representatives, officials, officers and employees for any claims arising out of 
the work or services of Contractor. Contractor shall arrange to have such subrogation waivers 
incorporated into each policy via formal written endorsement thereto. 

G. Policy Deductibles and/or Self-Insured Retentions. The policies 
set forth in these requirements may provide coverage that contains deductibles or self-insured 
retention amounts. Such deductibles or self-insured retention shall not be applicable with respect 

to the policy limits provided to the Town. Contractor shall be solely responsible for any such 
deductible or self-insured retention amount. 

H.   Use of Subcontractors. If any work under this Agreement is 

subcontracted in any way, Contractor shall execute written agreements with its subcontractors 
containing the indemnification provisions set forth in this Section and insurance requirements set 
forth herein protecting the Town and Contractor. Contractor shall be responsible for executing any 
agreements with its subcontractors and obtaining certificates of insurance verifying the insurance 
requirements. 

 

 

 

 

 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 35 
   

 

Town of Florence Insurance Requirements for Contrac tors 

 

Employer’s Liability                   $1,000,000 

Contractors General Liability 

f. General Aggregate $2,000,000 
g. Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $2,000,000 
h. Personal and Advertising Injury $2,000,000 
i. Each Occurrence (Bodily Injury and Property Damage)     $2,000,000 
j. Excess or Umbrella Liability 

3.) General Aggregate per job $3,000,000 
per policy year $5,000,000 

4.) Each Occurrence per job $3,000,000 
per policy year $5,000,000 

Automobile Liability 

d. Bodily Injury: 
Each Person $1,000,000 

Each Accident $1,000,000 

e. Property Damage 
Each Accident $1,000,000 

f. Combined Single Limit of $1,000,000 

Contractual Liability 

c. Bodily Injury: 
Each Accident $2,000,000 

Annual Aggregate $2,000,000 

d. Property Damage: 
Each Accident $2,000,000 

Annual Aggregate $2,000,000 

Each Accident $2,000,000 

Annual Aggregate $2,000,000 

 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 36 
   

 

Workman’s Compensation 

d. Bodily Injury by Accident each accident $1,000,000 
e. Bodily Injury by Disease each employee $1,000,000 
f. Bodily Injury by Disease policy limit $1,000,000 

The Town of Florence requires that a certificate of Liability and Workman’s Compensation Insurance be 
provided with limits of liability and the Town of Florence named as additional insured. 

20. Miscellaneous. 

20.1 Survival. Any rights either party may have in the event it terminates this 
Agreement pursuant to the terms hereof shall survive such termination. 

20.2 Joint Preparation. The preparation of this Agreement has been a joint effort of the 
parties and the resulting document shall not, solely as a matter of judicial construction, be construed 
more severely against one of the parties than the other. 

20.3 Further Assurance. Contractor and Town agree to execute, acknowledge and 
deliver and cause to be done, executed, acknowledged and delivered all such further documents and 
perform such acts as shall reasonably be requested of it in order to carry out this Agreement and give 
effect hereto. Accordingly, without in any manner limiting the specific rights and obligations set forth in 
this Agreement, the parties declare their intention to cooperate with each other in effecting the terms 
of this Agreement. 

20.4 Time of the Essence. For purposes herein, the parties agree that time shall be of 
the essence of this Agreement and the representations and warranties made are all material and of 
the essence of this Agreement. 

20.5 Captions and Section Headings. Captions and section headings contained in this 
Agreement are for convenience and reference only and in no way define, describe, extend, or limit the 
scope or intent of this Agreement, nor the intent of any provision hereof. 

20.6 No Waiver. No waiver of any provision in this Agreement shall be effective unless 
it is in writing, signed by the party against whom it is asserted and any such written waiver shall only 
be applicable to the specific instance to which it relates and shall not be deemed to be a continuing or 
future waiver. 

20.7 Exhibits. All Exhibits attached hereto contain additional terms of this Agreement 
and are incorporated into this Agreement by reference. 

20.8 Independent Contractor. The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that the 
Services provided under this Agreement are being provided as an independent contractor, not as an 
employee or agent of the Town. Contractor, its employees and subcontractors are not entitled to 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 37 
   

 

workers' compensation benefits from the Town. The Town does not have the authority to supervise or 
control the actual work of Contractor, its employees or subcontractors. The Contractor and not the 
Town shall determine the time of its performance of the services provided under this Agreement so 
long as Contractor meets the requirements of its agreed scope of work. Contractor is neither 
prohibited from entering into other contracts nor prohibited from practicing its profession elsewhere. 
Town and Contractor do not intend to nor will they combine business operations under this 
Agreement.  

20.9 Amendments. This Agreement may be modified only by a written amendment 
signed by persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the Town and the Contractor. 

20.10 Provisions Required by Law. Each and every provision of law and any clause 
required by law to be in the Agreement will be read and enforced as though it were included herein 
and, if through mistake or otherwise any such provision is not inserted, or is not correctly inserted, 
then upon the application of either party, the Agreement will promptly be physically amended to make 
such insertion or correction. 

20.11 Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement shall, for any 
reason, be determined to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect by a Court of competent 
jurisdiction, the parties hereto shall negotiate in good faith and agree to such amendments, 
modifications, or supplements of or to this Agreement or such other appropriate actions as shall, to 
the maximum extent practicable in light of such determination, implement and give effect to the 
intentions of the parties as reflected herein and the other provisions of this Agreement shall, as so 
amended, modified, or supplemented, or otherwise affected by such action remain in full force and 
effect. 

20.12 Entire Agreement; Interpretation; Parol Evidence. This Agreement represents 
the entire agreement of the parties with respect to its subject matter and all previous agreements, 
whether oral or written, entered into prior to this Agreement are hereby revoked and superseded by 
this Agreement. No representations, warranties, inducements or oral agreements have been made 
by any of the parties except as expressly set forth herein, or in any other contemporaneous written 
agreement executed for the purposes of carrying out the provisions of this Agreement. This 
Agreement shall be construed and interpreted according to its plain meaning and no presumption 
shall be deemed to apply in favor of, or against the party drafting the Agreement. The parties 
acknowledge and agree that each has had the opportunity to seek and utilize legal counsel in the 
drafting of, review of and entry into this Agreement. 

20.13 Assignment. No right or interest in this Agreement shall be assigned by 
Contractor without prior, written permission of the Town signed by the Town Manager and no 
delegation of any duty of Contractor shall be made without prior, written permission of the Town 
signed by the Town Manager. Any attempted assignment or delegation by Contractor in violation of 
this provision shall be a breach of this Agreement by Contractor. This Agreement and the rights and 
obligation contained herein shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and 
their respective successors and assigns. 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 38 
   

 

20.14 Subcontracts. This Agreement and any permits required for performance of the 
Agreement may not be assigned, subcontracted, conveyed, or otherwise disposed of without the 
prior, written approval of the Town, which will not be unreasonably withheld. No such assignment or 
subcontracting shall relieve Contractor of its liability under this Agreement. In the event Contractor 
elects to use any subcontractors, this does not relieve Contractor from any prime responsibility of full 
and complete satisfactory and acceptable performance under any awarded Agreement.  

20.15 Rights and Remedies. No provision in this Agreement shall be construed, 
expressly or by implication, as waiver by the Town of any existing or future right and/or remedy 
available by law in the event of any claim of default or breach of this Agreement. The failure of the 
Town to insist upon the strict performance of any term or condition of this Agreement or to exercise 
or delay the exercise of any right or remedy provided in this Agreement, or by law, or the Town's 
acceptance of and payment for services, shall not release the Contractor from any responsibilities or 
obligations imposed by this Agreement or by law and shall not be deemed a waiver of any right of 
the Town to insist upon the strict performance of this Agreement. 

20.16 Attorneys' Fees. In the event either party brings any action for any relief, 
declaratory or otherwise, arising out of this Agreement or on account of any breach or default hereof, 
the prevailing party shall be entitled to receive from the other party reasonable attorneys' fees and 
reasonable costs and expenses, determined by the court sitting without a jury, which shall be 
deemed to have accrued on the commencement of such action and shall be enforced whether or not 
such action is prosecuted through judgment. 

20.17 Liens. All materials or services shall be free of all liens and, if the Town 
requests, a formal release of all liens shall be delivered to the Town. 

   20.18 Offset. 

A. Offset for Damages. In addition to all other remedies at law or 
equity, the Town may offset from any money due to the Contractor any amounts Contractor owes to 
the Town for damages resulting from breach or deficiencies in performance or breach of any 
obligation under this Agreement. 

B. Offset for Delinquent Fees or Taxes. The Town may offset from 
any money due to the Contractor any amounts Contractor owes to the Town for delinquent fees, 
transaction privilege taxes and property taxes, including any interest or penalties. 

   20.19 Notices and Requests. Unless a specific time frame for notice is otherwise 
specifically set forth in this Agreement, any notice or other communication required or permitted to 
be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if 
(A) delivered to the party at the address set forth below, (B) deposited in the U.S. Mail, registered or 
certified, return receipt requested, to the address set forth below, (C) given to a recognized and 
reputable overnight delivery service, to the address set forth below or (D) delivered by facsimile 
transmission to the number set forth below: 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 39 
   

 

 

If to the Town: Town of Florence 

P.O. Box 2670 

Florence, Arizona 85132 

Facsimile: (520) 868-7564 

Attn: Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager 

With copy to: 

If to Contractor: 

Town Attorney 
P.O. Box 2670                        
Florence, Arizona 85132       
Facsimile: (520) 868-7564                     
Attn: James Mannato 

   
   
 Facsimile: ______________  

Attn: __________________  

 

 

or at such other address and to the attention of such other person or officer, as any party may 
designate in writing by notice duly given pursuant to this subsection. Notices shall be deemed 
received (A) when delivered to the party, (B) three Business Days after being placed in the U.S. Mail, 
properly addressed, with sufficient postage, (C) the following Business Day after being given to a 
recognized overnight delivery service, with the person giving the notice paying all required charges 
and instructing the delivery service to deliver on the following Business Day, or (D) when received by 
facsimile transmission during the normal business hours of the recipient. If a copy of a notice is also 
given to a party's counsel or other recipient, the provisions above governing the date on which a 
notice is deemed to have been received by a party shall mean and refer to the date on which the 
party and not its counsel or other recipient to which a copy of the notice may be sent, is deemed to 
have received the notice. 

20.20 Confidentiality of Records. The Contractor shall establish and maintain 
procedures and controls that are acceptable to the Town for the purpose of ensuring that information 
contained in its records or obtained from the Town or from others in carrying out its obligations under 
this Agreement shall not be used or disclosed by it, its agents, officers, or employees, except as 
required to perform Contractor's duties under this Agreement. Persons requesting such information 
should be referred to the Town. Contractor also agrees that any information pertaining to individual 
persons shall not be divulged other than to employees or officers of Contractor as needed for the 
performance of duties under this Agreement. 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 40 
   

 

20.21 Records and Audit Rights. Contractor's and its subcontractor's books, records, 
correspondence, accounting procedures and practices and any other supporting evidence relating to 
this Agreement, including the papers of any Contractor and its subcontractors' employees who 
perform any work or Services pursuant to this Agreement to ensure that the Contractor and its 
subcontractors are complying with the warranty under subsection 31.22 below (all the foregoing 
hereinafter referred to as "Records"), shall be open to inspection and subject to audit and/or 
reproduction during normal working hours by the Town, to the extent necessary to adequately permit 
(A) evaluation and verification of any invoices, payments or claims based on Contractor's and its 
subcontractors' actual costs (including direct and indirect costs and overhead allocations) incurred, or 
units expended directly in the performance of work under this Agreement and (B) evaluation of the 
Contractor's and its subcontractors' compliance with the Arizona employer sanctions laws referenced 
in subsection 31.22 below. To the extent necessary for the Town to audit Records as set forth in this 
subsection, Contractor and its subcontractors hereby waive any rights to keep such Records 
confidential. For the purpose of evaluating or verifying such actual or claimed costs or units 
expended, the Town shall have access to said Records, even if located at its subcontractors' 
facilities, from the effective date of this Agreement for the duration of the work and until three years 
after the date of final payment by the Town to Contractor pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor and 
its subcontractors shall provide the Town with adequate and appropriate workspace so that the Town 
can conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of this subsection. The Town shall give 
Contractor or its subcontractors reasonable advance notice of intended audits. Contractor shall 
require its subcontractors to comply with the provisions of this subsection by insertion of the 
requirements hereof in any subcontract pursuant to this Agreement. 

20.22 E-verify Requirements. To the extent applicable under ARIZ. REV. STAT. § 41-
4401, the Contractor and its subcontractors warrant compliance with all Federal immigration laws 
and regulations that relate to their employees and compliance with the E-verify requirements under 
ARIZ. REV. STAT. § 23-214(A). Contractor's or its subcontractor's failure to comply with such 
warranty shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement and may result in the termination of 
this Agreement by the Town. 

20.23 Conflicting Terms. In the event of any inconsistency, conflict or ambiguity 
among the Agreement, the Scope of Work, the Fee Proposal, the RFP and the Contractor's 
Proposal, the documents shall govern in the order listed herein. 

20.24 Applicable Law; Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 
State of Arizona and suit pertaining to this Agreement may be brought only in courts in the State of 
Arizona, Pinal County. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this instrument as of the date and 
year first set forth above. 

"Town" "Contractor" 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 41 
   

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, an Arizona 

municipal corporation  a(n) 

____________________________________            By: 

Mayor 

ATTEST:____________________________ Name:  _____________________________  

Its:  

Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 42 
   

 

(ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS) 

STATE OF ARIZONA ) 

) ss. 

COUNTY OF PINAL ) 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on ___________________________ , 20, 

by ______________, the Mayor of the TOWN OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation, 
on behalf of the Town of Florence. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Arizona  

My Commission Expires: 

 

STATE OF ____________________  

) ss. 

COUNTY OF __________________  

 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on _____________________________ , 20____, 

 

by _____________________  as __________________________ of _____________________  

a(n) ____________, on behalf of the corporation. 

                                                                                 Notary Public in and for the State of  
My Commission Expires: 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 43 
   

 

 

Exhibit A     Landfill or Transfer Station Services for     
Residents (the Proposal) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 44 
   

 

 

Exhibit B Proposal (Later) 
 

  

  

  

  

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
  
 

RFP: Disposal Services  Page 45 
   

 

Exhibit C Prices (Later) 

 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
15c 

MEETING DATE:  June 17, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  James A. Mannato 
                                      Town Attorney 
 
SUBJECT:  Authorization for the Town of Florence to                                       
purchase APN 200-41-017 (Ophelia A. Padilla Trust property). 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Ophelia A. Padilla Trust Property 
June 17, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to authorize the Town Manger to enter into a contract to purchase APN 200-41-
0170 (Ophelia A. Padilla Living Trust property) for an amount of $32,500.00 and to 
complete all documents related to this conveyance. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
If this acquisition is approved as presented, staff will take the next steps to combine the 
subject lot with the adjacent Silver King Marketplace property so that we are able to 
enhance the outdoor space for the Silver King Marketplace and provide a high quality 
open space at the north end of the Main Street core. Plans would include the 
abandonment of Granite Street that now divides the two lots. Staff is envisioning an 
inviting open space area that provides shade, grass areas, seating areas and an 
environment that is comfortable for outdoor gatherings and small events. The outdoor 
space will provide an extension of the indoor space at the Silver King Marketplace, 
which should promote the Silver King’s potential to include more restaurants. Staff and 
the family members of Ophelia A. Padilla, a former resident that cared deeply about 
Florence, would also like the park plans to include a plaque commemorating the former 
owner of this parcel. 
 
The representatives of the Trust have agreed to sell the subject lot to the Town for the 
amount of the appraisal. Staff has spoken to consultants that may be willing to offer 
planning and engineering services for this project leading to the development of a 
Design Concept Plan for the park. The park designs would be vetted and finalized 
through a work-session process to ensure support for our efforts. These plans would 
then be prepared for a Design-Build contract that would need to be bid out through the 
regular procurement process.  
 
  



Ophelia A. Padilla Trust Property 
June 17, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The purchase price of the subject lot, plus any funds that may be expended to develop 
a park on the subject site and long-term operational/maintenance costs. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize the Town Manger to enter into a contract to purchase APN 200-41-0170 
(Ophelia A. Padilla Living Trust property) for an amount of $32,500.00 and to complete 
all documents related to this conveyance. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Real Estate Contract/Deed 
Property Appraisal 
Title Report 
 



REAL ESTATE PURCHASE CONTRACT 
 

1. RECITALS.    This Contract dated this 17th day of June, 2013, by and between the 
Town of Florence, an Arizona municipal corporation, (“Purchaser”), and Cecilia M. 
Petty and L. Henry Padilla, Successor Trustees of the Ophelia A. Padilla Living Trust 
dated January 12, 2007, collectively referred to herein as (“Seller”). 

 
2. OFFER.   Seller has offered to purchase and Purchaser has agreed to sell the premises 

generally located in Florence, Arizona known as Pinal County Assessor’s Parcel No. 
200-41-017(“the Property”).  

 
3. PROPERTY DESCRIPTION AND OFFER.   Seller agrees to sell and Purchaser 

agrees to purchase the Property, more particularly described as: 
 

All of Block 78 and the East 20 feet by 125 feet adjoining, Townsite of 
Florence, according to the Plat on file in the Office of the Pinal County 
Recorder in Book 1 of Maps, page 2. 

 
which includes, at no additional cost to Purchaser, all fixtures and improvements 
thereon, as well as the following items, if any, owned by Seller and presently located 
on or in the Property: electrical distribution systems including but not limited to power 
panels, ducting, conduits and disconnects, lighting fixtures; telephone distribution 
systems including but not limited to lines, jacks and connections; utility lines, meters 
and connections, if any, collectively, (the “Property”). All fixtures and improvements 
shall be free of liens and encumbrances unless otherwise specified. 
 

4. PERSONAL PROPERTY. Personal Property included: None.  
 
5. PURCHASE PRICE . Full purchase price of the Property is $32,500.00 (Thirty Two 

Thousand Five Hundred Dollars, USD). The Purchase Price shall be payable as 
follows: 

 
A. Seller shall receive a certified check from Purchaser drawn on the National 

Bank of Arizona in the amount of $32,500.00 (Thirty Two Thousand Five 
Hundred Dollars, USD).  

 
6. CLOSE OF ESCROW.   Purchaser and Seller hereby agree that the “Close of 

Escrow” shall occur upon recordation of the deed and any other documents required to 
complete this transaction in the office of the Pinal County Recorder. The parties 



 2

expressly agree that the failure of any party to comply with the terms and conditions 
of this Contract by the scheduled Close of Escrow shall constitute a material breach of 
this Contract. 

 
A. Purchaser and Seller shall comply with all terms and conditions of this 

Contract and Close Escrow on June 17, 2013, but in any event no later than 
June 19, 2013. Any other closing date requires the written mutual agreement 
of Purchaser and Seller. 

 
B. Possession and occupancy of the Property shall be delivered to Purchaser at 

the Close of Escrow.  
 

7. SELLER’S RESPONSIBILITY REGARDING LIENS.  Seller shall keep the 
Property free and clear of liens, and shall indemnify and hold Purchaser harmless 
from all liability, claims, demands, damages and costs resulting from such liens, if 
any. 

 
8. FINAL WALKTHROUGH.   Seller hereby grants Purchaser and any 

representative of Purchaser reasonable access to conduct a final walkthrough of the 
Property for the purpose of satisfying Purchaser that any repairs agreed to by Seller 
have been completed and further, that the Property is in substantially the same 
condition as on the date of the mutual execution of the Contract. Seller shall make 
the Property available for the final walkthrough. If Purchaser does not conduct such 
walkthrough, Purchaser specifically releases Seller of any liability. 

 
9. SELLER’S RESPONSIBILITY REGARDING FINAL WALKTHRO UGH.  

Seller shall make the Property available for all inspections during the Due Diligence 
Period and final walkthrough. Seller understands that the inspections and final 
walkthrough require that all utilities be on and the Seller is responsible for providing 
same at Seller’s expense. 

 
10. SANITATION AND WASTE DISPOSAL.  Purchaser is aware and Seller 

warrants that the Property is on a sanitary sewer system or has sanitary sewer 
service available. 

 
11. CHANGES DURING ESCROW. Seller shall immediately notify Purchaser in 

writing: (i) of any changes in the disclosures made herein, in the Seller Property 
Disclosure Statement, or otherwise; (ii) if Seller modifies any existing lease or 
other agreement affecting the Property; or (iii) if Seller enters into any new leases, 
rental agreements, service contracts or other agreements affecting the Property. 



 3

Purchaser shall be allowed five (5) days after receipt of any such notice to provide 
written notice to Seller of any items disapproved.  

 
12. SELLER PROPERTY DISCLOSURE STATEMENT (“SPDS”).  Purchaser 

hereby waives the requirement of a SPDS. 
 
13. ADDITIONAL SELLER DISCLOSURES AND INFORMATION.  Seller shall 

provide to Purchaser the following disclosures and information pertinent to the 
Property: (1) any information known to Seller that may adversely affect the 
Purchaser’s use of the Property; (2) any known or pending special assessments, 
association fees, liens, encumbrances, claims or litigation pertaining to the 
Property; (3) copies of covenants, conditions and restrictions, articles of 
incorporation, by-laws, other governing documents and any other documents 
required by law; (4) financial statements, copies of current rent rolls, lists of 
current deposits, personal property lists, copies of leases, rental agreements or 
service contracts; (5) a copy of the most recent survey, if available; and (6) any and 
all other agreements, documents, studies, or reports relating to the Property in 
Seller’s possession or control, provided however, that Seller shall not be required 
to deliver any report or study if the written contract that Seller entered into with the 
consultant who prepared such report or study specifically forbids the dissemination 
of the report to others. The Purchaser shall provide written notice to Seller prior to 
the execution of this Contract of any items disapproved. 

 
14. NO SELLER OR TENANT BANKRUPTCY, PROBATE OR INSO LVENCY 

PROCEEDINGS.  Seller has no notice or knowledge that any tenant on the 
Property is the subject of a bankruptcy, probate or insolvency proceeding. Further, 
Seller is not the subject of a bankruptcy, insolvency or probate proceeding. 

 
15. SELLER’S NOTICE OF VIOLATIONS.  Seller represents that Seller has no 

knowledge of any notice of violations of Town, County, State or Federal building, 
zoning, fire or health laws, codes, statutes, ordinances, regulations or rules filed or 
issued regarding the Property. If Seller receives notice of violations of any of the 
aforementioned prior to the Close of Escrow, Seller shall immediately notify 
Purchaser in writing. Purchaser shall have five (5) days after receipt of such notice 
to provide written notice to Seller of any items disapproved.  

 
16. TITLE AND VESTING.  Taking title may have significant legal, estate planning 

and tax consequences. Purchaser should obtain legal and tax advice. 
 



 4

A. Purchaser will take title in name of the “Town of Florence, an Arizona 
municipal corporation”.  

 
17. TITLE COMMITMENT AND TITLE INSURANCE.  Purchaser has obtained 

at Purchaser’s expense a Standard Owner’s Title Insurance Policy showing that 
title is vested in the Ophelia A. Padilla Living Trust dated January 12, 2007.  

 
18. FORM OF TITLE.  Seller shall convey title by quitclaim deed. 
 
19. POST CLOSING MATTERS.  The parties shall promptly adjust any item to be 

prorated that is not determined or determinable at Close of Escrow as a Post 
Closing Matter by appropriate cash payment to the other party outside of the 
escrow when the amount due is determined. Purchaser and Seller agree that 
Escrow Company and Broker(s) are relieved of any responsibilities for said 
adjustment. 

 
20. ASSESSMENTS.  The amount of any assessment that is a lien as of the Close of 

Escrow shall be: Paid in full by Seller. 
 
21. IRS and FIRPTA REPORTING.  Seller agrees to comply with IRS reporting 

requirements. If applicable, Seller agrees to complete, sign and deliver to 
Purchaser a certificate indicating whether Seller is a foreign person or a non-
resident alien pursuant to the Foreign Investment in Real Property Tax Act 
(FIRPTA). Seller acknowledges that if the Seller is a foreign person, the Purchaser 
must withhold a tax equal to 10% of the purchase price, unless an exemption 
applies. 

 
22.  WARRANTIES. 
 

A. Seller Warranties.  Seller warrants and shall maintain and/or repair the 
Property so that, at the earlier of possession of the Property or Close of 
Escrow, all heating, cooling, mechanical, plumbing and electrical systems 
(including swimming pool and/or spa, motors, filter systems, cleaning 
systems, and heater, if any), and built-in appliances will be in working 
condition or as otherwise agreed in this Contract. Seller also warrants that, at 
the earlier of possession or Close of Escrow, the Property shall be in 
substantially the same condition as on the date of the mutual execution of the 
Contract. 

 



 5

B. Purchaser Warranties.  Purchaser warrants that Purchaser has disclosed to 
Seller any information that may materially and adversely affect the 
Purchaser’s ability to close escrow or complete the obligations of this 
Contract. At the earlier of the removal of all contingencies, possession of the 
Property or Close of Escrow, (a) Purchaser warrants to Seller that Purchaser 
has conducted all desired independent investigations and accepts the 
Property and (b) Purchaser acknowledges that there will be no Seller 
warranty of any kind.  

 
23. WARRANTIES THAT SURVIVE CLOSING.   
 
 Prior to the Close of Escrow, Seller warrants that payment in full will have 

been made for all rental and/or privilege taxes, labor, professional services, 
materials, machinery, fixtures, or tools within the 150 days immediately 
preceding the Close of Escrow in connection with the construction, 
alteration, or repair of any structure on or improvement made to the 
Property. Seller warrants that the information in Paragraph 10 above 
regarding connection to, or the availability of a public sewer system is 
correct to Seller’s knowledge. Seller warrants that Seller has disclosed to 
Purchaser and Broker(s) all material latent defects and any information 
concerning the Property known to Seller, which materially and adversely 
affect the consideration to be paid by Purchaser. 

 
24. REMEDIES.  The parties agree to the remedies for breach of the Contract 

indicated below. 
 

A. If Purchaser is in Breach:  
 
 All Rights and Remedies: Seller may cancel this Contract pursuant to 

Paragraph 30 below and/or proceed upon any claim or remedy that Seller 
may have in law or equity. 

 
B. If Seller is in Breach: All Rights and Remedies: Purchaser may cancel this 

contract pursuant to Paragraph 30 below, shall be entitled to the return of the 
Earnest Money, if any, and/or proceed upon any claim or remedy that 
Purchaser may have in law or equity. 

 
25. MEDIATION.  Seller and Purchaser agree to mediate any dispute or claim arising 

out of or relating to this Contract, any alleged breach of this Contract, or services 
provided in relation to this Contract, claims for Earnest Money or representations 



 6

made by the Seller or Purchaser in connection with the sale, purchase, financing, 
condition, or other aspect of the Property to which this Contract pertains, including, 
without limitation, allegations of concealment, misrepresentation, negligence and/or 
fraud before resorting to court action. Mediation is a process in which the parties 
meet with an impartial person who helps to resolve the dispute informally and 
confidentially. Mediators cannot impose binding decision. The parties must agree 
and sign an agreement before any settlement reached at the mediation is binding. 
Mediation shall take place in the State of Arizona and County of Pinal. All 
mediation costs shall be paid equally by the parties to the Contract. 

 
26. EXCLUSIONS FROM MEDIATION.  The following matters are excluded from 

mediation hereunder: (a) any action brought in the Small Claims Division of an 
Arizona Justice Court (up to $2,500), so long as the matter is not thereafter 
transferred or removed from the Small Claims Division; (b) judicial or nonjudicial 
foreclosure or other action or proceeding to enforce a deed of trust, mortgage, or 
agreement for sale; (c) an unlawful entry or detainer action; (d) the filing or 
enforcement of a mechanic’s lien; or (e) any matter that is within the jurisdiction of a 
probate or bankruptcy court. The filing of a judicial action to enable the recording of 
a notice of pending action, or order of attachment, receivership, injunction or other 
provisional remedies shall not constitute a waiver of the obligation to mediate under 
this provision, nor shall it constitute a breach of the duty to mediate. 

 
27. ATTORNEYS FEES AND COSTS.  If Seller or Purchaser files suit against the 

other to enforce any provision of this Contract or for damages sustained by reason of 
its breach, all parties prevailing in such action, on trial and appeal, shall receive their 
reasonable attorney’s fees and costs as awarded by the court. Costs shall include, 
without limitation, reasonable attorney’s fees, expert witness fees, fees paid to 
investigators and court costs. 

 
28. CANCELLATION.  Any party who wishes to cancel this Contract because of any 

material breach by another party, and who is not in material breach except as 
occasioned by a material breach by the other party, may cancel this Contract by 
delivering written notice of cancellation to either the breaching party or the Escrow 
Company stating the nature of the breach. Cancellation shall become effective 
immediately upon delivery of the written notice of cancellation to either the 
breaching party or the Escrow Company. 

 
29. RISK OF LOSS.  If there is any loss or damage to the Property between the date of 

mutual execution of this Contract and the Close of Escrow or possession of the 
Property, whichever is earlier, by reason of fire, vandalism, flood, earthquake or act 



 7

of God, the risk of loss shall be borne by the Seller, provided, however, that if the 
cost of repairing such loss or damage would exceed ten percent (10%) of the 
purchase price, either Purchaser or Seller may elect to cancel the Contract by written 
notice pursuant to Paragraph 28 above. 

 
30. SUBSEQUENT OFFERS.  Purchaser acknowledges that Seller has the right to 

accept subsequent offers until the Close of Escrow. Purchaser understands that any 
subsequent offer accepted by the Seller must be a backup offer, namely, contingent 
on the cancellation of this Contract. 

 
31. ARIZONA LAW.  This Contract shall be governed by Arizona law and the 

jurisdiction and venue of any legal action relating to this Contract or the breach 
thereof shall be in an Arizona court of competent jurisdiction located in Pinal 
County, Arizona. 

 
32. FUTURE EFFECT.  The parties acknowledge that time is of the essence in 

performance of the obligations described herein. All the provisions hereof shall inure 
to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties hereof 
subject to the provisions of Paragraph 35 below. 

 
33. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Contract is declared void or 

unenforceable, such provision shall be severed from this Contract, which shall 
otherwise remain in full force and effect. If any applicable law or court of competent 
jurisdiction prohibits or excuses either party from undertaking any contractual 
commitment to perform an act hereunder, this Contract shall remain in full force and 
effect, but the provision requiring such action shall be severed from this Contract. 

 
34. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Contract and any addenda and attachments, shall 

constitute the entire agreement between Purchaser and Seller, and shall supersede 
any other written or oral agreements between Purchaser and Seller. This Contract, 
including any extension of time periods referenced herein, can be modified only by a 
writing signed by Purchaser and Seller. A fully executed facsimile copy of the entire 
Contract shall be treated as an original Contract. This Contract and any other 
documents required by this Contract may be executed and delivered by facsimile and 
in any number of counterparts, which shall become effective upon delivery as 
provided for herein. All counterparts shall be deemed to constitute one instrument, 
and each counterpart shall be deemed an original. All references to days in this 
Contract shall be construed as calendar days. 

 
 



 8

 
35. NAMING.  The Property shall be named by Purchaser as “Padilla Park at Silver 

King Plaza”.  
 
36. ASSIGNMENT.  This Contract may not be assigned by Seller without the written 

approval of the Town of Florence. 
 

 
THE UNDERSIGNED AGREES TO PURCHASE THE PROPERTY ON THE TERMS 
AND CONDITIONS HEREIN STATED AND ACKNOWLEDGES RECEIPT OF A 
COPY HEREOF. 

 
 PURCHASER – TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA   
 

By: _______________________________  Date: ___________________ 
  Tom J. Rankin, Mayor     
 
  

Attest: _____________________________ 
  Lisa Garcia – Town Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form: ________________________________ 
    James E. Mannato – Town Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 9

 
THE UNDERSIGNED AGREE TO SELL THE PROPERTY ON THE TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS HEREIN STATED AND ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF A COPY 
HEREOF. 
 
SELLER – OPHELIA A. PADILLA LIVING TRUST dated JANU ARY 7, 2007  
 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
 L. Henry Padilla – Successor Trustee 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
 Cecilia M. Petty – Successor Trustee      
 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 
     ) ss. 
County of Pinal   ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged and executed before me this        day of June, 2013, 
by L. Henry Padilla and Cecilia M. Petty who, being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing 
instrument by and on behalf of OPHELIA A. PADILLA LIVING TRUST dated JANUARY 7, 2007, for the 
purposes therein stated. 
 
My commission expires:    _________________________________ 
       Notary Public 
     
 

 
 
 
   















When recorded, return to: 
Lisa Garcia 
Town Clerk 
Town of Florence 
P.O. Box 2670 
Florence, AZ 85132 

 

QUITCLAIM DEED 
 

For the consideration of Ten Dollars, and such other valuable consideration, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by Grantor and Grantee, 
 
The OPHELIA A. PADILLA LIVING TRUST dated JANUARY 7, 2007, by and 
through its Successor Trustees, L. Henry Padilla and Cecilia M. Petty, hereafter called the 
Grantor, hereby quitclaims to the Town of Florence, Arizona, an Arizona municipal 
corporation, hereafter called the Grantee, any and all right, title and interest which 
Grantor may hold in the following real property located in Pinal County, Arizona: 
 

Pinal County Assessor’s Parcel No. 200-41-017, and further 
described as:  

 
All of Block 78 and the East 20 feet by 125 feet adjoining, Townsite of Florence, 
according to the Plat on file in the Office of the Pinal County Recorder in Book 1 of 
Maps, page 2. 

 
Together with all and singular the tenements, hereditaments, and appurtenances thereunto 
belonging or in any wise appertaining, the revisions and revision, remainders, rents, 
issues and profits thereof.  
 
EXEMPT PURSUANT TO A.R.S.§ 11-1134(A)(4). 
 
 DATED as of this 17th day of June, 2013. 
 
 
____________________________________ 
L. Henry Padilla – Successor Trustee 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Cecilia M. Petty – Successor Trustee      
 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 
     ) ss. 
County of Pinal   ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged and executed before me this        day of 
June, 2013, by L. Henry Padilla and Cecilia M. Petty who, being authorized to do so, 
executed the foregoing instrument by and on behalf of OPHELIA A. PADILLA LIVING 
TRUST dated JANUARY 7, 2007, for the purposes therein stated. 
 
My commission expires:   _________________________________ 

Notary Public 
 
_________________________________ 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 


	June 17, 2013 Agenda
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5

	6. MRCFD1
	6a. MRCFD1 Public Hearing Budget and Resolution No. MRCFD1 124-13
	6b. MRCFD1 Public Hearing Tax Levy and Ordinance No. MRCFD1 110-13
	6c. Resolution No. MRCFD1 125-13 Sixth Amendment of Waivers

	8. MRCFD2
	8a. MRCFD2 Public Hearing Budget and Resolution No. MRCFD2 224-13
	8b. MRCFD2 Public Hearing Tax Levy and Ordinance No. MRCFD2 209-13

	10. SPECIAL MEETING
	10a. Public Hearing Budget and Resolution No. 1397-13

	12. PUBLIC HEARING & PRESENTATIONS
	12a. Public Hearing TNT Property Tax Levy and Ordinance No. 596-13
	12b. Public Hearing and Recommendation for Dollar General Liquor License App

	13. CONSENT
	13a. Windmill Winery Wine Fair License
	13b. Resolution No. 1401-13 Smartworks Pluc Inc. Agreement
	13c. Town Manager's Contract Amendment
	13d. Town Attorney Contract 2013-2014
	13e. TownMagistrate Contract 2013-2014
	13f. Judy Hughes IDA Appointment
	13g.Equipment purchase from LN Curtis
	13h. Extrication Equipment for Ladder Municipal Emergency Svcs
	13i. Operation Stonegarden Grant and Resolution No. 1404-13
	13j. May 13, 2013 TC Minutes
	13j. May 20, 2013 TC Minutes

	13k i. November 28, 2012 HDAC Minutes
	13k ii. March 20. 2013 Library Minutes
	13k ii. April 17 2013 Library Minutes

	13k iii. February 7, 2013 PZ Minutes
	13k iii. February 21, 2013 PZ Minutes


	14. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	14a. IGA with ADOT for Roundabout at SR 287 and SR 79b

	15. NEW BUSINESS
	15a. Resolution No. 1402-13 Employee Compensation Plan - 2013-2014
	15b. Transfer Station Services for Residents
	15c. Ophelia A Padilla Trust Property Purchase




